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Notice to reader: This Listing Statement is prepared and filed with respect to an application by
Homeland Uranium Ine. for listing on the Canadian Securities Exchange (the “CSE”),
Homeland Uranium Inc, currently operates under the name “Western Uranium” {the
“Company™), until its formal narme is changed to Western Uraniwm Corpotation following a
special meeting of shareholders called for Decembet 15, 2014,

In connection with the listing on the CSE, the Company will complete a 1 for 800 consolidation

of its common shares (the “Conselidation”} following its special meeting of shareholders called
for December 15, 2014,

As sufficient sharcholders of the Company have already confirmed that they will vote in favour
of the Consolidation and name change to “Western Uranium Corporation”, upon listing on the
CSE the Company will be referred to thereon as ""Western Uranium” and the Company’s
common shares will irade on an "if, as and when” Consolidated basis until the Consolidation

and name change are completed, After that time, trading of the Company’s shares on the CSE
will be on a '"net settlement” basis.
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This Listing Statement has been completed and filed by Homeland Uraniuwm Inc. dba Western
Uranium (the “Issuer”) in connection with the company’s application for a listing on the
Canadian Securities Exchange (the “CSE”).

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Listing Statement contains “forward locking information” which may include, but is not
limited to, statements with respect to the future financial or operating performance of the Issuer, its
subsidiaries and its projects, timing and likelihood of obtaining government approval for
exploration and other operations, the future price of uranium, explotation expenditures, costs and
timing of the development of new deposits, costs and timing of fiature exploration, requirements for
additional capital and availability of future financing, environmental risks, reclamation expenses,
title disputes or claims, limitations of insurance coverage and the timing and possible outcome of
legislative and regulatory matters. Often, but not always, forward looking statements can be
identified by the use of words such as “plans”, “expects”, “is expected”, “budget”, “scheduled”,
“estimates”, “forecasts”, “intends”, “anticipates”, or “believes™ or variations (including negative
variations) of such words and phrases, or state that certain actions, events or results “may”, “could”,
“would”, “might” or “will” be taken, occur or be achieved, Accordingly, readers should not place
undue reliance on forward looking statements. Forward looking statements involve known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual results, performance or
achievements of the Issuer and/or its subsidiaries to be materially difforent from any future results,
performance or achievements exprossed or implied by the forward looking statements. Such factors
include, among others, lack of a statutory framework. for uranium mining in the country of Niger
(notwithstanding the Issuer’s plan to effectively remove its property in Niger from the Issuer as
described in this Listing Statement), the lack of access to historic drill core, delays in obtaining
- governmental and regulatory approvals, uncertainty of acquiring necessary drilling permits, general
business, economic, competitive, political, social and security uncertainties; the actual results of
current exploration activities; actual results of reclamation activities; conclusions of econormic
evaluations; changes in project parameters as plans continue to be refined; future prices of uranium;
possible variations of geologicel parameters; failure of equipment to operate as anticipated;
accidents, labour disputes and other risks of the mining industry; political instability, insurrection,
terrorism or war; delays in obtaining financing or in the completion of exploration, development or
construction activities, as well as those factors discussed in the heading entitled “Risk Factors” in
this prospectus, Although the Issuer has attempled to identify important factors that could cause
actual actions, events or results fo differ materially from those described in forward looking
statements, there may be other factors that cavse actions, events or resulis to differ from thoge
anticipated, estimated or intended.

INTERPRETATION

In this Listing Statement, all references to “$” or dollars are to Canadian dollars, unless otherwise
specified,
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2, Corporate Structure

2.1 The Issuer’s full corporate name is Homeland Uranium Ine, having its registered and prineipal
place of business at Suite 2702, 401 Bay Street, Toronto ON M5H 2Y4. The Issuer has registered
the business name of Western Uranium and will be carrying on business vnder that name,

2.2 The Issuer was incorporated pursuant to the Business Corporations Act (Ontario) as 2123493
Ontario Inc. On Janvary 19, 2007 the Issuer amended its articles to change its name to Homeland
Uranjum Ioc. On June 26, 2007, the Issuer amended its articles to remove resirictions on the
transfer of shares, increasing the minimum number of directors to 3 and allowing the directors to
increase the size of the board in between meetings of shareholders,

2.3 The current corporate organization chart for the Issuer is as follows:

Following the listing of the Common Shares, the Issuer intends to complete a reorganization (the
*Spin Out”) whereby the Issuer’s shares of Pan African Uranium Corporation (“PAUC”) will be
distributed to the shareholders of record of the Tssuer on November 3, 2014 on a pro rata basis. If
approved, this will result in the current shareholders of the Issuer owning the shares of PAUC
directly and therefore PAUC will no longer be a subsidiary of the Issuer, The completion of the

Spin Out is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Issuer, For additional information,
sco section 3,1 of this Listing Application.

The Tssuer has also eatered into a share exchange agreement dated as of November 6, 2014 to
acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares of PRM (as hereinafter defined, On completion of
the Acquisition (as hereinafter defined) of PRM, PRM will be a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Homeland Uranium Ine. (USA) (“HULUSA™). PRM is the owner of the Assets (as hereinafter
defined), which form the basis of the business of the Issuer on a go forward bagsis, For further
details on the Acquisition, please see section 3.1 of this Listing Statement.

Following the completion of the Acquisition, Consolidation, Name Change and the Spin Out, the
corporate structure of the Issuer will be as follows:
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2.4 This Listing Statement is an initial application and is not an application resolting from a
fondamental change.

2.5 As a Canadian incorporated public issver, the Issuer is subject to Canadian corporate legislation
with respect to the governance principles set out in Policy 4 of the CSE.

3. General Development of the Business
3.1 General

In February, 2012, the Issuer closed a non-brokered private placement financing of 55,000,000
common shares at $0.005 per common shere for gross proceeds of $275,000. The common shares
werte subject to a four-month hold period in accordance with requisite securitics laws.

In February, 2013, the Issuer clesed a non-brokered private placement of 85,000,000 units at $0.005
per unit for gross proceeds of $425,000. Bach unit consisted of the following;

1) 1 common share; and

(i) 1 common share purchase warrant entitling the holder thereof to buy one common share at a
price of $0.01 per share, expiring in 24 months by February 2015, The fair value of these
watrants was calculated with the Black-Scholes pricing model. Using the assumptions of? (1)
risk free interest rate of 1.0%, (2) expected volatility of 139%, (3) cxpected life of 1 year, and
(4) dividend yield of 0.0%, the fair value attributed fo each watrant was $0,0012, or $103,000
in aggregate. The remaining proceeds of $322,000 were attributed to the common shares.

On March 4, 2013 the Issuer received renewal of its eight urantum concessions (the “Niger Assets”)
from the Minister of Mines and Industrial Development of the Government of Niger for a further
three years. The Niger Assets are held by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer, and as discussed
below, subject to obtaining shareholder approval and compliance with other legal and regulatory
requirements, the Issuer plans to distribute the shares of this subsidiary to certain of its shareholders
shortly after the Issuer has been listed on the CSE.

Ag of November 6, 2014 the Issuer entered into a share exchange agreement with various parties to
acquire (the “Acquisition”) all of the issued and outstanding ownership interests of Pinon Ridge
Mining LLC (“PRM”) in consideration for 8,800,000,000 (8.8 billion) shares of the Issuer priced at
$0,00375 per share for a total value of $33,000,000. The assets of PRM consist of the San Rafael
Uranium Project, which will be the Issuer’s only material property, and six other uranium and/or
vapadium exploration properties (namely the Sunday Mine Complex, the Van 4 Mine, the Yellow
Cat Project, the Dunn Mine Complex, the Farmer Girl Mine, and the 8age Mine Project) which are
not currently material to the Issuer (the “Assels™). At a meeting of shareholders to be held on
December 23, 2014, the Issuer will seek approval to complete a consolidation of the Issuer’s
outstanding Common Shares on the basis of one (1} post-consolidated Common Share for each
eight hundred (800) pre-Consolidation Common Shares (the “Consolidation) and to change the
name of the Issuer to Western Uranium Corporation (the “Name Change”) as well as the Spin Out.

On November 20, 2014 the Issuer completed a private placement (the “Private Placement”) on the

issuance of 95,055,946 Common Shares priced at $0.0029 per Common Share for gross proceeds of
$275,662.24,

On a post-Consolidation basis, the Issuer is acquiring the PRM for 11,000,000 post-Consolidation
Comimon Shares at a price of $3.00 per pegt-Consolidation Common Share of the Issver, and the
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investors in the Private Placement were issued a total of approximately 118,820 post-Consolidation
Common Shares at a price of $2.32 per share.

Following the completion of the Private Placement and the Acquisition the shareholders of PRM
will own approximately 96.6% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares, the participants of
the Private Placement will own approximately 0.95% of the issued and outstanding Common

Shares and the current shareholders of the Issuer will own approximately 2.44% of the issued and
outstanding Common Shares.

The purpose of the Spin Out is to preserve the value, if any, in the Niger Assets (being the histotical
asgets of HUI) for the current shareholders of the Issuer. On the completion of the Spin Out, the
Niger Assets, which are owned through PAUC, will no longer be assets of the Issuer, Instead, the
shares of PAUC will be held directly by the sharcholders of HUI on November 3, 2014 prior fo the
completion of the Private Placement and the Acquisition.

Following the completion of the Acquisition and the Spin Out, the principal business of the Issuer
will be the development of the Assets. The balance of this listing statement has been prepared on
the basis that the Acquisition and the Spin Out will be completed, 'The Acquisition will be
completed immediately prior to listing, The Spin Out, Consolidation and Name Change will be
completed following a meeting of shareholders scheduled for December 23, 2014,

3.2 Acquisitions and Dispositions

Please see section 3.1 of this Listing Statement for a description of the Acquisition. The
Acquisition is at arm’s length to the Issuer.

Please also see section 3,1 of thig Listing Statement for a description of the Spin Out and the
Issuer’s plans to separate the Niger Assels from the Issuer.

3.3 Trends, Commitments, Events and Uncertainties

There are significant uncertainties regarding the prices of uranium and the ava;llablhty of equity
financing for the purposes of mineral exploration and development, The price of uranium has
fluctuated widely in recent years and continued volatility in such ptices is expected to continue to
occur. Management is not aware of any trend, commitment, event or utcettainty that could
reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the Issuer’s business, financial condition or
results of operations other than those inherent in the speculative nature of the natural resource sector
as more particularly described in this Listing Statement under the heading “Risk Factors”.

4, Narrative Description of the Business
4.1 General

The Issuer is engaged in the business of evaluation and exploration of uranivm resource properties,
While this has histoxically been done in Niger, West Africa, following the completion of the
Acquisition, the focus of operations will be in the State of Colorado and adjacent areas of the
western United States where the Assets are located.

The Issuer targets properties that have the potential to host economically significant quantities and
concentrations of one or more minetal resource commaodities, principally uranium and vanadium.
Financial success is dependent upon the discovery of a mineral deposit that can be developed and
mined at a profit. The probability of such success is difficult to quantify and the amount of
resulting income, if any, cannot be determined with any certainty. None of the mineral properties
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held by the Issuer are in production and, as such, the Issuer does not currently have operating
income or positive cash flow from operations.

Upon completion of the Acquisition, the Issuer will focus on vranivm and vanadium mine
development and exploration, with the Issuer’s primary focus being the exploration and
development of its San Rafael Uranium Project. The Issuer also plans to undertake and complete
steps fo advance its understanding of the potential of the other properties included in the Assets and,
where appropriate, to identify and pursue exploration plans for those other properties. The Issuer’s

US opetations will be conducted thtough the Issuer’s wholly-owned Delaware subsidiary, Pinon
Ridge Mining LLC (*PRM™).

On August 18, 2014 PRM completed the acquisition of property interests covering 9 former
operating uranium mines from Energy Fuels Ine, From early 2014 until the end of the third quarter
of 2014, wranium prices have increased from US$ 34.30 per pound (January 3, 2014) to US$ 35,50
per pound (September 30, 2014). For the petiod from August 1, 2014 to September 30, 2014,
uranium prices have risen from US$ 28.50 1o US$ 35,50 per pound, or 35%. Currently, uranium is
trading at approximately US$ 44,00 per pound. In light of these encouraging price increases, the
Issuer will pursue steps to complete appropriate exploration of the Assets, focusing initially on the

San Rafael Uranium Project, and diligently undertake and complete steps to commence mining
from certain of the Assets.

The Issuer also intends to pursue opportunities to acquire additional properties and to seek out and
realize upon other opportunities that create strategic value for the Issuer and its shareholders.

The Issuer’s common shares are not currently listed for trading on any securities exchange, The
purpose of this Listing Statement is to list the Issuer’s common shares on the CSE.

In the past funding for the Issuer’s operations has been obtained, and for the foreseeable futurs it is
anticipated that the Issuer’s operations will continue to be funded, from private placements of the
Issuer’s securities. The Issuer’s most recent private placement of comivon shares was completed on
November 20, 2014 through a non-brokered private placement whereby $275,662 was raised. In
the near term, the Issuer anticipates funding its operations for the petiod through to September 2015
throngh an additional private placement of Issuer securities 1o raise gross proceeds of approximately
$1,000,000. However, the timing and terms and conditions of that private placement have not been
determined, and if the private placement is completed it may be for a different amount, In any
event, for the foreseeable firture and until the Issuer’s operations produce revenue in amounts
sufficient to cover ongoing expenditures, it is anticipated that the nature and extent of the Issuer’s
operations will depend upon the Issuer’s continuing ability to successfully raise capital for itself
through equity or debt offerings.

The Agsets that were, until Augnst 18, 2014, directly or indirectly held by Energy Fuels Inc. are
discussed in greater detail in section 4.10 of this Listing Statement. The indicated mineral resources
and inferred mineral resources identified on the Issuer’s San Rafael Uranium Project are described
in section 4.10 of this Listing Statement, and in greater detail in the San Rafael Technical Report,
The Issuer has not yet determined whether any of the other properties included in the Assets contain
reserves that are econoruically recoverable, The Issuer’s ability to produce uranium or vanadium
from these properties is dependent upon a number of factors, including environmental risks, legal
and political risks, the discovery of ecconomically recoverable reserves, confirmation of the Issuer's
inferest in the underlying properties, the ability of the Issuer to obtain necessary financing to
complete the develepment and future profitable production or proceeds from the disposition of the
propetties, These risks are discussed in greater detail (hroughout this Listing Statement, particularly
in section 17 vnder the heading “Risk Factors™,
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In light of the Issuer’s objectives for the first year following its listing on the CSE, it has budgeted
approximately $500,000 for its planned expenditures and operating costs for the period through
ending December 31, 2014, and a further $500,000 for the period from January 1, 2015 to
approximately September 30, 2015. This budget provides for the Issuer to continue its exploration
of the Assets, and assumes that no significant activities are undertaken during the cotresponding
period to commence production from any of the Assets. If the Issuer determines to start production
at one of the Assets carlier than planned, it is anticipated that the required funding would have to be
raised through private placements of the Issuer’s securities. With respect to the Issuer’s production
plans, it is important to note that pursuant to the agreements under which the Assets were sold by
Energy Fuels Inc,, the Issuer enjoys an economically favourable tolling agreement with that Tssuer
for processing at White Mesa mill of Enerpy Fuels Inc. that is located at Blanding, Utah, in
reasonably close proximity to the Assets.

As of October 31, 2014, the Issuer has working cepital of approximately $150,000 calculated
assuming the completion of the Private Placement, the Acquisition and the Spin Out,

4.2 The Tssuer currently provides no products or services to others.

4.3 The Issuer currently has no production or sales,

4,4 Following the completion of the Acquisition, the Issuer will be focused on the Assets located in
the State of Colorado and in Utah. There are numerous other competing projects in the region. As
uranium is a commodity, the competition should be considered on a world seale.

4.5 The Issuer does not conduct lending operations,

4.6 Since incorporation there has been no incidence of bankeuptey, receivership or any similar
proceedings against the [ssuer. :

4.7 Since incorporation there have been no restructuring transactions and none is proposed other
than the completion of the Acquisition and the Spin Out.

4.8 The Issuer complies with all existing environmental policies applicable to it.
4.9 The Issuer has no Asset-backed Securities Outstanding,
4.10 Mineral Projects

Materigl Mineral Project: San Rafael Uranium Project

The Issuer has received a technical report prepared under National Instrument 43-101 on its San
Rafael Uranium Project, The report, which is entitled "NI 43-101 Technical Report on the San
Ratacl Uraniwm Project” and is dated November 19, 2014, was prepared by O.J. Gatten of North
American Exploration Inc. (the "San Rafael Technical Report™) and is filed under the Tssuet's
profile at www.sedar.com. The following description of the San Rafael Uranium Project is based

upon the San Rafael Technical Report and reproduces certain sections of that report in their
entirety,

In addition, readers of this Listing Statement and investors in the Issuer should note that:

. certain tables, maps, figures and images contained in the San Rafacl Technical
Report are excluded in the following description; and
. cortain statements in the following description are drawn from or based on reference

- maferials identified in parenthesis, and the cotresponding reference materials are identified in the
"References" section of the San Rafael Technical Report.
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Accordingly, the following is a summary deseription of the San Rafael Uranium Project, and
readers of this Listing Statement and investors in the Issuer should consult the San Rafae] Technical
Report for more information and greater details regarding the San Rafael Uranium Project.

Units of Measure and Defined Terms

Units of Measure

Imperial units are used throughout the Mineral Projects section because the majority of the historic
and exploration data generated on the San Rafael Project’s uranium deposits were originally

measured and reported in Imperial units. Units of measure used in this report with metric
conversions include;
14

o] Linear Measure - 1 foot = 0.3048 meters; 1 mile = 1,609 kilometers;
o Weight -1 peund = 0.454 kilograms; 1 shoxt ton = 0.907 metric tonne; and

o} Area —1 acre = 0,4047 hectare; 1 squate mile = 259 hectares,

Defined Terms

The following is a list of defined terms used in the present section;

AEC ~ Atomic Energy Commission
A.LP,G, - American Institute of Professional Geologists

Asphaltite — Any one of the naturally occurring, black, solid bitumens, which are soluble in carbon.
disulfide and fuse above 230°F,

BLM - Bureau of Land Management

BM — Claims comprising Issuer’s San Rafael land package
CIM — Canadian Institute of Mining

Coffinite — A primary black uranium mineral U(Si04)(OH)4

Corvusite — A blue-black, brown, or purplish secondary vanaditm mineral V20406V205011120,
also known as blue-black (vanadivm) ore.

CS4 — Canadian Securities Administrators

Disequilibrivm — A condition where the chemical uranium content is out of proportion with the
uranium content as determined by a gamma-tay probe (equivalent uranium),

LIT - Bnergy Fuels Inc, parent company of EFR (Energy Fuels Resources Corporation) and
Magnum (Magoum Uranium and Magnum Minerals USA)

EMC — Energy Metals Corporation
elU308 — Bquivalent U308 is an industry standard indirect measurement of the uranium content
within the sphere of measurement of the gamma-ray detector. Grade calculation based on the

gamma radiation emitted by down-hole counts per second and subjected to a complex set of
mathematical equetions, taking into account specific parameters of the probe used, speed of
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logging, size of the bore hole, drilling fiuids, and presence or absence of, and type of drill hole
casing,

Festoon (cross-bedding) — A variety of trough cross-bedding consisting of elongate, semi
cllipsoidal, eroded, plunging troughs or scoop-like structures that are filled by sets of thin laminae
conforming in general to the shapes of the troughs that crosscut each other so only parts of each unit
are preserved, resulting in a festoon-like (a hanging open rope or curve) appearance in section,

Fhuvial — OF or pertaining to a river ot rivers.

G x T — Grade x Thickness derived by multiplying the grade of the intercept times the thickness of
the interval containing the grade.

Garnet - A group of varying colored minerals with the formula A3B2(Si04)3, where A = Ca, Mg,
2 +2

+ +3
Fe , and Mn , and B = Al, Fe , Mn , and Cr. A common accessory mineral in a mumber of
rock types.

Interfluve(s) — The arca(s) between rivers.

ISL ~ In-Bitu Leaching uraniym recovery process using injection wells to pump a leachate solution
into the deposit to dissolve the uranium and then extract the pregnant solution via recovery wells.
The wanium-rich fluid is piped to a recovery plant where it is extracted from the solution via ion
exchange and the barren fluid is freated and re-injected into the well field to be used again.

JV —Refers to joint venture effort to explore and/or mine with reference to a mineral property.

Leucoxene — A general term for fine-grained, opaque, whitish alteration products of ilmenite, an
iron-black, opaque mineral FeTiO3,

Lignite — A brownish-black coal intermexliate in maturation between peat and subbituminous coal,
Montroseite — A black primary vanadium mineral VO(OH)

National Uranium Resource Evaluation (NURE) Program -~ This program was conducted by the
U.S. Department of Energy during the mid- fo late-1970’s and early 1980’s to assess the uranium
potential of the United States. Assessment was conducted on 1 x 2 Degree Quadrangle areas and
included geologic studies of known uranium occurrences, deposits, and districts, airborne

radiometric and magnetic surveys, and rock, stream-sediment, and groundwater geochemical
SUrveys.

NSR — Net Smelter Royalty is a royalty that is a certain percentage of the revenue generated by the

mine by selling its product, mimus the expenses of producing the product, usually with a limit on
what can be deducted,

Peneconcordant — In this case, suid of a stratabound sandstone-hosted uranivm deposit in which the

minexalization trends are typically parallel to the depositional trends of the host rock (distinct, well
recognized paleo-stream channels),

PRM — Pinion Ridge Mining LI.C

Rib and furrow — Referting to the bedding-plane expression of micro cross-bedding, consisting of
small, transverse, arcuate markings (convex up current) ocourring in sets and confined to relafively
long, parallel, natrow grooves oriented parallel to the current flow and separated from one snother
by narrow and not altogether continuous ridges.

Stratabound — Said of a mineral deposit confined fo a single stratigraphic unit. The term can refer to

a stratiform deposit (of either sedimentary or igneous origin) or to a randomly otiented orebody
contained within a single stratigraphic unit.
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Tonnage Factor — The number of cubic feet in 2,000 pounds (1 ton) of rock.

Towma]me —~ A gtovp of minersls with the general formula (Na,Ca)(Mg,Te ,

Fe Ai L4)3A16(BO3)38i16018(CH)4 — a comumon accessory mineral in a number of rock
types.

Tuffaceous — Said of sediments containing up to 50% tuff

Tyuyamunite - A yellow secondary uranium mineral Ca(U02)2(V04)2+5-8H20
Uraninite — A black primary uranium mineral U02

USDOE ~ United States Department of Energy

Zircon — A mineral of varying color, usually brown to colotless, ZrSi04 — a common accessory
mineral in a number of rock types.

Property Description and Location

At the time of listing, the Issuer's material property is the San Rafael Uranium Project. This project
is located in Emery County, Utah, and forms a single contiguous claim block covered by 146
unpatented federal lode mining claims and the contiguous State Section 36 Mineral Lease.
Specifically, the 136 BM claims (BM 1-6, BM 10-49, BM55-69, BM 78, BM 104, BM 109-112,
BM 118A-120A, BM 121-122, BM 123A-BM 127A, BM 128-130, BM 146-159, BM 162174, BM
179-187, BM 238-230, BM 242, BM 248, and BM 264) and the Hollie claims (1-10 ) cover about
2,900acres located in all or parts of Sections 11, 13-14, 22-26, and 35, T21S, R14E,SLB & M,
Himery County, Utah, The Utah State Section 36 Mineral Lease MIL-49311, which holds most of a
deposit referred to as the Down Yonder deposit, ties into the southeastern corner of the claim block

in T2185, R14E. The deposit referred to as the Deep Gold deposit lies in Section 23, 1218, R14E, in
the central part of the property.

The BM and Hollie claims all lie on public lands administered by the U.S. Federal Burean of Land
Management (the "BLM"). The majority of the San Rafael property lies north of US Interstate
Highway 70. The Interstate Highway crosses Utah State Section 36 diagonally from northeast to
southwest. The Down Yonder deposit is situated north of the highway,

Most the BM claims included in this project, and all of the Hollie claims, wete staked intermittently
from January through March 2006, Additional claims having been staked in January 2007 and

November 2007, These claims are subject to a 2% net smelter return royalty payable to EMC Utah
Ine., a previous owner of these claims.

The Utsh State Section 36 Mineral Lease (being Mineral Tease No. 49311), comprises
approximately 640 acres, leased from the State of Utah School and Institutional Trust Lands
Administration (SITLA). This Lease is for a period of ten (10} years, expiring on Apsil 30, 2024
and carries a royalty of 8% for fissionable metalliferous materials and four percent (4%) for non-
fissionable metalliferous minerals, based on the gross value of the ores produced from the leased
lands and sold by the Lessee. The annual rentsl fee is US$1.00 per acre per antium.

A 100% interest in the BM claims, Hollie claims and lease forming the San Rafael Uranium Project
was acquired by subsidiaries of Energy Fuels Inc. in May of 2009 and January of 2011, On August
18, 2014, the San Rafael Uraninm Project was sold by a subsidiary of Energy Fuels Inc. to Pifion
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Ridge Mining LLC. On November 20, 2014, the Issuet's wholly owned subsidiary, HUI USA,
acquired all the ownership interests in Pifion Ridge Mining LI, and at that time the Tssuer
therefore became the indirect 100% owner of the San Rafael Uranium Project,

Based on the information provided to the Issuer, the proj ect hag no known environmental liabilities.

The two core uranium deposits of the San Rafael Uranium Project, the Down Yonder deposit and
the Deep Gold deposit, were originally discovered by Continental Oil Company (Conoco) and
Pioneer Uravan geologists in the late 1960s and 1970s to early 1980s, respectively, Exploration
drilling was conducted just east of the core of the Tidwell Mineral Belt and north-northeast of the
Acerson Mineral Belt. The area containing the deposits was considered to contain highly
prospective paleo trunk streamn channel trends, Some of the larger historic producing mines in the
area were Atlas Minerals’ Snow, Probe, and Lucky Mines. The deposits in the San Rafael Uranium
Project are peneconcordant, channel-controlled, sandstone-hosted, trend type, with mineralization

hosted in the upper sandstone sequence of the Salt Wash Member of the Upper Jurassic Morrison
Formation,

In addition to Conoco, Pioneer Uravan, and Atlas Minerals, the US Afomic Hnergy Commission
(AEC) and other companies (Union Carbide, Energy Fuels Nuclear, and others) conducted
exploration drilling and mining in the area. Some of these companies performed historic resource
estimates on both the Down Yonder and Deep Gold deposits, but, they are not considered compliant
with N143-101 standards. These resource estimates are of historical importance, were generated by
genior mining companies with significant uranium exploration and production experience and are

considered as relevant checks to the analysis and conclusions provided in the San Rafael Technical
Report,

No economic evaluation of the mineral resources on the San Rafael Uranium Project was performed
for the I[ssuer. Thus, the estimate that follows is solely a Mineral Resource. The combined
Indicated Minergl Resource for the entire San Rafael Uranium Project comprises a resource of
758,000 tons (@ 0.225% U308 confaining 3,404,600 lbs U308 and an Inferred Mineral Resource of
453,800 tons @ 0.205% U308 containing 1,859,500 Ths U308. Using the historic District average
recovered U308:V205 ratio of 1:1.35, this same tonnage could yield Indicated Mineral Resources
of approximately 4,596,000 pounds V205 at an average grade of 0.30% V203, The same Inferred
Mineral Resource tonnage could yield approximately 2,510,000 pounds V205 at an average grade
of 0.28% V2035, The mineral resource is broken out by Indicated and Inferred as shown in Table 3-
1, below for the varicus deposity within the project area. (Worksheets for the various mineral
- resource areas’ estimations can be found in Appendix I1o the San Rafael Technical Repoit.)

Subsequent to the May 2009 Technical Report on. the Deep Gold deposit, Energy Fuels purchased
{the Hollie claims from Titan Uranivm (January, 2011), giving Energy Fuels the rights to 100% of
the Deep Gold deposit. The mineral resource controlled by the newly acquired Hollie claim portion

is combined in Table 3-1 with the Magnum resources that were previously referred fo as the “West
Deep Gold” (Sturm, 20009),
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Table 3-1 San Rafael Uranium Project Mineral Resources

Subaren of  Imdicated Mineral Indicated Inferred Mineral Inferred Mineral
San Rafael Resources (grade Mineral Resources (grade Resowrees (Ibs)
Property and tons) Resources (Ibs) angd tons)
0.246% U303 2,219,400 UzOg 0.329% U30g 554,500 U30g
Deep Gold 0.33% V205 2,996,000 V2035 045% V205 748,600 V505
incloding 4484
atd Notth 450,250 tons 84,400 tons
Arens
0.177% U30% 985,300 Us0g 0.176% 1303 1,271,800 U308
Down Yonder 0.24% V205 1,335,500 V205 0.24% V205 1,717,000 V203
Area 279,000 tons 361,500 tons
0.340% U303 196,000 1J30g 0.209% U303 33,300 UsOg
Jackrabbit 0.46% v205 264,500 V205 0.28% V205 45,000 V2035
Area 28,800 tons 7,950 tons
(.225% U308 3,404,600 UaOg 0.205% U308 1,859,600 U30g
0.30% v205 4,595,600 V303 0.28% V205 2,510,600 V205
TOTALS 158,050 tons 453,850 tons

Approximately 450,000 feet of historic drilling, conventional and core, from about 450 holes, was
conducted in the areas of the Deep Gold and Down Yonder deposits. Depth to mineralization at the
Deep Gold in Section 23 averages 800 feet, with hole depths averaging approximately 1,000 fect.
The depth to mineralization at the Down Yonder in Section 36 averages 970 feet, with hole depths
averaging approximately 800 feet in Seclion 35 and about 1,100 feet in Section 36. The Issuer
purchased and otherwise acquired most of the available historic exploration data produced by the
previous operators of this project. A 100 hole, 100,000 foot drilling program is warranted to
discover and define additional uranium resources. Total cost for this work would be $US 1.3
million to $US 1.5 million, based on an all-inclusive cost of $US15/foot.

The Tidwell Mineral Belt and the San Rafuel Uranium District have been the sites of considerable
historic exploration drilling and production, with over 4 million pounds of uranivm and 5.4 million
pounds of vanadium produced. Production from the Snow, immediately up dip of the Deep Gold
deposit, which produced for nine years, starting in March 1973 and ending in J anuary, 1982

consisted of 650,292 pounds of U308 contained in 173,330 tons of material at an average grade of
0.188% U308 (Wilbanks, 1982),

Although historic mining in the Tidwell Mineral Belt and at Atlas’s Snow, Lucky, and Probe
Mines, immediately adjacent to the San Rafael Urantum Project's land position boundary has been
by conventional underground methods, the possibility exists that In-situ Leaching (ISL) techniques
for extraction of sandstone-hosted uranivm al the Deep Gold and Down Yonder deposits may he

feasible. To this end, preliminary data collection and hydrologic evaluation to study the viability of
ISL has been recommended.
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Permits from the U.S. Federal Bureaun of Land Management will be required for all exploration and
development activities on the lands covered by the BM and Hollie claims (covering the Deep Gold
deposit) included in the San Rafael Uranium Project. Prospecting and mining permits will also be
required by the Utah Division of Qil, Gas, and Minerals (DOGM). Utah SITLA has administrative
input with DOGM on any permits needed for exploration or mining on Mining Iease-49311
(covering the Down Yonder area).

Accessibility, Climate, Local Resources, Infrastructure and Physiography

The San Rafael Uranjum Project is located on the eastern side of the San Rafael Swell in eagt-
central Utah, approximately 140 air miles southeast of Salt Lake City, The little desert community
of Green River, Utah is located about ten miles to the east. Tn a general sense, the Jssuer's greater
San Rafae] Uranium Project property position lies within a wedge-shaped area, roughly bound
along its northeast edge by US Highway 6-50 and along its southeast edge by Interstate 70.

Access to the San Rafael Uranium Project is excellent and is gained by traveling ten miles
southwest of Green River on Interstate 70 to the Hanksville Bxit (Exit 147) and then turning north .
onto Emery County Road EM 1029, a reasonably well-maintained gravel road. This road leads into
the heart of the BM claim block, and from there access is gained by taking a well marked dirt road

traversing parts of Sections 23 and 24 that leads to the U.8. Geological Survey “Buckmaster”
bench mark,

The eastern part of the Deep Gold deposit is within the Hollie Claim block on the upper bench that
the access road traverses, and the western pait of the deposit is within the BM claims just to the
west on the next lower bench. A sharp escarpment basjcally separates the eastern and western paris
of the Deep Gold deposit, which the access road parily traverses the edge of on its way to the bench
mark, From the bench mark, access to the Dewn Yonder deposit is gained by traversing eross
country for about a mile southeast through relatively flat sage- covered terrain to the heart of the
historic drilling in the north half of Section 36. Even though the south end of the lease in State
Section 36 is traversed by 1-70, vehicle access must use the Exit mentioned above, Access by foot
can be gained by parking off the north side of the Interstate Highway, crossing over the batbed-wire
freeway right-of-way fence, and walking one- quarter to one-half mile into the project area.

Concerning additional Tecal access features, U8, Highway 6-50 crosses just north. of the greater
San Rafael Uranium Project area in a northwesterly direction and is roughly paralleled by the
regional railroad line. Access to the property is generally good year atound, except for periods of
heavy snowstorms during December through February and increased monsoon reins and summer
cloudburst storms during August through October, Access for drilling and ofher exploration
activity is excellent, except during occasional heavy rainy periods which can create heavy flash
flooding and roads mudding-up and becoming impassable.

Climate in the project area is dry, semi-arid to arid, typical of Colorado Plateau physiography that
extends throughout much of Colorado, Utah, Arizona and New Mexico. Winters are relatively
cold, with temperatures as low as 20° below zero Fuhrenheit and nominal snowfalls of 4 to 8 inches
in the months of December and Januaty. Summer daytime temperatures can reach 8 maximum of
105° Fahrenheit, making the project area dry and hot, particularly in late summer. Precipitation, on
average and as expected in a desert environment, ranges from roughly 0.5 inch to 1 inch per month,
resulting in 5 to 7 inches per year, The San Rafael Uranium District lies in the tain shadow of the
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San Rafael Reef, which is just to the west and receives less precipitation than the San Rafacl Swell
or the area immediately to the east neat the town of Green River.

This part of the Colorado Platesu containing the San Rafael Uranium Project area is expressed
through topography characterized by meandering drainages, flat- to gently-dipping mesas and
basins with abrupt scarp breaks and edges, and low relief, Topography of the area is gentle to
modetate, with the overall relief being less than 250 feet. The area specific to the San Rafuel
Uraniuum Project exists as two relatively flat, sage brush-covered benches, The lower bench
contains the western half of the Deep Gold deposit and much of the Jackrabbit resource area, and
the upper one containg the eastern half of Deep Gold deposit and the Down Yonder deposit,
separated by an abrupt north-trending escarpment. The upper bench slopes toward the east.
Another escarpment along the west edge of the claims drops into Buckmaster Draw. Blevations
range from 4,200 to 4,400 feet, with the area cut by scattered intermiitent, arroyos. This
topography/physiography is in sharp contrast to the area immediately to the west that includes a
major physiographic/geologic feature, the San Rafael Swell, where steeply dipping rock units,
hogbacks, flatirons, steep sided mesas, and cliff fronts dominate the landscape, creating spectacular
scenery. At the extreme eastern edge of the Swell, resistant rocks form a prominent ridge or
escarpment known as the San Rafael Reef,

The dominant vegetative pattern in the area is mostly scattered low brush with large areas of bare
ground and patches of grass. Seasonal use of land for livestock grazing is possible, but lack of

surface water and vegetation in the summer months precludes maintaining any livestock without
bringing in water.

Concerning local water sources, the Green and San Rafael Rivers are the only perennial drainages
that flow through the general avea, but they do not cross or cut through the project area. Previous
operators’ internal reports and drill logs mention the water table at a depth of approximately 500 to
800 feet below the surface, suggesting a possible source for process water that may not be as
controversial as the above mentioned rivers and create less impact concerning the use of scarce and
valuable surface water in the region (Pinnick, 1975),

The San Rafael Uranium Project is located in east-central Emery County, which is predominantly
made up of small rural communities of ranchers, farmers, and coal miners, The county population
is about 10,700; the county seat is Castle Dale, and the largest city in the county is Huntington. The
closest infrastructure to the San Rafael Uranium Project area is the small rural community and

neatby town of Green River (population 973), located approximately ten miles to the east and just
north of Interstate 70.

Power is present in the form of a major transmission line from Green River to Price that crosses the

northeast corner of the BM claim block, oniy about one mile north of the Deep Gold deposit and
four miles north of the Down Yonder deposit.

History
San Rafael Uranium District History

The San Rafael Uranium Project is located in the San Rafael Uranium District (Green River
District), which has been sporadically mined and exploted for uranium and vanadiom since 1880
(Trimble and Doelling, 1978). The uranium-vanadium deposits were first discovered in Salt Wash
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Member outcrops by sheepherders in 1880 near what is classically termed the Tidwell Mineral Belt,
The original claims were located by Judge I.W. Warf of Price, Utah, about 1 mile north of the
present position of Interstate 70. Subsequently, ore was shipped to Germany and Europe in the
carly part of the 20th century (1900 to 1911), and minor and sporadic exploration and production
continued up until 1948 (Trimble and Doelling, 1978).

In 1948, uranium prices rose, resulting in renewed exploration and the discovery of a number of
shallow, 40-foot deep deposits. From 1948 to 1956 production increased rapidly to 60,584 tong
having an average grade of 0.25% U308 and 0.44% V205. In 1954, the U.S. Afomic Energy
Commission (AEC) drilled six deep holes in the center of the Tidwell Mineral Belt and intersected
well mineralized material, with private industry subsequently continuing with deeper drilling and
discovering larger deposits at depths exceeding 300 feet. Shafts were sunk and the deposits wete
found to increase in size downdip to the cast from the area where the earlier discoveries had been
made. Subsequent mine development continued 1o outline strings or clusters of deposits whose
total content was 10,000 tons or greater. New mines continued to be developed until 1958 when
the U.S. Government, the major buyer for uranium, modified its policy with the AEC placing
limitations on uranium procurement. Production gradually decreased until 1971 when all mining
ceased in the San Rafael Uranimn District, Much of this historic production came from mines
within and adjacent to the western part of the Issuer’ land holdings, all hosted in upper Salt Wash

Member sandstone just updip from the same rock unit hosting the mineralization digcussed as
resources later in this report.

In the late 1960’s, the electric-generating industry started to regard nuclear energy as a viable
power source for the masses and turned its attention to the exploration for and development of it,
Exploration in the District, in the form of drilling, was renewed and holes to depths of 1,100 feet
extended the area of discoveries downdip and east of the existing mines. Bxploratory drilling east
of the main Tidwell area and northeast of the Acerson Mineral Belt outlined several mineralized
zones and deposits, one of which turned out to be the Down Yonder deposit discovered by Conoco
in 1968 — 1970, In 1972, anothor deposit was discovered and developed at about 600 feet, and the
Snow shaft was sunk on it by Atlas Minerals in 1973, The $now, along with the Probe, both of
which were worked by Atlas until 1982, turned out to be two of the largest mines and biggest
producers in the District, the Snow producing 650,292 pounds of U30g at an average grade of
0.188% U308 and the Probe producing 293,985 pounds of U308 at an average grade of 0.186%
U308 (Wilbanks, 1982). Continued exploratory drilling along the northeast extension of the Snow
and Lucky Mines mineralization ovtlined several mineralized zones and deposits, one of which
turned out to be the Deep Gold deposit discovered by Pioncer Uravan drilling during 1979 through

1981. Production in the District pretty much ceased with the closure of the Snow and the Probe in
1982, both of which, combined, produced nearly 1 million pounds of U308,

To date, in excess of 4.0 million pounds of uranium and 5.4 million pounds of vanadium have been
produced from over fifty mines in the San Rafael Uraniwm District, with most of the ore mined
during the 1950’s and 1970’s to early 1980’s uranium booms, During the latter time period,
several properties in the area were the subject of feasibility studies and some were taken to
production. Some of the companies and governmental organizations conducting work in the
District during these time periods include Atlas Minerals, Conoco, Union Carbide, Four Corners

Uranium, Anaconda, Santa Fe Nuclear, Pioneer Uravan, Utgh Geological and Mineral Survey, and
the AEC.
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Property acquisition and exploration in the area wers actively conducted in the 2005-2009 time
period by numerous companies, Minot production came from a small, shallow mine west of the
Tackrabbit resource area. The msterial from that mine was sold to Denison Mines’ White Mesa
Mill in Blanding, Utah, Production ceased there due to the lower price of wranium throughout
most of 2009 and 2010, Many claims were dropped during the last two years, especially in the

deeper portion of the district. In eatly 2011, some of this land was re- staked by prospectors,
ingpired by the uranium price increase,

The two core deposits discussed sepatately in the following subsections of this report were
described in earlier Technical Reports on the Deep Gold deposit (Sturm, 2009) and the Down
Yonder deposit (Pancoast, 2008). This report updates that information to bring the discussion
current with changes that occurred since those reports were filed,

Deep Gold Uranium Deposit History

Information available to the Issuer indicates that the Deep Gold uranium deposit was originally
discovered in the late 1970°s and early 1980°s a3 a result of exploration drilling conducted by
Pioneer Uravan, Inc. just east of the main producing Tidwell District arca and northeast of the
Acetson Mineral Belt. The area containing the deposit was considered highly prospective within
upper Salt Wash trunk stream chamnel trends as projected northeastward as an extension of Atlas
Minerals” Snow and Lucky Mines’ vranium mineralization and paleo channel system(s). This
favorability was extended just to the east and nottheast into the central part of Section 23 where
both moderate to large size deposits were thought to occur and where Pioneer Uravan’s drilling
ultimately led to the Deep Gold discovery. In essence, the Deep Gold deposit represents the

downdip and northeasterly extension of the Snow and Lucky Mines’ yranium mineralization and
paleo~stream channel trend(s),

In order for the reader to gain a general chronological perspective and background on Deep Gold
deposit’s exploration history, it is important to review some of the main observations made by
project geologists, reference certain historic geologic reports and maps produced by Pioneer
Uravan, Inc. and Aflas Minerals, and present the non-compliant resource estimates made by Atlas
Minerals contained in internal company reports. Although the Issuer considers the estimates to be

historically relevant and significant, it is acknowledged that they do not comply with the gnidelines
0f NI 43-101 and they are not being treated asg such.

The earliest reference to the Deep Gold deposit of which the Issuer is aware is a detailed location
map of holes drilled by Pioneer Uravan, Inc. during the time period 1979 through 1981, A detailed
analysis of this map reveals that 247 holes comprising 235,788 feet of drilling were placed to test
the target during this time period. OF this total, 44,804 feet in 48 holes were drilled in 1979,
150,904 feet in 158 holes were drilled in 1980, and 40,080 feet in 41 holes were drilled in 1981,
Hole depth averaged approximately 960 feet, with mineralization intersected in the upper
sandstone sequence of the Salt Wash Member of the Upper Jurassic Morrison Formation at depths
of generally between 775 and 850 feet (Casey, 1981). Water was intersected at depths ranging
from 500 to 800 feet below the surface as noted in some of the drill logs. Holes were generally
spaced 100 feet apart, Comments made in an Atias Minerals Internal Office Memo indicate that
Pioneer spent approximately US$1 million on their drilling at Deep Gold (Smith, 1984).

In 1984, Atlas Minerals acquired the Deep Gold deposit from Pioneer Uravan, Inc., which was pait
of a 608 vnpatented lode mining claim land package located east of and adjacent to existing claims

16

S:A940\9401 5-HomelandUrandum\CSEListingApplication\03 Forrn 24 - Listing Statement for Homeland Uranium {Pino Ridgelkesblic.doox



containing the Probe, Snow, and Lucky orebodies (Fig. 3). Atlas geologists recognized that a
number of mineralized pods were present on the Deep Gold area and that the paleodepositional and
mineralization trends are both easterly and northeasterly as extensions of the Snow and Lucky
Mines (Hesse, 1984). During 1984 through 1986, Atlag drilled 52 conventional holes on the Deep
Gold in Section 23 for a total of 52,295 feet (Hesse, 1984; Berggren, 1985; Wham, 1986). Of this
total, 24,515 feet in 25 holes were drilled in 1984, 21,560 feet in 21 holes were drilled in 1985, and
6,220 feet in 6 holes were drilled in 1986, Many of Aflas’ holes were placed to extend Pioneer
Uravan drill fences and wers oriented perpendicular (northwest to southeast) to nottheasterly
mineralized trends, with hole-spacing generally averaging 200 feet. Similar to Pioneer Uravan logs,
Atlas logs show that water was encountered at depths ranging from 400 to 825 feet deep in most of
the holes (Henkelman, 1984; Price, 1984 through 1986). Average hole depth was approximately
1,000 feet. Reference is also made in Atflas Minerals Affidavits of Assessment that the actual
underlying mineral claimant for the land coutaining the Deep Gold deposit was Santa Fe Nuclear,
who also appears to be the underlying claimant when Pioneer Uravan drilled the deposit. Tt 1s also
noted in an Aflas summary sheet concerning the proverty that the claims carried a 12% royalty

commencing on production, with a US$20,000 advanced minimum royalty thatvwas due to Santa Fe
Nuclear on February 16" of each year.

According to detailed information contained in an internal Atlas Office Memo anthored by Smith,
Atlas performed a resource calculation for the Deep Gold deposit in March of 1984 prior to its
initial drilling on the property. The report describes a reasonably detailed 43-101 non- compliant
resource cstimate for the Deep Gold deposit based on 239 Pioneer Uravan holes, 122 of which
Atlas considered to be mineralized using a cutoff of 4.0’ @ 0.15% U308, A 25-foot radius or area
of influence was given to each hole, considered by Atlas and Smith to be a conservative approach.
In total, the resource comprises 261,300 pounds of U308 in 57,555 tons of mineralized material at
an average grade of 0.227%, with the tons number arrived al by back-caleunlating. Average
thickness of mineralization is given at 3.4 feet. No breakdown was made of this estimate as to
“possible,” “indicated,” or “inferred” resources. None of the foregoing is considered to be
classified as a reserve estimate, Although the terms “reserve” and “resource” used above and
elsewhere in this report, when historical information is discussed, were estimates produced by
Atlas Minerals, they are not to be relied upen in this report under the definitions required by
National Instrument 43-101, The statements of tonnage and grade above and below are therefore
classified herein for the reader to consider as exploration information of historical significance
only and only to reflect an order of magnitude of the size and grade of the Deep Gold deposit, The
relevance and reliability of the tonnage and grade defined in the historical estimates contained in
this report are based on extensive sampling by rotary and core drilling, and by down-hole gamma-
ray logging, carried out by Pioneer Uravan, Inc. and Atlas Minerals, senior minerals and/or mining
companies, with significant exploration and/or production experience.

Atlas further stated that the deposit had attractive thickness and grade, but that a uranium price of
US40 per pound would be necessary to justify sinking a shaft to mine . As an alternative, Atlas
geologists suggested the possibility that the property conld be accessed through the nearby Probe
shaft, thus reducing mining costs to below US$40 per pound (Smith, 1984),

Atlas performed a second 43-101 non-compliant resource calculation on the Deep Gold deposit in
May of 1983, just subsequent to their 1985 (Price, 1985) drilling campaign. The resource was
given in terms of pounds of U308 drilled out by Pioneer Uravan prior to Atlas’ drilling, along with
the mumber of pounds added as a result of the Atlas drilling. The calculation indicates an historic
resource 0of 649,917 pounds U308 contained in 100,988 tons of material at an average grade of
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0.322% U308, Within this total, Pioneer’s drilling resulted in 519,811 pounds of U308 contained
in 78,548 tons of material, and Atlas’® drilling resulted in adding 130,106 pounds of U308 in
22,440 tons of material. Again, the reader is cautioned that this historic resource estimate is not
qualified under and does not meet current NI 43-101 guidelines, and the Issuer is not treating it as
such, Ttis being presented here for historic information and reference purposes onty,

No information is available to the Issuer regarding ownership of the westetn part of the Deep Gold
deposit in the BM claims area during the period 1986 t0.2004. As previously mentioned, FMC
staked the BM claims in 2005 and 2006, but conducted no exploration or development work on the
property. EMC leage-optioned its entire San Rafael Uranium Property land holdings, including the
Deep Gold area, to Glen Hawk Minerals, Ltd., on June 20, 2005, After conducting no work on the
property, and as a result of financial difficulties and a desire to move into gold exploration, Glen
Hawk retutned the property to EMC only a year later in early June of 2006. As a result of
Magnum’s interest in the uranium potential of the land within the BM claim block, and particularly
of the Deep Gold deposit in Section 23, Magnum approached EMC in 2006 to see if it might be
interested in joint venturing the property in order to move it forward, BMC agreed and a formal IV
arrangement between the two companies was consummated on November 19, 2006,

Magnum has earned an undivided 100% interest in the entire San Rafael property position,
substantially ahead of schedule, by virtue of the aggressive exploration drilling program it

condueted during 2007-2008. To date, no production has come from the Deep Gold uranium
deposit.

Deep Gold Uranium Deposit Ownership History

Concerning the eastern side of the deposit, which lies on the Hollie Claim block (Hollie 1 through
10 claims), little is known about its ownership prior to being controlled by U.S. Energy Corp, and
its partner Crested Corp. in the 2000’s. However, it is known that on May 6, 2006, U.8. Energy
Corp. and Crested (USE Parties) entered into a 50%-50% JV agreement with Uranium Power
Corp. on their Green River North Property, i.e., Hollie { through 10 unpatented lode mining
claims, as per certain work and share requirements outlined in the agreement. Subsequently, on
April 30, 2007, Uranium One Inc, completed the purchase of a package of uranium properties
from U.8. Bnergy Corp., which included the purchase of the Shootaring Canyon uranium mill in
Utab, as well as the contractual tights with Uranium Power Corp, which included the Hollie Claim
block. As aresult, UPC/Urantum One owned that portion of the Deep Gold deposit {east half)
located on the Hollie claims and Magnum, through its 100% earn-in of the EMC JV, owned that
portion (west half) of the deposit located on the BM claims. UPC acquited Uranium One’s 50% of
the Hollie claims in mid-2009. Subsequently, Titan Uranium became owner of UPC. EFR
purchased the rights to the Hollie claims from Titan in January 2011, Therefore, Magnum and
EFR now held all rights fo the entire Deep Gold deposit and nearby associated 4484 and North
deposits areas. Since the Hollie claims were never part of the Magnum/Uranium. One (EMC) Jv,
the 2% NSR royalty due Uranium One on any production elsewhers on the San Rafael Uranium
Project area will not apply to the Hollie claims.

Down Yonder Uranium Deposit History

The Down Yonder uranivm deposit wag originally discovered by Conoco in the late 1960°s and
early 1970%s as a result of exploration drilling conducted just east of the main Tidwell Mineral Belt
area and northeast of the Acerson Mineral Belt. The area containing the deposit, dubbed by
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Conoco geologists as the Acerson-Conoco Mineral Belt (Wentworth, 1970), was considered fo
contain highly prospective areas within upper Salt Wash trunk stream channel trends as projected
north-northeastward from the Acerson Mineral Belt and channel system., This favorability was
projected into Sections 35 and 36 where both moderate to large size deposits were expected to
oceur and where Conoco drilling ultimately led to the Down Yonder discovery. In support of
Conoco’s favorability trend concept, subsequent work by Trimble and Doelling (1978) pointed out
that historic drilling indiceted uranium in Salt Wash sandstone northeast of the Sahara mine in the
Acerson Mineral Belt, which they felt could represent the south end of an important northeast
mineralization trend, extending into Sections 1, 2, and 11, T228, R14E, and Section 36, T218,
R14E, where the Down Yonder deposit is located, Trimble and Doelling (1978) went on further to
say that this area possibly has the best potential for future production in the District.

In order for the reader to gain a general chronological perspective and background on the
property’s exploration history, it i important to review some of the main observations and NI 43-
101 non-compliant resource estimates made by the AEC, Conoco, Union Carbide, and Atlas
Minerals that are contained in internal company reports. For a detailed listing and summation of
these estimates, the reader is referred to Table 8-3, Historic 43-101 Non-Compliant Mineral
Resource and Mineral Reserve Estimates for the Down Yonder uranium deposit. A more detailed
breakdown of the historic resource estimates is discussed below and illustrated in Tables 8-1 and 8-
2. Although the Tssuer considers these estimates to be historically relevant and significant, it is

acknowledged that none of them comply with the guidelines of NI 43-101 and they are not being.
treated as such.-

To the Issuer's knowledge, the earliest reference of Conoco addressing the subject of a resource at
Down Yonder is found in Wentworth (1970), a Grade x Thickness contour map that pinpoints
several areas in Section 36 where the Grade x Thickness of the mineralization approaches or -
exceeds commercial limits in 1970 terms. Wentworth (1970) states that because of the AEC”s vast
expetience in estimating reserves of Colorado Plateau Salt Wash- hosted uranium deposits, Conoco
contracted the ABC to run a computerized statistical analysis on the mineralization encountered in
Section 36. As aresult of this work, a “Sichel Krige Analysis of Five Foot Combined Assay
Values” was compiled, a copy of the corresponding report being in the Issuer's possession. The
Sichel Krige Analysis lists statistically based average grades and fractional tonnages that can be
expected for cerlain grade cutoffs within a mineralized area.

Using the mineralized areas outlined by a Girade x Thickness of 0.10 or greater, a cutoff grade of
0.040% U308, and the computed AEC average mineralization thickness of 9.2 foet, a 43-101non-
compliant indicated and inferred ore reserve plus mining potential of 973,000 tons containing 2.1
million pounds of U308 was determined for several subareas in Sections 35 and 36 (Table 8-3).
This AEC teserve estimate is not qualified under NI 43-101 for anything more than historic
exploration information and the Issuer is not treating it as such,

According to a Union Carbide internal memo authored by Pinnick (1974) concerning the
evaluation of the Down Yonder deposit as submitted to Union Carbide by Conoco in 1974, Conoco
drilled 165 holes on the entire Down Yonder propesty from 1968 through 1970, with drilling
depths varying from 500 feet in the western edge of section 2 to 1,200 feet in the northeast corner
of section 36. Drill depths in the Section 36 deposit area averaged 1,000 feet. Seven of the holes
were cored and the remaining 158 were plug sample drilled. All of the cored holes were drilled
into the deposit in section 36, and cores were submitted to the AEC for petrographic analysis
(Heyse, 1969). Ofthe 165 holes drilled, 128 were placed mostly north of Interstate 70 in the iwo
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sections, 35 and 36, T218, R14W, Pinnick’s 1974 report recommends Union Carbide’s acquisition
of the property from Conoco and further drilling, which took place in 1974 and 1975, The report
goes on further to give a comparison of Union Carbide versus Conoco 43-101 non-compliant

resource estimates for the Dewn Yonder using Conoco’s drilling results, given in contained pounds
of U308, and average thickness and grade as follows;

Table 8-1; Comparison of Union Carbide to Conoco Historic Down Yonder Resoutce Estimates,

mio: hid Congeg
Section 36 1,050,400 1bg 44" 0.26% 1108 1,724,000 1bs 64’  0.167% Uz0g
Section 35 210,0000bs 55" 0.20% U303 345,000 Ibs 8.0°  0.136% Us0g
TOTAL 1,260,400 lbs 467 0.25% U308 2,073,000 Ths 877 0.160% UsOg

The report also describes a separate 43-101 non-compliant resource estimate just for the Down
Yonder Section 36 mineralization in two subatreas, Areas A and B (Table 8-2). A possible 20,000
tons, indicated 133,000 tons, and inferred 92,000 tons are given for a total of 202,000 tons at a

~grade of 0.26% containing a total 1,050,000 pounds of U308 (Table 8-3). No qualification is
made in this Union Carbide historical estimate as to the definition of “possible”, “indicated”, and
“inferred” tons. This breakdown of classification does not qualify the resetve estimate under the
regulation of NI 43-101 for anything more than historic exploration information.

A subsequent 1975 report by Pinnick: further details the above Conoco 43-101 non-compliant
resource estimate on the Down Yonder deposit, congisting of four main areas of mineralization,
Areas A and B Jocated in Section 36, and Areas C and D located in Section 35. Copies of original
Conoco computer print-out shests of mineralized intercepts determined by down-hole pamma-ray
logging of drill-holes defining the above four areas of mineralization are in the Issuet's possession.

Table §-2; Subdivision of Conoco’s Historic Down Yonder Resource Estimates

Area Short Tons Pounds U,0q Thickness Grade % eU,0,
Section 36 A 20,000 320,600 6.0 1T 0.200
B 438,750 1,404,000 6.5t 0.160
TOTAL 518,750 1,724,000 64 ft 0.167
Section 35 C §3,929 235,000 9.0 0,140
D 43,846 114,000 6,01t £.130
TOTAL 127,715 349,600 8.0 ft 0.136
Totals for Deposit ¢46,525 2,073,000 6,7 ¥ 0.160

(Sturm, 2009),
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TABLE §-3, HISTCRIC 43-101 NON-COMPLIANT MINERAIL RESOURCE AND MINERAL
RESERVE ESTIMATES FOR THE DOWN YONDER URANIUM DEPOSIT

bichel Kripe analysis of ]
ATBC resource estimate for 5-foot combined assay | 973,000 0.108%* 2,100,000
1970 | Conoco (Wentworth, 1670) values
UC in-house 252,080% 0.25 1,260,400
Tnion Carbide estimate vs.
1974 | Conoco estimate using Conoco Conoco in-house 646,525% G.16 2,073,000
drilling daia (Pinnick, 1974)
UC in-houss 202,000
Union Carbide estimate just for (Part of UC's above Possible + 0.26 1,030,000
1974 | Sectlon 36 deposit— Areas A and | estimate) Indicated +
B (Ptomick, 1974) Inferved
Union Carbide details Conoco UC dstail of Conoco
estimate gbove for 8action 36 in-house estimate 646,525 0.16 2,073,000
1975 | Areas A and B and Section 35 {Pinnick, 1975)
Areas Cand D
Union Carbide using 1974-75 UC | UC in-house 245,000
1975 | drilling resulis just for Section 36 | (Pinnick,1975) Posgible + 0.19 931,000
Indivated +
Atlas Minerals A, B, and C T.L. Wilson in-house | NDA NDA. 610,000
1978 | Blocks in Section 36 estimats (Prics, 1981) Inferred
Adtlas Minerals Blocks A and B in | M., Price in-house 510,000
Section 36 estimate (Price, 1981) | 137,838* 0.185 Inferred
1981 1,500,000
WW, Holloway
1981 | Atlas Minerals Blocks A, B, C, in- house estimate 274,226 0.182 997,311
and D in Section, 36 {Holloway, 1981) Inferred

*Denotes mmber derived by back-caleulating from data supplied by estimators
NDA=No data available

In summary, Union Carbide reported the total Down Yonder 43-101 non-compliant resource, as
estimated by Conoco, to contain 2,073,000 pounds of U308 in 646,525 tons at an average grade of

0.160% U308 (Table 1; Pinnick, 1975). No breakdown was made of this estimate as to
“nossible,

L1

indicated,” or “inferred” resources. None of the foregoing is considered to be

classified as a reserve estimate. Although the terms “reserve” and “resource” used above and
clsewhere in this report, when historical information is discussed, were estimates produced by
Conoco and/ot teported by Union Carbide and the AEC above and by Atlas Minerals below, they
are not to be relied upon in this teport under the definitions required by National Instrument 43-
101. The statements of tonnage and grade above and below are therefore classified herein for the
reader to consider as exploration information of historical significance only and only to reflect an
order of magnitude of the size and grade of the Down Yonder deposit. The relevance and
reliability of the tonnage and grade defined in the historical estimates contained in this report are
based on extensive sampling by rotary and core drilling, and by down-hole gamma-tay logging,
catried out by senior mining companies with significant exploration and production experience.

In 1975, Union Carbide recalculated its 43-101 non-compliant resource estimate for the Down
Yonder deposit in Section 36 based on its evaluation drill program of the area in late 1974 and
1975 (Pinnick, 1975). Union Carbide drilled 13 holes and changed the average intercept to 6.0 feet
at a grade of 0.19% U308, The estimate was updated to comprise 20,000 tons possible, 133,000
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tons indicated, and 92,000 fons inferred for 245,000 tons at an average grade of 0.19% U308,
yielding 931,000 pounds of U308 (Table 8-3). No qualification is made in this Union Carbide
historical estimate as to the definition of “possible”, “indicated”, and “inferred” tons. Thig
breakdown of classification does not qualify the estimate under the regulation of NT 43-101 for
anything more than historic exploration information,

Information is sketchy, but Ailas Minerals and Conoco internal documents, memos, and interoffice
correspondence dated from 1978 through 1983, in the Issuer's possession, indicate that Conoco was
attempting to vend the Down Yonder to Atlas, with Atlas performing at least three 43-101 non-
compliant resource estimates (Table 8-3; one by T. L. Wilsor, 1978; one by M. Price, 1981; and
one by W.W. Holloway, 1981) in addition to those by Union Carbide and Conoco cited above
(Holloway, 1981; Price, 1981; Heiny, 1983). Furthermore, drill-hole maps attached fo Holloway’s
(1981) estimate reports indicate an additional 10 holes, 78-EF-1 through78-EF-10, were drilled on
the Down Yonder deposit in 1978, Although it is uncertain who drilled these holes, it is speculated
that it was Energy Fuels Nuclear based on the BF prefixes given fo the drill holes.

A NI 43-101 non-compliant estimate performed on the Down Yonder in 1978 by T. L. Wilson of
the Atlas Mining Department resulted in Blocks A, B, and C (excluding Block D), all in Section
36, containing combined 43-101 non-compliant inferred reserves of 610,000 pounds of U3 Og,
which was probably amenable to incline or shaft access (Table 8-3; Price, 1981). Wilson did not
calculate geologic potential reserves. A second Atlas caleulation by M. Price (1981) of
mincralization contained in the area evaluated by Wilson and as controlled by 1981 economics
determined the presence of 510,000 pounds of 43-101 non-compliant inferred reserves for Blocks
A and B together (Table 8-3). Geologic potential 43-101 non-compliant reserves for the highly
favorable portion of the Down Yonder deposit were determined by Atlas to be 1,500,000 pounds
U308, roughly three times the 510,000 43-101 non-compliant pounds calculated by Price (1981)
for Blocks A and B in Section 36 (Table 8-3), In July of 1981, W.W. Holloway performed a third
43-101 non-compliant resource estimate for Atlas on all four Blocks in Section 36,A,B,C, and D,
resulting in 997,311 pounds U308 contained in 274,226 tons at an average grade of 0.182 over an
average thickness of 4.2 feet (Table 8-3; Holloway, 1981), Holloway’s estimate was based on 43-
101 non-compliant “inferred” resources only. This breakdown of classification does not qualify
the estimate under the regulation of N143-101 for anything mote than historic exploration
information and the Issver is not freating it as such.

Down Yonder Uranium Deposit Ownership Ilistory

No information is available to the Issuer regarding ownership of the Down Yonder deposit during
the period 1984 to 2004, The Section 36 Stufe Mineral Lease no. 49311 was obtained by William
M. Sheriff from the State of Utaly on April 4, 2004 and an assignment was made from Sheriff to
EMC Utah Inc. on Jangary 6, 2006 for an undivided 100% interest in the Lease. BM claims were
staked by EMC to cover the remainder of the mineralization as it is known fo presently exist in
adjacent Section 35. No exploration or development work was conducted on the property by
EMC. EMC lensc optioned its entire San Rafael Uranium Property land holdings, including the
Down Yonder deposit area, to Glen Hawk Minerals, Lid,, on June 20th, 2005, After conducting no
wotk on the property and as & result of financial difficulties and a desire to move info gold
exploration, Glen Hawk returned the property to EMC only a year later in early June of 2006, Asa
result of Magnum’s interest in the uranium potential of the land, Magnum appreached EMC in
2006 to see if it might be intetested in joint venturing the property in order to move it forward.
EMC agreed and a fotmal JV arrangement between the two companies was consummated on
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November 19, 2006, Magnum has earned an undivided 100% interest in the entire San Rafael
property position, substantially ahead of schedule, by virtue of the aggressive exploration drilling
program it conducted over other parts of its property position during 2007-2008. To date, no
production has come from the Down Yonder deposit. The lease ML-49311 was assigned to
Magnum on May 21, 2009 with a 2% overriding royalty retained by BMC..

Gieological Setting

Regional - San Rafael Uranium District Geology

The property is located in a moderate sized topographic and structural low, locally known as the,
Green River Desert, Structurally, this low can be considered a narrow southern extension of the
Uinta Basin, Several local features of the Colorado Plateau surround the area. "The area is bounded
on the west by the San Rafael Swell, a large assymetrical doubly plunging anticline, and on the
east by the Paradox Basin/Paradox Fold and Fault Belt. The Nequoia Asch is located immediately
to the south and to the north the Green River Desert merges with the larger Uinta Basin, although it
is separated from the latter by the nosthwest-trending Book Cliffs,

Stratigraphically, all exposed consolidated rock units within the boundaries of the San Rafael
Uranjum District area are sedimentary formations deposited duting the Mesozoic era (Trimble and
Doelling, 1978). The oldest unit is the Triassic Moenkopi Formation which underlies the Chinle,
Wingate, and Kayenta Formations, Jurassic rocks are, in ascending order, the Navajo, Carmel,
Entrada, Curtis, Summerville, and Mosrisen Formations. The Cretaceous rocks, also in ascending
order, include the Cedar Mountain and Dakota Formations, and members of the Mancos Shale.
Alluvial and colluvial deposits of Quaternary age are scattered throughout the District. The
Triassic rocks are both marine and continental in origin, whereas the Jurassic rocks are for the most
part nen-marine and most of the Cretaceous rocks are of marine origin, This report is only
concerned with those rock units penetrated by the historic drilling in the Issuer’s San Rafael
Uranium Project area (see bolow}, with the objective of describing the Salt Wash Member of the
Jurassic Morrison Formation, host to the uranium mineralization, in greater detail. For a more
comprehensive deseription of the stratigraphy of the Green River area, the reader 1s referred to
“Geology of the Green River Mining District,” by Young and othets, 1960.

The San Rafael District is near the confluence of three tectonic divisions; the San Rafael Swell, the
Ulnta Basin, and the Paradox Fold and Fault Belt. The San Rafael Swell is a broad uplift whose
steep east limb, the San Rafael monocline, forms the west boundary of the District. The Uinta
Basin is to the north where its southern boundary is defined by the Book Cliffs escarpment. The
sirata beneath the cliffs dip gently northward or northeastward toward the center of the Basin, To
the south the dip of outerops is influenced by the Nequoia Arch, an arm of the Monument Uplift,
An additional anticlinal structure, the Green River nose or anticline, is just east of the District. The
influence of these structures has produced a broad, shallow, northeast plunging syncline known as
the Acerson Trough (Trimble and Doelling, 1978). The San Rafael District centers mostly on the
northwest flank of this master structure, the axis of which trends N25°E, and which also appears to
be the main control to the District’s paleo-stream channel trends and development for uranium

mineralization at the Deep Gold, Down Yonder, 4484, Jackrabbit, and other deposits within the
Issuer’s project area,
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Local ~ Deep Gold Uranium Deposit Geology

As mentioned above, this report is only concetned with those rock units intersected by previous
operators’ historic drilling and Magnum’s 2007, 2008, and early 2009 drilling in the area of the
San Rafae]l Uranium Project area, with the objective of describing the main host rock, the Salt
Wash Member of the Upper Jurassic Morrison Formation, in greatest detail,

Summerville Formation (Upper Jurassic)

The Summerville is the oldest Formation encountered in the drilling programs and consists of thin,
even-bedded mudstone and siltstone. The Formation has a characteristically reddish-brown color,
which is easily distingnished from the redder mudstones and siltstones that generally occur in the
overlying lower Salt Wash, s origin is considered marginal marine and it averages 150 feet thick.
Only the top beds immediately below the lower Salt Wash sands were penetrated by selected holes,

Morrison Formation (Upper Jurassic)

The Mortison is a complex non-marine unit that is subdivided into two members, the vpper Brushy
Basin and the lower Salt Wash, The Salt Wash consists of channel and floodplain deposits and
contains the known uranium deposits in the San Rafael Uraniym District. The Brushy Basin is
composed mostly of floodplain-type deposits and decotposed ash,

Salt Wash Member

Tho Salt Wash Member averages 220 feot thick in the Snow and Lucky Mines and Deep Gold area
and is about 250 feet thick in the historic holes in the Down Yonder area. It is composed

predominantly of fine- to medium-grained sandstone interbedded with thin mudstone, claystone,
and siltstone. Occasional conglomeratic sandstone is also present,

According to the results of the drilling, the Salt Wash contains a lower unit consisting of claystone,
mudstone, siltstone, sandstone lenses, and oceasiona! thin limestone, A persistent gypsum bed at
the base of the Salt Wash was encountered throughout the area drilled. Trimble and Doelting
(1978) include this gypsum bed as the very top of the underling Summerville Formation described
above, They mention that the upper foot of the bed contains abundant jasper nodules, possibly
signifying the development of an old soil horizon, In some places in the District, the Salt Wash fills
channely cut into this gypsum horizon, whereas in others the channels completely remove the
gypsum, indicating a disconformity at the Salt Wash — Summerville contact, The upper part of the
Salt Wash, where the deposits ocour, characteristically contains relatively thick channel-type
sandstones and conglomerates with thin interbedded mudstones (Plate 5). In places, carbonaceous

trash is abundant in the upper Salt Wash sands and was encountered in varying amounts in most of
the sands (Wentworth, 1970).

The Salt Wash sands are the result of fluvial processes that created a broad, regional alluvial plain
deposited by northeast-flowing streams, Wentworth (1970) and Trimble and Doelling (197 8)
proposed the source of the sediments lay to the south, southwest, and west in Arizona, western
Utah, or eastern Nevada. Trimble and Doelling (1978) further mention that sediment deposition is
thought fo have been by intermittent shifting streams in possible semiarid environments.
Aggrading streams that deposited the early Salt Wash Member were small and filled small
channels. As time progressed, the size of the streams increased until, at the top of the member, a
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thick, broad aceumulation cf partly conglomeratic channel sands was deposited, These larger -
streams catried much weody plant and erganic debris acting as important reductant material and
loci for the concentration of uranium. The Salt Wash is exposed as the eastern dip slope of the
north-trending hogback west of Buckimaster Draw, west of the Project boundary.

Individual Salt Wash sandstons bodies and layers encountered by Conoco drilling in the Down
Yonder area-measure well over 100-feet thick (Wentworth, 1970). Bven though laterally persistent,
they vary in thickness because of facies relationships and changes with lateral mudstone units,
minor scouring and filling, and sand build up. Results of the drilling also show that the channels
trend in a north to northeast direction, The upper Salt Wash sandstones are predominantly light

- gray, but very light gray, medium gray, and light tans are not uncommon, Wentworth (1970)
attributed much of the lighter colors to kaolinization of feldspar and decomposition of chert, The
sandstones consist mainly of subrounded and frosted quartz grains cemented to varying degrees by
calcite and siliceous material. Interstitial clay is not uncommon, and large clay galls were observed
in Conoco cores indicating considerable turbulence during certain periods of deposition. Although
not abundant, authigenic pyrite was also obsetved. Various accessory minerals identified in a
petrographic study conducted by the AEC on material from Conoco Down. Yonder deposit core
heles include apatite, garnet, leucoxene, tourmaline, and zircon, just to mention a fow (Heyse,

1969). The study also notes that tourmaline content is more abundant in and near uranium
mineralization.,

The mudstone and claystone within the Salt Wash are varicolored, with red and green hues
predominating, Results of Conoco drilling indicate that mudstone in contact with petmeable
sandstone is bleached green to Hight gray in a number of cores (Wentworth, 1970). While i is
widely known that green mudstones are usually found in the vicinity of Salt Wash-hosted uranium

mineralization, the telationship between primary and secondary colors in Salt Wash sedimentary
rocks is not fully understood.

Brushy Basin Member:

Drilling results show the Brushy Basin Member of the Motrison averages 350-feet thick in the area
of the San Rafael Uranium Project, The drilling results also show this Member to mainly consist of
variegated mudstones and claystones, with variable lesser amounts of siltstone, sandstone, and
loosely cemented conglomerate, The sandstones and conglomerates form lenticular bodies which
seldom extend more then 100 feet laterslly in their lesser dimension, The dominant colors are
maroon to reddish-brown, with shades of green, gray, and purple not uncommon., The claystones in
the unit generally consist of bentonite, which formed by the decomposition of volcanic ash, and
which some workers believe is the source of the vranium hosted in the underlying Salt Wash
sandstone throughout the District (Stokes, 1967; Trimble and Doelling, 1978),

According to Tritnble and Doelling (1978), the time of Brushy Basin deposition was marked by
streams that became sluggish and channel deposition thinner and less common. ‘They also mention
that discontinuous limestones in the Member indicate the formation of shallow lakes on the low
interfluve floodplain areas, and that the high voleanic ash content in claystones, mudstones, and
siltstones composing most of the Member, indicates neatby volcanic activity.

The Brushy Basin Member is considered latest Jurassic in age, and its upper contact with the
overlying Cedar Mountain Formation, described below, has been designated as the boundary
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betweon the Jurassic and Cretaceous beds (Stokes, 1952). The Brushy Basin Member is exposed in
the lower slopes of both sides of Buckmaster Draw along the western boundary of the Project area,

Cedar Mountain Formation — (Lower Cretaceous)

The Cedar Mountain Formation is divided into two Members in the San Rafael Uranicm District,
the basal Buckhorn Conglomerate and ah Upper Shale. In the District, exposures of the Buckhorn
are discontinuous, aftaining a maximum thickness of 30 feet in the north and diminishing neat the
south, where it pinches out. Exposures of the Upper Shale are continuous over the length of the
District, attaining a maximum width of over 3 miles near the south end, The Buckhormn
Conglomerate rests unconformably on the Brushy Basin Member of the Morrison Formation
described above and contatns mostly gray, black, and tan chert and quartzite pebbles and cobbles.
In places where the Buckhorn crops out, particularly east of Buckmaster Draw, slopes are strewn
with large blocks of the conglomerate, This outeropping forms a north-south band about one-half
mile wide in sections 15, 22, and 27, The Snow shafi collar is near the upper contact of the Cedar
Mountain Formation. Drill holes in the Jackrabbit area also collar in this unit. The overlying
Upper Shale is similat fo the Brushy Basin, with lithologies of siltstone, shale, mudstone,
sandstone, and limestone, but colots are more faded to a gray and the banding is less distinct

(Trimble and Doelling, 1978). The siltsiones, shales, and mudstones are mostly bentonitic and
form the bulk of the Member,

Preyvious operators’ and Magrum’s drilling results in the Deep Gold, Jackrabbit, and Down Yonder
areas confitm the similarity of Upper Shale Member beds of the Cedar Mountain with the
underlying Brushy Basin, but, as noted by Trimble and Doelling (1978) and as referenced above,
are lighter in color and quite difficult to differentiate in the subsurface (Wentwosth, 1970). Conoco
geologists believed that these paler colors are due to bleaching by swamp waters. Wentworth
(1970) fusther states that Conoco geologists applied the term Cedar Mountain to designate the beds
between the fop of the Brushy Basin and the base of the Mancos in their drilling in the Down
Yonder area, and believed that the Cedar Mountain should be included with the Brushy Basin in
any formal rock unit scheme. The Cedar Mountain Formation was deposited in the same fluvial

and lacustrine environments responsible for the Brushy Basin Member of the Morrison (Trimble
and Doelling, 1978).

Mancos Shale - (Upper Cretaceous)

The Muncos Shale is a thick calcareons marine unit that forms the surface of much of the Green
River Desett and covers most of the eastern part of the San Rafael Uranium District, Classicelly,
the Mancos is divided into five Members, which, in ascending order, are the Tununk Shale, Fetron
Sandstone, Blue Gate Shale, Emery Sandstone, and Masuk Shale (Trirable and Doelling, 1978), In
the District and particularly in the Deep Gold deposit area, only the lower three Members are
present (Wentworth 1970). The Ferron Sandstone Meimber, a thin shaly sandstone unit, separates
monotonous blue gray calcareous Blue Gate Member shales from lithologically similar coloted
shales of the underlying Tununk Member. Futthermore, although Conoco geologists recognized
the stratigraphically highest Member in the nearby Down Yonder deposit area as the Blue Gate and
referred to it as such in their drilling (Wentworth, 1970), Trimble and Doelling (1978) refer to this
shale as the Upper Mancos Shale, Thickness of the Tununk is 350 to 400 feet, the Ferron 20 to 30
feet, and the Blue Gate 600 feet phus in the District. The Ferron forms a low north-striking, east-
dipping cuesta as the step of the lower and upper benches that cross the Deep Gold deposit and the
western edge of the Down Yonder deposit. Pioneer Utravan’s, Atlas Minerals’, and Magnum’s drill
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holes wete sited within the Tununk in the western, shallower part of the Deep Gold deposit. The
historic holes in the Hollie claim part of the Deep Gold deposit collar within the Ferron and Blue
Gate (Upper Mancos Shale). Most of the historic and Magnum’s drill holes in the Down Yonder
are were sited within the Blue Gate Member (Upper Mancos Shale).

Structure In and Around the Deep (Glold Uranium Deposit Area

Beds in the Deep Gold deposit ares dip gently, approximately 3°, to the northeast toward the centet
of the Green River Desert structural low, Near the outside boundaries of the Green River Desert
the dips increase in magnitude, especially along its west edge near the fringe of the San Rafael
Swell, where they are up to 11° Dips of the lower Turassic and older rocks are much steeper in the
2-t0-4 miles west of the project boundary. Ground water occurrences in the basin are roughly
parallel to the structure, with the younger aquifers successively becoming saturated toward its
cetiter (Wentworth, 1970). Numerous northwest-striking normal faults traverse the San Rafael
Uranium District that can be traced southeasterly into the Paradox Fold and Fault Belt (Figs. 5 and
7; Trimble and Doelling, 1978). These fanlts are speculated to be of Laramide or post-Laramide
age ad, along with subsidiary fractures, may have locelly controlled uranium accumulation, It
these faults are older, they may also have influenced sediment deposition of the Salt Wash streams.
Conoco geologists reported minor drilling problems in the Down Yonder deposit area that were
due to fracturing encountered in the Mancos in certain isolated areas (Wentworth, 1970).

Exploration Information

Deposit Types and Exploration Model

The exploration target or deposit type known to exist at the San Rafael Project is the
peneconcordant, channel-controlled, irend type, Specifically, this deposit type matches the
recognition ctiteria of Sandstone Type Uranium Deposits Class 240, Subclass 243 — Channel-
Controlled Peneconcordant Sandstone-Type Deposits — as defined by Austin and D’ Andrea (1978)
for the United States Department of Energy’s (USDOR) National Uranium Resoutce Bvaluation
(NURE) Program conducted in the late 1970’s and early 1980°s. Austin and D’ Andrea’s
classification work and widely established recognition critetia regarding geologic environments
favorable for sandstone-type deposits are part of the larger uranium deposit classification manual
and classic treatise entitled “Geologic Characteristics of Environments Favorable for Uraniym
Deposits,” This publication was written and compiled by Bendix Field Engineering Corporation
geologists for the USDOE in 1978 (Mickle and Mathews, eds.) and still serves as a major working

classification manval for many peologists exploring for all types of uranium deposits throughout
the United States and other parts of the world.

Peneconcordant uranium deposits in sandstones are essentially stratabound deposits which do not
normally exhibit the continuous and sharp boundary between altered and unaltered ground
commonly found in roll front-type deposits, This depesit class includes deposits in which altered
and unaltered ground may be clearly distinguishable, as in parts of the Uravan Mineral Belt,
Colorado (Thamm, et al, 1981), and those in which the distinction, if it exists, is not readily
evident, as at Ambrosia Lake, New Mexico. Again referring to Austin and D’ Andrea’s sandstone-
type deposit classification system, peneconcordant deposits are broken down into Subclass 243,
those hosted by distinct, casily recognized channels, as is the Deep Gold, Down Yonder, and the
other uranium deposits in the San Rafael Uranium District, and Subclass 244, those deposits in
which channel control is not as evident.
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Major recognition criteria and definitive geological characteristics of peneconcordant, channel-
controlled, trend-type uranivm deposits, taken from Austin and D’ Andrea (1978) and many of
which are present at the San Rafael Project’s deposits as determined by the results of previous

opetators’ historic drilling and Magnum’s drilling, are listed below.

. Peneconcordant deposits are stratabound uraniom deposits that occur in discrete, easily
recognized paleo-stream channels scoured and eroded into underlying strata and rocks;
sedimentary stroctures, especially scours and channel contacts, are ore controls, and faults,
fractures, synclines, and troughs serve to control drainage location and development; host rocks

have developed in a braided stream or trunk stream channel detwork and alluvial fan/flood plain
environment;

U Sandstone host rocks are commonly first-cycle sediments that are either feldspathic or
arkosic, or are quartz- and chert-grain rich depending on provenance; host rocks range from
boulder conglomerates to siltstones, with medium- to coarse-grained sandstones the most
common; bedding tends to be lenticular, typical of fluvial deposits, with many deposits occurring
in distinct sinuous and braided channel network forms; ore trends are parallel to the depositional
trends of the host rock; some of the best mineralization occurs on the edges of thicker channels
whete mudstone-sandstone ratios increase and reach equality;

. The sonrce of the uranium is postulated to be tuffaceous shales or tuffaceous voleanic
rocks overlying the favorable sedimentary host rocks; uranium is leached from the overlying
shales and/or tuffs and precipitated in the underlying sandstones; the most common primaty
uranium minerals found in unoxidized material are wraninite and coffinite, and the most common
primary vanadiom mineral is monfroseite; common secondary (oxidized) minerals include
tyuyamunite and corvusite; commonly associated sulfides include pyrite and marcasite (FeS2);

. The dominant reductant for the ore is carbonized “trash”; fossil wood, leaves, vegetative

matter, large and small plant remains, lignite, asphaltite, logs, and fine carbonaceous matter are
the loci for the deposition of uranium; and

. Geometry of deposits in plan view ranges from tabular {o lenticular to sinuous, with their
long axes aligned along the irend of the paleochannel; ore thickens and thins with the stratigraphic
structures, channel scours, mudstone-sandstone ratios, and according to the amount of
carbonaceous material present, and may occur either as a single body or as a cluster of bodies,
with larger bodies usually comprising a number of conneeted pods; where clustered, orebodies can
measure hundreds of feet wide, thousands of feet long, and are generally 3- to 6-feet thick,
Average grades range between 0,10% and 0.40% U308,

Stream channel trends are also diagrammatically shown in a drawing taken from Trimble and
Doelling (1978), with special reference to the Acerson Trough area’s trunk channe! stream
systems. Uranfum mineralization in the San Rafael Uranium District including Energy Fuels®
deposits is peneconcordant and stratabound, ocoutring in the upper continuous sandstone unit of
the Salt Wagh Member of the Upper Jurassic Morrison Formation, It was produced by several
trunk streams which entered the area from the south, which included the Tidwell, Acerson, and
Sahara trunk channel stream systems containing the District’s deposits. The Down Yonder deposit
1s in the Acerson trunk channel while the Deep Gold deposit is in the Tidwell trumlc channel. The
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4484 deposit appears to be in the fringe of the Acerson trunk channel. Further evaluation will be
needed to determine its relationship to the Deep Geld deposit, 1,700 feet to the northwest.

Past Exploration

Magnum geologists acquired historie exploration drilling information pertaining to the San Rafacl
Uranium Project from a number of confidential sources in order to piece together the explotation
history of the deposits and o generate a Naticnal Instrument 43-101 compliant resource estimate
for the property, The Issuer will be using this resource estimate and the geological modeling to
conduct future exploration drilling to better define the deposit with the ultimate goal of taking the
property to production. To this end, Magnum acquired alf of Conoco’s, Ploneer Uravan’s, and
Atlas Minerals® drill-hole location maps, copies of all available down-hole gamma-ray logs of
historic drill holes and geologic reports, and all available Atlas Minerals’ geological and 43-101
non~compliant resource estimate reports concerning the project area, The Conoco data includes
copies of original computer print-out sheets of all down-hole gamma-ray log derived mineralized
intervals and intercepts (in 0.5-foot intervals) for all holes drilled through 1970, Additionalty,
Magtium has acquired numerous reports by Union Carbide describing 43-101 non- compliant in-
house resource estimates of the Down Yonder depesit. To date, Magoum has located and/or
identified over 3,300 historic drill holes in the vicinity of the BM and Hollie claim blocks and State
Section 36 Mineral Lease land holdings, ali drilled for uranivm. Over 2,000 of these holes are
located on the land controlled by the [ssuer,

Duting three phases of exploration drilling in the latter half of 2007, 2008, and early 2009,
Magnum drilled 58,546 feet of conventional rotary drilling with some spot core i 63 holes. This
drilling included the western part of the Deep Gold deposit, the Down Yonder deposit, the
Jackrabbit deposit areas, and a few scattered exploration holes, Magnum’s exploration drilling
project included down-hole logging for gamma, spontaneous potential (SP), and resistivity. The
logging was performed by Century Geophysical, Salt Lake City, Utah, and Jet West Geophysical
Services LLC of Farmington, New Mexico.

The objective of this drilling was to fill-in for verification as well as step-out on known
mineralized zones and discover new areas of high-grade uranium mineralization similar to those
defining the historic mineral resources and mineralized arcas found by previous operators. The
lithology of all holes where core or cuttings were available was logged by the exploring
companies’ geologists. Results of Magnum’s diilling delineate numerous high-~grade intervals and
intercepts that cotroborate and expand upen those determined by the histotic drilling. In all cases,
Magnum’s drilling further expanded the size of the targoet deposits, which are all still open in many
areas and could host additional urandum resources.

Mineralization
San Rafael Uranium District Mineralization

The Tidwell Mineral Trend, the main historic mining area in the San Rafael Uranium District, is
located updip and just west of the Deep Gold deposit and 2 miles west and northwest of the Down
Yonder deposits, Part of it lies within the western one-fourth and margin of the preater San Rafael
Uranium Project land position, The Jackrabbit deposil is in the main part of the Tidwell District.
The area is also historically known as the Four Corners Mining District after an carly operator,
Four Corners Uranium, Using Trimble and Doelling’s (1978) production figures for the District
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and taking into account subsequent Atlas Minerals in-house reports concerning later production
from the Snow and Probe mines (Atlas Minerals Engineering Department, 1982; Gordon, 1982;
Wilbanks, 1982}, in excess of 4.0 million pounds of U308 and 5.4 million pounds of V205 have
been produced from over 50 mines in the San Rafael Uranium District to date. This production
equates to roughly 1,000,000 tons of material mined, with a speculated 8 million pounds of
uranivm remaining (Trimble and Doelling, 1978).

The average thickness of the material mined is generally between 3,5 and 5.5 feet, with average
grade dropping from roughty 0.35% U308 in the mid to late 1950’s (Young and others, 1960) to
around 0.18% to 0.19% U308 from the Snow and Probe Mines in the early 1980°s and as the
minimum acceptable are grade changed with economices over time (Wilbanks, 1982), Deposits
generally have an elongate shape and preferred northeasterly orjentation that mimics the
otientation of the paleo-stream channels in which they occur, Uranium mineralization exists almost
entirely at one stratigraphic level, the upper sandstone sequence of the Salt Wash Member of the
Upper Jurassic Morrison Formation, as described above, The size of the deposits generally
increases in a northerly to northeasterly direction and from the surface basinward, where optimal
host rock types were deposited and favorable sandstone-mudstone ratios were produced during
development of the Acerson Mineral Trend. Size of deposits varies considerably, ranging from a
few tons to semi-continuous to continuous clusters in excess of 150,000 tons, Historically, mine
depths in the Tidwell Mineral Trend ranged from 40 feet along its west edge, to 300 to 400 feet
further downdip to the cast, and finally to about 600 to 700 feet downdip at the Snow and Lucky
Mines (Figs. 3 and 7), The Jackrabbit deposit ranges in depth from 210 to 510 feet. Depths of the
large uranium deposits, located just cast of the Tidwell Mineral Trend, all ot part of which are on
the Issuer’s ground, include the Deep Gold deposit at about 775 to 1,000 feet, the 4484 at about
900 feet, and the Down Yonder deposit at about 950 to 975 feet.

Several features have had an effect, cither directly or indirectly, upon mineralization and the
occurrence of the yranium-vanadium deposits in the San Rafael Utantum District. These features,
along with a short description of each are given below. For a more in-depth deseription of them,
the reader is referred to Trimble and Doelling (1978).

1, Sedimentary and Stratigraphic Controls:

8. Depositional Environment — The Salt Wash Member of the Motrison was laid down in
an aggrading fluvial environment. Mineralization. in the San Rafael Uranium District is principally
in the upper sandstone unit of the Salt Wash, produced by several trunk stream channel systems
(Tidwell, Acerson, and Sahara) which flowed from the south to the northeast. As sequential
deposition of coarse to fine sedimentary materials fook place, a general lateral belt of favorable,
perteable, coarser host rocks, consisting of sandstones and sandy conglomerates, developed along
certain sections of the trunk stream channel systems, These host rocks, are followed, both

downstream and laterally by a general fining to less permeable and favorable host sediments as
current velocity decreased.

b. Channel Trends - Most of the stream channels in the Project area have a northeast trend,
as observed by Stokes (1954), Million (1957), Wentworth (1970), and Trimble and Doelling
(1978). Stream directions have been determined by mapping sedimentary structures such as
lineation, festoon, cross-bedding, and rib and furrow in the upper sandstone unit of the Salt Wash.
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¢. Presence of Carbonaceous Material — Mineralization occurs in the San Rafael District
where carbonaceous materigl is abundant and has served as a reducing environment for the
deposition of uranium, Carbonaceous material is less abundant in the southern part of the area, but
increases northward along with more favorable host rock types as stream velocities decrease
somewhat, forming lateral belts of favorability where the distributary system reaches a maximum.,
Further north and with further decrease in stream velocity, favorability decreases as only the finest

plant material and mud and silt dominates as sands thin and feather out (Trimble and Doelling,
1978). '

d. Channel Contacts and Sandstone-Mudstone Ratios — Uranium mineralization in the
upper sandstone unit is normally localized near the contacts of the syb-channels, with most of it
usually near the bottom or sides of the individual channels, Many deposits are also found where
there is a sudden change in the slope of the contact. Better deposits ocour whete the lithology is
mixed and where favorable rock types are well mixed with carbonaceous matter, Sandstone-

mudstone ratios play a major role in localizing and confining mineralization, as further defined and
described below in detail below.

e. Thickness of the Upper Sandstone Unit — Thickness of the upper sandstone unit is a
major control to uranium mineralization. In thinner units, even where carbonaceous material is
present, mineralization is miner to nonexistent. Most of the thick sandstone units in the San Rafael

Uranium District are coarser grained and permesble, thus enhancing circulation of the mineralizing
fluids.

2, SBtructural Controls:

a. Faults and Joints — Strong jointing is present normal to bedding in minetalized horizons
and surrounding units, however mineralized bodies do not appear o be influenced by the jointing,
Development of joints is probably related to regional folding that occusred subsequent to primary
uranium deposition. Secondary oxide vranium and vanadinm minerals occur on fracture surfaces.

b. Anticlinal and Synclinal Axes — Subtle folding may have continued in Morrison time
and confrolled the streams depositing the Salt Wash sands. A topographic high (anticlinal axis)
existed at the north end of the District and may have served to deflect the northeast flowing Salt

Wash river channels, thus aiding the accumulation of carbonaceous matter to the south in the
mineralized area (Trimble and Doelling,
1978).

c¢. Northeast-Trending Lineaments — A periodicity is noted in the occurrence of northoast-
trending mineralized bodies in the District, which implies a linear control other than or in addition
to stmple sedimentary channels. This linear conirol suggests structural lineaments, which could be
related to the above mentioned folding in & washboard configuration or to an unknown and
unobserved pattern of jointing or fracturing (Trimble and Doelling, 1978).

3, Chemical Controls and Source of Uranium:

a. A chemically reducing environment is needed for preservation of carbonaceous material
and emplacement and maintenance of a uranivimn deposit. Circulating pround water introduced the
uranium and vanadivm into the reducing environment, Age dates of Colorado Plateau uranium
deposits indicate mineralization oceurred from 70 to 115 million years ago (Stieff and others,
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1953; Shawe and others, 1991). Leaching of bentonitic shales and mudstones in the Brushy Basin

Member stratigraphically above the Salt Wash Member may have been the source of the uranium
(Stokes, 1967; Gloyn and others, 2003).

The two core deposits are discussed separately in the following subsections of this report. This
information is largely from the earlier Technical Reports on the Deep Gold (Sturm, 2009) and the
Down Yonder deposit (Pancoast, 2008), Additional information gathered since these reports were
filed has also been included. The general concepts of mineralization described in detail for these

two deposits are applicable to the other smaller deposits in the San Rafael Uraniun Project area
{Jackrabbit, 4484, North).

Deep Gold Uranium Deposit Mineralization

Uranium mincralization at the Deep Gold deposit is best described from the results of Atlas
Minerals’ drilling in Section 23 and from Atlas’ drilling and mining of its updip extension, which
comprises the adjacent Snow and Lucky Mines just to the west and southwest, First-hand
obgervations can also be made from drill logs obtained from Magnum’s 2007 drilling in the
wostern part of the deposit, It is worth reiterating that Deep Gold mineralization basically
comprises a northeast-trending linear belt of ground that appears to exist as the downdip east-
northeast extensions of the 8now and Lucky Mines uranium ore bodies.

Historic work by Atlas Minerzals geologists related to Deep Gold uranium deposit mineralization
started with studies of underground workings in the Tidwell Mineral Belt, which indicated that
significant mineralization closely follows sedimentary depositional patterns. Past mining and
drilling experience inditate that thoge areas where the upper Salt Wash system thickens into
coalescing and overlapping channels are definitely more favorable in terms of hosting an econoniic
ore deposit, As a result of this understanding, efforts were made by Atlas geologists to delineate
these most favorable areas in outcrop, match them to existing underground workings, and then
project trends into the subsurface for possible future evaluation (Wilbanks, 1982).

Following the above concept, Atlay geologists mapped exposures of the upper Salt Wash Member
from a point due west of the Probe shaft south along the outcrop for approximately 2.6 miles,
Particular altention was given to sand thickness, current directions from cross bedding, general
channel trends, and major faulting. Along the outerop the upper Salt Wash alternatively thickens
and thins, and it was discovered that two, thick, predominant channel systems exist in the fleld and
show up on acrial photographs as erosion resistant highs on the Salt Wash dip slope.

Results of further work found that the second channel system thickens to 80 feet, with a prominent
northeast trend. Sands coarsen upward and are capped by up to 10 feet of pebbly conglomerate.
Also found were large coalescing channels sepavated by discontinuous shale splits vp fo 5-feet
thick. The linear ridge formed by the outcrop of this channel system is dotted with numerous
surface uranium diggings, and a number of underground workings, Current directions tuken fromy
cross bedding indicate an average direction of flow of N65°E. Further along this trend and across
property lines to the northeast, Pioneer Uravan drilling identified the Deep Cold deposit, which
Atlas geologists felt was an orebody adjacent to or continuous with the Atlas Lucky orebody and
also could be, in part, the downdip extension of Atlas” Snow Mine orebody (Wilbanks, 1982).
Based on his drilling in the area, the Pioneer Uravan geologists felt that their ore body, the Deep

Gold, is situated where the Snow channel frend merges with another trend (the Lucky ore body
trend?) coming from the southwest.
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Atlas Minerals geologists’ reports mention that economic ore deposits in the Snow — Lucky — Deep
Gold area and trend(s) are associated with sudden changes in depositional environment, grain size,
and permeability, all of which play a role in uranium deposition as evidenced by common ore
localization near channel sides and bottoms. The sites where channel sands sharply contact less
permeable mudstone or shale are common hosis for reducing carbonaceous material, and may also

have provided hydrologic traps for uranivm mineral deposition from ground water (Wilbanks,
1982).

The thickness of the upper Salt Wash. sand sequence is also a major controlling factor in urantum
deposition. The upper sequence is coarser grained and more permeable then the remainder of the
Salt Wash, aiding in groundwater circulation. Because the thicker sand sequences consist of more
numerous overlapping channels, they naturaily provide a larger mumber of favorable localities for
mineral deposition. Where the upper Salt Wash sequence is finer, fewer channels are present,
carbonaceous material is less abundant, and wranium deposits are smaller or nonexistent.

Recognition criteria and characteristics determined for Deep Gold Uranium Deposit mineralization
indicated from geological and gamma-ray logs of holes drilled by Magnum in the west half of the
deposit during 2007 confirm Atlas” observations described above and indicate mineralization
ranges from 773.5 feet to 843.5 feet deep (Magnum Press Release dated January 17, 2008), Host
rock comprises clean to slightly arkosic carbonaceous sandstone, with associated conglomerate and
local nearby siltstone/mudstone interbeds. Mineralization appears fo be podiform in nature, with
larger bodies usually consisting of a munber of closely spaced or connected pods, Thickness of
mineralization generally averages about 4 feet, with grades from various 4-foot thick intercepts as
determined by down-hole gamma-ray probe work ranging between 0,161% U308 and 0.470%
U308 (Magnum Press Release dated January 17, 2008). Current dimensions of known Deep Gold
mineralization, including both the east and west deposit areas and as projected to the surface from
all known drilling, both historic (Pioneer Uravan and Atlas Minerals) and Magnum, 13 over 2,000
feet in a northwest-southeast direction (normal to channel trend) and in excess of 2,000 feet in a
northeast-southwest direction (parallel to the ancient stteam channe] trend). This boundary of
known mineralization is presently open in numerous directions, particulatly to the west and

southwest toward the Lucky and Snow Mines, and south actoss the southern boundary of the
Hollie claims.

The 4484 deposit lies about 1,700 feet to the southeast of the Deep Gold Deposit. Available
information from historic drilling sugpests the habit and tenot of the 4484 deposit are similar to the
Deep Gold deposit. Even if the 4484 deposit is in a different trunk channel than the Deep Gold
deposit, the proximity would lend itself to access from a centrally located shaft, The mineral
resources of the nearby North deposit are also similaz to the Deep Gold, although additional
exploration drilling will be needed to characterize and evaluate this resource,

Down Yonder Uranium Deposit Mineralization

Uranium mineralization at the Down Yonder deposit is best described from the results of Conoco’s
drilling, augmented by the Magnum drilling in 2008, The most encouraging results come from the
State Section 36 Mineral Lease Area, where the majority of the deposit is located, and from
adjacent deposits in Section 35 (Wentworth, 1970). Conoco’s discoveries at Down Yonder area
comprise a notth-northeast trending linear belt of ground downdip, cast of and subparallel to the
Tidwell Mineral Belt. Conoco’s linear belt, containing the Down Yonder deposit and dubbed by
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Conoco geologists as the Acerson-Conoco Mineral Belt (Wentworth, 1970), appears to be the
north-northeastern extension of the Acerson Mineral Belt where small, near surface deposits have
been found and historically mined close to the Salt Wash outerop rim,

Conoco drilled 151 holes in Sections 35 and 36 combined, for roughly 160,000 feet of drilling, In
an atiempt to establish a stratigrephic and sedimentary relationship with the mineralization,
Conoco geologists constructed two isopach maps and one lithology ratio map from the drill-hole
information. As discussed in greater detail in the San Rafael Technical Report, the Down Yonder
deposit has the following important geolegical characteristics:

1. The upper Salt Wash sandstone unit represents a large trunk channel system trending
northeast and north across the northern part of Section 2, the southern part of Section 35, and much
of the State Section 36 Mineral Lease MI.-49311 area. The thicker sand units in the system channel
into the underlying shale/mudstone. The thicknesses of these sands are greater than the thicknesses

of surrounding branch channel and floodplain deposits penetrated at this horizon elsewhere in the
District by Conoco’s diilling,

2. Strong mineralization has been found, for the most part, on the edges of the thicker
river channels where the mudstone-sandstone ratios are increasing. It seems likely that the less
dense catbonaceous material accumulated along the edge of the channels, away from the high
velocity ourrents intermittently present in the centers of the channels, Subsequently, good porosity
and permenbility within the trunk channels, afforded passageways for uranium-rich waters
(Wentworth, 1970). The uranium was deposited at channel edges where this gtound water
contacted the reducing environment created by carbonaceous matter,

3. The trunk channel trend can be projected both north and south within the Acerson-
Conoco Mineral Belt. Conoeo geologists belioved that further exploration in Sections 2 and 35
would result in the discovery of large areas of mineralization similar to those found in the State
Section 36 Mineral Lease Area. Also, considering the northward increase in size of the Tidwell
Mitetal Belt deposits, they also speculated that larger size deposits may be present to the north of

State Section 36 within the trunk channel system. Futore drilling will be necessary to prove or
disprove thig idea,

Magnum drilled 30 holes in 2008, totaling 32,732 feet in the Down Yonder uranium deposit. This
was probably the first exploration work specific to the deposit since Conoco’s drilling of the
property from 1968 through 1973, Union Cerbide’s ore reserve review work and limited drilling of
the property from 1974 to 1975, and Atlas Minerals ore reserve review work and evaluation of the
property for potential acquisition throughout the late 1970%s and early 1980’s, The Maghum work
consisted of step out exploration holes to expand the resource and in-11 drilling to verify the
known mineralized horizons. The drilling was suceessfil in both categories and increased
confidence in the historic data, Spot cote was recovered and the samples were used to better
characterize the rock properties and mineralization, The drill results were discussed in a Magnum
Uranium Cotp. Press Release dated October 3, 2008. For a detailed description of all of this
previous work conducted on the property, particularly the results of Conoco’s drilling and resulting
historic 43-101 non-compliant resource cstimates, the reader is referred to History section of this
report and to Table 8-3, Historic 43-101 Non-Complant Mineral Resource and Mineral Reserve
Estimates for The Down Yonder vranium deposit, also included under "History" above.

80900201 5-HomelandUraniundCSEListing Application\(3 Form 2A - Listing Statement for Homeland Uranfum (Pinon RidgeYkesblicdoox



Drilling

The two core urantum deposits are discussed separately in the following subsections of this report.
This information is from the earlier Technical Reports on the Deep Gold deposit (Sturm, 2009 and
Gatten, 2011) and the Down Yonder deposit (Pancoast, 2008 and Gatten, 2011). Magnum
performed additional drilling after the reports wers prepared in both of these areas, as discussed
below, Comments have been added where applicable to better describe historic, as well as recent

drilling, at the other partly defined deposits (Jackrabbit, 4484, North) in the Issuer's San Rafael
Uranium Project area.

Deep Gold, and 4484 Deposits and Novth Avea Drilling

Histotic drilling of the Deep Gold deposit conducted prior to that performed by Magnum in late
2007 comprises 288,083 feet in 299 holes, Making up this total are 247 holes comprising 235,788
fest drilled by Pioneer Uravan during 1979 through 1981, and 52 holes comprising 52,295 feet
drilled by Atlas Minerals from 1984 through 1986, Depth to uranium mineralization in Section 23
averages 800 1,000 feet. To the southieast, at the 4484 deposit, the depths to the main mineralized
borizon ranges from 1,000 to 1,130 feet. East of the Hollie claims, historic drill holes extended to
almost 1,200 deép to penetrate the upper sandstones of the Salt Wash, North of there at the Nozth
Area, the mineralization depth ranges from 950 to 1,150 feet (west to east) in historic drill holes,

Rotary drilling conducted by Magnurm throughout the western part of the Deep Gold deposit
during the latter half of 2007 comprises 10,570 feet in 11 holes. The holes were either drilled as
twins, in fills, or step-outs. Interpretation of the exploration drilling information shows that six of
the holes encountered significant infercepts typical of the tenor and thickness and occurring at the
same depths of those found during Pioneer Uravan’s and Atlas Minerals’ historic drilling of the
Deep Gold deposit. They are also of the same tenor and thickness of material mined at Atlas
Minerals’ nearby updip Snow and Lucky Mines (Table 1; Wilbanks, 1982). Some of the holes with
better intercepts include SR~15-07 with 4,0 feet of 0.470% U308, SR-27-07 with 4.0 feet of
0.356% eU308, and SR-25-07 with 4.0 feet of 0.161% U308 (Table 13- 1, and see Magnum
Press Release dated 1/17/08 for details). These and numerous historic holes are used in the mineral
resource caleulations presented later in this report. Depths of mineralization ranged from 773.5 feet
to 826.5 feet in the northern part of the western edge of the Deep Gold deposit to 827.0 feet to
843.5 feet in the southern part of the western edge. Drilling was conducted by Bob Beeman
Drilling Company of Mosab, Utah and down-hole logging for garamna, spontaneous potential (SP),
and resistivity was performed by Century Geophysical, Salt Lake City, Utah, and Jet West
Geophysical Services LLC of Farmington, New Mexico. All of the holes were logged by Maghum
company geologists, with all logs residing in Issuer’s office in Nucla, Colerado. Most of the holes
were surveyed for down-hole drift, which often trends northwest (up dip) similar to all of the
historic Pioneer Uravan holes that were surveyed.
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TABLE 13-1, 2007 MAGNUM MINERALS USA CORP. DEEP GOLD DRILLING RESULTS

Hole

Depth From—To Intercept % U308 Pounds
Number {feet) (faet) Thickness U30g/Ton

SR-08-07 1,000 Anomalous - - -
SR-15-07 9200 800.5-804.5 4,0 0.470 9.40

813,5-814.5 1.0 0.125 2.50
SR-22-07 580 825.5-826.5 1.0 0.139 278
SR-23-07 1,060 Anomalous - “ -
SR-24-07 380 773.5-776.5 3.0 0.066 ‘ 1.32
SR-258-07 050, 838.0-842.0 4.0 0.161 3.22
SR-26-07 900 Anomalous - " -
SR-27-07 1,040 . 827.0-831.0 4,0 0.356 7.12
SR-28-07 1,000 Anomalous - - -
SR-29-07 900 842,0-843.3 L5 0.124 2.43
SR-32-0%7 1,060 Anomalous - - -

TOTAL 10,570

Besides the Deep Gold deposit, there are a number of mineralized areas and frends that have been
identified by previous exploration and mining efforts on the Issuer's land holdings. Over 3,300
historic drill holes were located by the previous owner of the San Rafael Uranium Project within -
the boundary of the BM claim block and State Section 36 Mineral Loase, all drilled for uranivum.
Over 2,000 of these holes ate located on land now corntrolled by the Issuer. The vast majority of
- the drilling is the result of the intense seatch by many companies, mostly major uranium
exploration and development companies, for peneconcordant, high-grade, mineralized zones
‘hosted in the favorable upper Salt Wash sandstone that can be linked together into mineable
deposits. Throughout the majority of the Issuer's property position, these zones were deposited in
chemically favorable reducing environments of trunk channel and braided stream systems and
networks presently buried beneath 350 to 1,000 feet of overlying sedimentary rock. These

minetalized zones are not traceable on the sutface, but are covered, blind targets that can only be
outlined by drilling.

Surface drilling was done to outline ore reserves at the nearby Atlas Minerals® Snow and Probe
Mines, which collectively produced approximately 1,0 million pounds U308 from upper Salt
Wash sandstone (Fig, 3; Wilbanks, 1982). Continuous long hole programs were also used to locate
additional ore underground. This underground longhole drilling had a success ratio of 35% for the
Probe Mine and 29% for the Snow Mine (Wilbanks, 1982), It is important to note that underground
drilling and actual mining led to significantly more ore being discovered and mined than the
surface drilling indicated. This point is commonly brought out and is applicable to most of the
historic mines in the Tidwell Mineral Belt as more uranium was discovered through under ground
mining and longhote programs than was indicated from surface drilling, By example, from stact up
through shut down, actual production figures for Atlag Minerals’ Snow Mine indicate that it
produced 455% more tons of ore and 281% more pounds of U308 than the original reserves
indicated by surface drilling (Wilbanks, 1982). In summary and as quoted by Wilbanks {1982), “In
the past most orebodies mined in the Green River (Tidwell District) area have ultimately produced
inore pounds of U308 than calculated in original reserves.”
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Down Yonder Area Drilling

The Pancoast report (March 2008) states that approximately 160,000 feet of historic drilling, from
a total of 151 holes, had been conducted on the Down Yonder deposit. This drilling consists of 1 i9
holes placed in the State Section 36 Mineral Lease area, the main part of the deposit, and another
32 holes placed in adjacent Section 35 just west of the State Mineral Lease, where a subsidiary and
underexplored part of the deposit exists, The Down Yonder Mineral Resource map shows the
known histozic drill holes and the Magnurn 2008 drilting,. Hole depths average approximately 800
feet in Section 35 and approximately 1,000 to 1,100 feet in State Section 36, Magnum drilled 30
holes in the Down Yonder deposit area in 2008 which total 32,732 feet, These were drilled to
vetify historic data, explore for additional mineral resources, and gather geotechnical information
on the host sandstone, Magnum’s intended use of the core data was twofold: 1) mineralization
verification through assaying for comparison of chetnical uranium grades to equivalent uranium
grades calculated from the radiometrie logs, along with acquiring vanadium assays, and 2) initial
phase work to investigate the potential fo produce the deposit via in-situ recovery (ISR) extraction
techniques. Magnum contracted with R Squared Incorporated of Denver, Colorado to initiate
evaluation of aquifer properties and leachability of the metals, The in-place density of the host

sandstone was also measured. This density information proved useful in revising the mineral
resources of both previously reported deposits.

A breakdown of the 119 historic drill holes on the State Section 36 Mineral Lease is as follows: 96
Conoco holes, 7 of which are core and the remainder conventional rotary, all drilled in 1968
through 1970, 11 Union Carbide core holes and 2 rotary holes drilled in 1974 and 1975, and 1.0 EF
— Energy Fuels Nuclear rotary (?) holes drilled in 1978, A breakdown of the historic drilling in
adjacent Section 35 is as follows: 32 Conoco rotary holes drilled in 1968 through 1970 and two
tows of rotary holes in 1973 trending in a northwest-southeast direction across the Silver Bell lease
to the west/northwest and onto the Down Youoder resoutce area in Section 35,

The results of Conoco’s 1973 holes were used to draw cross-sections showing the positive
correlation between the Four Corners producing sandstone in the main Tidwell Mineral Belt, i.e.,
the heart of the San Rafael Uranium District area just west/northwest and up-dip of the Down
Yonder deposit. Where the District’s main uranium. producers — Atlas’s Snow and Probe mines are
located, the drilling results show excellent continuity of the mineralization located near the base of
the Four Corners — Down Yonder sandstone, The location of the Magaurn drill holes are shown on
the resource map and the significantly minerslized intercepts are listed in Table 13-2, below.
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TABLE 13-2, 2008 MAGNUM MINERALS USA CORP. DOWN YONDER DRILLING RESULTS-selectad
mineralized holes

Drill Hole From To Intercept| % 2U3038 Pounds
ID. (feet) {fet) Thickness Grade J308/Ton

DY-22A-08 970.5° 971.5? 1.0° 0.259% 5,18
DY-23-68 968.5° includey | 972.5° includes 4.0 0,063% 1,26
069.5’ 972.0° 2.5 0.092% 1.84

DY-24-08 963.5" includes | 967.0 includes| 3.5’ 0338% 6.76
064.5° 966.5° 2.0 0.587% 11.74

DY-26-08 963.5° 065.5* 2.0° 0.200% 4.00
DY.-27-08 965.5° 66,5 1,0 0.101% 2,02
DY-27A-08 954.0° 955.5 1.5° 0.143% 2.86
DY.28-08 973.0° includes | 978.0% includes 500 0.255% 510
073.0° 976.5° 5 0.348% 6.96

DY-29-08 963.0° 964.0° 1.0 0.189% 3,78
968,0" includes | 972.5" includes 4,5° 0.113% 226

968.0° 970.0’ 2.0° 0.205% 4,10

DY-30-08 976,5" includes | 980.5 includes 4.0 0.141% 2,82
978.5° 981.0° 2.5 0.279% 5.58

DY-40-08 876.0" includes | 987.5° includes 11.5° 0.056% 1.12
\ | 980.5” 984.5° 4.0° 0.093% 1.86
DY-43-08 980.¢° includes | 987.0° includes 7.0 0.113% 2,26
980.0° 983.5’ 3.5 0.172% 3.44

DY-45.08 978.0° 969.5° 1.5° 0.125% 2.50

Sampling and Analysis

No surface samples were collected by the Issuer or Magnum during visits to the property because
the minetalization of the Deep Gold, Down Yonder, and other deposits of interest lies at a depths
of 200 to over 1,000 feet below the surface, The historic mine drifts that enter the BM claims from
the west side, mostly on the Big G claim group, ate fleoded in the down dip portions, and not
readily accessible, The water table is near the Issuet’s property line. Furthermore, because no
historic drill core ot cuttings are known to have been archived, no possibility of obtaining samples
for analysis from these sourcey exists. It is reconmmended that normal procedures be required for
establishing sample identification (drill core or cuttings) and that Quality Assurance/Quality
Control (QA/QC) and chain of custody/security protocol be established and followed in storing and
transpotting samples to a registered geochemical assay laboratory, It is recommended fhat all
Magnum drill samples generated during 2009 and beyond for geochetnical analysis be sent to
Bnergy Laboratories, Casper, Wyoming. This lab is one of the premier prep facilities for uranium-
bearing drill core/drill cuttings and for geochemical uranium assays in the United States, Century
Geophysical, Salt Lake City, Utah, who is an industry leader in this type of wotk, was employed
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by Magmum to radiometrically probe a number of holes drilled on a number of targets during 2007-
2009 with excellent quality control and results, Jet West Geophysical Services LLC of Farmington,
New Mexico also was used for some of the logging,

In some cases, holes were probed by both companies as a check between one another in terms of
calibration, instrumentation, and procedural methods in order to maintain Quality Control/Quality
Assurance. Results were found to be comparable, thus removing any factors that could materially
impact the accuracy and reliability of these results or bias them in any way,

Data Verification -

Historic drill-hole locations and drill data were originally hand drafted on 1:4,800 scale mylar
maps. Data recorded on the maps includes collar elevation, elevation of the top of the mineralized
horizon, thickness of mineralization, and grade of intercept. The original survey data for both the
collar location end down-hole drift were not available, however, down-hole drift annotations for
selected holes are posted on a Pioneer Uravan drill hole location map (Casey, 1980), Some drill
hole locations are marked i the field by a stake, but information on most stales has since faded.
There are a couple of holes that contain a stake that can be read and tied into the historic Pioneet
Uravan Map There also were a couple of holes that contained a stake that could be read and tied
into the historic Conoco Map.. The drill maps were scanned, digitally rectified, and the down-hole
deviations assumed to be a siraight line between the collar and bottom of hole locations, Thisg
assumption could introduce some ertor in the actual three dimensional location of any specific

datum point, but the relative location of the datum point to other data points is considered to be
reasonably accurate,

These daia were checked against other historic hand-drafted maps of the District. Additionally, file
folders of all down-hole gamma-ray logs for each Pioneer and some Conoco holes are archived in
Issuer’s office it Nucla, Colorado. In order to assure accuracy, all holes used in the resource
calculation were cross-checked to establish that the depths to mineralization indicated on the map
correlate with the actual drill logs. All holes were then digitized, and locations were rectified and
printed out on & 1:4,800 scale map registered to a USGS topographic map in NAD 27 UTM
coordinate space. The data were input as electronic data via a spreadsheet in a computer program
utilized for the development of the resources given in this report. The input data were double-
checked for accuracy and the resulting map was confirmed by overlying the resource map
generated with the original mylar map print to assure accuracy and completeness. The resultant
data and map were used fo construct the polygon resource maps. Some of the 2008 drill holes in
the Down Yonder area were spot cored {hrough the mineralized horizon so the core could be
chemically assayed for uranivm, vanadivm and other elements. The chemical uranium was
compared to the U308 fo define accuracy and to determine if disequilibrium is an issue. The core
was analyzed at the Energy Laboratories facility in Casper, Wyoming, QA/QC procedures for
sample handling were strictly adhered to,

It must be emphasized that the accuracy of any resource estimate ultimately depends upon the
accuracy of the samples used, In most sandstone-hosted uranium deposits, U308 values are not
chemical or other direct analyses, but are radiometric equivalents based on counts of gamma
radiation received per time interval at a detector. Proper probe calibration to similar type and
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grades of expected mineralization is important to guarantee that a systematic bias is not introduced
in the values. The radiometric data from geophysical logs were provided to Magnum by outside
sources. Instrumentation used for logging the holes was calibrated at U,S. Department of Energy
facility test pits in Grand Junction, Colorado, designed and built for that specific purpose. The
personnel interpreting the geophysical data were trained in that regard.

Security of Samples

No samples were collected or prepared because the sampling methods employed are geophysical in
nature (down-hole gamma ray probe) and not by direct geochemical analysig in a conventional Iab.

Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves

Because of the erratic nature of the mineralization inherent in peneconcordant uranium deposits, it
is ofien difficult to determine geologic controls on ore/waste contacts of even the outlines of
mineralized areas with a degree of certainty sufficient to increase the accuracy of resource
estimates. Because of the difficulty in locating precise ore/waste boundaries, resource estimation
methods in common wse are either pelygonal or statistical. Both methods have been successfully

applied in the evaluation of resources at many prospects and operating mines within the Salt Wash
sandstone uranium deposits.

For the purpose of this Technical Report, no economic evaluation of the uranium deposits
described herein was performed. Thus, the determination of the size and grade of the deposit that
follows is solely a mineral resource estimate of the amount of uranivm and vanadium contained
within the deposits. Mineral Resources are not economic “reserves” becatise no economic
evaluation has been performed and economic viability has not been demonstrated. Although more
drilling needs to be performed at all these depostt areas, and is recommended by the Issuer's
geological advisor, many of the uranium deposits within the San Rafael Uranium Project area are
relatively coherent and can be congidered an Indicated Resource. Where data points are farther

apatt, but drill hole information suggests mineralization correlates well within the host sandstone,
Inferred Resources have been assigned.

There are no changes to the mineral resource estimales, and no mine development work has been
done in the San Rafael Uranium Project area, since the last Technical Report was prepared and
submitted (Gatten, 2011)

Deep Gold Depostt, 4484 Deposit, and Novth Areq Resources

With the purchase of the Hollie claims from Titan by EFR in January 2011, the Deep Gold deposit
is now controlled in its entirety by the Jssuer, The proximity of the 4484 deposit and North area
mineral resource arcas can now be discussed with the Deep Gold since the combined areas would
make a logical single mining unit serviced by a central shaft for access.

Resoutces for this report were calculated by the perpendicular-bisector polygon method using
bisectors one-half the distance between the nearest drill-hole locations. Because the Deep Gold
deposit was drilled on about 100 foot centers, the resulting polygons have sbout a 10,000 f2 (100 f
k100 1) area of influence. There are a few polygons larger than this in the south portion of the
deposit area because of the wider drill spacing, If a mineralized polygon was situated straddling the
property boundary separating the eastern, Hollie Claims portion of the deposit from the western
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portion of the deposit, then. the polygon is divided as its area applies to each property, The purpose
of maintaining this separation is the differing royalty rate that will be applied to the two portions
on the deposit if mining takes place.

Specific to the Deep Gold resource area, polygons were constructed around every hole containing
mineralization with a G x T (grade x thickness) value > 0.20. The polygons shown on the Deep
Gold Mineral Resource map are color-coded so that pale yellow color indicates polygons
containing a G x T of 0.20 to 0.39. None of these pale yellow colored polygens were used in the
resource calculation, ‘The pink colored polygons represent a G x T cutoff of 0.40 and a G x T range
of 0.40 to 0.99. The red colored polygons contain G x T values equal to or greater than 1.00
(equivalent of 10 feet of 0.10% U308). Some selected polygons with G x T cutoffs slightly below
0.40 (dark yellow celor) were included in the indicated resource category because they lend and
show continuity to the deposit. Polygons were constructed with their sides being half the distance
to the nearest hole. Resulting individuel polygons define the area of influence surrounding each
hole. Polygonal boundaries are perpendicular bisectors of lines connecting adjacent holes, If no
bounding hole was available, then mineralization was extended out from the hole not more than 75
feet in radius and thet side of the polygon was left open (not bounded by a line). The atea of each
polygon, in square feet, was calculated by computer, with the areas listed in Table 19-1 in
Appendix ! to the San Rafacl Technical Report, If weak mineralization or no mineralization was
present in a hole, then a polygon was not constructed and the hole was considered to be barren,
Table 19-1 contains the following data on every hole: 1) hole number; 2) thickness of intercept; 3)

grade (% eU308); 4) poundsfon; 5) Gx T ; 6) pelygon area; 7) polygon volume; 8) tons; and 9)
pounds U308 indicated,

For indicated mineral resources, the mineralized polygon is bracketed by drilling and a line
denoting the boundary of the area of Influence between holes is shown, generally the area whete
the drill spacing was about 100 feet between holes. For the inferred mineral resource given in this
report, the mineralized trend is not fully defined or bracketed by drilling, but it is reasonable, given
the transmissivity of the host rock and the amount of drilling performed, that mineralization in the
projected paleo-stream channel extends beyond the portion of the last hole defined by assays. The

inferred polygon is the weighted average and average thickness of the nearest hole(s) from which
the projection is made.

A tonnage factor of 14 cubic feet per ton was used in (his caleulation, based on direct specific
gravity measurements of 91 mineralized Salt Wash qandstone plugs from the adjacent Down
Yonder deposit. The average specific gravity is 2,37 gfem®, which translates to a tonnage factor of
13.5, however, a slightly more consetvalive tonnage factor of 14 cf/ton is nsed it the resource
calcul ation. The Down Yonder deposit’s depth below surface, host rock characteristics, and
stratigraphic position are the same, or similar, as those found at the Deep Gold deposit, and other
deposits; as such, support using this tonnage factor for the resource calculation estimation
throughout the entiroe San Rafael Uranium Project. All uranium grades are given in ¢UU308
(equivalent uraniumy} as detormined by radiometric readings from a down-hole gamma-ray probe,
By taking the volume of each pelygon and dividing by the tonnage factor, the tons of rock
contained within the polygon are determined, Then by multiplying the tons of rock by the grade
{(pounds of contained eU308/ton), the pounds of U308 are determined.

The Indicated Mineral Resource given in Table 19.1-1 was calculated for the Deep Gold deposits
contained within Section 23 using an approximate 0.40 G x T cutoff, The Indicated Mineral
Resource for the 4484 deposit is shown in Table 19.1-2. The North deposit drill hole intercepts
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vield an Indicated Mineral Resource for that area shown in Table 19.1-3. The total in-place
Indicated Mineral Rescurce for the Deep Gold and the satellite deposits in the north-central part of
the Issuer's San Rafael Uranivm Project is of 450,231 tons @ 0.247% U308 containing 2,219,353
pounds U308 ., Using the historic District average recovered U308: V205 ratio of 1:1.35, this
same tonnage could yield approximately 2,996,127 pounds V2035 at an average grade of 0,33%
V205, All holes used in the indicated mineral resource calculation are shown on Tables 19-3 IND
and 19-4 IND in Appendix I to the San Rafael Technical Report. )

The Inferred Mineral Resources estimated by the method described above are shown in Table 19.1-
1 for the Deep Gold deposit, Tablel9.1-2 for the 4484 deposit, and Table 19.1-3 for the North
deposit, Combined, the total Inferred Mineral Resources for the north-central part of the Issuer's
San Rafael Uranium Project is of 84,365 tons @ 0..329% U308 containing 554,505 pounds U308
. Using the historic District average recovered U308:V205 ratio of 1:1.35, this same tonnage
could yield approximately 748,582 pounds V205 at an average grade of 0,45% V205. |

There 1s no guatantee that the vanadium will be recoverable at a mill when it ocours at this grade.
"The cost of operating the vanadium circuit must be weighed against the V205 at the time the

material is fed to a mill. All heles used in the indicated mineral resource calculation are shown on
Tables 19-3 INF and 19-4 INF in Appendix I to the San Rafael Technical Repott.
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TABLE 19,1-1, DEEP GOLD RESQURCTE

DEEP GOLD INDICATED INDICATED INFERRED INFERRED
WEST RESOURCT RESOURCE RESOURCE RESOURCL
(BM Claims) U303 V203 Uz0g V205
TONS 144,600 37,450
GRADE (%) 0.229% 0.31% (3.355% 0.48%
POQUNDS/TON 4,58 6,18 7.1 9.6
POUNDS 663,400 894,000 266,100 359,000
DEEFP GOLD EAST INDICATED INFERRED
{(Holle Claims) RESOURCE RESOURCE
TONS 158,200 -
GRADE(%%) 0.311 0.42% -
POUNDS/TON 6.22 8.4 -
POUNDS 983,300 1,328,400 -
DEEP GOLD
TOTAL
TONS 302,800 37,450
GRADT (%) 0.272% 0.37% 0.355% 0.48%
POUNDS/TON 544 734 T.11 9.0
POUNDS 1,646,700 2,223,000 266,100 359,000
Nete to Above Table: All Values Rounded
TABLE 19,1-2, 4484 DEPOSIT RESGURCE
4484 Deposit INDICATED INDICATED INFERRED INFERRED
{BM Claims) RESOURCE RESOURCE RESOURCE RESOURCE
U30s V205 U308 V205
TONS 121,800 29,533
GRADE (%) 0.1%% 25% 0.33% 0.47%
POUNDS/TON 3.77 .09 6.56 231
POUNDS U303 459,333 620,100 193,780 275,096
TABLE 19.1-3 NORTH DEPOSIT RESOURCE
North Deposit INDICATED INDICATED INFERRED INFERRED
(BM Claims) RESQURCE RESOURCE RESOURCE RESOURCE
- U303 Y205 U308 V205
TONS 25,655 17,385
GRADI. (%) 0.221% 0.30% 0.27% 0.37%
POUNDS/TON 4.20 6,0 5.44 7.35
POUNDS Uz03 113,343 183,013 04,611 127,724
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Jackrabbit Area

There are many mineralized historic exploration drill holes throughout the San Rafael Urantum
Project area other than those listed in the previous section. Although these holes indicate vranium
mineralization in the Salt Wash sandstone and the resource could be large, considering the depth to
mvch of this mineralization and the fact these areas are so isolated, no Indicated Mineral resource
is assigned to them. One exception to this approach is the Jackrabbit area in the west- central paxt
of the claim group, The Salt Wash host horizon is much shallower here (200-500 feet deep) and
the mineralized holes are in small clusters and follow a definite northeast trend as do the sandstone
channels, Part of the Magnuim drill program conducted in 2007 identified this trend. Seven of the
15 holes drilled in 2007 in this area intersected ore-grade mineralization, including SR-3-07 with
6.5 feet of 0.907% etJ308, and SR-13-07 with 5.0 feet of 0.212% U308, and SR-11-07 with 2.5’
of 0.418% eU308, Collectively, the seven holes align to define a northeast-trending mineralized
zone that currently is 2,600 feet long and open on both ends.

Magnum drilled another 9 holes (3,732 ft) in the Jackrabbit deposit in early 2009 as offsets to the
three holes mentioned above, One of the 2009 holes, which is SR-37-09, encountered 2.0 feet of
0,46% eU308. All the others, except one, were mineralized, and cut intervals of sandstone
containing between 0.01% and 0.08% U308. Since the depth to mineralization is shallow here, it
way affordable for histotic drilling to be on cloger spacing, However, the spacing is still sufficient
for similar sized polygons of indicated resources as used elsewhere. "Thete are many Atlas holes in
the northern part of the Jackrabbit Deposit associated with the Snow Mins. The Indicated Mineral
Resource assigned the Jackrabbit deposit, as shown in Table 19,21, is 28,820 tons @ 0.340%
U308 containing 195,945 pounds U308. Using the historic District average recovered
U308:V205 ratio of 1:1.35, this same tonnage could yield approximately 264,525 pounds V203
at an average grade of 0,46% V205, All holes nsed in the mineral resource calculation are shown
on Tables 19-5 IND and 19-5 INF in Appendix I to the San Rafael Technical Report.

Because the linearity of the mineralized pods following the dominant channel trend, it is
reasonable to infer additional resources exist here. The historic Snow Mine drill holes and some of
the underground workings limited the size of inferred resource blocks. The Inferred Mineral
Resources estimate is shown in Table 19.2-1 for the Jackrabbit deposit. This Inferred Mineral
Resources is 7,940 tons @ 0.209% U308 containing 33,261 pounds U308, Using the historic
District average recovered U308:V205 ratio of 1:1.35, this same tonnage could yield
approximately 44,903 pounds V203 at an average grade of 0.248% V203, There is no guarantee
that the vanadium will be recoverable af a mill when it ocours at this grade, Cost of operating the
vanadivm circuit must be weighed against the V2035 at the time the material is fed to a mifl.

TABLE 19.2-1. JACKRABBIT DEPOSIT RESOURCE

North Deposit INDICATTD INDICATED INFERRED INFERRED
(BM Claims) RESOURCE RESOURCE RESOURCE RESOURCE
Us0g V205 Uz0g Y205
TONS 28,820 7,940
GRADE (%) 0.340% 0.46% 0.209% 0.28%
POUNDS/TON 6.80 D.18 4,18 5.00
POUNDS 1304 195,945 204,325 33,261 44,903
44
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Down Yonder Area

Histmlcally, an economic scoping study of the Down Yonder resoutce was petformed using the
scenatio of sinking a shaft or by driving a mile-long declme, with the results looking viable for that
time, the late 1970s, Hlowever, for this report, no economic evaluation of the mineralization

desc1 ibed herein was performed. Thus, the determination of the size of the deposit that follows is
solely a mineral resource estimate, Note that mineral resources that are not mineral reserves do not
have demonstrated economic viabilily. As previously mentioned, in Section 8.2 and Table 8-3 of
this report, at least eight different estimates have been performed on the mineralization in the

Down Yonder resoutce. The estimate below is the only one that is compliant by definitions laid
out under NI 43-101 guidelines.

Locations of all available ¢rill holes in Sections 35 and 36 were derived from historic maps and
fitted to a U.S.G.8. Topographic map and rectified. Polygons were constructed around every hole
containing mineralization with a G x T (grade x thickness) value of greater than 0.25, although
there were several polygons that did not meet the criteria but were surrounded by stronger
mineralized holes, that were included in the resource estimates, Polygons were constructed with
the sides of the polygons being half the distance to the nearest hole, Resulting individual polygons
define the area of influence surrounding each hote, Polygonal boundaries are perpendlculm
bisectors of lines connecting adjacent holes. If no bounding hole was available, then mineralization
was extended out from the hole not more than 150 feet and the side of the polygon is left open (not
bounded by a line). The area of eacl pelygon, in square feet, was calculated by computer and the
areas are listed in Table 19-6 IND and Table 19-6 INF in Appandm I'to the San Rafael Technical

Report. If weak mineralization or no mineralization was present in a hole, then a polygon was not
constructed and the hole was considerad to be barten.

Mineralization occurring within 100 feet from the hole annulus is considered indicated
mineralization (dark pink color), whereas mineralization between 100 and 150 feet from the hole is
considered infetted (Iight pink color), as shown on the Down Yonder Mineral Resource map.

Tnferred resources contained within the yellow polygons could be reasonably assumed along the
trend of the projected paleochannel, containing a roughly 50:50 sand:shale ratio, and bound on
both or several sides by mineralized diill holes).

The area (square feet) of the indicated circles/polygons was calculated by a computer program. The
grade and thickness information for the indicated and inferred categories are shown on Table 2. As
previously mentioned, intercepts were caleulated by hand off copies of Conoco computer printouts
given in 0.5 foot infervals,

The several historic resource estimates by previous aperators of the Down Yonder area were
discussed above in Seclion 8, Table 83, The estimated contained uranium determined by the
previous Technical Report {(Pancoast, 2008) {(~729,100 pounds U308 as an Indicated Resource and
1,100,000 pounds U308 Inferred Resource) is within the range of the amount of uranium
contained by seven of the eight historic estimates. These estimates range from 931,000 to 2.1
million pounds and average 1.64 million pounds U308. Furthermore, the grade of 7 of the §
historic estimates, which range in between 0.108% 1308 and 0.26% U308 and average 0.186%

U308, match almost exactly the average grade calculated in the Pancoast 43-101 compliant
resource estimate.
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Conoco used a tonnage factor of 14 cubic feet per ton in their resource calculations. This factor
has been verified, based on the average density of sandstone analyzed from the 2008 core samples,
This is a notable chenge from the previous Technical Report (Pancoast, 2008). Also new to this
report is the inclusion of the drilling done by Magnum in 2008, after the Pancoast report was
completed (see Section 13, Table 13-2), All uranium grades are given in 6U308 (equivalent
uranium) as determined by a down-hole gamma-ray probe. By taking the volume of cach polygon
and dividing by the tonnage factor, the tons of rock contained within the polygon are determined.

Then by multiplying the tons of rock by the pounds of contained wranium/ton, the pounds of
vranium are determined,

The total in-place Indicated Mineral Resource for the Down Yonder deposit in the southeastern
part of the Issuer's San Rafael Uranium Project is of 278,979 tons @ 0,177% U308 containing
989, 272 pounds U308, Using the historic District average recovered U308:V205 ratio of 1:1.35,
this same tonnage would yield approximately 1,335,521 pounds of V205 at an average grade of

0.24%. All holes used in the mineral resource calculation are shown én Tables 19-6 IND in
Appendix I to the San Rafael Technical Report.

The Inferred Mineral Resources estimated by the method described sbove are shown in Table 19.3-
1 for the Down Yonder Deposit, The total Inferred Mineral Resources for the southeastern part of
the Issuer's San Rafael Uranium Project is of 361,525 tons @ 0.176% U308 containing 1,271,780
pounds U308 ., Using the historic District average recovered U308:V205 ratio of 1:1,35, this
same tonnage could yield approximately 1,716,903 pounds V205 at an average grade of 0,.24%
V20535, There is no guarantee that the vanadium will be recoverable at a mill when it occurs af this
grade. The cost of operating the vanadium circuit must be weighed against the V205 at the time
the material is fod to a mill. All holes used in the mineral resource calculation are shown on Tables
19-6 INF in Appendix I to the San Rafael Technical Report,

The resources shown in the following table for the Down Yonder deposit contained within the
sState Section 36 Mineral Lease and adjacent BM claims was caleulated using a 0.25 G x T cut-off:

TABLE 19.3-1, DOWN YONDER DEPOSIT RESQURCE

Deovwn Yonder INDICATED INBICATED INFERRED INFIRRED
Deposit (ML- RESOURCE RESOURCE RESOURCE RESOTURCE
49311BM. Us0g V205 U303 V205
Claims)
TONS 278,979 361,525
GRADE (%) 0.177% 0.24% 0.176% 0.24%
POUNDS/FON 3.54 4.79 3.53 4,75
POUNDS U303 589,272 1,335,521 1,271,780 1,716,903

Mining Operations

Currently, the Issuer has no mining operations,
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Bxploration and Development

In order to move toward development Deep Gold and Jackrabbit deposits, the Issuer proposes to
follow the recommendations made in the San Rafael Technical Report which are as follows:

1. A 50 to 70 hole, 50,000 foot drilling program is recommended to increase the wranium
resources. Total cost for this work is estimated at $13 1o $16 per foot in the Deep Gold area and

$10 per foot in the Jack Rabbit area. Total cost for the drilling would be in the range of
$US$600,000 to $800,000.

e Atleast 10 holes of the recommended drill program should be spot cored through the
mineralized horizon and this core should be used to assay for uranivm in order to definitively

establish the equilibrium parameters for the deposits, although at this time there appears o be no
issue regarding disequilibrium,

e ‘The core obtained from the recommended drill program should be analyzed for
vanadium content. The uranium to vanadium ratio of the historic production from the Tidwell

Mineral Belt was about 1:1.35. If vanadium can be recovered, then the commodity would enhance
mine economics.

e [Establish a QA/QC procedure regarding chain of custody for samples and analysis
including developing standards, blanks, and duplicate samples for chemical assay.

2. Complete a detailed hydrologic investigation of the deposit, including the determination of
hydrologic properties and current ground water levels and quality. It is estimated that this
investigation will cost approximately US $50,000.

3. Investigate the feasibility of using ISL as a means of extracting the vraniym from the deposit,
which might be the most cost-effective way of beneficiating the mineralization at depths of over
775 Teet. Cost of this work is estimated at US $250,000.

The following recommendations are appropriate as the Down Yonder deposit moves toward
development,

1. Use additional drill logs and other pertinent data acquired from Magnum to continue to build
on the excellent database that already exists,

2. Ground truth the deposit area. Search Section 36 for old Conoco drill hole sites not already
found by Magnum, monument the holes and further define the drill hole locations, as the Conoco
work was carried out before modern GPS methods of locating holes.

3. If open holes are identified during the ground truth search above, where possible, the open
holes should be re-logged with modern geophysical logging equipment, ($2.00/£)

4, A 50-hole, 50,000-foct drilling program is recommended to increase the uranium regoutces,

Total costs for this work are estimated at $13 5o $16 per foot. 'Total cost for the drilling would be
about US$700,000.
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¢ Itisrecommended that at least 10 of these holes be spot cored through the mineralized
horizon and the core be uged to assay for uranium in order to definitively establish the
disequilibrium parameters for the Down Yonder uranium reseurce, although at this time there
appears to be no issue,

¢ The core obtained from the recommended drill program should be analyzed for
vanadium content. The vranium to vanadium ratio of the historic production from the Tidwell
Mineral Belf was 1:135 and if the Down Yonder deposit does contain vanadium, then the
commodity may enhance mine economics,

. Establigh a QA/QC procedure regarding chain of custody for samples and

procedures for analytical procedures including developing standards, blanks, and duplicate samples
for chemical assay,

Other Mineral Projects

Congurrently with the acquisition of the San Rafael Uranium Project, the Issuer acquired a number
of other properties, none of which are currently material to the Issuer's operations and plans. The
following is a short description of the location and size of the properties, the Issuer’s intetest in the
properties, any existing royalties affecting the propertics and any permits relating to or required for
the exploration or exploitation of those properties.

Sunday Mine Complex

The Sunday Mine Complex is located in western San Miguel County, Colorado, USA. The
complex consists of the following five individual mines: the Sunday mine, the Carnation mine, the
Saint Jude mine, the West Sunday mine and the Topaz mine. The mines were most recently
actively mined from 2007 to 2009, The Sunday Mine Complex property consists of 221 unpatented
claims on public lands covering approximately 3,800 acres. 20 of these claims carry are subjectto a .
12.5% royalty on all ore produced. The operation of each of the mines included in the Sunday
Mine Complex requires a separate pormit. Although the Issuer does not currently consider this
project to he material, each of the mines is considered to be in active status because the Issuer is
installing a series of monitoring wells. A mine water treatment plant will need to be installed (and
the appropriate permits obtained) for treating mine water from the Sunday Mine Complex.

Van 4 Mine

The Van 4 Mine is located in western Montrose County, Colorado, USA. The Van 4 Mineis a
small underground mine that was last operated between 1987 and 1990. The property consists of
115 unpatented claims located on public lands covering in excess of 1,900 acres. There are no
royalties encumbering these claims. A mine permit for the Van 4 Mine has been granted and is
currently in good standing, and the necessary bonds have been obtained,

Yellow Cat Project

The Yellow Cat Project is located in eastern Grand County, Utah, USA. This project consists of a
total of 90 claims covering approximately 4,660 acres as follows; 85 unpatented claims on public
land and 5 Utah State Leases, There are no royalties encumbering the 85 unpatented claims. The 5
Utah State Leases carry a royaity payable to the State of Utah of 8% on uranium produced, and 4%
on vanadium produced. The Issuer bolds no current exploration permits on the Yellow Cat Project.
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Dunn Mine Complex

The Dunn Mine Complex is located in San Juan County, Utah, USA, Itis comprised of 11
unpatented claims and one private lease. The Dunn Mine was closed in the mid-1980s, with only
limited development completed and very litille production realized. The 11 unpatented claims are
located on public lands covering approximately 220 actes, The private lease is subject to a
production royalty of 12.5% of the fair market value of ore produced. The private lease requires
annual payments to be made, half of which is rent and the other half being an advance payment of

royalty that is deductive from any royaliy payments due on future production. The Issuer holds no
permit for the Dunn Mine Complex,

Fuarmer Girl Mine

The Farmer Gizl Mine project is located in Montrose County, Colorado, USA. Tt is comprised of a
lease that was enfered into on September 2000 for a 10 years term. The lease renews automatically
once production at the Farmer Girl Mine commences. The project consists of the historic Farmer
Girl Mine, as well as 22 unpatented cleims and 7 patented claims. Production at the Farmer Girl
Mine ceased in 1989, The project covers an area of approximately 450 acres. All claims carry
royalties ranging between 4% and 8% for uranium and vanadium preduction. The Issuer holds no
permit for the Farmer Girl Mine.

Sage Mine Project

The Sage Mine project is located in San Juan County, Utah, and San Miguel County, Colorado
USA. It consists of 94 unpatented claims and one Utah State Lease covering approximately 1,942
acres. The historic Sage Mine ceased operating in 1982, The 94 wnpatented claims are subject to
an overriding royalty of 2.5% paysble to a previous owner of the claims., The Utah State Lease is
subject to a royalty, payeble to the State of Utah, of 8% on uranium and 4% on vanadium, plus a
1% overtide to the previous owner. Although the mine is partially permitted and bonded, further
permits must be obtained prior to the commencement of production.

4.11 The Issuer has no Oil and Gas Operations.

5. Selected Financial Information

The following tables set forth selected financial information for the Issuer for the three years ending
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011. The following summary of selected financial information is
derived from and should be read in conjunction with and is qualified in its entirety by reference to
the Issuer’s financial statements, including the notes thereto, and Management’s Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations included elsewhere in this Listing
Statement.

The selected nmumbers in the tables below for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
have been extracted from consolidated financial statements that have been prepared in
accordance with Interpational Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (*TASB™.
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5.1 Selected Annual Financial Information

Statement of Operations Data

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 - 2011
{Audited) {(Audited) {Audited)
8] 5 ®
Reverues 2,384 118,265 72,006
Net Income
{Loss) from
CQperations (496,384) (553,413) (1,392,669}
Net Income
{Loss) (496,384} (553,413) " (1,392,669)
Basic and Diluted
Income (Loss)
Per Share (0.002) (0.004) {0.019)
Balance Sheet Data
December 31, Deceraber 31, December 31,
2013 2012 2011
{Audited) (Audited) {Audited)
® (%) (%)
Total Assets 184,746 289,261 464,302
Total Liabilities 534,155 571,031 464,799
Shureholders’
Equity (Deficit) (351,409 (287,770) {497)
5.2 Selected Quarterly Financial Information
2013 Dec 31, 2013 Sep 30, 2013 Jun 30,2013  Mar 31,2013
5 3 § 3
Cash 14,572 53,433 137,866 177,852
‘Investments 139,638 133,603 114,275 158,275
Bxplaration ‘
Expenditures 116,681 22965 17,959 20,428
Total Bxpenses 158,940 85,451 119,136 135,241
Net Loss {178,542) (63,560) {119,136) (135,146)
Dec 31, 2012 Sep 30,2012 Jun 30, 2012 Munyx 31, 2012
2012 $ $ $ $
Cash 2,679 16,322 27419 86,003
Investments 241,905 281,285 348,265 320,331
Exploration
Expenditures 187,418 24,015 43,224 30,453
Total Expenses 314,040 95,149 126,941 135424
Net Loss (277,742) (95,149) (45,240) (135,282)
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5.3 Dividends

There are no restrictions in the Issuer’s articles or by-laws or pursuant to any agreement or
undertaking, which could prevent the Issuer from paying dividends or distributions. To date the
Issuer has not paid dividends on its Common Shares. The intention of the Issuer is to use available

capital for exploration and property acquisition and accordingly the Issuer has no present intention
to pay dividends on ity Common Shares.

5.4 The Issuer reports in IFRS.

6. Management’s Discussion and Analysis
6.1 Annual MD&A

Set out below is the histerical management discussion and analysis of the Issuer for the vears ended
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 and for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and June
30, 2013, However, upon the completion of the Acquisition and the Spin Out, the Issver will own
the Assets described in section 4,10 of this Listing Statement under the heading “Mineral
Properties” and will no longer own the Niger Assets, 'Therefore, the discussion in section 4.0 of this

Listing Statement should be reviewed for an overview of the Issuer’s plans following completion of
the Acquisition and the Spin Qut,

PRM is a newly formed vehicle, formed in the State of Delaware on March 10, 2014, for the sole
purpose of acquiring the Assets. Appended to this listing statement are audited financial statements
for PRM for the period ended August 31, 2014, During this period, no aclivities were undettaken in

PRM other than the acquisition of the Assets. Therefore no management discussion and analysis
has been prepared in respect of PRM.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis — December 31, 2013, as of November 20, 2014

The following MD&A. of the Issuer containg information concerning the Issuer’s business
strategies, capabilities, financial results and an overview of the outlook for the Tssuer and the
industry as al November 20, 2014, The audited consolidated financial statements for the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, together with the accompanying note disclosure, have been
prepared in. accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS”). The MD&A
should be read in conjunction with these financial statements. All note references in this MD&A.
are made in reference to these financial statements, All financial balances are stated in Canadian

dollars, the Issuer’s reporting currency, All public filings of the Issuer are available on SEDAR at
www.sedar.com.

The following discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve numerous risks and
uncertainties. Actual results of the Issuer could differ materially from those discussed in the
forward-looking statements. These risks and uncertainties are hi ghlighted under “Risk Factors™ and
“Forward-Looking Statements” found elsewhere in this document.

OVERVIEW

The Issuer was previously engaged in the business of evaluation and exploration of uranium
resource properties in Niger, West Africa. As a result of the Acquisition, the Issuer’s activities are
now focused on exploration and development of uranium and vanadium properties in the State of
Colorado and adjacent areas in the western United States.
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The Issuer, incorporated in December 2006 under the Ontario Business Corporations Act, has
registered offices at 401 Bay Street, Suite 2702, Toronfo, Ontario, Canada, MSH 2Y4, Itisa
reporting issuer subject to the rules and regulations of the Ontatio Securities Commission, but its
shares do not trade on any stock exchange,

The Issuer targets properties that have the potential to host economically significant quantities and
concentrations of one or more mineral resource commodities, principally yranium, Financial
success is dependent upon the discovery of a mineral deposit that can be developed and mined at a
profit, The probability of such success is difficult to quantify and the amount of resulting income, if
any, cannot be determined with any certainty. None of the mineral properties held by the Issuer are

in production and, as such, the Issuer does not currently have operating income or positive cash
flow from operations.

Section 4,10 of this Listing Statement describes the indicated mineral resources and inferred
mineral resources identified on the Issuer’s San Rafael Uranium Project, as reported in the San
Rafael Technical Report, The Issuer has not yet determined whether the other eight properties
included in the Assets contain reserves that are economically recovetable. In all cases, the ability to
recover amounts from these properties is dependent upon a number of factors including
environmental risks, legal and political risks, the discovery of economically recoverable reserves,
confirmation of the Issuer's interest in the underlying properties, the ability of the Issuer to obtain

necessary financing to complete the development and future profitable production or proceeds from
the disposition of the properties.

Going Concern

The accompanying consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2013 and
2012 have been prepared using International Financial Reporting Standards applicable to a going
concertt, as described in note 1(b). The Issuer has incurred repeated significant losses as net loss for
the year ended December 31, 2013 was $496,384 (2012 - $553,413) with an accumulated deficit as
at December 31, 2013 of $31,432,288 (2012 - $30,935,904). The working capital defciency as at
December 31, 2013 was $351,409 as cotnpared with $287,770 at December 31, 2012.

Regarding the Niger Assets (which the Issuer proposes to distribute to its sharcholders of record on
November 3, 2014 prior to the completion of the Private Placement and the Acquisition pursuant to
the Spin Out), the Issuer received renewal of its eight uranium concessions from the Minister of
Mines and Industrial Development of the Government of Niger on March 4, 2013 for a further three
yeats (see nofe 7(h)). Such epproval had been conditional upon certain factors, the most significant
of which was the payment of two years of training fees in the amount of USD $160,000, These two
years of training fees were paid by the Issuer on March 28, 2013 (see note 8). Failure to pay
remaining and ongoing annual training fees, to maintain an ongoing administrative presence in
Niger or to meet mintmum spending and reparting requirements under the renewal terms could
result in termination of any concession agreements, No adjustment to the carrying value of the
Niger concessions would be required as the Issuer has chosen to expense all exploration
expenditures under IFRS (see note 2(1)).

As the Issuer has no operating revenues or other sources of cash flow, its ability to maintain its
Canadian head office operations and its other operations and locations over the next 12 months will
be dependent upon its ability to (1) raise further equity for the Tgsuer through private placements
(see note 9} and/or (2} sell ifs interest in its investments (see note 5).
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While management believes that it will be able te secure the necessary financing to continue
apetations into the future, there are material uncertainties that these and other strategies will be
sufficient to permit the Issuer to continve beyond the foresoeable future as such strategies are
dependent upon continued suppott of its shareholder base. Therefore, there is significant doubt as

to the propriety of the use of the going concern assumption upon which these consolidated financial
statements have been prepared.

Other Considerations

Management is not aware of any agreements that detract from its ownership of the Niger Assets, or
of any transfers thereof or defects in title. However, property title may be subject to unregistered
prior agresments, claims or transfers and title may be affected by undetected defects. For assets
located outside of North America such as Niger Assets, ownership is subject to the risk of foreign

investment, including currency exchange fluctuations and restrictions and local political instability
and uncertainty,

With respect to its operations and plans, the Issuer faces risks and uncertainties including: (1) the
inability to obtain the financing necessary to complete the development of its properties, (ii)
realization of proceeds from the sale of its properties, or (iif) the Issuer's licenses, permits or
concessions being revoked as a result of title disputes, a failure to comply with agreements or
security issues preventing the safe exploration and development of any properties under license.
Previously, the Issuer has encountered many delays during the execution of its Niger project due to
events and circumstances beyond its control. The government of Niger had acknowledged these
delays as “force majeure” and, in. June, 2010, had granted the Issuer a 27 month extension (to
August, 2012} to its original concessions o compensate for this lost time, Ongoing economic and

political uncertainty in the sub- Saharan part of Afiica could lead to similar difficulties and delays
in the future.

\
MINERAL PROPERTIES
Western US Assets

On November 20, 2014, the Issuer acquired seven uranium and vanadium properties located in
Colorado and adjacent areas of the Western United States. Curtently, of these seven properties, the
San Rafael Uranium Project is the only material property to the Issuer, while the others (namely the
Sunday Mine Complex, the Van 4 Mine, the Yellow Cat Project, the Dunn Mine Complex, the
Farmer Girl Mine and the Sage Mine Project) are currently teceiving greater serutiny,

The Issuer now plans to focus its activities on wranium and vanadivm mine development and
exploration, with. the Issuer’s primary focus being the exploration and development of its San
Rafael Uranium Project. The Issuer also plans to undertake and complete steps to advance its
understanding of the potential of the other properties ineluded in the Assets and, where appropriate,
te identify and pursue exploration plans for those other propesties.

Niger, West Africa

Following the acquisiticn of the Niger Assets from Homeland Energy in February, 2007, the Issuer
set up an administrative office in Niamey, Niger, an exploration warehouse facility in Apadez and
an exploration field compound in Arlit. Several experienced Niger geologists and field technicians
were hired during the second quarter of 2007 and by the third quarter of 2007, an exploration
program had been finalized and field work subsequently commenced. A considerable amount of
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field equipment, including all-ferrain vehicles, computers, tents and related equipment, was
putchased and shipped to Niger.

Duting the year ended December 31, 2010, the Issuer completed a follow up field program over the
Asekra block of four licenges in order to obtain more data and related detailed information about the
three large anomalous areas it identified during 2009, This field program comprised hand held
scintillometer readings and geochemical sampling along a series of profile lines over Asekra targets
1,2 and 3, along with firs{ phase geological mapping and sampling. All data generated will be
incorporated into the Issuer’s digital data base, processed and interpreted.

The Niger offices have been relatively inactive since the beginning of 2012 retaining a skeleton
staff to keep administrative and repolatory affairs in order. The Issuer completed a small work
program in 2012 Q2 comprised of minor geological mapping to meet government work obligations,
Any further drill programs will be dependent on interest displayed by the public markets and on a
continued improvement in security concerns in Niger.

Over the course of 2009 and 2010, the Issuer encountered many delays during the execution of its
Niger project due to events and circumstances beyond ifs confrol. The government of Niger had
acknowledged these delays as “force majeure” and had granted the Issuer an extension fo its

concessions until August 31, 2012 to compensate for the lost time, essentially giving it a forther two
years to comply with ifs otiginal spending requirements.

On March 4, 2013, the Tssuer obtained approval for renewal of its Niger uranium concessions for a
further three years from authorities in Niger, Such approval was conditional upon certain factors,
the most significant of which was payment of two years of training fees on March 28, 2013 in the
amount of USD $160,000 (see note §). It is anticipated that the Niger Assets will be disposed of by
the Issuer following listing on the CSE pursuant to the Spin Out.

0.2 Results of Operations
Capitalization

The following sets the capitalization of the Issuer as at December 31, 2013 (presented on a pro-
Censolidation basis);

Description Number of securities outstanding
Issued and outstanding 222472448
Warrants ‘ 85,000,000
Stock options 11,000,000
Total securities ontstanding 318,472,448

The Board of Directors approved the grant of 11,000,000 options exercisable at $0.005 per option
writh a term of five years (expiring July 11, 2018), Of these options, 50% vested immediately and
the remainder after one year. The fair value of these options issued to officers, directors and
consultants has been calculated with the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Using the
assumptions of: (1) risk free interest rate of 1.0% (2) expected volatility of 139%, (3) expected life
of 3.25 years, and (4) dividend yield of 0.0%, the fair value atiributed to each option was $0.004, or

$44,000 in aggregate. Share based payments recognized in the current year were $33,000 (2012 -
$NIL). ' :
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Resnlts of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012
Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at December 31, 2013, the Issuer had a working capital deficiency of $351,409 (2012 -
$287,770), The major compenent of working capital as at December 31, 2013 is the Issuer’s
marketable securities with a fair market value of $139,638 (2012 -« $241,905). Ongoing operations

of the Issucr for 2013 were partially funded from the proceeds of sale of FVTPI, securitics of
$25,222 (2012 - $109,883),

The cash position of the Issucr as at December 31, 2013 was $14,572 (2012 - $2,679). Accounts
receivable and prepaid expenses at December 31, 2013 totaled $30,536 (2012 - $24,136), comprised
mostly of prepaid insurance and expected HST refunds,

The Issuer has no indebtedness other than ordinary trade payables and accrued liabilities at
December 31, 2013 that total $536,155 (2012 - $577,031) (see note 8). Included in accounts
payable and accrued liabilities as at December 31, 2013 are Niger training fees of USD $240,000
(2012 --USD $320,000). The decrease reflects payment of USD $160,000 in March, 2013 plus
accrual of cutrent year fees of USD $80,000.

In February, 2012, the Issuer closed a non-brokered private placement financing of 55,000,000
common shares at $0.005 per common share for gross proceeds of $275,000. Of the total proceeds,
$214,150 was received in cash, and the balance of $60,850 was used to tetite existing accounts
payable. The proceeds were used during the year for general working capital purposes,
maintenance of the Iasuer’s administrative structure and ongoing obligations in Niger,

In February, 2013, the Issuer closed a non-brokered private placement of 85,000,000 units at $0.005
per unit for gross proceeds of $425,000. Bach. unit consisted of the following: (a) 1 common share
(subject to a four-month hold period in accordance with requisite securities laws) (b) 1 common
share purchase warrant entitling the holder thereof to buy one common share at a price of $0.01 per
share, expiring in 24 menihs. The fair value attributed to the warrants was $103,000 with the
remaining proceeds of $322,000 attributed to the common shares. The funds were used to pay the

Niger training fees as described above, with the balance to be used for general working capital
purposes during 2013.

General Expenses

Duting the year ended December 31, 2013, the Issuer incurred total expenses, exclusive of
unrealized losses on FVTPL securities, of $419,808 (2012 - $539,227). The major expenses within
these totals for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 respectively, are:

Exploration expenditures $178,213 (2012 — $285,110)
Management administrative seryices $120,000 (2012 - $120,000)

Current exploration expenditures, all incurred in Niger, include office and administrative costs,

The Issuver recorded a depreciation provision during the yeat ended December 31, 2013 on its fixed
agsets of SNl (2012 - $29,631). There is no such expense in fiscal 2013 as all fixed assets were
either fully depreciated or disposed of by December 31, 2012,
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The matket prices of the Issuer’s investments have overall since December 31, 2012, The Tssuer
recognized an unrealized loss on FYTPL securities for the year ended December 31, 2013 of
$78,870 (2012 - $132,451).

2013 Q4 activity only

The Issuer’s financial activity during the fourth quarter of 2013 was very limited given the Issuet’s
continued negative working capital position. Shori-term operations continued to be financed from
sales of the Issuer’s investments, Other than on-going overhead costs in both Canada and Niger,
the major expenses recorded in the quarter were (1) an additional USD $80,000 of exploration

activities from accrual of current year Niger training fees, and (2) previously unrecognized share
based payments of $19,250,

Commitments

Ag discussed above under the heading “Going Concern™, the Issuer received renewal of its eight
uranivm concessions from the Minister of Mines and Industrial Development of the Government of
Niger on March 4, 2013 for a further three years (see note 7(b)). Such approval had been
conditional upon certain factors, the most significant of which was the payment of four years of
training fees in the amount of approximately USD $320,000, Two of the four years of training fees
wete paid by the Issuer on March 28, 2013 (see note 8). In addition, under the terms of the original
agreement and continued during the renewal period, the Issuer is committed to payment of annual
training fees of USD $10,000 per concession (totaling USD $80,000 per year) for its eight
concessions (see note 15(a).

Under the terms of those concession renewals, the Issuer is committed to fotal minimum exploration

expenditures of USD $4,916,350 over the three year extension, currently budgeted in approximately
equal annual amounts,

Also as discussed in this Listing Statement, the Issuer anticipates distributing ownership of the
Niger Assets to certain of its shareholders pursuant to the Spin Out.

Transactions with Related Parties

Starting in Janyary, 2012, the Issuer engaged Grove Capital Group Ltd., a company controlled by
two of the directors, one of whom is also an officer, for management and administrative services,
including compensation of the CFO, corporate secretary, office rent and regular administrative
functions, Total fees charged by Grove for the year ended December 31, 2013 were $120,000
{2012 - $120,000). As at December 31, 2013, accounts payable and acerued liabilities includes
§11,581 (2012 - $38,470) in respect of such fees and cost recoveries (see note 16(a)).

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
‘The Issner does not have any off-balance sheet atrangements.

Finanecial Ingtruments

The Tssuer’s significant accounting policies regarding its financial instruments are set out in note
2(d) of the consolidated financial statements. The Issuer’s financial instruments consist of cash,
accounts receivable, restricted cash, investments and accounts payable and acerued Habilities.
Management is of the opinion that the Tssuer is not exposed to significant interest rate, cutrency or
credit risks arising from any of these financial instruments.
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Critical Accounting Estimates

The Issuer’s critical accounting estimates for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are
presented in note 2{n) of the audited consolidated financial statements. The preparation of financial
statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make certain estimates and
assumptions. Such estimates may have a significant impact on the financial statements. The Issuer
regularly reviews these estimates; however, actual amounts could differ from the estimates used and
may accordingly affect the results of operations.

These estimates include:

Environmental rehabilitation provision - Provisions for rehabilitation require judgment as to the
time frame and amounts required to successfully complete such rehabilitations given factors such as

weather conditions, the success of replanting efforts and limitations on access to the relative area of
exploration,

Niger liabilities - As illustrated by the period of "force majeure” described in note 1(b), there is an
uncertainty that often arises when conducting business in Niger. These uncertainties require
significant judgments to ensure that liabilities of uncertain timing or amount that have arisen as a
result of past transactions, including legal or constructive obligations, are measured based on
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to seitle the obligation at the reporting date,

The functional currency for the Issuer and subsidiaries is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which each operates: Canadian dollar, US dollar and West African CFA.
Determitation of functional currency may require certain judgments to determine the primary
economic environment. The Issuer reconsiders the functional eutrency used when there is a change
in events and conditions which determined the primary economie environment.

RISK FACTORS (see also “Going Concern” heading above) See section 17
6.3 Selected Annual Infermation

2013 2012 2011
$ $ $
Net income/(loss) (496,384) (553,413) (1,392,669)
Net loss per share — basic and diluted (0.002) (0.004) (0.0186)
Total assets 184,746 289,261 464,302

The Issuet had no sales or other revenue, no long-term liabilities and paid no dividends.
0.4 Variations

There were no variations in this period.
6.5 Results of Operations

See section 6.2 above.
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6.6 Selected Quarterly Information (all quarters reported under IFRS)

201472013 Jun 30, 2014 Mar 3%, 2014 Dec 31, 2013 Sep 30, 2013
B $ 3 3
Total Revenue Nit 14,295 Nil 21,891
Net profit/(loss) (207,235) (€3,191) (178,541) (63,560)
Comprehensive profit/{loss) (179,305) (84,356) (195,635) (61,121)
Net loss per share — bagic and
dilnted {0.0009) (0.0003) {0.0008) {0.0004)
Total asseis 63,888 127,811 184,736 216,850
2013/2012 Jun 30, 2013 Mar 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012 Sep 30, 2012
$ $ 3 $
Total Revenue Nil 95 102,329 Nil
Net profit/(loss) (119,136) (135,146) (277,742%) (95,149)
Comprehensive profit/(loss) (120,122} (134,166) (272,244) {112,419)
Net loas per share — basic and {0.0007) (0,0008) {0.0021) {0.000%)
diloted
Total assets 283,386 379,760 289,261 344,557

6.7 Liquidity

As at Tune 30, 2014, the Issuer had a working capital deficiency of $615,110 (December 31, 2013 —
$351,409). The major component of the Issuer’s assets as at June 30, 2014 are the marketable
securities that have a fair market value of $41,903 (December 31, 2013 - $139,638). Ongoing
operations of the Issuer for the six month period ended June 30, 2014 were largely funded from the

proceeds of sale of FVTPL securities of $70 471 (six month period ended June 30, 2013 - $19,743)
and HST refunds.

The cash position of the Issuer as at June 30, 2014 was $8,842 (December 31, 2013 - $14,572),
Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses at June 30, 2014 totaled $13,143 (December 31, 2013 -
$30,536), comprised mostly of prepaid insurance and expected HST refunds.

The Issuer has no indebtedness other than ordinary trade payables and accrued liabilities at June 30,
2014 that total $678,998 (December 31, 2013 - $536,155) (see note 6). Included in accounts
payable and accrued liabilities as at June 30, 2014 are Niges training fees of USD $320,000

{December 31, 2012 - USD $240,000). A 'furth.er USD $80,000 was accrued for the 2014 fiscal
year in the current quarter,

Tn Febiuary, 2013, the Issuer closed a non-brokered ptivate placement of 85,000,000 units at $0.005
per unit for gross proceeds of $425,000. Each unit consisted of the following: (a) 1 common share
(subject to a four- month hold period in accordance with requisite securities laws) (b) 1 common
share purchase warrant entitling the holder thereof o buy one common share at a price of $0.01 per
share, expiting in 24 months. The fair value atttibuted to the warrants was $103,000 with the
remaining proceeds of $322,000 attributed to the common shares. The funds were used to pay the
Niger training fees as described above, with the balance to be nsed for general working capital
purpeses duting 2013,
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6.8 Capital Resources

The Issuer has no capital comitments.

6.9 Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Issuer has no Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements,
6.10 Transactions with Related Parties

The Issuer has transacted with related parties pursuant to service arrangements in the ordinary
course of business, as follows:

(8) The Issuer pays a monthly fee of $10,000 to a company controlled by two of the
directors, one of whom is also an officer, for management and administrative services,
including monthly compensation for the CFO of $2,500, corporate secretary, office rent and
regular administrative fonctions. During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Issuer
recorded total fees of $120,000 (2012 - $120,000) (see also note 15(b)). As at December 31,

2013, accounts payable and accrued labilities mcludes $11,581 (2012 - $38,470) in respect
of such fees and cost recoveries,

(b) The Board of Directors has previously approved quartesly director fees of $1,500 for
each independent director, Fees recorded in the year ended December 31, 2013 totaled
$30,000 (2012 - $21,000). As at December 31, 2013, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities includes a provision of $51,000 (2012 - $21,000) in respect of such fees.

(¢} Accounts payable and accrued liabilities of $38,050 owing to certain cutrent and former
related parties were settled with common shares issiied as part of the private placement of
February, 2012 as deseribed in note 9(b).

6.11 Fourth Quarter

The company’s financial activity during the fourth quarter of 2013 was very limited given the
company’s continued negative working capital position. Short-term operations continved to be
financed from sales of the company’s investments. Other than on-geing overhead costs in both
Canada and Niger, the major expenses recorded in the quarter were (1) an additional USD $80,000
of exploration activities frem accrual of conrent year Niger training fees, and (2) previously
unrecognized share baged payments of $19,250.

6.12 Proposed Transactions
For details on the Acquisition and the Spin Out please see section 3.1 of this Listing Statement,
6,13 Changes in and Initial Adoption of Accounting Policies

There were none.
6.14 Financial Instroments and Other Instruments

The [se,liel ics mquii ed to disclose information aboul; the fair value of 1ts financial agsets 'md

-----

111f0rmat1on and mfmmatmn about the ﬁnzmmal instr ument Thes'e estimates are subjective in
natute and involve uncertainties in significant matters of judgment and therefore canuot be
determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect these cstimates.

The Company’s financial instruments recognized in the balance sheet consist of cash and cash
equivalents, investments, HST receivable and current liabilities, The fair value of these financial
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instruments approximate their carrying value due to the short maturity or current marlket rate
associated with these instruments,

6.15 Interim MD&A
Management’s Discussion and Analysis — June 30, 2014 as of November 20, 2014

The following MD&A. of the Issuer contains information concerning the Issver’s business
strategies, capabilities, financial results and an overview of the outlook for the Issuer and the
industry as at November 20, 2014, The unaudited interim consolidated financial statements,
together with the accompanying note disclosure, have been prepared in accordance with
Intetnational Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). The MDé&A should be read in conjunction
with the Issuer’s unaudited inferim consolidated financial statements for the three and six month
periods ended June 30, 2014 and 2013. All nots references in this MD&A. are made in reference to

these financial statements, All financial balances are stated in Canadian doliars, the Issuer’s
reporting curtency.

The following discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve numerous risks and
uncertainties. Actual results of the Issuer could differ materially from those discussed in the
forward-looking statements, These risks and uncertainties are highlighted under “Risk Factors” and
“Fotrward- Looking Statements™ found elsewhere in this document.

Going Coneern

The accompanying tnaudited inferim consolidated financial statements for the three and six month
petiods ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 have been prepared using International Financial Reporiing
Standards applicable to a going concern, as described in note 1(b), The Issuer has incurred repeated
significant losses as net loss for the six month period ended June 30, 2014 was $270,445 (six month
period ended June 30, 2013 - $254,283) with an accumnulated deficit as at Tune 30, 2014 of
$31,702,733 (December 31, 2013 - $31,432,288). The working capital deficiency as at June 30,
2014 was $615,110 as compared with $351,409 at December 31, 2013,

Regarding the Niger Assets (which the Issuer proposes to distribute to certain of its shareholders
pursuant to the Spin Out), the Issuer received renewal of its eight wranium concessions from the
Minister of Mines and Industrial Development of the Government of Niger on March 4, 2013 for a
further three years (see note 5(b)). Such approval had been conditional upon certain factors, the
most significant of which was the payment of two yeats of fraining fees in the amount of USD
$160,000. These two years of training fees were paid by the Issuer on March 28, 2013 (see note 6),
Failure to pay remaining and ongoing annwal training fees (totaling USD $320,000 as at June 30,
2014), to maintain an ongoing administrative presence it Niger or to meet minimum spending and
reporting requirements under the renewal terms could result in termination of any concession
agreements. No adjustment to the carrying value of the Niger concessions would be required as the
Issuer has chosen to expense all exploration expenditures undet IFRS (see note 2¢/).

As the Issuer has no operating revenues or other sources of cash flow, its ability fo maintain its
Canadian head office operations and administrative offices in Canada, in the United States and
Niger (so long as the Issuer directly or indirectly owns properties in Niger) over the next 12 months
will be dependent upon its ability to (1) raise further equity for the Issuer through private
placements (see note 7} and/or (2) sell its interest in its marketable securities (see note 4).

While management believes that it will be able to secure the necessary financing to continue
operations into the fafure, there are material wncertainties that these and other strategies will be
sufficient to permit the Issuer to continue beyond the foresecable future as such strategies are
dependent upon centinted support of its shareholder base. Therefore, there is significant doubt ag
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to the propriety of the use of the going concern assumption upon which these wnaudited interim
consolidated financial statements have been prepared.

Gther Considerations

Although the Issuer has taken steps to verify title to the mineral properties on which it is conducting
exploration and in which it has an interest, these procecures do not guarantee the Issuer’s title,
Management is not aware of any such agreements, transfers or defects, but property title may be
subject to unregistered prior agreements, claims or transfers and title may be affected by undetected
defects. With respect to the Issuer's properties in Niger, the Tssuer also points out that assets located
outside of North America are subject to the risk of foreign investment, including currency exchange
fluctuations and restrictions and local political instability and uncertainty.

The Issuer faces risks and uncertainties including; () the inability to obtain the financing necessary
to complete the development of its properties, (ii) realization of proceeds from the sale of its
properties, or (iif) the Tssuer's licenses, permils or concessions being revoked ag a result of title

disputes, a failure fo comply with agreements or security jssues preventing the safe exploration and
development of any properties under license.

0.17 Additional Disclosure

During the three and six month petiods ended June 30, 2014, the company incurred total expenses,
exclusive of unrealized losses on FVTPL securities, of $168,710 and $243,181 1espect1vely {three
and six month periods ended June 30, 2013 - $75,136 and 146,395 respectively). The major

expenses within these totals for the three and six month petiods ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
respectively, are;

Exploration expenditures: $112,751 and $132,510 (2013 ~ $17,959 and $38,387) Management
administrative services (see note 13(a)): $30,000 and $60,000 (2013 - $30,000 and $60,000)

Exploration expenditures, all incurred in Niger, include office and administrative costs and any
training cost accruals recorded in the reporting period,

6.18 Description of Securities -

The Issuer is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Common Shares. There are currently
9,117,528,394 Common Shares issued and outstanding, and all are Tully paid and non-assessable,

The holders of the Common Shares are entitled to dividends, if, as and when declared by the Board
of Directors, to receive notice of meetings of Shareholders of the Issuer, to one vote per share at
meetings of the Sharcholders of the Issuer and, upon liquidation, to receive such assets of the Issuer
a8 are distributable to the holders of the Common Shares. Iolders of Common Shares do not have
cumulative voting rights with respect to the election of Directors and, accordingly, holders of s,
majority of the votes eligible to vote at a meeting of Shareholders may elect all the Directors of the
Issuer standing for election, Dividends, if any, will be paid on a pro rata basis only from funds
legally available therefore. The rights set out hetein are subject to the nghts, privileges, restrictions
and conditions attaching to any other series or class of shares ranking senior in priority to or on a
pro rata basis with the holders of the Common Shares with respect to dividends or 11qu:1da1,10n The
Common Shares do not carry any pre-emptive, subscuptlon redemption or conversion rights, nor
do they contain any sinking or purchase fund provisions, Amendments to the tetms of the Common
Shares may only be made following approval by ‘st least two-thirds of the holders of Common
Shares voting at a duly called meeting of the Shareholders.
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The Issuer has created a stock eption plan for the benefit of directors, officers and consultants. The
total number of shares which may be reserved and set aside for issuance to eligible persons may not
exceed 10% of the issued and outstanding common shares.

As af the date of the Listing Statement there are no shares reserved for the exercise of stock options
undet the Issuer’s stock option plan (the “Plan™).

6.19 Breakdown
See section 6.17 of this Listing Statement,

6.20 Negative cash flow

The Issuer had a negative operation cash flow for its most recently completed financial year, At
October 31, 2014 the Issuer had cash and cash equivalents of approximately $150,000 assuming the
completion of the Private Placement, the Acquisition and the Spin Out.

In light of the Issuer’s objectives for the first year following its listing on the CSE, it has budgeted
approximately $500,000 for its planned expenditures and operating costs for the period through
ending December 31, 2014, and a further $500,000 for the period from January 1, 2015 1o
approximately September 30, 2015, This budget provides for the Issuer to continue its exploration
of the Assets, and assumes that no significant activities are undertaken during the corresponding
period to commence production from any of the Assets. Hf the Issuet determines to start production
at one of the Assets earlier than planned, it is anticipated that the required funding would have to be
raised through private placements of the Issuer’s securities, With respect to the Issuer’s production
plans, it is important to note that pursuant to the agreements under which the Assets were sold by
Bnergy Fuels Inc,, the Issuer enjoys an economically favourable tolling agreement with that Issuer
for processing at White Mesa mill of Energy Fuels Inc, that is located at Blanding, Utah, in
reasonably close proximity to the Assets,

6.21 Sigmificant equify investees
The Issuer has no equity investees.

7. Market for Securities

As of November 20, 2014, there was no public market for the Common Shares and no assurance
that an active market for the Common Shares will develop. ¥ no active public market for the
Common Shares develops, the liquidity of an investor’s investment may be limited and the share
price may decline below the price paid for the Comman Shares by such investor.

8. Capitalization

There have been no material changes in the share capital of the Issuer since the interim financial
statements for the six months ended June 30, 2014 other than the issuance of 118,820 post-
Comnsolidation Cotmon Shares (95,055,946 Common Shates on a pre-Consolidation basis) priced
at $2.32 per post-Consolidation Common Share (or $0.0029 per share on a pre-Consolidation basis)
for gross proceeds of $275,662.24 pursuant to a private placement that closed on November 20,
2014 and the issuance of 11,000,000 post-Consolidation Common Shares (or 8,300,000,000
Common Shares on a pre-Consolidation basis) priced at $3.00 per post-Consolidation Common
Share (or $0.00375 per share on a pre-Consolidation basis) to acquire all of the issued and
outstanding shares of PRM for a total value of $33,000,000 pursuant to the Acquisition.
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9, Options to Purchase Securities

There are no options outstanding. All previously issued options have been cancelled as a condition
of the Acquisition.

10. Description of the Securities
10.1 General

Common Shareg

The Issuer is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Common Shares. As of the date hereof, on
a post-Consolidation basis there are 278,091 Commeon Shares (or 222,472,448 pre-Consolidation
Common Shares) issued and outstanding, Fach holder of a Common Share is entitled to receive
notice of, to attend, and to vote at all meetings of the shareholders of the Issuer. The holders of the
Common Shares are entitled to receive dividends, if, as, and when declared by the directors of the
Issuer. The holders of the Common Shares are entitled to share equally in the remaining property
of the Issuer upon liquidation, dissolution ot winding-up of the Issuer.

Prior to listing a further 118,820 post-Consolidation Common Shares (95,055,946 Common Shares
of1 a pre-Consolidation basis} were issued on the completion of the Private Placement and
11,000,000 post-Consolidation Common Shares (8,800,000,000 Common Shares on a pre-
Consolidation basis) were issued in respect of the Acquisition for a total of 11,396,910 post-
Consolidation Commeon shares (or 9,117,528, 394 Common Shates on a pre-Consolidation basis)
outstanding on the date of listing.

Warrants

The Tssuer has issued warrants exercisable for 106,250 post-Consolidation Common Shares {or

85,000,000 pre-Consolidation basis) at a price of $8.00 per post-Consolidation Common Share (or
$0.01 per pre-Consolidation Common Share) vntil February 26, 2015.

10.2 The Issuer-has no debt securities,
10.4 There are no other securities outstanding ot being listed.

10.5 Provisions regarding the modification of the terms of the Common Shares are set out in section

10.1 above and are subject to approval by two-thirds of sharsholders at a meeting called for that
purpose,

10.6 There are no other attributes to the Common Shares not set out in section 10.1 above,

10,7 The following table contains details of the prior sales of the Common Shares within the last 12
months (expressed after giving effect to the proposed Consolidation):

Date Number of Shares Issue Price Per Total Issue Price Natore of
Share Consideration
Received
November 20, 2014 118,820 $2.32 $275,662.24 Cash
November 20, 2014 11,000,000 $3.00 $33,000,000 Acquisition

10.8 The Common Shares of the Issuer have not before been listed either in Canada or clsewhere.
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11, Escrowed Securities

An escrow agreement dated as of Novemiber 20, 2014 hag been entered inte among the Issuer,
Capital Transfer Agency Inc., those parties who are identified as “Principal Shareholders” of the
Issuer undet Section 12 of this Listing Statement, and the Directors and executive officers of the
Issuer {the “Bscrow Agreement™). The following table lists the common shares of the Issuer that are
subject to escrow on a post-Consolidation basis.

Eserow Holders Number of Escrowed Percentage of Class(V
Common shares
George E. Glasier 4,840,000 42%
Baobab Asset Management LLC™ 4,730,000 41%
Geoff Kritzinger™ 3,375 0.03%
(1) Based on approximately 11,396,810 Common Shards issued and outstanding as of the date of this Listing
Statement,

(2) An entity controlled by Russell Fryer.
(3) Geoff Kritzinget is the Chief Financial Cfficer of the Tssuer,

The Escrow Agreement provides that 10% of the common shares subject to escrow will be released
from that on the date when the Issuer is listed on the CSE. The remaining 90% of those shares wiil
be released from escrow in 15% tranches duting consecutive six month intervals over a 36 month
period following the Issuer’s listing on the CSE. This escrow release schedule is subject to

acceleration in accordance with National Policy 46-201 - Escrow for Initial Public Offerings and
the policies of the CSE.

12. Principal Shareholders

As of the date of this Listing Statement the following persons beneficially own directly or

indirectly, or exercise control or direction over, more than 10% of the voting rights attached to all of
the outstanding shares of the Issyer:

Name Number of Common Shares Percentage of
(post-Consolidation) Common Shares
George E. Glasier 4,840,000 42%
Baobab Asset Management LICY 4,730,000 41%

(1} An entity controlled by Russell Fryer.

13. Directors and Executive Officers

The following table sets forth the name, municipality of residence, position or offices held with the
Issuer, date appointed, principal occupatians during the five preceding years and the number of
voting securities of the Tssuer that each of the Direclors and executive officers of the Issuer
beneficially own, direcily or indirectly, or exercise control or direction over, as of the date of this
Listing Statement:
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Name and Position ox Office held Principal Occupation during the Number of
Munieipality of with the lssuer and Preceding Five Years Common Shares
Residence Date Appointed : (post-
Consolidation)
Owned/
Controlled
(George E. Glasier Diteotor, Pregident & Cattle ranchar, Previovsly President and 4.840.000
INaturita, Colorado, USAICEQ founder of CEO Energy Fuels Inc. T
(November 20, 2014)
Russell Fryer Director Investiment Advisory Services 4,730,0004
Tohannesburg, South  |(November 20, 2014)
Africa
Michael Skutezky Director Lawyer, Previously General Counsel and Nil
Toronto, Onfario (November 20, 2014) Secretary of Century Iton Mines
Corporation.
Geoff Kritzinger, Chief Financial Officer | Chattered  Accountant  selfemployed 3,375
Toronto, Ontario (March, 2011} through Geoff Kritzinger Professional
Corporation

(1) Shares held by Baobab Asset Menagement LLC, an entity owned and coptrolled by Mr. Frye,

(2) Inaddition, Mr. Fryer has investment authority over Pinon Ridge Energy Corp., which owns 550,000 Shares of
the Tssuer.

The term of office of the Directors expires antually at the time of the Issuer’s annual general
meeting. The term of office of the executive officers expires at the discretion of the Board of
Directors, As of the date of the Listing Statement, the Issuer's Board of Directors has not struck an
Audit Committee or esfablished any other committees, Until an Audit Committee or other

committees are established, the responsibilities nermally discharged by such committees will be
discharged by the full Board of Directors.

As of the date of the Listing Statement, the Directors and executive officers of the Issuer, as a
group, beneficially own, directly or indirectly, or exercise control 9,573,375 post-Consolidation
Common Shares (ar 7,930,303,034 Common Shares on a pre-Consolidation basis) representing
87% of the 11,396,910 post-Consolidation Common Shares (or 9,117,528,394 -Common Shares on
a pre-Consolidation basis) issued and outstanding as of the date hereof,

Corporate Cease Trade Orders or Bankruptcies

To the knowledge of the Tssuer, except as described below, no Director or executive officer of the
[ssuer is, as at the date of the Listing Statement, or has been in the last 10 years before the date of
the Listing Statement, a director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer of any company
(including the Issuer) that, while that person was acting in that capacity,

(a)  was subject to an order that was issued while the director or executive officer was acting in
the capacity as director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer: or

(b)  was subject to an order that wes issued after the direclor or executive officer ceased to be &
director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer and which resulted from an event

that occurred while that person was acting in the capacity as director, chief executive officer
or chief financial officer,
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Russell Fryer, who was Chairman and a director of Ecometals Ltd., a TSX Venture Exchange listed
company, was the subject of a management cease trade order issued by the British Columbia
Securities Commission on July 30, 2013 which was converted into a full cease trade order on
October 2, 2013 for failure of the Issuer to file its audited financial statements for the year ended

March 31, 2013. To date, the cease trade order is still in effect, Mr. Fryer continues to serve on the
Board of Directors of this conpany. ‘

George B, Glasier was President and Chief Executive Officer, and Michael Skutezky was General
Counsel and Sectetary, of Enetgy Fuels Inc. in February 2007 when this corpotation was subject to
a management cease trade order for failure to file the September 30, 2006 vear-end financial
stateroents in a timely mauner. The delay with this filing resulted -from of a change of Chief

Financial Officer for this company. Upon the filing of the 2006 financial statements in March 2007,
the management cease trade order was lifted, :

Mr. Skutezky was also Secretary of Lakota Resources Inc. in May 2009, when the British Columbia
Securities Commission and the Onfario Securities Commission issued a cease trade order in
connection with the late filing of 2008 annuval financial statements and related management's

discussion and analysis. Upon the filing of the 2008 financial statements in May 2011, the cease
trade order was lifted,

Geoff Kritzinger was Chief Financial Officer of Enquest Enetgy Services Corp, (BNQ — TSXV)
(“Enquest”), which in May 2010 was subject to a cease trade order for failure to file andited
financial statetnents and other required disclosures within prescribed time limits. The cease trade
order has not been rescinded, Enquest sold the majority of its asscts pursuant to a plan of
arrangement announced on August 19, 2010 and is no longer a reporting issuer.

To the knowledge of the Issuer, no Director or executive officer of the Issuer or a Sharcholder
holding a sufficient number of securities of the Issuer to affect materially the control of the Issuer:

(a)  is, as at the date of the Listing Statement, or has been within the 10 years before the date of
the Listing Statement, a director or executive officer of any company (including the Issuer)
that, while that person was acting in that capacity, or within a year of that person ceasing to
act in that capacity, became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to
bankruptey or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, attangement or

compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold
its agseis; or

(b)  has, within 10 years before the date of the Listing Statement, become bankrupt, made a
proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptey ot insolvency, or become subject to or
instituled any proceedings, artangement or compromise with creditors, ot had a receiver,

receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets of the director, executive officer or
sharchoider.

Penalties or Sanctions

To the knowledge of the Issuer, none of the Directors ot officers of the Issuer have been subject to
any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to Canadian securities legislation or by a
Canadian securities regulatory authority or have entered into a settlement agreement with a
Canadian secutities regulatory authority or been subject to any ofher penalties or sanctions imposed

by a court or regulatory body that would likely be considered important to a reasonable investor
making an investment decision.,
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Individual Bankruptcies

None of the Directors or executive officers of the Issuer has, within the ten (10) years prior to the
date hereof, been declared bankrupt or made a voluntary assignment in bankruptey, made a
proposal under any legislation relating to balﬂaupicy or insolvency or been subjeot to or instituted

any proceedings, arrangement, or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or
trustee appointed to hold the agsets of that individual.

- Conflicts of Interest

The Board of Directors of the Issuer are required by law to act honestly and in good faith with a
view to the best interests of the Issuer and to disclose any interests which they may have in any
project or opportunity of the Issuer. If a conflict arises, any Director in a conflict will disclose his
interest and abstain from voting on such matter at a meeting of the Board of Directors,

To the best of the Issuer’s knowledge and other than as disclosed herein, there are no existing or
potential conflicts of interest among the Issuer, its promoters, Directors, officers or other members
of management of the Issuer except that certain of the Directors, officers, promoters and other
members of management serve as directors, officers, promoters and members of management of
other public companies and therefore it is possible that a conflict may arise between their duties as a

director, officer, promoter or member of management of such. other companies and their duties as a
Director, officer, promoter or member of management of the Issuer.

The Directors and officers of the Issuer are aware of the existence of laws governing accountebility
of directors and officers for corporate opportunity and requiring disclosure by Directors of conflicts
of interest and the Issuer will rely upon such laws in respect of any Directors’ and officers’ conflicts
of interest or in respect of any breaches of duty to any of its Directors and officers.

Biographies of Management

The following is a brief description of each of the Directors and executive officers of the Issver,
including their names, ages, positions and responsibilities with the Issuer, relevant educational
backgmund principal occupation o employment during the five years preceding the date hercof,

experienco in the Tssuer’s industry and the amount of time intended to be devoted 1o the affa:us of
the Issuer:

Executive Officers and Directors

George I. L. Glasier, J.D., age 70, Director, President and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Glasier has been a Consultant at Black Range Minerals Ltd, since July 2012. Mr, Glasier has
over 40 years experience in the uraniurn industry in the USA, with extensive experience in sales and
marketing; project development and permitting uranium processing facllities. He was Owner and
Vice President of Sales and Marketing at Energy Fuels Resources Corporation, He is the Founder of
Energy Fuels Inc.(Volcanic Metals Exploration Inc) and served as its Chief Executive Officer and
President from January 24, 2006 to March 31, 2010. He was responsible for assembling a first-class
management team, acquiring a portfolio of wranium projects, and leading the successful permitting
‘process that culminated in the licensing of the Pifion Ridge uranium mill; plasned for construction
in western Montrose County, Colotado. He served as the Chief Executive Officer and President of
American Strategic Minerals Corporation from January 26, 2012 to June 11, 2012. He served as the
Chairman of American Strategic Minerals Corporation from January 26, 2012 to June 11, 2012 and
its Executive Director until June 11, 2012. He served as an Executive Director of Energy Fuels Inc.
from January 2006 to March 31, 2010, Mr. Glasier, is a USA lawyer by iraining,
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Russell Fryer, age 48, Director .

Mr. Fryer has 24 years experience investing in developed and developing markets with a focus on
mining and netural resources. With a background in engineering, Mr. Fryer has advised mining
companies in pre-production and production stage of mineral output. Mr. Fryer is a director of
Ecometals Limited. Previously, Mr, Fryer was a Managing Director at Macquarie Bank. Before
Macquarie, Mr, Fryer managed investor capital in the natural resources sector at Baobab Asset
Management and North Sownd Cepital, Throughout his career, Mr. Fryer has also worked with
investrent banking firms such as Robert Fleming, HSBC and Deutsche Bank. Mr, Fryer holds a
Bachelor of Business Administration degtee from Newport Univetsity in Johannesburg South

Aftica along with an Advance Degree in International Taxation from Rand Afrikaans University,
also in Johannesburg Soufh Africa.

Michael R. Skutezky, age 66, Director

After a career at Royal Bank as Assistant Genetal Counsel, Mr. Skutezky experienced the
management side of the business as Senior Vice-President of National Trust Company and as
Senior Vice-President and General Counsel of the Romanian subsidiary of Telesysteme
International Witeless Corporation. Mr Skutezky was General Counsel & Corporate Secretary of
Century Iron Mines Corporation, a company listed on the TSX, He is currently a lawyer practicing
in Toronfo, Ontario, Mr. Skutezky is Chairman of Rhodes Capital Corporation, a private merchant
bank providing setvices to the resource and technology industry. Mr. Skutezky graduated from
Bishop’s University, Lennoxville (Québec) in 1969 with a Bachelot's degree in History and
Business and from Dalhousie Uuiversity Law School, Halifax (Nova Scotia) in 1972 with a
Bachelor’s degree in law (LLB). He is member of the Law Society of Upper Canada and the Nova
Scotia Barristers’ Society, the International Bar Association and the Canadian Bar Association.

Geoff Kritzinger, age 55, Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Kritzinger worked for four years following his graduation with KPMG in Edmonton, obtaining
his CA designation in 1986, From 2001 to 2008, Mr, Kritzinger was a partner with Shimmerman
Penn LILP, a midsized accounting firm in Toronto, where he managed a large audit practice,
including public company clients in the junior mining sector and private companies in industries
such as health care, manufacturing and distribution. From 2008 te 2010, Mr. Kritzinger was Chief
Financial Officer of Enquest Energy Services Cotp., an oilficld services company with annualized
revenues in excess of $150 million. Prior to his appointment as CFO of Enquest, he was also a
member of the Practice Inspection Committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario
over 2007-2008. Mr. Kritzinger currently operates an accounting practice under Geoff Kritzinger
Professional Corporation, and is also CFO of both Telferscol Resources Ine, (TFS-CNSX) and
Homeland Uranium Inc., a reporting issuer o the OSC, Mr, Kritzinger also acted ag CFO of
Diamond Bstates Wines & Estates Ine, (DWS-TSXV) from May 2013 until June 2014, Mr.
Kritzinger graduated in 1982 with a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of Toronto
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14. Capitalization

14.1 Issued Capital ~ Common Shares (on a post-Consolidation basis)

Public Float

Total onistanding {A)

Held by Related Persons or
employees of the Issuer or Related
Person of the Issuer, ot by persons
of companies who beneficially own
orcontrol, divectly or indirectly,
more than a 5% voting positicn in
the Tssuer {or who would
beneficially own or control,
directly or indirectly, more than a
5% voting position in the Issuer
upon exercise or convergion of
other securities held) (B)

Total Public Float (A-1)

Ereely-Tradeable Float

Number of outstanding securitles
subject to resale restrictions,
including restrictions inposed by
pooling or other arrangements ot in
a shareholder agreement and
securities held by control blocle
holders (C)

Total Tradeable Float (A-C)

Number of % of % of
. Number of
Securities Securities (fully- Tssued Issued
(non-diluted) diluted) {non-diluted) (fully diluted)
11,396,910 11,503,160
10,127,125 10,127,125 88.86% 88.04%
1,269,785 1,376,035 11,14% 11.94%
118,820 118,820 1.04% 1.04%
1,150,965 1,287,215 10,10% 10.90:%
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Public Securityholders (Registered)

Class of security Common Shares

Size of Holding Number of holders Total number of securities
1 — 99 securities | 29 589
100 — 499 securities 108 12,645
300 — 999 securities 6 3,903
1,000 — 1,999 securities 2 3,125
2,000 - 2,999 seourities 3 7,375
3,000 - 3,999 securitles 2 7,044
4,000 — 4,999 securities 2 8,700
5,000 or more securities 21 858,323
173 901,704

Public Securityholders {Benecficial}

Class of Security ~ Common Shares

Size of Molding Number of holders Total pumber of secuyities
199 securities &5 1,751
100 — 499 securities 9 3,008
500 — 999 securitics 5 3,625
1,000 — 1,999 securities 0 0
2,000 — 2,999 wecurities 0 0
3,000 ~ 3,999 securities 0 0
4,000 — 4,999 securities g _ 29,130
5,000 or more securities 0

Unable to confirm 192
TOTAL 87 31,706
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14.2 Convertible Securities

The following table sets out the outstanding warrants, which are currently outstanding (expressed on & post-
Consolidation basis);

Description of Security Number of convertible / Number of listed securities
(include conversion/ exetcise exchangeable securities issuable upon conversion /
terms, including conversion / outstanding exercige

exercise price)

Warrants 106,250 106,250

14,3 Securities reserved for Issuance

Thete are no securities reserved for issuance other than those already described herein.

15, Executive Compensation

The information contained below is provided as required under Form 51-102F6 (the “Form), as
such term is defined in National Instrument 51-102, This information is in respect of the historical
compensation model of the Issuer. As a condition of the Acquisition, new directors and officers
have been appointed and new cempensation policies will be adopted.

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

The Issuer’s approach to executive compensation has been to provide suitable compensation for
executives that is internally equitable, externally competitive and reflects individual achievement.
The Issuer maintains compensation arrangements designed to attract and retain highly qualified

individuals in the junior exploration mining industry who are able and capable of carrying out the
objectives of the Issuer,

The Issuet’s compensation arrangements for the Named Bxecutive Officers may, in addition to
salary, include compensation in the form of bonuses and, over a longer term, benefits arising from
the grant of stock options in the [ssuer (the “Stock Options™).

No bonuses have been paid to any of the Named Executive Officers to date.

On July 11, 2013 Stock Oplions were granted to the Named Executive Officers, See “Options
Grants in 2013” and “Summary of Stock Option Plan”, These options have been cancelled as a.
condition of the Acquisition.

Option Based Awards

The purpose of the Plan is to allow the Issuer to grant Stock Options to directors, officers,
employees and consuitants (as hereafter defined), as additional compensation, and as an oppottunity

to participate in the success of the Issuer. The granting of such Stock Options is intended to align
the interests of such persons with that of the shateholders.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table is a summary of compensation paid to the Named Executive Officets for the
financial year ended December 31, 2013.
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Non-equity

incentive plan

eompensation
Name Year | Salary | Share-| Option | Aunual| ZLomg- | Pension| Allother Total
angd ) based | -based | Incentive| term. value |compensation | compensation
principal awards| award | plans | incentive »
position ($) s@ | plans
Btephen 2013 0 0 6,000 0 0 0 0 6,000
Coates,,
Chief 2012 0 O ¢ 0 0 0 0 0
Executive '
Officer) 2011 | 14,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Geoff 2013 | 30,000 0 1,500 0 0 0 0 31,500
Kritzinger ‘
, Chief 2012 | 30,000 ] 0 0 0 0 0 30,000
Financial
Officer® 2011 | 55,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 55,000
Hatern 2011 (€)] 0 0 0 0 0 0 {3)
Keawar
Chief
Financial
Officer
Nick 2011 (3) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (3)
Tintor
President
& Chief
BExecutive
Offlcer

* Mr. Coates became CEQ offective March 2011, and directly received consulting fees of $14,000

($3,500 per month for a period of four mentlm) for the peﬂod from March 2011 to June 2011 ag
to the CEO of the [ssuer,

Starting iv. January, 2011, the Issuer paid $6,500 per month to Grove Capital Group Lid,, a
company controlled by Mr. Coates, for management and administrative services, including
compensation for the CFO, corporate secretary, office rent and regular administrative functions.
Starting in July, 2011, the fee was increased to $10,000 per month as the compensation of the

CEO was assumed by Grove Capital.

$120,000 (2012 - $120,000).

@ Mr, Kritzinger became CFO effective March 201 1, and was paid consulting fees of $25,000
(52,500 per month for a period of 10 months) through Grove Capital Group Ltd. In addition, Mr.
Kritzinger received directly a one-time consulting fee of $30,000 for incremental services
provided in 2011. M1 Kritzinger was paid consuliing fees of $30,000 ($2,500 per month)

through Grove (see

) above).

Total fees paid to Grove Capital during 2013 totalled

®) Bffective March, 2011, Mr. Tintot and Mr. Kawat wore replaced by Mr, Stephen Coates and Mr,
Geoff Kritzinger respectively as CEO and CRO. For the period from January, 2011 to February,

2011, their management functions were included in a monthly administrative fee of $4,000
charged by Southern Andes Energy,
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Incentive Plan Awards

The following table is a summary of awards granted to the Narned Executive Officers and
outstanding as at December 31, 2013, The number of securities reported is provided on a pre-

Consolidation basis.
Option-based Awards Share-based Awards
Name Number of Option Onption Yalue of Number of Marlket or
securities exercise expiration umexercised shares or payout value of
underlying price ($) date in-the-moene units of share-based
anexercised options (5} @ | shares that awards that
options (f) have not have not vested
vested (#) (3]
Stephen .
Costes, 75000 | soaso | Maehd Nil N/A N/A
Chief ‘
Execufive 2,000,000 $0.005 Tuly 11, 2018 NIL 1,000,000 $5,000
Officer
(Geoff
Kritzinger,
Chief 500,000 $0.005 July 11,2018 Nil 250,000 $1,250
Financial
Officer

Y Based on Management’s estimate, if shares of the Issuer were trading on a recognized stocl
exchange today, the stock was valued at $0,005 per share as at December 31, 2013,

@ These options of M. Coates’ expired unexercised in March, 2013,

During the Issuer’s completed financial year ended December 31, 2013, no Stock Options were
exercised by the Named Bxecntive Officers. -

As of November 20, 2014 all options were cancelled.
Incentive Plan Awards — Value Vested During the Year

Set forth below is a summary of the value vested (using graduated vesting) during the financial year
of the Issuer ended December 31, 2013 in respect of all option-based and share-based awards and
non-cquity incentive plan compensation granted to the Named Executive Officers.

Name Option-based awards | Share-based awards — Non-egnity incentive
— value vested during value vested during plan compensation —
the year the year value earned during the
yeay
Stephen Coates $6,000 Nit Nil
Geofl Kritzinger $1,500 Nit Nit
Stock Option Plan

‘The Issuer maintains a stock option plan (the "Plan™) for its directors, officers, consultants and
employees, The purposs of the Plan is to attract, retain and motivate management, staff and
copsultants by providing them with the opportunity, through Stock Options, to acquire a proprietary
interest in the Issuer and benefit from its growth.
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Stock Options exercisable for an aggregate of 1,239,691 post-Consolidation Common Shares can
currently be issued under the Plan which represents 10% of the current issued and outstanding
Common Shares. As at the date hereof, there are no Stock Options to purchase common shares

currently outstanding, and there are therefore 1,239,691 Common Shares available for issuance
vader the Plan at this time,

A Stock Option exercise price shall not be less than the most recent share issuance price. The
maximum term is five years, There are no specific vesting provisions under the Plan, Options are
non-assignable and non-transferable except that Stock Options may be transferred to the spouse of
an optionee or to the registered retirement savings plan o registered pension plan of an optionee
and the representatives of a deceased optionee may exercise Stock Options on behalf of the

deceaged optionee until the expiry date of the Stock Option or for until one year after the death of
the optionee, whichever is sooner.,

The Plan provides if the optionee's employment is terminated on the Issuer's initiative without cause
or as a result of the optionee's resignation, or if the mandate of a director; sentor executive or
consultant of the Issuer who is an optionee is terminated, any vested Stock Option of such optionee
may be exercised during a period of ninety (90) days following the date of termination of such
employment or mandate, as the case may be, on the understanding that any unvested Stock Option
of such optionee may nof be exercised. In the case of an optionee's death, any vested Stock Option
of such optionee at the time of death may be exercised by his ot her heirs or legatees or their
liquidator during a period of 365 days following such optionee's deafh,

The total number of Common Shares issuable to insiders af any time under the Plan and under all
security-based compensation arrangements may not exceed ten percent (10%) of the total mumber of
Common Shares issued and outstanding, The total mumber of Common Shares issued to insiders
over any one-year petiod under the Plan and under all the security-based compensation
arrangements may not exceed ten percent {10%) of the total number of Common Shares igsued and
outstanding. The total number of Common Shares issusble to any one person at any time under the
Plan and under all secutity-based compensation arrangements may not exceed five petcent (5%) of
the total number of Common Shares issued and outstanding, The Plan provides that where options
are cancelled or lapse under the Plan, the associated Common Shares become available again and
new options may be granted in respect thereof in accordance with the provisions of the Plan,

The Boatd may make any amendment to the Plan, without shareholder approval, except: (i) an
increase in the number of Common Shares reserved for issue under the Plan; and (if) a reduction in
ihe exercise price or the extension of the expiry date of an option held by an insider. Without
limiting the general scope of the foregoing, the Board could make the following amendments: {i) an
amendment to the exercise price of a Stock Option, unless it involves a downward adjustment of the
exoreiso price of an option held by an insider; (ii) an amendment to the expiry date of a Stock
Option, unless the amendment extends the expiry of a Stock Option held by an insider; (iif) the
addition or deletion of & provision of the Plan or the amendment of the Plan which is required to
comply with applicable laws or with the requirements of securities regulatory bodies; (iv) an
amendment intended to correct or clerify some ambiguity, an tnapplicable provision, an error or
omission in the Plan or an option; (v) the addition of a cashless exercise feature entitling the
optionee to an amount in cash or to securities regardless of whether or not the wording stipulates
that the aggregate of the underlying Common Shares will be dedueted from the aggregate of the

- Common Shares reserved for the purposes of the Plan; and (vi) any other amendment not requiring
shareholder approval pursuant to the Plan,

839409401 5-Homeland Uraniom\CSELislingApplication’d3 Form 2A - Listing Statement for Homeland Uraninm {Pinon Ridge)keshlk.docx



Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities
to be issued upon
exercise of outstanding

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,

Number of securities
remaining available for
futare issuanee under
equity compensation
plans (excluding
securities reflected in

Plan Category options (a) warranés and rights column (a)
Equity compengation Nil Nil 1,239,601
plans approved by

securityholders

Eqnity compensation Nil Nil Nil
plans not approved by

gecurityholders

Total Nil Nil 1,239,691

Defined Benefit or Actnarial Plan

The Issuer does not have a defined benefit or actuarial plan.

Long Term Incentive Plan Awards

The Issuer does not curtently have a long-term incentive plan for its execitive officers.

Termination of Employment, Change in Responsibilities and Employment Contracts

Except as otherwise disclosed herein, there are no compensatory plans, contracts or arrangements in
place with a Named Executive Officer resulting from the resignation, retirement or any other
termination of employment of the Named Executive Officer with the Issuer or from a change in
control of the Issuer or a changs in the Natmed Executive Officer’s responsibilities following a

change in confrol, where the value of such compensation, including periodic payments or
instalments, that exceeds $50,000.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

The following table sets forth the remuneration received by the directors (other than its Named
Executive Officers, the compensation of whom is detailed above under “Summary Compensation
Table”) and the options granted to or earned by the Issuer’s directors for the financial year ended

December 31, 2013,
Name and Year Fees Share- | Option- | Non-equity All other Total ($)
principal oarned | based based incentive compensation ()
position (%) awards | awards plan
$ (%) compensatio
n (%) _
Nick Tintor 2013 ¢ 4,500 0 0 4,5G0
James Garcelon 2013 0 4,500 0 0 4,500
Robert Kirtlan 2013 0 4,500 0 0 4,500
Jun He 2013 0 4,500 0] 0 4,500
Mike Wood " 2013 0 0 4,500 0 0 4,500

U'Mr, Wood became a director on February 25, 2013
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No director fees have been paid in 2013, Option based awards earned during 2013 are noted in table
above. Non-executive directors are entitled to be reimbursed for expenses incurred by them in their
capacity as directors, Directors who are officers of the Issuer ate not paid any amount in the
capacities as directors of the Issuer, The Board of Directors approved quarterly ditector fees
of $1,500 for each independent director. Fees recorded in the year ended December 31, 2013
totatled $30,000 (2012 - $21,000), As at December 31, 2013, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities inclndes a provision of $51,000 (2012 ~ $21,000) in respect of such fees.

Other Arrangements

Other than disclosed in the table above, none of the directors of the Issner were compensated in
their capacity as a director of the Issuer during the year ended December 31, 2013 pursuant to any
other arrangement or in Hieu of any standard compensation arrangement,

Compensation for Services

During the financial year ended December 31, 2013, there was no compensation paid to the
directors of the Issuer for any setvices as consultants or experts,

Outstanding Share-Based Awards and Option-Based Awards

The following table is a summary of option-based awerds granted to the directors of the Issuer,
other than directors who are Named Executive Officers whose share-based and option-based awards
outstanding as of December 31, 2013 detailed above, and outstanding as at December 31, 2013.

Option-hased Avards Share-based Awards
Name and | Number of Optlon Option Value of Number of | Warket or
principal securities exercise expiration { unexercised | shares that pay-out
position underlying price ($) date in-the- have not value of
tnexereised money vested (1) | share-hased
opiions () aptions ($) awards that
have not
vested ($)
Niek Tintor | 200,000 $0.25 Marché l?, Nil NIL NIL
2013
1,500,000 $0.005 Nil 750,000 3,750
Tuly 11,
2018
James 1,500,000 $0.005 July 11, Nil 750,000 3,750
Garcelon 2018
Lobert 1,560,000 $0.005 Tuly 11, Nil 750,000 3,750
Kirtlan 2018
Jun He 1,500,000 $0.005 July 11, Nil. 750,000 3,750
2018
Mike 1,500,000 $0.005 July 11, Nil 750,000 3,750
Wood 2018

D hese options of Mr. Tintor expired unexercised in March 2013,
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There were no vested or earned incentive plan awards granted to the directors of the Issuer for the

financial year ended December 31, 2013, All opiions held by the existing directors were cancelled
as a condition of the Acquisition,

16. Indebtedness of Directors and Executive Officers

No Directors, executive officers, employees and no former Directors, executive officers and
employees of the Issuer were or are indebied to the Tasuer,

17. Risk Factory

An investment in the Issuer’s securities is considered extremely speculative. Prospective investors
should consider the specific risks that are associated with the business of the Issuer. None of the
Tssuer’s mineral properties are in production and none of its mineral properties contain a known
body of commercial ore. In order to develop its propetties, the Issuer may require additional
financing which may not be possible to obtain.

The business of mining is generally subject to a nymber of risks and hazards, insurance for which is
generally not available. The Issuer has or is seeking to acquire interests in some volatile regions of
the world which have experienced or contitue to experience periods of political and/or economic
instability including war, terrorism and public disorder. The Issuer’s activities may be subject to
extensive foreign laws and regulations and the Issuer may become subject to significant liabilities
for environmental damage resulting from its exploration activities or for any subsequent
development. In addition, changes in mining or investment policies and regulations which cannot
be accurately predicted may adversely affect the Issuet’s business. There is no guarantee that the
Issuer will obtain all required permits to develop its propetty interests.

The Issuer encounters competition from other companies, some of which have greater financial
resources and technical facilities than the Issuer. This applies to any countries where the Issuer is
pursuing to acquire properties. Market fluctuations in the price of uranium and other energy related
minerals iz also another major risk factor as it may render ore reserves to be uneconomic.

The Issuer has certain spending commitments on its properties and it is possible that these
commitments may not be met in a Hmely manner for opetational, security or other reasong, In
normal circumstances, the Issuer could negotiate an extension for it contract obligations, but there
is no guarantee that it will succeed in obtaining such an extension or relief, In such cases, the Tssner
would risk losing its contractual rights on these properties, The Issuer can manage these risks to
some degree through the relinquishment of exploration rights over portions of the lands in question.

The Issuer is a relatively young organization. Its success will largely depend on the efforts and
abilities of certain senior officers and key employees, Certain of the directors and officers of the
Issuer also serve as directors and/or officers of other companies involved in natural resource
exploration and development and consequently there exists a possibility for such directors and
officers to be in a position of conflict, See “Conflicts of Interests” below,

Significant Events Continuing to Affect the Nuclear Industry in 2013

The long-term implicetions of the nuclear plant problems in Japan still remain uncertain and the
Issuer continues to have limited visibility into the effects that these events could have on its
business. For the purposes of risk assessment, it is prudent to assume that the net effect on the
potential to raise additional funds and further the Issuet’s plans is potentially very negative.
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Howevet, it is the view of management that the fundamental future of nuclear power is not in doubt
and that there will be a continued, and likely increasing, demand for uranium over the long term.

Lack of Operational Liquidity

The expenses of the Issuer will be funded from cash on hand from the remaining proceeds of the
previous offerings, now effectively represented by the investment position. Once such cash has
been expended, the Issuer will be required to seek additional financing, There is no guarantee that
any debt or additional equity or equity related offering of securities will be available on terms
acceptable to the Issuer or that it will be able to locate or sell U308 in a timely or profitable
manner,

Exploration, Development and Operating Risks

Mining and exploration operations generally involve a high degree of risk. The operations of the
Issuer are subject to all the hazards and risks normally encountered in the exploration, development
and production of precious and base metals and other minerals, including, but not limited to,
unusual and unexpected gevlogic formations, seismic activity, rock bursts, cave-ins, flooding and
other conditions involved in the drilling and removal of material, any of which could result in
damage to, or destruction of, mines and other producing facilities, damage to life or property,
environmental damage and possible legal liability. Although adequate precautions to minimize risk
will be taken, milling operations are subject to hazards such as equipment failure or failure of
retaining dams around tailings disposal areas, which may result in envirommental potlution and
consequent Hability. The exploration for and developtnent of mineral deposits involves significant
tigls which may not be eliminated even with a combination of careful evaluation, experience and
knowledge. While the discovery of uranium and other minerals may result in substantial rewards,
few propertics that are explored are ultimately developed into producing mines. Major expenses
may be tequired to locate and establish mineral reserves, to develop metallurgical processes, and to
construct mining and processing facilities af & particular site. It is impossible to ensure that the
exploration or development programs planned by the Issuer will result in a profitable commercial
mining operation. Whether a mineral deposit will be commercially viable depends on a nutnber of
factors, some of which are: the pasticular attributes of the deposit, such as quantity and quality of
the minerals and proximity to infrastructure; mineral prices which are highly cyclical; and
government regulations, including regulations relating to prices, taxes, royalties, land tenure, land
use, importing and exporting of minerals, and environmental protection, The exact effect of these
factors cannot be accurately predicted but (he combination of these factors may result in the Tssuer
not receiving an adequate return on invested capital. There is no certainty that the expenditures
made by the Issuer towards the search and evaluation of urantum and other minerals will result in
discoveries of commercial quantities of ote or other minerals,

Nuclear Aceident

An accident at a nuclear reactor anywhere in. the world could affect the continued acceptance by the

public and regulatory anthorities of nuclear energy and the future prospects for nuclear generators,
which could have a material adverse effect on the lssuer.

Uranium and Vanadium Price Volatility

The Issuer’s activities will be almost exclusively exploration and possibly the development of
uranium and vanadium mining propertics in the U.S. Therefore, the principal factors affecting the
price of the common shares are factors which affect the price of yranivm (“U308”) and vanadium
(¥205™) are thus beyond the Issuer’s control, Such factors include, among others, (1) the demand
for nuclear power, (2) natural catastrophes (3) political and economic conditions in uranium and
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vanadium producing and consuming countries such as Canada, the United States and former Soviet
republics, (3) reprocessing of used reactor fuel and the re-enrichment of depleted uranium tails, (4)
sales of excess civilian and military inventory (including from dismantling of nuclear weapons),

and (5) industry participants’ production levels and costs of production in countries like Russia,
Canada, United States and Africa.

The market prices of U308 and V205 are affected by rates of reclaiming and recycling of vranium
and vanadium and by rates of production of uranium and vanadium from mining, and may be
affected by a variety of unpredictable international economic, monetary and political
considerations, including increased efficiency of nuclear power plants and increased availability of
alternative nuclear fuel, such as mixed oxide fuel genereted in part from weapons grade plutonium.

Macroeconomic considerations include expectations of future rates of inflation, the strength of, and
confidence in, the U.S. dollat, the currency in which the price of U308 and V205 is generally
quoted, and other currencies, interest rates and global or regional economic events.

In addition to changes in production costs, shifts in political and economic conditions affecting

uranium and vanadivm-producing counfries may have a direct impact on their sales of uranivum and
vanadium,

The price of uranium and vanadivm is also tied directly to the worldwide electrical utility industry.
Deregulation of the uiility industry, pariiculatly in the U.S. and Burope, is expected to affect the
market for nuclear and other fuels for years to come, and may result in the premature shutdown of
nuclear reactors. Bxperience to date with deregulation indicates that viilities are improving the

performance of their reactors, actieving record capacity factors, There can be no assurance that this
trend will continue.

Foreign Exchange Rates

The Issuer will be carrying on business in the United States and its costs will primarily be in U.S,
dollars, However, the Issuer maintains its accounting records, reports its financial position and
results, pays certain operating expenses and the common shares trade, in Canadian currency.
Therefore, because exchange rate fluctuations are beyond the Issuer’s control, thete can be no

assurance that such fluctuations wiil not have an adverse effect on the Issuer’s opetations or on the
trading value of the common shares.

Competition

The mining and mineral exploration industry and in particular, the international uranium industry, is
competitive in all of its phases. The Issuer faces strong competition from other mining and
exploration comparnies in cotwection with the acquisition of properties producing, or capable of
producing, uranium and uranfum oxide. Many of these companies have greater financial resources,
operational expetience and technical capabilities than the Issuer. Because of this competition, the
Issuer may be unable to maintain or acquire attractive mining or exploration properties on terms it

considers acceptable or at all. Consequently, the revenues, operations and financial condition of the
Issuer could be adversely affected,

Nuclear energy competes with other sources of energy, including oil, natural gas, coal and
hydroelectricity, These other energy sources are to some extent interchangeable with nuclear
energy, particularly over the fonger term, Sustained lower prices of oil, natural gas, coal and hydro-
electricity, as well as the possibility of developing cther low cost sources for energy, may result in
lower demand for uraniwm, Furthermore, growth of the uranium and nuclear power industry wilt
depend upon continued and increased acceptance of nuclear technology as a ‘means of generating
electriclty. Because of unique political, technological and environmental factors that affect the
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nuelear industry, the industry is subject to public opinion risks, which could have an adverse impact
ofr the demand for nuclear power and increase the regulation of the nuclear power industry.

Insurance and Uninsared Rigks

The business of the Issuer is subject to a number of risks and hazards generally, including adverse
environmental conditions, industrial accidents, labor disputes, unusual or unexpected geological
conditions, ground or slope failures, cave-ing, changes in the regulatory environment and natural
phenomena such as inclement weather conditions, floods and eatthquakes. Such occurrences coyld
result in damage to mineral properties or production facilities, personal injury or death,

environmental damage to the properties of the Issuer or the properties of others, delays in mining,
monefary losses and possible Jegal liability.

The Issuer currently maintains no insurance other than director and officer liability. insurance in
Canada, The Issuer may, however, acquire insurance in the future to protect against cerfain risks in
such amounts as it considers being reasonable. While we may obtain insurance against certain
tisks, the nature of these risks is such that liability could exceed policy limits or could be excluded
from coverage, Even after acquiring insurance, such insurance will not cover all the potential risks
associated with a mining and/or exploration Issuer’s operations. The Issuer may also be unable to
maintain insurance to cover these risks at economically feasible premiums. Insurance coverage
may not continue to be available or may not be adequate to cover any resulting liability, Moreover,
insurance against risks such as environmental. pollution or other hazards because of exploration and

- production is not penerally aveilable to the Issuer or to othet companies in the mining and
exploration industry on acceptable terms. The Issuer might also become subject to Liability for
pollution or other hazards which it may not be insured against or which the Issuer may elect not to
insure against because of premium costs or other reasons. Losses fiom these events may cause the
Issuer to incur significant costs that could have a material adverse effect upon its financial
performance and results of operations,

Resigunation by Key Personnel

The success of the Issuer is highly dependent on the services of certain management personnel. The
loss of the setvices of such personnel if not replaced, could have a material adverse effect on the
business operations, The Issuer does not currently have key-person ingurance on these individuals,

Conflicts of Interest

Directors and officers of the Issuer may provide invesiment, administrative and other services to
other entities and parties. The directors and officers of the Issuer have undertaken to devote such
reasonable time as is required to fulfill their responsibilities properly in respect to the business and
affairs of the Issuer, as they arise from time to time,

Lack of Infrastructure

Mining, processing, development and exploration activities depend, to one degree or anofher, on
adequate infrastructure, Reliable roads, bridges, power sources and water supply are important
determinants, which affect capital and operating costs. Unusual or infrequent weather phenomena,

sabotage, government or other interference in the maintenance or provision of such infrastructure
could adversely affect the operations, financial condition and results of operations of the Issuer,

Regulatory Change

The Issuer could be affected by changes in regulatory requirements, customs, duties or other taxes.
Such changes could, depending on their nature, benefit or adversely affect the Issuer,
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Risks Related to Title to Properties

The acquisition of title to mineral properties is a very detailed and time-consuming process. Title
to, and the area of, mineral concessions may be disputed. Although the Issuer believes that it has
taken reasonable measures fo ensure proper title to its propertics, there is no guarantee that title to
any of the properties will not be challenged or impaired, Third patties may have known or
unknown valid claims underlying portions of the Issuer’s interests, including prior unregistered
liens, agreements, transfers or claims, including native land claims, and title may be affected by,
among other things, undetected defects. In addition, the Issuer may be unable to operate its
properties as permitted or may be unable to enforce ifs rights with respect to its properties, The
Issuer may seek to increase the concentration of its mining activities in areag where it already
operates mines, or has exploration licenses that it expects will result in operating mines, If the
Issuer seeks to amend its current licenses to include additional resources in the area, there can be no
assurance that it will be able to obtain the necessary authorizations and regulatory approvals.

No Mineral Resources or Mineral Reserves

Please see section 4.10 of this Listing Statement for the indicated mineral resources and inferred
mineral resources identified for {he Issuer’s San Rafael Uranium Project. No mineral resources or
mineral reserves have been attributed to any of the other properties of the Issuer, and the Issuer
holds no other property interests as of the date of this MD&A.

The exploration of the area encompassed within the Issuer’s properties must be considered to be in
an early stage. There is no assurance that any tnineralization will be discovered in economic
quantities, if at all. The long-tetm viability of the Issuer depends upon its ability to find or acquire,
develop and commercially produce base metals and other minerals,

Environmental Risks

All of the issuer’s planned operations are subject to environmental regulations, some of which are
also subject to environmental licensing. This can make the Issuer’s business expensive to operate
or prevent cettain operations altogether. The Issuer is subject to potential risks and liabilities
associated with pollution of the environment and the disposal of waste products that could occur
because of its mineral exploration, development and production. Such labilities include not only
the obligation to remediate environmental damages and indemnify affected third patties, but also

the imposition of administrative and criminal sanctions against the Issuer and its employees and
executive officers,

To the extent the Issuer is subject to environmental liabilities, the payment of such liabilities or the
costs that may be incurred to remedy environmental poilution would reduce funds otherwise
available to the Issuer and could have a material adverse effect on the issuer. If the Issuer is unable
to fully remedy an environmenital problem, it might be required to suspend operations or enter into
interim compliance measures pending completion of the required remedy. The potential exposure
may be significant and could have a material adverse effect on the Issuer. The Issuer has not
purchased (and does not intend to purchase) insurance for environmental risks (including potential
liability for pollution or other hazards as a result of the disposal of waste products occurring from
exploration and production) because it is not genetally available at a reasonable price.

All of the Issuet’s planned exploration and possible development and production activities are, or
will be, subject to regulation under one or more of the various local, state and federal envirenmental
laws and regulations, Many of the regulations require the Issuer to obfain authorizations for its
activities, The Issuer must update and review its authorizations from time to time and are subject to
environmental impact analyses and public review processes prior to approval of new activities. It is
possible that future changes in applicable laws, regulations and authorizations or changes in thefr
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enforcement or regulatory interpretation could have a significant impact on some portion of the
Issuet’s business, causing those activities to be economically re-evaluated at that time. Those risks
include, but are not limiled to, the rigk that regulatory authorities may increase bonding
requirements beyond the Issuer’s financial capability or that of its subsidiaries. Where posting of &
bond in accordance with regulatory determinations is a condition to the right to operate under any
material operating authorizations, increases in bonding requirements could prevent the Issuer from

operating even if it and its subsidiaries were otherwise in full compliance with all substantive
environmental laws.

Need For, and Availability of, Future Additional Equity Capital

The Issuer’s business strategy may require additional substantial capital investment, To the extent
that cash generated internalty and cash available under any credit facility that may be entered into
are not sufficient to fund capital requirements, the Issuer will require additional debt and/or equity
financing, However, this type of financing may not be available or, if available, may not be
available on satisfactory terms. If the Issuer fails to generate or obtain sufficient additional capital

in the future, it could be forced to reduce or delay capital expenditures, sell assets or restructure or
refinance indebtedness, if any.

The Issuer may need to obtain additional resources in the future in order to executo the Issuer’s
growth strategy, including the possible acquisition of new businesses and assets. The Issuer may
not be able to obtain debt financing on terms attractive to it, or at all. If the Issuer cannot obtain
adequate funds to satisfy its capital requirements internally or through other methods of financing,
the Issuer may need to increase its capital through an additional equity offering. Sales by the Issuer
of a substantial number of common shares after the completion of the offeting could negatively
affect the marlcet price of the common shares and dilute existing shareholdings,

Foreign Operations

Regarding the Issuet's properties in Niger (Tor so long as those operations have not been spun-out
from the Issuer into a separate company), those operations are exposed to various levels of political,
economic and other tisks and uncertainties. These risks and vncertainties include, but are not
limited to, cutrency exchange rates, high rates of inflation; labor unrest; renegotiation or
nullification of existing concessions, licenses, permits and contracts; changes in taxation policies,
restrictions on foreign exchange, and changing political conditions, currency controls and

require foreign contractors to employ citizens of, or purchase supplies from, a particular
jurisdiction.

Changes, if any, in mining, exploration of investment policies or shifts in political attitude in Niger
may adversely affect the operations or profitability of the Issuer. Operations may be affected in
varying degrees by governiment regulations with respect to, but not limited to, restrictions on
production, price controls, export controls, currency remittance, income taxes, foreign investment,

maintenance of claims, environmental legislation, land use, land claims of local people, water use
and mine safety,

With respect to the Issuer's propetties in the USA and in Niger, failure to comply stricily with
applicable laws, regulations and local practices relating to mineral right applications and tenure,
could result in loss, reduction or expropriation of entitlements,

The occurrence of these various factors and uncertainties cannot be accurately predicted and could
have an adverse effect on the operations or profitability of the Issuer.

Government Regulation
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The mining, processing, development and mineral exploration activities of the Issuer are subject to
various laws governing prospecting, development, production, taxes, labor standards and
occupational health, mine safety, toxic substances, land use, water vse, land claims of local people,
and other matters. Although the mining and processing operations and exploration and
development activities of the Issuer are cutrently carried out in accordance with all applicable rules
and regulations, no assurance can be given that new tules and regulations will not be enacted or that

existing rules and regulations will not be applied in a manner which could limit or curtail
production or development.

Amendments to cuirent laws and regulations governing operations and activities of mining and

milling or more stringent implementation thereof could have a substantial adverse impact on the
Issuer.

Market Price of Common Shares

Securities of micro-cap and small-cap companies have experienced substantial volatility in the past,
often based on factors unrelated to the financial performance or prospects of the companies
involved. These factors include macroeconomic developments in North America and globally, and
matket perceptions of the attractiveness of particular industries. The price of the common shares is
also likely to be significantly affected by short- term changes in precious metals and nwranium oxide
or other mineral prices, or in its financial condition or results of operations as reflected in its
quarterly earnings reports. Other factors unrelated to the Issuer’s performance that may have an
effect on the price of its common shares include the following: (1) the extent of analytical coverage
available to investors concerning the Issuer’s business may be limited if investment banks with
tesearch. capabilities do not follow the Tssuer’s securities, (2) lessening in trading volume and
general market interest in the Issuer’s securities may affect an investor’s ability to trade significant
numbers of commeon shazes, (3) the size of the Issuer’s public float may limit the ability of some
institutions to invest in the Issuer’s securities, and (4) a substantial decline in the price of the
common shares that persists for a significant perfod of time could cause the Issuer’s securities, if
listed on an exchange, to be delisted from such exchange, further reducing market liquidity.

As aresult of any of these factors, the market price of the common shares at any given point in time
may not accurately reflect the Tssuer’s long-terin value. Securities class-action litigation often has
been brought against companies following perlods of volatility in the market price of their
securities. The Issver may in the future be the target of similar litigation, Securities litigation could
result in substantial costs and damages and divert management’s attention and resources,

Uraninm, Vanadium and REE Prices

The Issuer’s focus is on utanivm, vanadivm and rare eerth elements (“REEs™), generally found
together. The prices of uranium, vanadium and REEs have fluctuated widely, particularly in recent
years, and may experience volatile and significant price movements over short periods of time.
Factors impacting the price of nrantum end vanadivm include demand for nuclear power, sales of
excess civilian and military inventories (including from dismanfling nuclear weapons), political and
cconomic conditions in uranium and vanadivm-producing and consuming nations, reprocessing of
spent fuel and re-enrichment of depleted uraniuim tails or waste, and cost of produoetion, The shut-
down of the Japanese nuclear power generating reactors in 2011 has affected the price of long-term
uranium supply contracts, but the expansion of the nuclear power generating capability in China as
well as the re-start of Japanese reactors, are favourable factors for futare prices, A small number of
electrie utilities worldwide buy uranium for nuclear power plants, and long-term supply contracts
are key to making decisions to actually proceed to the production stage.
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Unique political, technological and environmental factors affect the nuclear industry and the
industry is subject to public opinion risks, which impact on the demand for nuclear power and
increase the regulation of the nuclear power industry. Accidents at a nuclear reactor have had a
significant impact on the continuing acceptance of nuclear energy and the future prospects for
nuclear generation, with a material adverse effect on uranium prices,

China is the supplier of over 90% of REEs and is capable of setting world prices for the different
elements. As long as it can supply its own needs, China has no need to set these prices at a level,
which would encourage additional world supply. Some REREs are a by-product of the processing of
uranium oxides and will be recovered based on the marginal recovery cost versus selling price.

Because the Issuer expects to rely on the sales value of the uranium and rare metals in its mineral
deposns that value will fluctuate as the price of these metals increase or decrease. The selling price
is set in US dollars. The capital cost of exploratmn is substantial and a sustained period of
declining uranivm and rare metals and minerals prices would materially and adversely affect the
Issuer’s financial performance, financial position, results of opeations and the value of its mineral
propertied. The Issuer has entered into a favourable tofling agreement for processing at White Mesa

mill of Energy Fuels lnc: that is located at Blanding, Utah, in reasonably close proximity to the
Agsets.

18. Promoters

To the Issuer’s knowledge, it does not have any “promoters” within the meaning given under CSE
policies.

19, Legal Prdceedings

The Issuer is not involved in any outstanding, threatened or pending litigation that would have a
material adverse effect on the Issuer,

Since the formation of the Issuer to the date hereof, management knows of no;

6] penalties or sanctions imposed against the Issuer by a court relating to provincial or
tetritorial securities legisiation or by a securities regulatory authority;

(ii) other penalties or sanctions inrposed by a court or regulatory body against the Issuer
necessary to be disclosed for the Listing Statement to constitute full, true and plain
disclosure of all material facts relating to the Issuer; and

(i)  settlement agreements the Issuer entered into before a court relating to provinelal or
territorial securities legislation or with a securities regulatory authority.

20, Interest of Management and Others in Matexial Transactions

George (lasier, Russel Fryer were the principals of PRM before it was acquired by the Issuer, and
George Glasier was the Manager of PRM at that time, Messts, Glasier and Fryer will continue as
Directors and/or officers.
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21. Auditors, Transfer Agents and Registrars _
The auditor for the Issuer is MNP LLP, 111 Richmond St W, Toronto, ON M5H 2G4,

The registrar and transfer agent for the Issuer’s common shares is Capital Transfer Agency Inc,, 401
— 121 Richmond St West, Toronto ON M5H 2K 1

22, Material Contracts

Other than as disclosed in this Listing Statement, the Issuer has not entered into any material
contracts other than contracts in the ordinary course of business, A copy of the deﬁmtwe agreement
in respect of the Acquisition will be available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

23. Interest of Experts

The following persons or companies whose profession or business gives authority to the repart,
valuation, statement or opinion made by the person or Issuer are named in this Listing Statement as
having prepared or certified a report, valuation, staternent or opinion.

0.J. Gatten is the Author of the San Rafael Technical Report and is a “qualified person® as defined
inNI143-101. The Author hag not held, received or is to receive any registered or beneficial
interest, direct or indirect, in any securities of the Issuer or its associates or affiliates.

MNP LLP, Chartered Accountants, are the auditors of the Issuer and are independent within the

meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chai‘tel ed Professional
Accountants of Ontario.

Gardiner Roberts LLP is Legal Counsel to the Issuer. As of the date hereof the partners and
associates of Gardiner Roberts LLP, as a group, beneficially own, directly or indirectly, less than
1% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares of the Issuer.

24. Other Material Facts

There are no other material facts about the TIssuer that are not disclosed under any other itemns and

are necessary in order for the Listing Statement to contain full, true and plain disclosure of all
material facts relating to the Issuer.

25, Financial Statements

The unaudited interim financial statements of the Issuer prepared by management for the six
months ended June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2103 and the audited financial statements for the Issuer
for the years ended December 31, 2013, December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 are attached to
and form part of this Listing Statement as APPENDIX “A”, The audited financial statements for
PRM for the period ended August 31 2014 are attached to a form patt of this Listing Statement as
APPENDIX “B”. Pro Forma financial statements as at Angust 31, 2014 are attached to and form
part of this Listing Statement as APPENDIX “C”,
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CERTIFICATE OF THEF ISSUER

Putsvant to a resolution duly passed by its Board of Directors, (full legel name of the Issuer),
hereby applies for the listing of the above mesntioned secutities on CNSX., The foregoing contains
full, troe and plain disclosure of all material information relating to (full legal name of the Issuer).
It contains no vntrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to state a material fact that is
required io be stated or that is necessary fo prevent a statement that is made from being false or
misleading in light of the circumstances in which it was made.

[signature page follows]
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TDated &t Tovonte, Ontario this day of Novembey, 2014

f/wjgmr /z})ﬂ#ﬂ,u{“l

Name: Gaorgﬁsier Mare: Geoff Kritzinger
Title: President and Chief Executive Title: Chief Finaneial Officer
Officer _
]@M%Eﬁ Py lpnting
Name: Russell Fryer Name: Michael Skutazk(f\
Title : Dirgotor Title: Dirsetor

Listing Staternent ~ Signatune Page




Dated at Toronto, Ontario this 2o Vb{’l day of November, 2014

bt

Name; George Glasier Name: Geoff Kritzinger

Title: President and Chief Fxecutive Title: Chief Financial Officer
Officer :

Name: Russell Fryer Name:; Michael Skutezky

Title : Director Title: Directot

Listing Statement - Signature Paga



APPENDIX A

UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HOMELAND URANIUM INC. FOR THE SIX
MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND JUNE 30, 2103

AUDITED FINANCIAT. STATEMENTS FOR HOMELAND URANIUM INC, FOR THE YEARS
ENDED; -

»  DECEMBER 31, 2013, AND 2012;
+ DECEMBER 31,2012, AND 2011; AND
+ DECEMBER 31, 2011, AND 2010.
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THREL AND S$IX MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
{Stated in $CAD)
(Unandited - Prepated by Management)

{These unaudited interim conzolidated financial statements, prepared by management, have not
been teviewed by the company's exterhal auditors)



HOMELAND URANIUM INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2014 AND DECEMBER 31, 2013
(Stated in $CAD)
(Unaudited - Prepared by Management)

June 30 December 31

2014 2013
- ASSETS
Cutrent:
Cash % 8,842 ¢ 14,572
Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 13,143 30,536
Marketable securides (Note 4) 41,903 139,638
$ 63,888 $ 184,746
LIABILITIES
Current!
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 6) $ 678998 § 536,155
SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT
Shate capital (Note 7) 20,484,111 20,484,111
Contributed sutplus 10,555,751 10,555,731
Reserve for watrants (Note 7(b)) 103,000 103,000
Reserve for share based payments (Note 8) 33,000 33,000
Accumulated deficit (31,702,733)  (31,432,288)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss {88,219) {94,963
(615,110) (351,409

5 63,888 ¢ 184,746

Golng concern (Note 1(b))
Commitments (Note 17)

The accomspanying notes forme an integral pari of these interivr anandited consolidated financial statemsents

Approved on behalfl of the Board:

Nk Tintor” Ditector ""Sigphen Coates” Director
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HOMELAND TTRANIUM INC,
INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF LO8S AND
COMPREHENSIVE L0SS8
THREE AND SIX MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
(Btated in $CAD)
(Unandited - Prepared by Management)

Thtee month  Six month  Three month  Six month
period ended petiod ended  period ended  period ended

June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30
2014 2014 2013 2013
Revenue
Realized galn on FVIPL securlties $ “ b 4306 § - % 05
Expenses
Exploration expenditures 112,751 132,510 17,959 38,387
Corpotate and lnvestor relations 38,694 88,247 39,661 75,770
Untealized loss on FVTPL securities 38,545 31,570 44,000 107,983
Professiona! fees 12,534 20,408 16,277 24,746
Foreign exchange loss 1,034 1,034 464 5,436
Office and administtation 682 9885 1,775 2,056
Realized loss on FVIPL, securities 3,15 - - -
207,255 274,751 119,136 254378
MNet loss $  (207,285) $  (270445) §  (119,136) §  (254,283)
Loss per shate - basic and diluted
MNote 9) $ 0.000%) $ {0.0012) § 0.0007) $ {0.0013)
Comprehensive loss
Net loss $  (207,285) &  (270,445) §  (119,136) §  (254,83)
Item that may be reclassificd
subsecuently to net incorme (lnse)
Fachange differences on ,
translation of fotelgn operations 21,950 6,744 (9806) (10,600)
Comprchenasive loss B (179,308) §  (263,701) §  (120,122) §  (264,883)

The acconspaspying notes form an integral paré of these inferim unandited consoliduted financinl statensenis
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.

INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
SIX MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
(Stated in $CAD)

(Unaudited - Prepared by Management)

2014 2013
Operating actlvities
Met loss $  (270,445) $  (254,283)
Add (deduct) items not affecting cash
Unrealized loss (gain) on FVIPL secutities 31,570 107,983
Realized loss {gain) on FVIPL securities (4,306) (95)
Untealized foreign exchange loss (gain) 6,744 (10,600)
(236,437) (156,995)
Change in not-cash working capital items
Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 17,393 10,541
Accounts payable atd accrued liabilities 142,843 {165,992)
{76,201) (312,426)
Investing activities
Proceeds on sale of FVIPL seontities 70,471 19,743
Restticted eash - 2,871
70,471 22,614
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of shate capital and warrants - 425,000
Change 1 cash {5,730y 135,188
Cagh, beginning of petiod 14,572 2,679
Casly, end of petiod $ B,842 § 137,867

The accompanying notes form an inkgral part of these interim mnandited consofidated financial statements
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC,

NOTES TO INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
THREE AND SIX MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

(Stated in $CAD)
(Unaudited ~ Prepared by Management)

INATURE OF OTERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN

@

(b

Natute of operations

Homeland Uranfum Tnc. (the "company™) is engaged in the business of evaluation and
exploration of uranium resource properties in Niger, West Africa. The company, incosporated
in Decembes, 2006 under the Ontasic Business Corporations Act, has repistered offices at 401
Bay Street, Suite 2702, Toronto, Ontatlo, Canada, MSH 2Y4. 1t is a reporting issuer subject to
the tules and tegnlations of the Cntatio Secutities Cotnimission, but its shares do tot trade on
any stock exchange,

The unandited interim consolidated financial statements have not been reviewed by the

company's external anditors and were authorized for isswance by the Board of Ditectors on
August 28, 2014,

Going coniceriy

The accompanying uwnaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared
using Tntecnztional Financial Reporting Standards ("TFRS™) applicable to a going concerm,
Accordingly, they deo not give effect to adjustments that would be necessaty should the
company be unable to continue 4s a going concern. In this circumstance, the company would
be requirsd to realize its assets and lLguidate its liabilitles and commitments in other than the
notmal course of business and at amounts different from those in the accompanying
unaudited interitn consolidated financial statements. Such adjustments could be matetial,

‘The company has incurred repeated significant losses as net loss for the six month petiod
ended June 30, 2014 was §270,445 (June 30, 2013 - §254,283) with an accumulated deficit as at
June 30, 2014 of $31,702,733 (December 31, 2013 - §31,432,288), The wotking capital
deficiency as at June 30, 2014 was $615,110 as compared with $351,409 at December 31, 2013

The company received tenewal of its eight uranium concesslons from the Minister of Mines
and Industrial Development of the Government of Niger on Maich 4, 2013 for a further three
years (ree mofe 5(B). Such approval had been conditfonal upon certain factors, the most
significant of ‘which was the paytnent of two years of training fees in the amount of TUSD
$160,000 (ree note 6), which were paid by the company on March 28, 2013 (see so&e 6). Failure to
pay remaining and ongoing annual trmining fees {totalling USD $320,000 as at June 30, 2014), to
maintain an ongoing administrative presence in Niger or to meet minimum spending znd
reporting requirements under the renewal terms could tesult in termination of any concession
agreements. No adjustment to the carrying value of the Niger concessions would be tequited as
the company has chosen to expense all exploration expenditures under TERS (ree #ode 2(7)),

As the company has no opetating tevenues or other sources of cash flow, its ability to maintain
its Canadian head office operations and an adminisirative office in Niget over the next 12
months will be dependent upon its ability 1o (1) raise further equity for the company through
private placements (e note 7(5)) and/or (2) sell its interest in its moarketable securities (e #ats 4).

Page 5 of 20



HOMELAND URANIUM INC.

NOTES TO INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
THREE AND STX MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
(Stated in $CAD)

(Unaudited - Prepared by Management)

1 NATDRE OF OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN, CONTINUED

Although the company has taken steps to vetify title to the mineral properties on which it Is
conducting exploration and in which it has an interest, these procedutes do not guarantee the
company’s title. Management is not awate of any such agreements, tansfers or defects, but
property title may be subject to unregistered prior agreements, clains ox transfers and title may
be affected by undetected defects, Asscts located outside of Notth Ametica aze subject to the

risk of foreign investment, including fotelgn currency exchange fluctvations and restrictions and
local political instability and uncestainty,

The company faces tisks and uncettainties including: () the inability to obtain the financing
necessary to complete the develobment of its properties, (i) tealization of proceeds from the
sale of its properties, ot (ill) the company's licenses, permits ot concessions being revoked as 2
result of titie disputes, a fellute to comply with agreements (such as making payments when
required on accruing twaining fees (ree #otz 6)) ot security issues preventing the safe exploration
and development of any prepetties undet license, Previcusly, the company has encountered
masy delays during the execution of its Niger project due to events and circumstances heyond
its control. The government of Niger had acknowledged these delays a5 “force majeure” and, in
June, 2010, had granted the company =z 27 month extension (to August, 2012) to its origihal
concessions t0 compensate for this lost time. Ongoing cconomic and political uncertainty in the
sub-Saharan patt of Africa could lead to similar difficaltics and delays in the future.

While management believes that it will be able to secute the nevessaty financing to continue
operations into the futuce, there ate material uacertainties that these and other strategies will be
sufficient to permit the company to continue beyond the foreseeable future as such strategles
ate dependent upon continued support of its sharcholder base, Therefore, there Is significant
doubt as to the provrety of the use of the going concetn assumption upon which these
unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepated,

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(&) Statement of compliance

These unaudited intetion consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with TAS 34 Interim Financial Reposting and do not Include all of the inforimation tequited for
foll annuzl financial statements by Iaternational Financial Reposting Standards ("IFRS") as
issued by the International Accounting Standard Board ("TASB™,

"These unaudited interim consolidated Bnancial statements showld be read in conjunction with
the company's audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013
and reftect the same accounting policies and methods of computation applied thetein, except as

desetibed below, As required by the TASB, effective January 1, 2014, the company adopted the
following amendment to TERS:

IAS 32 "Fipancial Imstruments - Offsetting Financlal Assets and Financial
Liabilities" provides further clarificaion on the application of certain aspects of
offsetting and net and gross settlement. The adoption of this standard had no effect on
the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements.
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC,

NOTES TO INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
THREE AND SIX MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AN 2013

(Stated in $CAD)
{Unaudited - Prepared by Management)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICKES, CONTINUED

(b) DBasis of preparation

©

@

The unaudited interim consolidated financial statetnents have been prepaed on the historical

cost basis as modified by the measucement at fair value of financial assets classified as fair value
thtough profit and loss ("FVTPL",

The prepatation of unaudited interim consolidated financial statements in accordance with
IFRS requites management to make certain ctitical accounting estimates and to exercise
judgement in applying the company’s accounting policies. 'The ateas involving 2 higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or ateas whete assumptions and estimates ate significant to these
unaudited interim consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 2(n),

Basis of consolidation

These unaudited intetim consclidated financial statements include the accounts of the company
and its wholly-owned subsidiaties:

+ Hemeland Uraniun, Inc, *US sub"}, a Utah company
+ Pan Aftican Urantum Corp, (“Ontario sub"), an Ontario company
+ Usznium International Limited Niger ("Niger sub™), a branch of the Ontario sub

Subsidiaties are those entities which the company controls by having the power to govern the
financial and operating policics. Subsidiaries ate fully consolidated from the date on which
conteol is obtained by the company and are de-consolidated from the date that control censes,

Intercompany transactions, balanices, income asd expenses, and profits and losses are
climinated.

Financial insttuments

Finaticial assets

Financial assets are inldally recorded et fair valuc and designated upon inception into one of the
following fout categotles: held-to-matusity, svailable-fot-sale, loans-and-receivables ot at fair
value through profit or loss “FVIPL.

Pinancial assets classified as FVTPL are measured at fait value, with any resultant gain ot Joss
recognized in profit or loss, Financial instroments classified as being available-for-sale ate
measured at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss heing recognized divectly under other
comprehensive income, except for itnpairment losses and, in the case of monetary items such as
securities denominated in foteign cutrency, which are vecorded in foreign exchange gains and
losses, When these investments ase derecognized, the cunwlative gain or loss previously
recoghized directly in equity is recognized in profit o loss.

Page 7 of 200



2.

HOMELAND URANIUM INC.

NOTES TO INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
THREE AND SIX MONTEH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

(Stated in $CAD)
(Unaudited - Prepared by Management)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

{d) Financlal insttuments, contihined

When o decline in ¢he fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognized

‘directly in equity and there Is objective evidence that the asset is impaited, the cumulative Joss

that had been recognized ditectly in equity is teansferred to profit ot loss even though the
financial asset has not been detecognized, The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognized
in profit or loss js the difference between the acquisition cost and curtent falr valne, less any
impaioment loss on that financial asset previously tecognized in profit or loss, Financial assets

classified as loans and receivables are measuted at amortized cost using the effective interest
method,

Transaction costs assoclated with FVIPL financial assets are expensed as incarred, while

transaction costs associated with all other financial assets are included in the initial carrying
ameunt of the asset,

Financial Habilltdes

Financial liabilities zre initially recorded at fair value and designated upon inception as FVTFL
or other financial liabilities, Financial liabilities classified as other financial liabilities are initially
recognized at falr value less directly ateributable transaction costs. After initia] recognition,
other-financial-labilicies are then measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, The effective interest method I8 a method of calenlating the amorstized cost of a
financial instrument and of allocating, interest expense over the televant period. ‘The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated futute cash payments through the
expected life of the financial instrument, of, whete approptiate, a shortet pesiod.

Financial labilities classified a8 FVIPL include financial liabilities held for trading and alsc
financial liabilities desighated upon initial recognitdon as FVTPL. Fair value changes on financial
liebsilities classified as FVTPL are recognized thiough the statement of loss,

Financial instiuiment clagsifications

The company has made the following classifications:

Cash FVIPL
Accounts receivable Loans and receivable
Masketable secntities FVTIPL

Accounts payable and accrued liabilitles Other financial liabilities
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.

NOTES TO INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
THREE AND SIX MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

(Stated in $CAD)
(Unaudited - Prepaged by Management)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED
(e) Functional cutrency and forelgn curtency translation,

®

Foncrional and presentation cusrency

The unaudited interim consolidated financial statetnents ate presented in Canadian dollass,
which is also the functional cutrency of the corporate offices located in Canada. The functional

currencies of the Niger and USA subsidiaries ate the West African CFA and US dollar
tespectively.

Foreign cutrency transkation v

Foreign cutrency teansactions are initially recorded in the functional cuttency at the transaction
date exchange rate, At the end of the reposting period, monetaty assets and liabilities
denominated in 5 fotelgn currency are translated into the functonal curtency at the exchange
tate at that date with all foreign cutrency adjustments being expensed.

Financial statements of the subsidiaties, for which the functional curtency is not the Canadian
dollat, dre translated into Canadian dollass, the functional cutrency of the parent, as follows: 2ll
asset and Lability accounts (including non-monetary and capital iteins) are translated at the
exchange rate at the end of the reporting period and all revenue.and expense acconnts and cash
flow statement items are transleted at average eschange rates for the reporting pedod. The

resulting translation gains and losses ate tecorded as foreign currency translation adjustments in
other compreheasive loss.

Mineral properties

All acquisition and exploration costs, net of incidental tevenes, are chatged to profit or loss in
the petiod incutred unil such time as it has been determined that a property has economically
tecoverable reserves, in which case subsequent exploration costs and the costs incurred to
develop a property are capitelized into ptoperty and equipment. On the commencement of
commercial production, depletion of each mining property will be provided on a unit-of
production basis using estimated resources as the depletion base.

Page 9 of 20



2,

HOMELAND URANIUM INC,

NOTES TO INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
THREE AND SIX MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

(Stated in $CAD)
(Unaudited - Prepared by Management)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

®

Impaltment of non-finaticlal assets

'The company continually reviews and evaluates the events ot changes in the economic
eavitonment that indicate a risk of impairment of assets to determine whether the catrying
ampunt of the asset ot group of assets under consideiation exceeds its or thelr tecoverable
amount, Iimpairment of the assets is evaluated 2t the cash-generating unit ("CGU™ level which
is the smallest identifiable group of assets that genetates cash inflows, independent of the cash
inflows from other assets, as defined by IAS 36 "Impaltment of assets”, Recoverable amount is
defined as the higher of the CGU's falr value (less costs to sell) and its value in use. The active
market ot a binding sale agreement provides the best evidence for the determination of the
falr value, but where neither exists, fair value is based on the best information available
to reflect the amount the company could teceive for the CGU in an arm's length transaction.

Value in use is equal to the present value of fitnte cash flows expected to be detived fiom the
use and szle of the CGU,

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when a legal or constructive obligation exists as a result of past
events and it Is probable that an outflow of tesoutces that can be teliably estimated will be
requited to sette the obligation, Where the effect is matetial, the provision is discounted using
an appropriate cuttant market-based pre-tax discount rate, The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is tecognized as interest expense.

The company's activities could give rise to oblipations for environmental rehabilitation which
can include facilities dismantling, removal, treatment of waste matetials, menitoring, compliance
with environmental regulations, security and other site-related costs requited to petform the
rehabilitation work. Any current expenditures regatding the envitonmental rehabilitation are

charged to the cost of the project, Provisions for rehabilitation are petiodically adjusted by the
companty, when applicable,

When a contingency substantiated by confirming events can be seliably measured and is likely to
tesult in an economic outflow, a liability is tecognlzed at the best estimate requited to settle the
obligation, A contingent liability is disclosed where the existenee of an obligation will only be
confirmed by future events, or whete the amount of 4 present obligation cannot be measured
reliably or will likely oot resuit in an economic outflow, Contingent assets ate only disclosed
when the inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the economic benefit becomes

virtually certain, the asset s no longer contingent and s recognized in the consolidated financial
statements.
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.

NOTES TO INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
THREE AND SIX MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

(Stated in $CAD)
(Unaudited - Prepared by Management)

SIGNIFICANT AGCCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

®

0

(9

0

Share based payments

The company offers a share optlon plan for its directots, officers, employees and consultants,
Hach tranche in an award is considered a separate award with its own vesting petiod and grant
date fair value, The fair valve of each tranche is measured usipg the Black-Scholes option
pricing model based upen the number of awatds expected to vest, Compensation expense is
tecognized upon vesting over the tranche's vesting petiod by increasing the reserve for share
based payments, Any consideration paid on exercise of share options is credited to share capital,

For other equity settied transactions, the company measutes goods ot services received at theie
fait valne, unless that fair valne cannot be cstimated seliably, in which case the company
measures thelt value by reference to the fait value of the equity instruments granted,

Banings pet share

Basic carnings (loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net earnings (loss) for the
petiod attributable to common shareholders by the weighted average tumbet of common
shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings {loss) per shate amounts are caleulated by dividing the net easnings (loss)
attributable to common shareholders of the parent by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding dusing the perlod plus the weighted average nutnbet of shares that would be issued
on the conversion of all the dilutive instruments. Stock options and wartants outstanding are

unot included in the computation of diluted eatnings per shate if theit inclusion would be anti-
dilutive.

Accumulated othet compeehensive income (loss)

Comptehensive income (lossy is comprised of net income (loss) and other comprehensive
income {loss). Certain gains and losses atising from changes in fait value ate temporarily
recotded outside the consolidated statement of loss i accumulated comprehensive income
(loss) as a separate component of shateholders’ equity (deficit), Other comprehensive income
{loss) may include any unvealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, foreipn
cuttency translation gains and losses on the custency vsed for presentation and changes in the
fair market value of dexivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges, all net of taxes,

Tncome taxes

Deferred tax is recognized on temporaty differences between the castyiop amounts of assets
and fiabilities in the financial statements and the costesponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, Deferred tax lizbilities are generally recoghized for all tazable
tempotary differences. Deferted tax assets are genetally recognized for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probably that the taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized,
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2.

HOMELAND URANIUM INC,

NOTES TO INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
THREE AND SIX MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

(Stated in $CAD)
(Unaundited - Prepared by Management)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

()

Such defetred tax assets and liabilities ate not recognized if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial tecognition (other than in 2 business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects nelther that taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are tecognized for taxable tempotary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates and interests in jolnt ventures, except where the
company is able to control the reversal of the temporaty diffetence and it is probably that the
tempotary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future, Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporaty differences associated with such investments and interest age only
recopnized to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against

which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they ate expected to teverse in the
foreseeable future,

The cattying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting petiod and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all of past of the asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and labilities ace measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
petiod in which the liability is settled ox the asset realized, based on tax tates (and tax laws) that
have besn enacted ot substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and asscts reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover of settle the catrying amount of its assets and liabilities,

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset tax
assets against tax lisbilities and when they relate to income tazes levied by the same tazation
authority and the company intends to settle its tax assets and liabilities on 4 net basis.

Crltical accounting estimates

The preparation of these unaudited interlm consolidated financial statements requires
managetnent to make certain estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liahilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
expenses duting the reporting period.

Significant assumptions about the future and other soutces of estimation uncertinty that
management has made at the end of the reporting petiod, that could result in a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitles, In the event that actual results differ
from assumptions made, include, but are not limited to, the following:

(@ Eavitommental rehabilitation provislon
Provisions for etivironmental rehabilitation require judgemment as to the time frame and
amounts requited to successfully complete such rehabilitations given factors such as

weathet conditens, the success of replantng efforts and limitations on access to the
relative arer of exploration.
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC,.

NOTES TO INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
THREE AND SIX MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
(Stated in $CAD)

{(Unaudited - Prepared by Management)

SIGNIEICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

(i) Critical accounting estimates, continued

(i)  Niger liabillties

As illustrated by the petlod of "force majeure” described in note 1(b), there is an
uncertainty that often atises when conducting business in Niger. These vncertainties
requite significant judgements to ensure that liabilities of uncettain timing or amount that
have arisen as a result of pest transactions, Including legal o constructive obligations, are
measured based on management’s best estimate of the expenditute requited to settle the

obligation at the reporting date,

{iiy Tunctional corrency

The functional cutrency for the company and subsidiaries is the currency of the primary
econotnic environment in which each operates: Canadian dollat, US dollar and West
African CFA, Determination of functional cutrency may requite certain judgements to
determine the primaty economic environment, The company reconsiders the functional
cusrency wsed when there is a chenge in events and conditions which determined the

ptimaty economic environment,

ACCOUNTING STANDARD ISSUED BUT NOT YET ERFECTIVE

As at the date of authotization of these unaudited interim consolidated financial statements, the
JASB has issued the following revised standard which is not yet effective;

IERS 9: "Financial Tustrocoents" was issued by the IASB on November 12, 2009 and will
teplace IAS 39 "Financtal Instruments: Recognition and Measurement®, IFRS 9 seplaces the
multiple sules in TAS 39 with 2 single approach to determine whether a financial asset is
meaguted at amortized cost ot fair valve and o new mixed measurement model for debt
instruments having only two categories: amortized cost and fair value, The approach in IFRS 9
is based on how at entity manages its finaacial instraments in the context of its business model
and the conttactual cash flow chatacteristics of the financial assets. The new standard also
tequites 4 single impairment method to he used, replacing the multiple impairinent methods in

LAS 39, TFRS 9 15 effective for annual pegiods beginning on ot after Januaty 1, 2018,

The company has not easly adopted this standard, but tmanagement Is currently assessing the impact
of its application in the vtuudited interim consolidated financial statements,
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4,

HOMELAND URANIUM INC.

NOTES TO INTERIM. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
THREF, AND SIX MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
(Stated in $CAD)

{Unandited - Prepared by Management)

MARKETABLE SECURITIES

The company's masketable securities are carried at fair value and are compeised of the following:

Jutie 30 Decembet 31
2014 2013
$ Shares $ Shates
Macusani Yelloweake Inc, ¥ 29,700 496,000 ¢ 115,500 1,050,000
Catacara Silver Inc. 12,203 813,500 24,138 965,500
$ 41,903 § 139,638

MINERAL PROPERTIES

The following provides the televant background on the company's uranium exploration concessions

in Niger:

() The company was originally pranted three-year waninm exploration concessions in Jaouaty
2007 that wete approved by 4 goveramental order on May 31, 2007, The eight concessions are
lecated in the Agadez-Aslit district of nosthern Niger and are held in the name of Utanfum
International Limited Niger, a branch of the company’s Ontatio subsidiary, On September 7,
2010, the government of Niger agreed to extend this agreement a further 27 months to Aungust
31, 2012 vnder the same teims and conditions to give recogpition to condidons of "force

majeure” that existed 4t that time,

(&) On March 4, 2013, the compaay obtained approval for renewal of its Niger uranium
concesslons for a further thiee yeats from authorities in Niger. Such approval was conditional
upon cortain factors, the most significant of which was payment of two years of traiviog fees on

Match 28, 2013 in the amount of USD §160,000 (s ety ).

(c) 'Thekey terms of the concession tenewal include;

@ 50% of the arcas licensed under the previous concessions were relingquished on tenewal,

such that the atea of exploration now covers approximately 1,870 squate klometres;

(i) cumulative minimum expenditures of USD $4,916,350 for all concessiops duting the

three-year tenewal petiod (see sode 1204));

(itl) a 10% free catvied intetest for the state in the mining phase with an option o acquire an

additional 30% at marlet value;
(iv) tax and other exernptions during the exploration period include;
- value added rax;
- corporate income tay;
~ Income tax for expattiate employees;
- land tax;
- license conttibutions;
- mining lat tax and other registration fees; and
- import duties on certaln equipment and spate patls;
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5,

- HOMELAND URANIUM INC.

NOTES TO INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
THREE AND SIX MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
(Stated In $CAD)

{Unaudited -~ Prepared by Management)

MINERAL PROPERTIES, CONTINUED

(v} a sliding scale mining royalty between 5.5% to 12% of the market value of production on
FOB terms; and ‘

() exemptions during the mining phase include:
- value added tax until the date of production;
~ taxes on industtial/husiness profits for thiee years from production;
- land and mining flat taxes indefinitely; and
- import duties on certain equipment and spare parts

ACCOUNTS PAYARLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

June 30 December 31

2014 2013
Trade accounts payable and accrued labiltdes $ 447,597 % 309,653
Payroll telated ‘ 100,977 92,015
Provisions ‘ 130,424 134,487

$ 678,998 3§ 536,155

As at June 30, 2014, trade accounts payable and accrued liabilitles contain an amount of USD
$320,000 representing four years of training fees (December 31, 2013 - USD $240,600) due and
payable under the texms of the original uranivin concesslons (a furthet year of training fees of USD
$80,000 was accived in the three month period ended June 30, 2014). The renewal process for the

uranium concessions was formalized on March 4, 2013, but was conditional upon acknowledgement
of these liabilities by the company.

SHARE CAPITAL

Continuity schedules for the company's share capital and other equity inswwments are disclosed in
the unaudited interim consolidated statcments of changes in sharcholders' equity for the period from

Januaty 1, 2013 o June 30, 2014, Details of chanpes to share capital duting that period are as
follows:

(® 'The company is authotized to issue an ublimited number of cormmon shares,

{b) In Hebruaty, 2013, the company closed a non-brokered private placement of 85,000,000 units at
$0.005 per unit for gross proceeds of $425,000. Each unit consisted of the following:

® 1 common share; and

@ 1 common shate purchase warrant entitling the holder thereof to buy one common shate
at a price of §0.01 per share, expiting in 24 months by Yebtuary 2015, The fair value of
these warrants was caleulated with the Black-Scholes pricing model, Using the assumptions
of: (1) risk free interest rate of 1.0%, (2} expected volatility of 139%, (3) expected lifc of 1
year, and (4) dividend yicld of 0,0%, the fair value attributed to each wartant was §0.0012,

or $103,000 in aggregate, The remaining proceeds of $322,000 were atttibuted to the
common shates,
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC,

NOTES TO INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
THREE AND SIX MONTEH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
(Stated in $CAD)

{Unaudited « Prepared by Management)

STOCK OPIIONS

The company has adopted a stock option plan under which it may prant options to acquite shates of
the company to directors, officets and consultants of the company. The numbet of common shatres

subject to options granted under the plan is limited to 10% in the aggregate. A summaty of the status
of the stock option pian is a5 follows

Six month petiod ended  Year ended December 31,

June 30, 2014 2013
Welghted Weighted
average average
exetclse exefclse
Options price Options price

Outstanding, beginning of period 11,008,000 % 0,005 750,000 ¥ 0,250
Expired or forfelted - - {750,000) 0.250
Granted in July, 2013 - - 11,000,000 0.005
Outstanding, end of pericd 11,000,000 § 0.006 11,000,000 § 0.005

() Option expiries and forfeltutey

@ On expiry of 750,000 options in the first quaster of 2013, the balance o the teserve for
share based oayments of $130,206 was transferred to contributed suiplus.

(b) July 11, 2013 grant:

() The Board of Directors approved a grant of 11,000,000 options exercisable at $0.005 pet
option with a term of five years (expiring July 11, 2018). Of these options, 50% vested
hmmediately and the temaluder after one yeat.

() 'The fair value of these options issued to officers, ditectors and consultants bas besn
calenlated with the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Using the assumptions of: (1) cisk
fiee interest rate of 1.0% (2) expected volatility of 139%, (3) expected life of 3.25 years,
and (4) dividend yield of 0,0%, the fait value aitributed to each option was $0.004, or
$44,000 in agptegate. :
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10.

HOMELAND URANIUM INC,

NOTES TO INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
THREE AND SIX MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
(Stated in $CAD)

(Unaudited - Prepared by Mahagement)

L.o8s PER SHARE

Basic and diluted Joss per share is computed vsing the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding, The weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the thtee and six
monih petiods ended Tune 30, 2014 was 222,472,448 and 222,472,448 respectively (thtee and six
monih periods ended June 30, 2013 - 169,639,115 and 195,704,492 respectively).

Diluted loss per shate and the welghted average number of common shates exclude all potentially
dilutive equity instruments since their effect is anti-dilutive. As at June 30, 2014, the following
potentially dilative equity instraments were all oatstanding: (1) 85,000,600 wattants (December 31,
2013 - 85,000,000), and (2) 11,000,000 options (December 31, 2013 - 11,000,000),

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

Risk management

The company’s activities expose it to a vatiety of Anancial tisks: credit risk, Hquidity risk, mineral
property tsk, masket risk and carrency risk. Risk management Is cattled out by the company's
managernent team with guidance from the Awdit Committee under policies approved by the Board
of Directors. The Board of Directois also provides regular gnidance for overall tisk management.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk s the sk of loss associated with a countetparty’s inability to fulfill its payment
obligations. The cotnpany's credit tisk is primarily attributable to cash and accounts receivable.
Financlal instruments included in accounts receivable consist of HST receivable. As at June 30,
2014, cash of 8,842 (December 31, 2013 - $14,572) is held with reputable financial institutions
from which management believes the risk of loss to be minimal, All HST teceivables are in
good standing, so management believes that the related credit risk concentration is negligible.

(b) Ticquidity risk

Liquidity risk iefets to the sk that the company will not be able to meet its financial
obligations when they become due, or can only do so at cxcessive cost (see note 7(b)). The
company's approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that it will have sufficient liguidity to
oeet liabilities when due, and as such, the company has classified its marketable secutides as
current, As at June 30, 2014, the company had a wotking capital deficiency of $615,110
December 31, 2013 - $351,409). All of the company's financial liabilities have contractyal
matusities of less than 90 days and ate subject to normal trade terms,

(€) Minesal property risl

The company’s operations in Niger are exposed to vatlous levels of political tisk and
uncertaintics, including  political and  economic instability, exproptiation, poverament
regulations relating to exploration and mining, military repression and civil disorder, any or all
of which may bave a material adverse impact on the company’s activities of may result in
impairment in, or loss of, pact ot all of the company's assets.
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.

NOTES TO INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
THREE AND SIX MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

(Stated in $CAD)
(Unaudited - Prepated by Management)

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS, CONTINUED

() Senstiivity analysis

©

As at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the cateying and fair value amounts of the
company's financlal instruments arc approximately equivalent.

f) 'The company's functional cuttency is the Canadian dollar and major purchases are
transacted in Canadian dollats, The company maintains US dollar banl aceounts in Canada
and the United States. The company is exposed to foreign curtency sisk on fluctuations of
financial instruments that are denominated predominately in West Aftican francs (CRA'S) as
well as some in US dollars and are related to cash, restricted cash, accounts recelvable and
accounts payable and sccraed labilities. Sensitivity to a plus or minus 10% change in the
foreign exchange tate would affect compiehensive loss by $52,000, vittually all of which is
related to CEA denominated financial insttuments,

iy The company is exposed to mmarket tisk as it telates to its marketable securities, If market
prices had varied by 10% from their Juae 30, 2014 fair matket value positions, net loss and
comptehensive loss would have varied by approximately §4,000.

Fait valne hierarchy

The following sumimarizes the methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair value of the
company's financist instruments whete messutement: is required. ‘The fair value of financlal
instruments classified as lcans and teceivables and othet financial liabilities approximates their
carrying amounts due to their short term matatities, Fair value amounts represent point in time
estimates and may not reflect fair value in the future, The measutements are subjective in
natute, involve uncettainties and are a matter of significant judgment. The methods and
assumptions used to develop fair value measurements, for those financial instrutments where
fair value is recognized In the statement of financial position, have been piotitized into three
levels as per their fair valus hierarchy.

Level one Includes quoted prices (whadiusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilittes,
Level two includes inputs that ate observable other than quoted prices included in level one, -
Level theee includes inputs that ate not based on observable market data, ‘The fair value of the
company's financial instruments whete financlal measurement is required are as follows:

June 30 December 31

2014 2013
$ $
Level one
Cash 8,842 14,572
Matketable secutities 41,903 139,638
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC,

NOTES TQ INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
THREE AND SIX MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
(Stated in $CAD)

(Unaudited - Prepared by Manhagement)

FINANCIAL, RISK FACTORS, CONTINUED

{f Intetest rate tisk

Interest rate tisk is the tisk that the fair value of fitute cash flows of a financial insttument will
fluctuate due to changes in matket interest rates, As the company hes minimal or no cash

balances that eatn intetest and no interest-bearing debt, its interest rate risk is considered
fominal,

CAPITAL DISCLOSURES

The company's objective when managing capital is to maintain adequate levels of funding to support
development of ity exploration projects, to expand regional explotation activities within Niger and to
maintain corporate and administrative functions, The company-considers its capital to be its equity,
which is comprised of share capital, contributed surplus, reserves for warrants and share based
payments, accumulated deficit and accumulated other comprehensive loss, which at June 30, 2014
was a deficlency of $615,110 (December 31, 2013 - deficiency of $351,409), The company manages
its capital structure In an effott to provide sufflcient funding for its development projects. Punds are
primatily secuted through equity capital ralsed by way of private placements,

There can be no assurances that the company will be able to continue raising equity capital jo chis
mannet. The Board of Dirsctors does not establish quantitative return on capital criierfa for
management, but rather relies on the expertise of the company's management to sustain future
development of the business. Management teviews its capital management approach on an ongoing
basis and believes that this approach, piven the selative size of the company, is reasonable, There
have been no changes in the company's approach to capital management since the year-end, The
company Is not subject to externally imposed capital requitements.

COMMITMENTS

(o) Niger concessions

As desetibed in note 5, the company had its eight uranivm concessions rencwed on Match 4,
2013 for a further three year petiod,. Under the terms of those concesslon remewals, the
company is connitted to minimum exploration expenditutes of USD $4,916,35%0 over the three
year extension, cuttently budgeted in approsimately ecqual annual amounts,

In addition, under the terms of the originat agrecment and continued during the renewsal petiod,

the company is committed to payment of anaval training fees of USD $10,000 per concession

(totalling USD $80,000 per yeas) for its eight concessions for the purpose of aining Nigex
nationals (vee nots 6).

(b) Managetment contract

‘The company's management centract with Grove Capital Group Inc. is on a monthly basis with
a six-mounth notice period (vee node 14 (x)).
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14,

HOMELAND URANIUM INC,

NOTES TO INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
THREE AND SIX MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

(Stated in $CAD)
{Unaudited - Prepared by Management)

SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The company conducts its buslness in a single opetating segment consisting of the exploration

activities in Niget, where all mineral properties and equipment ate situated. Opetations in the US are
now completely inactive,

BELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (INCLUDING KEY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION)

The company hes transacted with related parties puisuant to setvice arrangements in the ordinary
coutse of buslness, as follows:

@

(b)

The compaty pays a monthly fee of $10,000 to a company controlled by two of the ditectots,
one of whom is also an officet, for managcnicnt and administrative services, including monthly
compensation fot the CRO of $2,500, corporate sectetaty, office rent and regular administrative
functions. Duting the three and six month petiods ended June 30, 2014, the company tecorded
total fees of $30,000 and $60,000 respectively (three and six month periods ended June 30, 2013
- $30,000 and $60,000 respectively) (see alio e 12(b)). As at June 30, 2014, accounts payable and

accrued liabilities includes $32,314 (Deceraber 31, 2013 - $11,581) in respect of such fees and
cost recoveties,

Fach independent directos receives 2 quarterly honosarium of $1,500. Fees recorded in the
three and six month petiods ended June 30, 2014 totalled $7,500 and $15,000 respectively (three
and six month petiods ended June 30, 2013 - $6,000 and §$12,000), ‘To date, no payments have
been made against these honorarfums such that, as at June 30, 2014, accounts payable and

accrued ligbilities includes a provision of §66,000 (December 31, 2013 - $51,000) in respect of
such fees.
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Stated in SCAD)



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Homeland Uranium Ine.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Homeland Uranium Ine., which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2013, and the statements of loss and
comprehensive logs, changes in shareholders' deficiency, and cash flows for the year then ended, and a
surnmary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Congsclidated Financial Statemenis

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reposting Standards and for such internal control as

management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial staternents that
are fres from material misstateent, whether due to fraud or error,

Anditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinica on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards., Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance sbout whether the consolidated financial statements are free from materisl
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
asscssment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or exror,
In making those risk assessments, the anditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the finaccial statements in order to design andit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An andit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting pelicies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Praxity.: |

RLEAAL ALLIAHGE OF
HBEPENIEHT FIRELY

Bast: ACCOUNTING » GONSULTING » TAX
{ Employers 701 EVANS AYENUE, 87 FLOOR, TORONTO ON, M9C 1A3

In Canacly

o P: 416.626.6000 F: 416.626.8650 MNP.ca




Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financlal
position of Homeland Urantum Inc, as a¢ December 31, 2013, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Emphasis of Matter

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements
which highlights the existence of material uncertainiies relating to conditions that cast significant doubt
on Homeland Uranium Ine.’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Other madters

The consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2012 and for the year then ended were audited

by MSCM LLP of Toronto, Canada, prior to its merger with MNP. MSCM LLP expressed an opinion
without reservation on those statements in their andit report dated April 29, 2013,

MM Lerp

Chartered Professional Accountants

Licensed Poblic Accountants
Toronto, Ontario .

April 30, 2014




HOMELAND URANIUM INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

(Stated in $CAD)
2013 2012
ASSETS
Cuerent:
Cash § 14,572 § 2,679
Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 30,536 24,136
Restricted cash (Note 4) - 20,541
Tnvestments (Note 5) 139,638 241,905
$ 184,746 § 289261
LIABILITIES
Current:
Accounts payable 2nd acctued liabflities (Notes 8 and 16) $ 536155 § 577,051
SHABEHOLDERS' DEFICIT
Shatre capital (Note 9) 20,484,111 20,162,111
Contributed surplus 10,555,731 10,425,525
Resetve for wasrants (Note 9c)) 103,000 -
Reserve for share based payments MNote 10) 33,000 130,206
Accumnlated deficit (31,432,288  (30,935,904)
Accumulated other conptehensive loss (94,963) (69,708)

(351,409) (287,770)
$ 184,746 § 289,261

Going concern (Note 1(b))
Comuitments (Note 15)

The accompanying nokes form an intogral part of thess consofiduted finantial statements

Approved on behalf of the Board:

"Niek Tintor™ Director "Staphen Cogtes” Divector
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF LOSS AND

COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Stated in $CAD)
2013 2012
Revenue :
Realized gain on FYTPL secutities $ 1,825 § -
Interest income 559 711
Dividend income (MNote 5(a)) - 117,430
Gain on disposal of equipment - 124
2,384 118,265
Expenses
Exploration expenditutes 178,213 285,110
Cotporate and investor relations ‘ 154,546 155,842
Untealized loss on FVIPL securities 78,870 132,451
Professional fees C 45,611 57,452
Shate based payments (Note 10) 33,000 -
Poreign exchange loss 6,462 1,160
Office and administration 2,066 9,114
Depreciation (Note 6) - 29,631
Realized loss on FVTPL, securitizs - 978
498,768 671,678
Net loes $  (496384) §  (553413)
. Lass per share - basic and dituted (Note 11) $ (0.002) % (0.004)
Comprehensive loss
Net loss

$ (496,384) § (553,413

Item that nay be reclasslBed subsequently 1o net income (loss)

Exchange diffetences on translation of foreign operations (25,2558) (8,860)

Comptehensive losy $ (521,639 §  (562,273)

The accongpanying wotes form an inegral part of these eonsolidated financial statements
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS-
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

(Stated in $CAD)
2013 2012
Operating activities
Net loss $  (496,384) §  (553413)
Add {deduct) itemns not affecting cash
Depreciation of equipment - 29,631
Gain on sale of equipment - (124)
Ungealized loss on FVITPL securitles 78,870 132,451
Realized loss {gain) on FVIPL, secutities (2,828) 978
Shate based payments 33,000 -
Dividend income - (117,430)
Unrealized foreipn exchange loss {25,255) (8,182)
‘ {411,594) (516,089)
Change in nop-cash wotking capital items
Accounnts receivable and prepaid expenses {6,400y 10,228
Acconnts payable and acerued liabilities (40,576) 173,084
488,870y {(332,777)
Investing activities
Proceeds on sale of FVTPL secutities 25,222 109,883
Procceds from sale of equipment - 300
Change in restricted cash 20,541 6,344
45,763 116,523
Financing activides
Proceeds from issuance of share capital and warrants 425,000 214,150
Change in cash 11,893 (2,104)
Cash, begloning of year 2,679 4,783
Cash, end of year ] 14,572 § 2,679

The cesonspanying notes forms an iutagial pare of thess consolidated finandal statements
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Stated in $CAD) h

NaToRE 08 OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN

®

{b)

Nature of operations

Homeland Uranium Iac. (the "company™ is engaged in the business of evaluation and
exploration of uranium. resource properdes in Niger, West Aftica. The company, Ineotpotated
in December, 2006 under the Ontario Business Cotpotations Act, has registered offices at 401
Bay Sireet, Suite 2702, Toronto, Ontarlo, Canada, M5SH 2Y4. Itis a reporting issner subject to
the rules and regulations of the Ontario Sccutities Commission, but its shates do not trade on
any stock exchange.

Going concern

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared using Tnternational
Financlal Reposting Standards {"IFRS") applicable to a going concern, Accordingly, they do not
give effect to adjustments that would be necessaty should the company be unable to continue as
a golng concern, In this clrcumstance, the company would be tequited to realize Its assets and

. Heuddate its labilitles and commitments in other thas the nowmal cousse of business and at

amounts different from those in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Such
adjustments could he material.

The company has incurred sepeated significant losses as net loss for the year ended December
31, 2013 was $495,384 (2012 - §$553,413) with an accumulated deficit as at December 31, 2013
of $31,432,288 (2012 - §30,935,904). The wotking capital deficiency as at December 31, 2013
was $351,409 as compared with $287,770 at December 31, 2012.

The cotpany received renewal of its eight vranium concessions from the Minister of Mines
and lndustrial Development of the Government of Niger on March 4, 2013 for a furthet three
years fiee sofe 7(B)). Such approval bad been conditional upon certain factors, the most
significant of which was the payment of two years of training fees in the amouat of USD
$160,000 (ser nare 8). These two yeats of training fees were paid by the company on March 28,
2013 (see wode §). Failure to pay remaining and ongoing annual training fees, to maintain an
ongoing administtative presence in Niger ot to meet minimum spending and reporting
requitements under the tenewal terms could sesult in tetmination of any concession
agreements, No adjustment to the catrying value of the Niger concessions would be required as
the company bas chosen to expense all explogation expenditures under IFRS (see note 2(f)).

As the company has no operating revenucs or other soutces of cash flow, its ability to maintain
its Canadian head office operations and an administratlve office in Niger over the next 12
months will be dependent upon its ability to (1) raise further equity for the company through
private placements (oo notz 9) and/ ot (2) sell its interest in its investments (i rots 3).

Although the company has taken steps to verify title to the mineral properties on which it is
conducting exploration and in which it has an intetest, these procedures do not guarantee the
corapany’s title. Management s not aware of any such agreements, transfers ot defects, but
property. title may be subject to unsegistered prior agrecments, claims or transfets and title may
be affected by undetected defects, Assets located outside of North America are subject to the

risk of foteign investment, including curtency exchange fluctuations and restrictions and local
political instability and uncertainty,
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Stated in $CAD)

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN, CONTINUED

The company faces risks and uncertainties including () the inability to obtain the Anancing
necessary to complete the development of its properties, (ii) tealization of proceeds from the
sale of its propetties, or {iif) the company's licenses, permits or concessions being revoked as a
tesult of title disputes, a failure to comply with agreements or secutity Issues preventing the safe
explotation and development of any properties wnder license, Previously, the company has
encountered many delays dutlng the execution of its Niger project due to events and
citcumstances beyond its control, The government of Niger had acknowledged these delays as
“force majevte” and, in June, 2019, had granted the company a 27 month extension (to August,
2012) to its otlginal concessions to cotnpensate for this lost time, Ongoing economic and

political nncertainty in the sub-Sahatan part of Aftica could lead to similar difficulties and delays
in the future,

While management believes that it will be able to secure the necessary financing to continue
operations into the future, thete are material uncertaintics that these and other strategles will be
sufficient to permit the company o contitue beyond the foreseeable future as such strategies
are dependent upon continued support of its shareholder base, Therefore, there is significant

doubt as to the propriety of the use of the going concern assumption upon which these
consolidated financial statements have been prepared.

2. SIGNIPICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

{n) Statement of compliance

These consclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intetnational
Iinancial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standasd

Boasd ("IASB"). They were authotlzed fot issuance by the Board of Directoss on April 30,
2014,

As sequited by the IASB, effective Junuary 1, 2013 the company adopted the following
standards and amendments to TFRS:

IFRS 7: "Pinancial Instruments: Amendment Regarding Offsetting Financial
Assets and Pinancial Liabilitics" enables users of the financial statements to better
compate financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS and US Generslly

Accepted Accounting Principles. The company's adoption of IFRS 7 had no effect on its
consolidated financial statements,

TFRS 19: " Consolidated Financial Statements" provides a single model to be applied
in the control analysis for all investees stating that an investor controls an investee when
it i exposed, or has rights, to variable returns frotn its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those retutng through its power over the investee, IFRS 10 carries
fotward the consolidation procedures substantially uhmodified from IAS 27. ‘The
company's adoption of IFRS 10 had no effect on lts consolidated financial statetnents,
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HOMEILAND URANIUM INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Stated in $CAD)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

IFRS 12: "Disclosute of Intetests in Othet Entities" is a comprehensive standard on
disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other entities, Including subsidiaries,
joint atrangements, associdtes and unconsolidated structured entities. ‘The company's
adoption of IFRS 12 had no effect on its consolidated financial statements,

IERS 13: "Fair Value Measutement” defines fair value, requited disclosute about fair
value measurements and provides a framework for measuting fair value when it is
requited ot permitted within the IFRS standards, The adoption of IFRS 13 did not
tequire any adjustment to the valuation techniques currently used to measute fait value
and did not result in any measurement adjustments as at January 1, 2013,

IAS 1: "Presentation of Fluancial Staternents™ was amended and requires companies
to group items presented within Other Comprehensive Income based on whethes they
may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, The company's adoption of IAS 1
tesulted in a different presentation within the consolidated statement of net loss and
comptehensive loss as the items that will never be reclassifled to net income (loss) ate
sepatated from those that will be,

IERIC 20: "Suripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine" provides
guidance on the accounting for waste removal costs that are incurved in surface tnining
activity during the preduction phase of a mine, The company's adoption of this standard
had no effect on its consolidated financial statements as It does not have any surface
milnes in the production phase,

() Baasls of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis as

modified by the measurement at fait value of financial assets classified as fair value through
profit and loss ("FVIPL").

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with 1FRS tequires
management o malke certain ctitical accounting estimates and to exercise judgement in applying
the company’s accounting policies. The ateas involving 4 higher degree of judgement or

complexity, ot areas where assumptions and estimates arve significant to these consolidated
[inancial statements, are disclosed in note 2(n).
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER. 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Stated in $CATD)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

©

(d)

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the company and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries:

¢ Homeland Utanium, Inc, (*US sub"), a Utah company
+ Pan Aftican Usanium Cotp. (“Ontatio sub™), an Ontatio company
¢ Uraniom Intesnational Limited Niger ("Niger sub™), a branch of the Ontario sub

Subsidiaries ate those entides which the company controls by having the power to govern the
financial and operating policles. Subsidiaties are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is obtained by the corupany and ate de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intetcompany transactions, balances, income and expenses, and profis and losses ate
eliminated.

Pinancial instruments

Financiaf agsets

Financial assets ace initially tecorded at fair value and designated upon inception into one of the
following four categoties: held-to-maturity, available-for-sale, loans-and-tecelvables or at fair
value through profit of loss (“FVTPL”).

Financial assets classified 23 FVIPL ate measured at faix value, with any tesultant gain or loss
tecognized in profit or loss, Financial instraments classified as being available-for-sale are
measured at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss being recognized directly under othes
cotnprehensive incomme, except fos impalitment losses and, in the case of monetaty items such as
secutities denominated in foreign curtency, which ate recotded in foreign exchange gains and
losses. When these investments arc detecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized directly In equity is recognized in profit ot loss,

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognized
directly in equity and there is objective cvidence that the asset is impaited, the cumulative loss
that had been recognized directly in equity is ttansfersed to profit or loss even though the
financial asset has not heen derecognized. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognized
ln profit ot loss is the difference between the acquisition cost and cutrent fair value, less any
impaitment loss on.that financial asset previounsly tecognized in profit of loss, Financial assets

classified as loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

Transaction costs associated with FVIPL financial assets ate expensed as incutted, while

transaction costs agsociated with all other financial assets ate included in the initial careying
ainownt of the asset,
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
NOTES T'O CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Stated in $CAD)

S1GNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

{d) Financial Instruments, continned

®

Financial Habilivles

Financial liabilities are initial'y recorded at fair value and designated upon inception as FVIPL
ot other financial iabilities, Financial liabilities classified as other financial liabilities are initially
recognized at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs, After initial recogaition,
other-financial-iabilitles ave then messured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, The effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amottized cost of a
financial instrument and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period, The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estitmated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial insttument, or, where apptoptiate, 2 shotter petiod,

Binancial liabilities classified as BVIPL include financial Habilities held for trading and also
financial liabilities designated upon tnitial tecognitdon as FVTPL, Fait value changes on financial
linbilities classified as FVIPL ate recognized through the statement of loss.

Finanelal instroment classifications

The company has made the following classifications:

Cash FV'IPL
Agcounts receivable Loans and receivables
Restricted cash EVIPL
Investments BVTPL

Accounts payable and accrved liabilides  Other financial liabilitles
Functonal curteticy and forelgn currency teanslation
Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements ate presented in Canadian dollars, which is also the
functional currency of the cotporate offices located jn Canada, The functional cutrencies of the
Niget and USA subsidiaries are the West African CFA and US dollat tespectively.

Forelgn cutrency transtation

Foreign entrency ttansactions are initially secorded in the functional eurrency at the transaction
date exchange rate. At the end of the teporting period, monetary assets and labilities
denominated in 2 foreign currency ate translated into the functional cutrency at the exchange
rate at that date with all foreign curtency adjustments being expensed.
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Stated in $CAD)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PDLICIES, CONTINUED

®

®)

Financlal statements of the subsidiaries, for which the functional currency Is not the Canadian
dolias, ate translated into Canadian dollars, the functional curtency of the patent, 4s follows: all
asset and liability accounts (including nos-monetary and capital items) ate translated at che
exchange ate at the end of the reporting pesiod and all revenve and expense accounts and cash
flow statement iterns are translated at avetage exchange rates for the reporting petiod, The

resulting translation gains and losses ate recorded as foreign cutrency translation adjustments in
othet comprehensive loss,

Mitietal properties

All acqpuisition and exploration costs, net of incidental revenues, are charged to profit ot loss In
the period Incutred witil such time as it has been determined that a property has economically
tecoverable reserves, in which case subsequent esplotation costs and the costs incusred to
develop a property are capitalized into property and equipment, On the commencement of
commescial production, depletion of eack mining property will be provided on a unit-of-
production basis using estimated resoutces as the depletion base,

Bquipiment

Bemipment is now fully depreciated and was formerly depreciated as follows:

¢ Explotation ecpipieit Straight-line 3 to 5 years
+ Automotive equipment  Steaight-line 3 to b years
+ FPurnituge and fxtures Straight-line 10 to 20 years
¢+ Computer equipment Straight line 2 to § years
¢ Office equipment ' Straight-line 2 to 5 yeats

Impairment of non-financial assets

The company continually reviews and evaluates the evemts or changes in the economic
envitonment that indicate a tisk of impaliment of assets to determine whether the eatrying
amount of the asset or group of assets undet consideration exceeds its ot their tecoverable
amount. Impaitment of the assets is evalvated at the cash-generating unit ("CGU"} level which
is the smallest identifiable group of asscts that generates cash inflows, independent of the cash
inflows frotn other assets, as defined by IAS 36 "Impairment of assets". Recaverable amonnt is
defined as the higher of the CGU's fais value Jess costs to sell) and its value in use. The active
matket or 2 binding sale agreement provides the best evidence for the determination of the
fair value, but whese neither exists, fair value is based on the best information available
to reflect the amount the company could receive for the CGU in an arm's length transaction.

Value in use is equal to the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the
use and sale of the CGU,
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Stated in $CAD)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

@

i)

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions ate recognized when a legal or constractive obligation exists as a result of past
events and it Is probable that an outflow of tesources that can be reliably estimated will be
tequired to settle the obligation. Where the effect is matesial, the provision is discounted using
an approptiate curtent market-based pre-tax discount rate. ‘The increase in the provision due to
passage of tine is recognized as intetest expense.

The company's activities could give rise to obligations for environmental tehabilitation which
can include facilities dismanting, removal, treatment of waste materials, monitoting, compliance
with enviconmental regulations, security and other site-telated costs requited to perform the
tehahilitation wotk. Any carrent expenditures tegarding the environmental tehabilitation are

chatged to the cost of the project. Provisions fot sehabilitation ate petiodically adjusted by the
company, when applicable.

When s contingency substantiated by confirming events can be teliably measured and is likely to
tesult in an economic owutflow, a liability Is recognized at the best estimate tequired to settle the
obligation. A contingent Hability is disclosed where the existence of an obligation will only be
confirmed by future events, or whete the amount of 4 present obligation catnot be measured
reliably ot will likely not result in an economic outflow. Contingent assets ate only disclosed
when the inflow of economic benefits is probable, When the economic benefit becomes

virtually cettain, the asset is no longes contingent and is recognized in the consolidated financial
statements, :

Share based payments

The company offers a shate option plan for its ditectors, officers, employees and consultants,
Each tranche in an award is considered a separate awatd with its own vesting period and grant
date fair value, The fajr value of each eranche is measuted using the Black-Scholes option
pticing model based upon the number of awards expected to vest, Compensation expense Is
recognized upon vesting over the tranche's vesting petiod by increasing the teserve for share
based payments. Any consideration paid on exercise of shate options is credited to shate capital,

For other equity settled transactions, the company measuses goods ot services received at their

fair value, unless that falr value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case the cormpaty
measutes their value by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Stated in $CAD)

S1GMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PULICIES, CONTINUED

()

@

(m)

Earnings pet share

Basic earnings (loss) per shave amounts ate calculated by dividing the net earnings (loss) for the
period attrbutable to common shateholdets by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding duting the petiod,

Diluted earnings (loss) pet share amounts ate calculated by dividing the net earnings (loss)
attributable to common sharcholders of the parent by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the pedod plus the weighted average nmumbet of shases that would be issued
on the conversion of all the dilutlve instruments, Stock options and wasrants outstanding ate

not included in the computation of diluted eagnings pet share if their inclusion would be anti-
dilutive.

Accumulated other comprehenstye income (loss)

Comprehensive income {loss) Is comprised of net jocome (loss) and othet compichensive
income (loss), Certain gains and losses atising from changes in fair value ate temporatily
tecorded outside the consolidated statement of loss in accurmulated comprehensive income
{loss) as a separate component of shateholders’ equity (deficif). Other comprehensive income
{loss) tay include any untealized gains and losses on available-for-sale secutities, forelgn
cutreney translation gains and losses on the currency used for presentation and changes in the
fair market value of detivative instruments designated as cash flow hedpes, all net of taxes,

Income taxes

Deferred tas is recognized on temporary differences between the catrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the cotresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, Deferred tax ltabilities ate generally tecognized for all taxable
tempotaty differences. Deferred tax asscts are generally recopaized for all deductible temporary
differences to the cxtent that it is probably that the taxable profits will be available apalnst
which those deductible temporary differences can be utifized.

Such deferred tax assets and lisbilltes ate not recognized if the tempotaty difference arises from
goodwill ot from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither that taxable profit not the accounting profit,

Deferred tax lisbilitles ate secognized for taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaties and assoclates and interests in joint ventures, except where the
company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probably that the
temporaty difference will not reverse in the foreseeable futore, Defetred tax assets atising from
dechuctible temporary differences associated with such investments and intetest are osly
recoghized to the extent that it is probable thae there will be sufficient taxable profits against

which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable futuse,
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Stated in §CAD)

SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

The catrying amount of deferted tax assets is reviewed at the end of each repottiog period and

reduced to the extent that it is no longer ptobable that the sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all ot part of the asset to be tecovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
petiod in which the liability is settled of the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted o substantively enacted by the end of the reporting pesiod. The
measutement of defetted tax liabililes and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the menner in which the company expects, at the end of the reporting petiod, to
recover ot settle the carrying amount of its assets and fiabilides.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when thete is a legally enforceable right to offset tax
assets against tax liabilitles and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the company intends to setile its tax assets and labilities on a net basis.

Critical accountlng estlinates

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requites management to make
ceftaln estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilitics at the date of the financial statements and teported amounts of expenses during the
reporting period,

Significant assumptions about the future and other sources of estimation uncertainty that
inanagement has made at the end of the reporting petiod, that could tesult in a material
adjustment to the cazrying atnounts of assets and liabilities, in the event that actual results differ
ftom assumptions made, include, but are not limited to, the following;

)  Eovironmental rehabilitation provision

Provisions for rehabilitaton tequite judgement as to the time frame and amounts
required to successfully complete such rehabilitations given factors such as weather

condiitions, the success of replanting efforts and limitations on access to the relative atea
of exploration,

{)  Niger liabilities

As illustrated by the period of "force majeure” desctibed in note 1(b), there s an
uncettainty that often arises when conducting business in Niger. These uncertainties
requite significant jucdgements to ensure that liabilities of uncertain timing or amount that
have atisen as a result of past transactions, including legal or constructive obligations, ate

measuted based on management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the teporting date.
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
NOTES T CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Btated in $CAD)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED
(n) Critical accounting estimates, continued

{iliy Functional cutrency

The functional cutrency for the company and subsidiatics is the cutrency of the primary
economic envitonment in which each opetates; Canadian dollat, US dollat and West
Aftican CFA. Determination of functional cusrency may requlte certain judgements to
determine the primaty economic environment. The company reconsidess the functional

curtency used when these is a change in events and conditions which determined the
primaty economic environment.

AnorTION oF NEW AND REVISED IRRS STANDARDS AND [NTERPRETATIONS

The company has reviewed new and revised accounting pronouncements, standards, amendments

and related interpretations that have been issued but ate not yet effective and determined that the
following may have an impact on the company:

(@ IFRS 9: "Financial Instrutnents™ was issued by the IASB on November 12, 2009 and will
teplace TAS 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”, 1FRS 9 replaces the
multiple tules in IAS 39 with a single apptoach to determine whether a financial asset is
measured at amortized cost or fair value and a new mixed measurement model for debt
instroments having only two categoties: amortized cost and fait vahe. The approach in [FRS 9
is based on how an entity manages its financial instraments n the context of its business model
and the contractual cash flow chatactetistics of the financial assets. The new standacd also
recuires a single impairment method to be used, replacing the multiple impairment methods in
TAS 39, TFRS 9 is effeciive for annual perdods beginning on or after January 1, 2018,

(b) TASB 32: "Fipanclal Instruments - Offsetting Pinancial Assets and Financial Eiabilities”
provides forther clasification on the application of the offsetting requitements. The company
will stait the applicaticn of TAS 32 in the financial statements effective from Januvary 1, 2014,

The company has not carly adopted any of these standards, amendments and interpretations.

However, management is curtently assessing the impact of theit application in the consolidated
financial staternents.

Ragrmicren CASH
Certain cash balances were restricted as they related w deposits with state regulatory suthorities in

the United States to secure various reclamation guarantees with respect to mineral properties in Utah
and Colorado, All remalning deposies wese teceived in fult during the cutrent year.
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Stated in $CAD)

INVESTMENTS

The company's investments are cattled at fait value and are comprised of the following:

2013 2012
$ Shares $ Shates
Macusani Yelloweake Ine. $ 118,500 1,050,000 § 179,147 1,235,500
Catracara Silves Inc. 24,138 965,500 62,758 965,500
$ 139,638 $ 241,005

Southern Andes Energy Inc. te-organization in Apsil, 2012

{®) On April 12, 2012, Southern Andes Energy Inc, ("SUR") distributed a dividend consisting of
shares of Caracara Silver Inc, (“CSV”) to all SUR shareholders on the basis of a distribution
tatio of 0.45 CSV shares for each common share held by shateholdets of SUR. Shareholdess
were not required to pay for the CSV shates that they teceived pursuant to the distribution nor
wete they required to surrender or exchange common shates of SUR in ordet to teceive the
CSV shates, As a result of the distribution, Homeland acquired 1,067,543 common shates of
CSV valued at $117,430 on the date of distsibution, The value at the date of distribution was
recotded as dividend income. The corresponding investment has been classified as FV'TPL.

{b) On Apsil 27, 2012, Southern Andes Energy Inc. ("SUR™ metged with Macusani Yelloweake
Inc. ("YEL") such that sharchelders of SUR. seceived 0,80 shares of YEL for each common
share of SUR. As a result of the merger, the company teceived 1,898,255 shares of YEL. The
Investmett in YHL was recorded at the then-carying value of SUR, which has subsequently
been te-measured at fair market valoe nnder accounting for secutities classified as FVIPL.
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HOMEILAND URANIUM INC.,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER, 31, 2013 AND 2012
‘ (Stated in $CAD)

EquirmeENT

The company's equipment, all fully depreciated as at December 31, 2012, was all written off in the
cufrent year as the assets are no longer in use, as follows:

Purniture
Computer  Automotive and Exploration
equipment  equipment fixtutes equipoent Total
Cost
As ot January 1, 2012 $ 95280 $ 22508 § 33916 $ 93,575 $ 245,279
Cuetency adjustment (3,478) {1,265) (2,171} (5,652) {12,566
As at December 31, 2012 91,802 25,243 31,745 87,923 232,713
Writter, off (91,802) (21,243 (31,745) {87,923 (232,713)
As at December 31, 2013 $ - $ - $ - B - ¥ -
Accumnlated depreciation
As at January 1, 2012 $ 90,198 % 22507 § 27562 § 74,525 % 214,792
Depreciation 5,486 - 0,092 18,053 29,631
Cutrency adjustment (3,582) (1,264) (1,909) {4,655) (11,710)
As at December 31, 2012 91,802 21,243 31,745 87,923 232,713
Wiitten off ©1,802) (21,243) (31,745) (87,923) (232,713)
As at December 31, 2013 $ - $ - $ - [] - $ -
Net book value
As at Decembey 31, 2012 $ - $ - $ " $ - % .
As at December 31, 2013 $ - ] - $ - $ - $ -
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| HOMELAND URANIUM INC.,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN'T'S
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Stated in $CAD)

MiNERAsL PROPERTIES ,

The following provides the relevant background on the company's uranium explotation concessions
i Niget:

@

©

The company was otiginally granted three-year utapium explotation concessions in Januaty
2007 that were apptoved by a governmental order on May 31, 2007, ‘The eight concessions ate
located in the Agadez-Atlit disttict of notthetn Niger and atre held in the name of Urantum
Intetnational Limited Niget, a branch of the company’s Ontatio subsidiaty. On Septembet 7,
2010, the government of Niget agreed to extend this agreement a further 27 months to August

31, 2012 under the same tesms and conditions to give tecognition to conditions of "force
majeure” that existed at that time.

On March 4, 2013, the company obtained approval for renewal of ‘its Niger uranium
concessions for o further three years from authotities in Niger, Such approval was conditional
upon ceztain factors, the most significant of which was payment of two years of teaining fees on
March 28, 2013 in the amount of USD $160,000 (see rots 8),

The key terins of the concession renewa! include:

© 50% of the ateas licensed vnder the previous concessions were relinguished on rencwal,
such that the area of explotation now covers approximately 1,870 square kilometres;
(i) cumulative minium espendituses of USD $4,916,350 for all concessions duting the
theee-year senewsl petiod (e wote 15(a));
(i) 2 10% free catried interest for the state in the mining phase with an option to acquire an
additional 30% at market value;
{iv) tax and other exemptions during the exploration petiod include:
- value added tax;
~ cotpotate Incotne tax;
~income tax. for expatiiate cmployees;
- land tax;
- license contributions;
- mining flat tax and other reglstration fees; and
- import dutes on certain equipment and spare pasts;
(¥) a sliding scale mining royalty between 5.5% to 12% of the market value of production on
FOB terms; and
(vi) exemptions during the mining phase include:
- value added tax untéi the date of production;
- taxes on industrial/business profits for theee years from production;
- land and mining flat taxes indefinitely; and
- impost duties on certai equipment and spate parts
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Stated in $CAD)

AcCouNTs PAYARLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

2013 2012
Trade accounts payable and acctued linbilities $ 328,978 § 427,269
Payroll related 72,688 64,874
Provisions 134,489 84,888

$  B36155 § 577,031

As at Decemnber 31, 2013, accounts payable and accrued liabilities contain an amount of USD
$240,000 tepresenting three yeats of talning fees (December 31, 2012 - USD §$320,000 representing
the four years from 2009 to 2012) due and payable under the tetims of the original uranium
concessions, The renewal process for the utanivm concessions was formalized on March 4, 2013,
but was conditional upon acknowledgement of these labilities by the company. Of the amount
payable as at December 31, 2012, two yeats of tralnibg fees of USD $160,000 wete paid on March
28, 2013, A further USD §80,000 has been accrued for the cutrent year,

SHARE CAPITAL

Continuity schedules for the company's shase capital and othet equity instruments ave disclosed in
the consolidated statement of changes in shatcholders' equity for the petiod from Jaauaty 1, 2012 to
Decermber 31, 2013, Details of changes to shate capital duting that petiod are as follows:

(8} The company is authorized to issue an wnlimited number of common shares.

(b) In Tebruary, 2012, the company closed a noo-brokered private placement financlng of
55,000,000 common shates at §0.005 per common share for gross proceeds of $275,000, The

common shares were subject to a four-month hold perlod in accordance with' requisite
secutities laws,

©) In February, 2013, the company closed a non-brokered private placement of 85,000,000 units at
pany p p
$0.005 per unit for gross proceeds of $425,000. Bach vnit consisted of the following:

{iy 1 common shate; and

@) 1 common share purchase warrant entitling the holder thereof to buy one commeon share
at a price of $0.01 pet shate, expliring in 24 months by Febtuary 2015, The fair value of
these warrants was calculated with the Black-Scholes pricing model. Using the assumptions
of: (1) sisk free intetest tate of 1.0%, (2) expected volatility of 139%, (3) expected kife of |
yeat, and (4) dividend yield of 0.0%, the fait value attributed to each wattant was $0.0012,
or $103,000 in aggregste, The retnaining proceeds of $322,000 were attgibuted to the

common shates,
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Stated in $CAD)

S10cKk OPTIONS

The company has adopted a stock option plan undet which it tay grant options to acquite shares of
the company to directors, officers and consultants of the company. The number of common shares

subject to options granted under the plan is limited to 10% in the aggregate. A summaty of the stats
of the stock option plan is as follows

2(113 2012
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
Optilons price Options price
Outstanding, beginning of yeat 750,000 & 0,250 2,280,000 § 0.250
Expired or forfeited {750,000) 0250  (1,530,000) 0.250
Granted in Apsil, 2013 11,000,000 0.0805 - ~
Outstanding, end of yeas 11,000,000 $ 0.005 750,000 § 0.250

(1) Option expitles and fotfeitures

(0 Duting the yeat ended December 31, 2012, an amount of $1,800,339 attributed to
' forfeited and explred optlons was transfesred from the teserve for share based payments
to conttibuted surplus. On expity of the remaining 750,000 options in the first quarter of

2013, the remaining balance in the reserve for share based payments of $130,206 was also
transferred to conttibuted sutplus,

{b) July 11, 2013 grant:

@ 'The Boasd of Directors approved the prant of 11,000,000 options exercisable at $0,005 pes:
option with a term of five years (expiring July 11, 2018), Of these options, 50% vestex
immediately and the remainder after one year.

(i) The fait value of these options issued to officess, ditectors and consultants has been
caleulated with. the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Using the assumptions of: (1) tisk
free Interest rate of 1.0% (2) expected volatility of 139%, (3) expected life of 3.25 years,
and (4) dividend yield of 0.0%, the fair value atttibuted to each option was $0,004, or
$44,000 in aggregate,

Share based payments tecognized In the cutrent year were $33,000 (2012 - §Ni,
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Stated in $CAD)

Loss PER SHARE

Basic and diluted loss pes shate is computed using the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding, The weighted average number of comtmon shates ontstanding for the year ended
December 31, 2013 was 209,198,475 (2012 - 132,813,978).

Diluted loss per share and the welghted average number of common shates exclude all potentially
dilutive equity instraments since their effect is anti-dilutive. As at December 31, 2013, the following
potentially dilutive equity instraments were all outstanding: (1) 85,000,000 warrants (December 31,
2012 - W), and (2) 11,000,000 options (2012 - 750,000).

Incove Taxes

() Income rate reconciliation

The following table teconciles the expected income tax tecovery at the Canadian fedetal and

provincial statutoty rate of 26.50% (2012 - 26.50%) to the amount tecognized in the consolidated
statement of Josa:

2013 2012
Netloss before recovery of income taxes $ 496,384 § 553413
Expected income tax recovery 26.50% 26.50%
Baxpected income tax tecovery $ 131,540 § 146,650

Decrease (increass) resulilng from:

Differences in foreign tax rates 5,920 12,160
"Tax rate changes and other adjustments 607,190 266,320
Non-deductible expenses : (1,320) 27,120
Change in tax benefits not tecognized (743,330)  (452,250)

S . 5
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; HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2033 AND 2012
(Stated in $CAD)

INCOME "TAXES, CONTINUED

(b) Unrecognized deferred tax assets

Deferred income taxes are provided as a result of temporary diffexences that arise due to the
differences between the income tax values and the catrying atoount of assets and liabilities, Deferted

income tax assets have not been recognlzed In respect of the following deductible temporary
differences:

2013 2012
$ ¥
Nou-capital losses catried forwasd {5,710,000 15,150,700
Capital losses cartied forward 7,603,000 7,559,000
Resource-telated [ropetties 5,568,200 5,568,200
Other deductible temporary differences 105,230 376,100

In addition to the sbove noted unrecognized deferred tax assets, the Niger branch has deferred
exploration expenditures of approximately $6,791,000 (2012 - $5,686,000).

Canadian and foreign non-capital losses expire as noted below. The capltal loss carry forward may be
catried fotward indefinitely, but can only be used to reduce capital gains, The deductible temporaty
differences clo not expire under curient tax legislation. Defetred tax assets have not heen recognized
in tespect of these items because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the group can ntlize the benefits thetefrom.

Canada USA
2026 § 362,310 $ -
2027 1,511,620 -
2028 933,570 3,506,180
2029 1,599,270 3,175,470
2030 1,222,930 1,165,130
2031 1,154,390 67,890
2032 825,570 -
2033 182,220 3430

¥ 7,791,880 % 7,918,100
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Stated in $CAD)

FianNcIAL Risk FACTORS

Risk management

The company's activitics expose it to a vatiety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk, mineral
property risk, market tisk and cuttency tisk, Risk management Is carded out by the company's
management team with guidance from the Audit Cominittee undes policies approved by the Board
of Directors, The Board of Ditectots also provides regular guidance fot overall tisk management,

(@

Credit visk

Credit risk is the tisk of loss associated with & counterparty’s inability to fulfill its payment
obligations, The company's credit tisk is primarily attributable to cash, accounts receivable and
restricted cash. Financial insttuments Included in accounts receivable consist of HST receivable.
As at December 31, 2013, cash of $14,572 (2012 - §2,679) is held with reputable financial
institutions from which management believes the tisk of loss to be minimal. All HST

teceivables ate in good standing, so management believes that the related credit risk
concentration is negligible,

Liquidity sisk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the compaty will not be able to meet its financial
obligations when they become due, or can only do so at excessive cost (see mole 7(B)). The
company's approach to managing liquidity «dsk is to ensute that it will have sufficient liquidity to
meet liabilities when due, and a5 such, the company has classified its investments as current, As
at December 31, 2013, the cotapany had a working capital deficiency of $351,409 (2012 -
deficlency of $287,770), All of the company’s financial liabilities have contractual matusities of
less than 90 days and are subject to normal trade terms,

Minetal propesty risk

The company’s operations in Niges are exposed to vations levels of political risk and
uncertaintes, including polideal and cconomic instability, government regulations telating to
exploration and mining, military repression and civil disorder, all or any of which may have 2
material adverse impact on the company’s activities or may result in impaitment in, or loss of,
part ot all of the company's assets.
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN'TS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Stated in $CAD)

FiyaANCIAL RISK FACTORS, CONTINUED

() SBeneitivity analysis

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the cattying and fair value amounts of the company's
financial instruments are approximately equivalent,

)} ‘The company's funciional cutrency is the Canadian dollar and major putchases ate
transacted in Canadizn doliass, The company maintaing US dollar baak accounts in Canada
and the United States, The compatiy is exposed to foreign currency sisk on fluctuations of
financial instruments that are denominated predominately in West African francs (CRA's) as
well 25 sotme in U8 dollars and ate telated to cash, restricted cash, accounts teceivable,
investiments and accounts payable and accrued labilities. Sensitivity to a phus ot minus 10%
change in the forelgn exchange rate would affect comprehensive loss by $44,000 (2012 -
$46,000), virtually all of which s related to CFA denominated financial instruments.

ii) "The company is exposed to market risk 25 It relates to its investments held in marketab)
- securities. If market prices had vatied by 10% from theit December 31, 2013 fair matket

value positions, net loss and compeehensive loss would have varied by approximately
$14,000 (2012 - $24,000),

Fair value hietarchy

The following sumimarizes the methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair vatue of the
company's financial Instruments where measuiement is required, The falr value of financial
instruments classified 25 loans and receivables and other financial liabilities approximates their
cattying amounts due to theit short tetm maturities, Fair value amounts represent point in time
estimates and may not feflect fair value i the future, The measutements are subjective in
natuge, involve uncertaintdes and are a matter of significant judgment, The methods and
assumptions used to develop fair value measurements, for those financial insttuments where
fair value is recognized in the statement of financial position, have been priotitized into three
levels as pet their fair value hieratchy.

Level one includes quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets ot liabilities.
Level two inclades Inputs that ate observable other than quoted prices included in level one.
Level three includes inputs that ate not based on observable market data, The Fair value of the
company's financia! instruments whete financial measurement is required are 2s follows:

2013 2012
$ $
Level one
Cash 14,672 2,679
Restticted cash - - 20,541
Investments 139,638 241,905
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Stated in $CAD)

Frvanciarl Risk Facrorg, CONTINUED
{f) Interestrate risk

Interest rate sk Is the risk that the fait value of future cash flows of & financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market interest tates. As the company has minimal or no cash

balances that earn interest and no intetest-beating debt, its interest rate risk is consideted
hotinal,

CAPITAL DISCLOSURES

The company's objective when managing capital fs to maintain adequate levels of funding to support
development of its exploration psojects, to expand regional explotation activites within Niger and to
maintain corporate and administrative functions, The company considets its capital to be its equity,
which is comptised of share capital, conttibuted sutplus, reserves for warrants and shate based
payments, accumulated deficit and accumulated othet cotoprehensive loss, which at December 31,
2013 was a deflciency of $351,409 (2012 - deficiency of §287,770). The company manages its capital
structute in an effort to provide sufficient funding for its development projects, Funds ate ptimasily
secured through ecuity capital raised by way of private placements.

Thete can be no assurances that the company will be able to continue saising equity capital in this
manner. The Board of Directors does not establish quantitative return on capital criteria for
management, but rather relies on the expertise of the company's management to sustain futyre
development of the business, Management reviews its capital management approach on an ongoing
basis and helieves that this approach, given the selative size of the company, is teasonable, There
have been no changes in the company's approach to capital management since the year-end. The
company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

COMMITMENTS
(n) Niger concessions

As described in note 7, the company had its eight uranium concessions renewed on March 4,
2013 for a further three year period, Under the terms of those concession renewals, the
company is committed 1o winimum exploration expenditures of USD $4,916,350 over the three
yeat extenision, currently budgeted in approximately equal antual amousts.

In addition, under the terms of the original agreement and continued during the renewal period,

the company is committed to payment of annval training fees of USD $10,000 per concession

(totalling USD $80,000 per year) fot its elght concessions for the putpose of training Niger
nationals (eee noz &),

(b} Management contract

The company's management contract with Grove Capital Group Inc, is on a monthly basis with
1 six-month notice period (ree nole 16(4)).
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Stated in §CAD)

Rerarep Parry TRANSACTIONS (INCLUDING KEY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION)

The company has transacted with related pasties puisuant to setvice artangements in the otdinary
course of husiness, as follows:

()

‘The cornpany pays a monthly fee of $10,000 to a company controlled by two of the ditectors,
one of whom it also an officer, for management and administrative services, including monthly
compensation for the CFO of $2,500, cotpotate secretaty, office rent and regular administrative
functions. Duting the year ended Decembes 31, 2013, the company tecorded total fees of
§120,000 (2012 - §120,000) (see also note 15()). As at December 31, 2013, accounts payable and
accrued liabilities incindes §11,581 (2012 - $38,47C) in respect of such fees and cost recoveries,

{(b) The Board of Directos hes previously approved quasterly director fees of $1,500 fot each

©®

independent director, Fees recorded in the year ended December 31, 2013 totalled $30,000
(2012 - $21,000). As at Decembes 31, 2013, accounts payable and accrued liabilities includes a
provision of §51,000 (2012 - $21,000) in tespect of such fees,

Accounts payable and accrued lizbilities of §38,050 owing to certain curtent and Former related

parties wete scttled with common shases issued as patt of the private placement of February,
2012 as described in note 9(b).

SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The company conaducts its business in a single opetating segtment consisting of the explotation
activities in Niget, whete all mineral propetties and equipment ate situated, Operations in the US ate
now completely inactive.
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Accountants & Advisors for & Complex World @

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of
Homeland Urantum Ine.

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the sccompanying financial statements of Homeland Uranivm Inc., which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2012, and the consolidated statements of
loss and comprehensive loss, changes in sharcholders’ equity (deficiency), and cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory information.

Managemerit's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Menagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS™), and for such
internal control as management determines is noeessary to enablo the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misgtatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor's Responsibility

L

Our rosponsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial stateaents based on our audit.
We conducted our sudit in accordance with Canadian geverally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance gbout whether the consolidated financial statements are fiee from material
misstatement.

An audit involves petforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial siatements, The procedures selected depend on the aunditor's judgment,
inclnding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated financial statements,
whether due to frand or error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant fo the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectivencss of the entity's infernal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well ag evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial staiements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained ig sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

701 Evans Avenue, 8th Floor, Toronto ON MOT 1A3, Canada T (416) 626-6000 F (416) 626-B650 MSCTM.CA



An Independent firm associated with Moore Stephens International Limited | MSCHM.CA

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present faitly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Homeland Uranium. Inc. as at Decsmber 31, 2012, and its financial performance and its cash
flows fot the year then ended iu accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Emphasts of matter

Without modifying our opinion, we draw aitention to Note 1(b) in the consolidated financial statements

which describes materiel uncertainty and raises substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue
as 4 golng concern,

Orther matters

The consolidated financial statements as &t December 31, 2012 and for the year then ended were audited

by other auditors who expressed an opinion without reservation on those statements in their audit report
dated April 30, 2012,

Signed: “MSCM LLP”

Chartered Accountants
Licensed Poblic Accoundants

Toronto, Ontario
April 29, 2013

(@) Accountants & Advisors for a Complex World®




HOMELAND URANIUM INC.

Consolidated Statements of Financlal Position

As at Decerber 31, 2012 and 2011
(Stated in $CAD)

ASSETS
Curient:
Cash
Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses
Restricted cash (Note 4)
Investments (Note 5)

Long tetm:
Propetty and equipment (Note 6)

LIABILITIES
Cugrent: .

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 8)

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIENCY)
Share capital (Note 10)
Contributed surplus
Reserve for shave based payments (Note 11)
Accumulated deficit

Accumulated other compsehensive income (loss)

Golng concern (Note 1(b))
Committents and contingencies Note 17)

Subsequent events (Note 18)

See accompanying notes

Approved on behalf of the Board;

"Niek Tintor”, Director

2012 2011
$ 2,679 % 4,783
24,136 34,364
20,541 26,881
241,905 367,787
289,261 433,815
; 30,487
$ 289261 § 464,302
$  BI7,031 § 464,799
20,062,H1 19,887,111
10,425,525 8,535,186
130,206 2,020,545
(30,935,904) (30,382,491
(69,708) (60,848)
(287,770) (497)
$ 289261 § 464302

UStephen Coates”, Director



HOMELAND URANIUM INC.

Consolidated Staternents of Loss and Comprehensive Loss

Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

(Stated in $CAL)
2012 2011
Revenues
Dividend income (Noete 5(a) (D) $ 117430 % -
Interest income 711 867
Realized gain on FVTPL secusites - 71,139
‘ 118,141 72,006
Expenses
Exploration expenditures 285,110 269,967
Corporate and investor relations 185,842 215,937
Unrealized loss on FVIPL secueities 132,451 791,163
Professional fees 57,452 89,631
Depteciation 29,631 48,467
Office and general 9,114 16,596
Foreign eschange loss 1,100 1,962
Realized loss on FVTPL secutlties 978 -
Share based payments - 8,190
Logs on property and equipment {124) 16,762
‘ 671,554 1,464,675
Nei loss $  (553,413) $ (1,392,669)
Basic and diluted net loss per ghare (Note 12) 3 (0.0042) $ (0.01806)
Comprehensive losy
Net loss $§ (553,413) § (1,392,669)

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

(8,860) (11,935)

Cotnprehensive loss $

(362,273) § (1,404,604)

See accompanying notes
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HOMELAND TURANIUM INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

(8tated in $CAD)
2012 201
Operating activities
Net loss from continuing operations §  (853,413) § (1,392,669
Add (deduct) items not affecting cash:
Unteslized loss {gain) on FVTPL secuzities 132,451 797,163
Depteciation ' 29,631 48,467
Realized loss (gain) on FVTPL securities 978 (71,139
Share based payments - 8,190
Loss (gain) on disposal of properiy and equipment {124y 16,762
Untealized foreign exchange loss ‘ (8,182) (11,935)
Dividend income : (117,430) -

(516,089) (605,161)

Change in non-cash working capital items
Accounts teceivable and prepaid expenses 10,228 28,388
Accounts payable and accrued labilities 175,084 200,775

(332,777) (375,959)

Investing activiiies

Proceeds on sale of BVIPL secutities 109,883 85,175
Proceeds from sale of propetty and equipment 300 20,735
Change in restricted cash 6,340 100,458
116,523 206,368
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of share capital 214,150 150,000
Decresse in cash : {2,104) (19,630)
Cash, beginning of year 4,783 24,413
Cash, end of year 4 2,679 § 4,783

See accompanylng notes
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateinents
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Stated in $CAD)

Narure Or OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN

(a) Nature of operations

®)

Homeland Uranium Ine. (the "company") is a company engaged in the business of evaluation
and explotation of uranium resouzce properties, currently in Niget, West Aftica, The company,
incorpotated in December, 2006 under the Ontario Business Corporations Act, is a reporting
Issuet subject to the rules and reguladons of the Ontario Secutities Commlssion. As a reporting
issuet only, its vhares do not trade on any stock exchange.

Goiirg concetn

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared using International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") applicable to 2 going concetn. Accordingly, they do not
give effect to adjustments that would be necessary should the company be unable to continue as
2 going concern and, thesefore, be tequited to reallze its assets and liguidate its liabilides and
commitments in other than the notmal course of business and at amounts different from those
in the accompanying consolidated financiel statements. Such adjustments could be matetial.

"The company recelved tenewal of its elght utanium concessions from the Minister of Mines
and Industsial Development of the Government of Niger on March 4, 2013 for a futther three
yeats (see wofe 7(a)), Such approval had been conditional upon certain factors, the most
significant of which was the papment of four years of temining fees in the amount of
approximately USD §320,000 (soe #ots 8). Two of the four yeats of training fees were paid by the
cotnpany on Match 28, 2013 (ree note 78). Failure to pay the remaining two years of training fees,
to talatain an ongoing adrministrative presence in Niger of to meet minimum spending end
teporting recuitements under the renewal tesms could result in tetmination of any concession
agreerments, No adjustment to the carrying value of the Niger concessions would be required as
the company has chosen to expense all exploration expenditures under IFRS (ses oty 2(s)).

As the company has no operating revenues or other sources of cash flow and a workiag capital
deficiency of $287,770 as at December 31, 2012 (2011 - deficiency of $30,984), its ability o
maintain its Canadizn head office operations and an administrative office in Niger over the next
12 months will be dependent upon its ability to (1} taise fusther equity for the company through
private placements (see nofe 18} and/or (2) sell its interest in its investments (see nofe 5).

Although the company has taken steps to verify title to the mineral properties on which it is
conducting exploration and in which it has an interest, these procedures do not puarantee the
company’s tile, Management is not aware of any such agrectnents, transfers or defects, but
property title tay be subject to unregistered priot agreements, claims or teansfers and title may
be affected by undetected defects. Assets Jocated outside of North America ate subject to the

tisk of foreign investment, including cutrency exchange fluctuations and restrictions and local
political instability and vincertainty.



HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Stated in $CAD)

1. Warore OF OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN, CONTINUED

The company faces risks and uncertainties including: () the inability to obtain the financing
necessaty to complete the development of its properties, (i) realization of ptoceeds from the
sale of its properties, ot ({if) the company's licenses, petmits or concessions being tevoked-as a
result of title disputes, a failure to comply with agreements ot security issues preventing the safe
exploration and development of any properties undet license. Previously, the company has
encountered many delays during the cxccutlon of its Niger project due to events and
citeumstances heyond its control. The government of Niget had acknowledged these delays as
“fotce majeure” and, in June, 2010, had granted the company a 27 month extension (to
August, 2012) to its otiginal concessions to compensate for this lost time, Cusrent economic

and political uncertainty in the sub-Sahatan patt of Africa could lead to similar difficulties and
delays in the futute,

While management befieves that it will be able to secure the necessary financing to continue
opetations into the future, thete are material uncereainties that may cast significant doubt that
these and other strategies will be sufficient to permit the company to contlnue beyond the
foteseeable future as such strategies ate dependent npon continved support of its shateholdet
bage, The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments to
the carrying values of assets and labilities, the teported revenues and expenses and statement of
financial position classifications that would be necessaty should the goitg concem assumption

become inappropriate, These adjustments could be material to the consolidated financial
statements.

2. SIeNRICANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES

@

()

Statement of compliance

These congolidated financlal statements have been prepated in accordance with Interaational
prep

Financial Reposting Standards ("IFRS") a5 Issued by the Intetnational Accounting Standatd
Board ("TASE™.

These consolidated financial stetements wete anthotized for issuance by the Boatd of Ditectors
on April 29, 2013,

Basts of presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepated on the historical cost basls as
modified by the meagurement at fait value of financial assets classified as falr value through
profit and Loss ("FVIPL".

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
the cousolidated financial statements and ate consistent with those used in the most tecent
annual qudited financial statements.
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC,
Notes to Consolidated Financial Staterments
Yeais ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Stated in $CAD)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

©

@

@

Consolidation

All entities in which the company has a controlling interest, specifically when it has the power
to ditect the financial and operatonal policies of these companies to obtain benefit from their
operations, are fully consolidated.

These consolidated financlal statements include the accounts of the company and its wholly-
owned subsidlaties, Homeland Urandum, Ine, ("US sub"), a Utah company, Pan Afiican
Usanium Cotp. (“Ontatio sub™), an Ontatio company, and Uraninin International Limited
Niger ("Niget sub™, & btanch of the Ontatio sub.

Intercompany balances and any unreslized gains and losses ot income and expenses atising

from intetcompany transactions are elimipated in pteparing the consolidated financial
statements.

EBunctional curtency and foreign cutrency transtation

Fanetional and presentation cutrency

The consolidated finencial statements ate presented in Canadian dollats, which is also the
functional curtency of the corporate offices located in Canada. ‘The functional currency of the
Niger and USA subsidiarics ate the West African CFA and US dollar respectively.

Forelgn cucrency teanslation

Foteign cutrency transactions are initially recorded in the functional cutrency at the transaction
date exchange sate. At closing date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreipn
curtency ate translated into the functional cutrency at the closing date exchange tate with all
foreign currency adjustments being expensed,

Hinancial statements of the subsidiaties, for which the functional cutrency is not the Canadian
dollar, are translated into Canadian dollats, the functional currency of the parent, as follows: all
asset and lability accounts (including noa-monetaty and capital items) are translated at the
exchange rate at the end of the reporting period dnd all revenue and expense accounts and cash
flow statement items are Lranslated at average ewchange rates for the reporting period. The

resulting translation gains and Josses are recorded as forelgn cutrency translation adjustments in
other comprehensive income (loss),

Mineral propertics

All aceuisition and exploration costs, net of incidental tevenues, are charged to opetations in
the period incurred until such dme as it has been detormined that a property has economically
tecoverable reserves, in which case subsequent exploation costs and the costs incurted to
develop a property are capitalized into propetly, plant and equipment (“PPE”). On the
comimencement of commetcial production, depletion of each mining property will be provided
on a unit-of-production basis using estimated resources as the depletion base.
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SIeNPICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Stated in $CAD)

(i Property and equipment

Propetty and equipment are carsied at historical cost less any accumulated depreciation and
impaltment losses. Historical cost includes the acquisition cost ot production cost a3 well as the
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for its
use in operations. When propetty and equipment include significant components with different
usefnl lives, they are recorded and depreciated separately, Depreciation is computed using the
straight-tine and declining balance methods based on the estimated useful life of the assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the cost model is applied o property and equipment, The
cotapany tecognizes in the carrying amount of an item of property and equipment the cost of
teplacing part of such an ftem wheo that cost is incutred if it is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item

can be measured teliably, All other costs ate recognized in the income statement as an expense
as incurred,

Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost of property and equipment less
their estimated residual value on a straight-line Lasis, ovet the estimated useful lives of each part
of an item of property and equipment, as follows:

Exploration equipment Straight-line 3 to 5 years
Automotive equipment Straight-line 3 to 5 years
Furnitore and fixtures Straight-line 10 to 20 years

Computer and office equipment  Straightfine 2 to 5 yeats
The company conducts an annnal assessment of the residual halances, useful lives and
depreciation methods being vsed for property and equipment and any changes atising from the
assessment are applied by the company prospectively,

Financial instraments

Financial assets

Financial assets are initially recorded at fair value and designated upon inception into one of the

following four categoties: held-to-maturity, available-for-sale, loans-and-receivables or at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).
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BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES, CONTINUED

(&) Financial instruments, continued

Financigl asscts classifiec as FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss
recognized in the statement of loss and comprehensive loss, Financlal instruments classified as
being available-for-sale are measured ai fait value, with any resultant gain or loss being
tecognized dlrectly under other comprehensive income, except for impairtnent losses and, in
the case of monetary lters such as secusities denomihated in foreign cuttency, which ate
recorded in foreigh exchange gains and losses, When these investments ate desecognized, the
cumnlative gain or loss previously recognized directly in equity is tecognized in profit or loss,
When a decline in the fait value of an available-fot-sale flnancial asset has been tecognized

“directly in equity and there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss

thet had heen recognized directly in equity is transferred to profit or loss even though the
financial asset has not been derecognized. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognized
in profit ot loss is the difference between the acquisition cost and cuttent fai value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset pteviously recognized in profit or loss. inancial assets

classified as loans and receivables are measuted at amottized cost nsing the effective interest
methaod,

Transaction costs associated with EVTPL financial assets ate expensed as incurred, while

transaction costs associated with all other financial assets ase included in the initial cattylng
amount of the asset.

Financial Habilitics

Financial liabilities are initially tecorded ac fait value and designated upon inception as FVIFL,
or other financial liabilities, Financial liabilities classified as other financial liabilities are inittally
tecoghized at fair valie less direcily attributable transaction costs, After initlal recognition,
other-financial-liabilities ase then measuted at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. The effective intexest method is 4 method of calculating the amottized cost of a
financial Hability and of sllocating interest expense over the relevant period, The effective
interest fate is the rate that exactly discounts estitnated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial Eability, or, whete approptiate, 2 shotter period.

Financial labilities classified as FVTPL include financiel liabilities held for trading and also
financizl liabilities designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL. Fait value changes on financial
liabilities classified as FVTPL are tecognized through the statement of loss.

Financtal Instrament clagsifications

The company has made the following classifications:

Cash FVTPL

Accounts receivable Loang ancl reecivables
Restricted cash EVTPL

Tnvestments FVIPL

Accounts payable and acerued labilities Other financial liabilities
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

() TImpalrment of non-financial assets

{0

The company contioually reviews and evaluates the events or changes in the cconomic
environment that incicate a sk of impaltment of assets to determine whether the catrying
amount of the asset or group of assets under consideration exceeds its or theit recoverable
amount. Impairment of the assets is evatuated at the cash-generating unit ("CGU" level which
is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows, independent of the cash
inflows from other assets, as defined by TAS 36 "Inpairment of assets". Recoverable amount is
defined as the higher of the CGU's fair value (less costs to scll) and its valve in use, ‘The active
matket or 2 binding sale agreement provides the best evidence for the determination of the
fair value, but where neither exists, fair value Is based on the best information availabla
to teflect the amount the company could receive for the CGU in an arm's length transaction,

Value in use Is equel to the present value of futnre cash flows expected to be detived from the
use and sale of the CGU,

Provisions

A provision is recognized on the consolidated statements of financial position when the
company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probakle
that an outflow of economic benefits will be tequired to settle the obligation and a seliable
estimate of the obligation can be made. If the effect Is materlal, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected futute cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the titne value of money and, whete approptiate, the risks specific to the liability,

The cotopany's activities conld give tise to obligadons for environmental rehabilitation which
can include facilities dismantling, removal, treatment of waste materials, monitoring, compliance
with environmental regulations, security and other site-telated costs required to perform the
tehabilitation work, Any current expenditures regarding the environmental rehabilitation ate
chatged to the cost of the project. Provisions for sehabilitation ase periodically adjusted by the
company, when applicable. The company has a current provision of $13,000 that, based on
cuttenty available information, management feels is adequate to covet such obligations,

Shate hased paymenis

The company offers a share cption plan fot its ditectors, officers, employees and consultants,
Bach tranche in an award is considered a separate awatd with its own vesting petiod and grant
date fair value, Pair value of each tranche is measuted using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model. Compensation expense s recognized over the tranche's vesting perlod by increasing the
sesetve for share based payments based on the number of awaids expected to vest. Any
consideration paid on exercise of share options is credited to capital stock, 'The related reserve

fot the share hased payment amount is transferred to shate capital when the options are
exerclsed,

Fot equity settled transactions, the company measutes poods or setvices recelved at theit fait
value, nnless that falx value catnot be estimated reliably, in which case the company measures
their value by reference to the fait value of the equity instruments granted.

10
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Years ended December 31, 2012 and 20611
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

&)

O

{rm)

Earnings (loss) per share

Basic eatnings (loss) per share amounts are caloulated by dividing the net eatnings (loss) for the

period attzibutable to common shareholdets by the welghted average number of common
shares outstanding during the petiod.

Diluted earnings (loss) per share amounts are caleulated by dividing the net earnings (loss)
attributable to common shareholders of the patent by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding durlng the period plus the weighted average number of shaves that would be issued

on the conversion of all the dilutive instrumeats. None of the options or warrants are dilutive In
nature,

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) '

Comptehensive income (loss) is comprised of net income and other compiehensive income
(loss), Cettain gains acd losses acising from changes in fair value are temporasily tecorded
outside the consolidated statement of operations in accumulated comprehensive income (loss)
as g sepatate compogent of shateholders’ equity. Other comprchensive income (loss) may
include any unteslized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, forelgn cusrency
translation gains and losses on the currency used fot presentation and changes in the fait
market value of dedvative instruments desighated as cash flow hedpes, all net of tases,

Deferred. taxes

The company follows the asset aod liability tmethod of accounting for income rtaxes,
Under this method, deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the
differences between the financial teporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities, The deferted
income tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates and

Iaws that are espected to be in effect when the differences are expected to be settled or
realized,

A defeired tax asset s recoghized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the asset can be utilized, To the extent that the company
does not consideted it probable that a deferred tax asset will be recovered, the deferred tax
assct is reduced, Potential tax benefits from income tax loss carty forwards are not recognized
by the company untl tealization I8 mote likely than not. These potential tax benefits have
not beep tecognized in the consolidated financial statements to date because management has
not determined that it is probable that the company will realize these future tax benefits.

11



HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended Decemnber 31, 2012 and 2011
(Stated in $CAD)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED
() Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in compliance with IFRS requires the
company’s management to make certain estimates and assumptions that ate considered
reasonable and realistic. Despite regular reviews of these estimates and assuiptions, based in
particular on past achievements ot ancicipations, facts and circumstances may lead to changes in
these estimates and assumptions which could materfally impact the reported amount of the

company’s assets, lizbilities, equity ot carnings. These estimates and assumptions notably relate
to the following:

Environmental rehabilitation provision - Provisions for tehabilitation tequite judgement as
to the time frame and amounts requited to successfully complete such rehabilitations given

factors such as weather conditions, the success of replanting efforts and limitations on access to
the relative atea of explotation,

Niger labilitles - As illustrated by the petiod of "force majeure" desctibed in note 1(b),
there is an pncettainty that often asises when conducting business in Niger. These uncertainties
require sigificant judgements 1o ensure that Habilities of uncertain timing ot amount that have
atisen a5 a tesult of past transactions, including legal of consttuctive obligations, are measured
based on management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the
repocting date (see notz 8).

Functonal currency - The functional cuttency for the company and subsidiaries is the
cuttency of the primary economic environment in which each operates: Canadian dollar, US
dollas and West Aftican CPFA, Detetmination of functional currency may requite certain
judgements to determine the primary economic envitonment. The company reconsidess the

funetional carrency used when theie is a change in events and conditions which determined the
primary economic environment.

12
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Notes to Consolidated Financial 8tatements
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Stated in $CAD)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRS STANDARDS AND INTERFRETATIONS

The TASB issued a number of new and revised International Accounting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards, amendments and refated interpretations which are effective for the
company’s financial yeat beginning on or after Januaty 1, 2012, For the purpose of prepatlng and
presenting the financial information for the relevant petiods, the company has consistently adopted
all these new standarcs for the televant reporiing periods. At the date of authorization of these
conisolidated financial statements, the JASB and IFRS Interpretations Committee have issued the
following new and revised standards and intespretations that may be relevant to the company, but-
ate not yet effective for the relevant seposting pededs:

* IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments; Disclosutes™ provides disclosure guidance on offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities, This amendment js effective for annnal periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2013 and is applied tetrospectively,

* IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement! effective date extended to
Jamuary 1, 2015, addresses the classification and measusement of financial assets. It uses a single
apptoach to determine whether a financial asset is measured at amoriized cost or fajr value. The aew
standard also requites a single impairtent method to be used.

* IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statements” establishes principles for the presentation and
preparation of consolidated financial statements when an entity controls one or more othet entities,
IFRS 10 supetsedes IAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements” and SIC 12
“Consolidated — Special Purpose Batities” and is effective for annual petiods beginning on or after
Jenuary 1, 2013 with earlier application permitted.

* IERS 13 "Fair Value Measurement" replaces the guidance on fair valae measurement in existing
IFRS accounting literature with = single standatd, for annual petiods beginning on or afier January 1,
2013, It defines and provides guidance on determining fair value and requites disclosutes about Fair
value measutements, but does not change the requitements regarding which ltems are measured ot
disclosed at fais value.

* IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” requires entities to group iterns in other
comprehensive income based on whether the items ave potentally te-classifiable to profit ot loss
subsequent to initial tecognition and is effective for annual petlods beginning on or after July 1,
2012,

* IAS 32 “Financlal Insttnments: Presentation” presciibes the accounting for offsetting financial
asscts and financial liabilities. "The amendment is effective annval petods beginning on or after
Jatwaty 1, 2014 and is applied retrospectively with ealier application permitted, The application of
this pronouncement is not expected to have a matetial impact on the consolidated financial
statements,

¢ IFRIC 20 "Swipping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine" clatifies when
production stripping should lead to the tecognition of an asset and how that asset should be
measured, both inidfally and in subsequent petfods, The interpretation is effective for annual periods
beginning on ot after Janwaty 1, 2013 with earlier application permitted. The application of this
pronouncement is not expected to have an impact on the consolidated financial statements as the
company is cutrently in the exploration and evaluation phase,

The company has not eatly adopted any of these standatds, amendments and interpretations,

However, management i currently assessing the impact of their application in the consolidated
financial staternents of the company.
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC,
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Stated in $CAD)

ResTRICTED CASH

Certain cash balances are restricted as they relate to deposits with state tepulatory authorities in the
United States to secuke vatious reclamation guarantees with tespect to minetal properties in Utah
and Colotado. During the yeat, the company received refunds of $6,340 (2011 - §100,459), A further
$3,037 was received after year-end with the temaining balance expected to be teleased sometime
during the second quatter of 2013, However, as these funds are not yet available for general
corporate putrposes, they have been separately disclosed.

INVESTMENTS

"The company's investments ate cartied at fait value and are comprised of the following;

2012 2011
$ Shares $ Shares
Southetn Andes Energy Ine, $ - - ¥ 36187 2,372,819
Caracara Silver Tnc, 62,758 965,000 - -
Macusani Yelloweake Inc. 179,147 1,235,500 - -
$ 241,908 - $ 367,787

T ————_ s

(@ Southemn Andes Energy Inc. re-organization in April, 2012

®  OnApril 12, 2012, Southern Andes Fnergy Inc. ("SUR"} distiibuted a dividend consisting
of shates of Caracara Sitver Ine. (“CSV”} to all SUR shaseholdets on the basis of a
distribution ratio of 0,45 C3V shares for each common shate held by sharcholders of SUR.
Sharcholders wete not tequired to pay for the CSV shates that they received pursuant to
the distribution not were they tequited to sustender ot cxchange common shares of SUR
in cider to teceive the CSV shares. As a result of the disttibution, Homeland acquired
1,067,543 comtnon shases of CSV valued at $117,430 on the date of distribution, The
valne at the date of distribution was recorded as dividend income. The cortesponding
investment has been classified as FV'IPL.

(@ On Aptil 27, 2012, Southern Andes Bnergy Inc.- ("SUR" merged with Macusani
Yellowcake Inc. ("YEL") such that shareholders of SUR received 0.80 shares of YEL for
each common share of SUR, As a tesule of the metger, the company received 1,898,255
shates of YEL. The investment in YEL was tecotded at the then-carrying value of SUR,
which has subsequently heen adjusted to fair market value as at December %1, 2012 under
accounting for secutities classified as FVTPL.
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.

Notes to Consolidated Flnancial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Cost
As at Janwary 1, 2011

Disposals
Currency adjustment

As at December 31, 2011
Cuttency adjustinent

As at Decembet 31, 2012
Accumulated depreciation
As at January 1, 2071
Depreciation

Disposals

Cutrency adjustment

As at December 31, 2011

Depreciation
Cutrency adjustment

As at December 31, 2012
Net book value
As at December 31, 2011

Ag at Decetber 31, 2012

(Stated in $CAD}
Compuier Automotlve FPuinitute & Exploration
equipment  equipment fixtures equipmment Total
$ $ § ¥ $
116,717 45,243 68,848 123,334 354,142
(20,267) {23,489) (34,385) 28,203  (106,344)
(1,170 754 (547 (1,556) (2,519
95,280 42,508 33,916 93,575 245,279
(3,478) (1,265) 2,171) {5,652) {12,566)
91,802 21,243 31,745 87,923 232,713
93,674 34,611 34,092 75,313 237,690
12,565 2,202 8,998 22,056 46,121
(13,885 (14,654) (14,570) {19,773) {62,880
(2,458 348 {958) (3,071) (6,139)
90,198 22,507 27,562 74,525 214,792,
5,446 - 6,002 18,053 29,651
{3,882 (1,264) {1,909 (4,655) (41,710)
91,802, 21,243 31,745 87,923 232,713
5,082 - 6,354 19,050 30,487
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Notes to Censolidated Financial Statements
Years ended Decembet 31, 2012 and 2011
(Stated in $CAD)

MINERAL PROPERTIES

(@) MNiger nranivm concessions:

®

@

On. March 4, 2013, the company obtained approval for renewal of its Niger uraniumn
concessions for a further three years from authorities in Niger. Such approval was
conditional upon cestain factors, the most significant of which was payment of two years’
of taining fees in the emount of USD §160,000 {sas note 17(4)). Four years of training fees
of 320,000 ate provided for in accounts payable and accrued liabilities as at December 31,
2012 (see note 8). The two years of training fees of USD §160,000 was paid on March 28,
2013 out of the proceeds of 2 private placement that accusred after yeat-end (s note 18),

Previously, the company was granted thtes-year utanium exploration concessions in
January 2007 that was epptoved by a governmental order on May 31, 2007, The clght
concessions are Jocated in the Agadez-Arlit district of notthern Niger and ate held ln the

name of Uranium Intetnational Timited Niger, o branch of the company’s Ontatio
subsidiary.

On September 7, 2010, the government of Niger agreed to extend this agteement a futther
27 months to Angust 31, 2012 under the same terms and conditions to give recognition to
conditions of "force majeure” that existed at that time,

@li) The key terms of the concession tenewal Include;

(a) 50% of the areas licensed under the previons concessions wete relinguished on renewal,
such that the ares of exploration now covers approximately 1,870 squate kilometees
(b) comulatlye minimum expenditures of USID $4,916,350 for all concessions duting the
thres-yeat venewal period fes #ote 17)
{c) a 10% free carvied interest for the state in the mining phase with an option to acquire
an additional 30% at markes value;
{d) exernptions during the explotation petiod inelude:
- value added tax
- Corporate income tax
- income tax for expattiate employees
= land tax
- license conttibution
- mining flat tax and othet registration fees
- import dutles o certain equipment and spare patts

(€) a sliding scale mining royalty between 5.5% to 12% of the market value of production
on FOB rerms

(f) exemptions during the mining phase include:
- value added tax untl the date of production

- taxes on industrial /business profits for three years from production
- land and mining flat taxes indefinitely

- Import duties ot certain equipment and spare patts,

16



HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
Notes to Consoldated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Stated in $CAD)

Accounts PAvasLe AND ACCRUED LiABILITIES

2012 2011
Balances made up of!
Trade accounts payable and accrued lighilities $ 443,958 § 349,953
Praovislons 68,198 60,623
Payroll telatecd 64,874 54223

§ 577,030 § 464,799

Accounts payable and accrued iabilities contain ag atmount of USD §320,000 representing four years
of training fees due and payable under the terms of the original uranium concessions. This amount
includes two yeats of training fees atlsing duiing the period of "force majenre” not previously
provided for, Subsequent to year-cud (see rofs 75), the renewal process for the wanium concessions
was formalized on March 4, 2013, but was conditional upon acknowledgement of these liabilites by
the company. Of this amount, two yeats of training fees of USD $160,000 were paid on Match 28,
2013 such that the remaining two years of ttaining fees still temain unpaid.

As part of the private placement completed In February, 2012, §60,850 of accounts payable and
accroed Habilities were settled in exchange for comumon shares.

INCOME TAXES

The following table teconciles the expected income tax recovery at the Canadian federal and

provincial statatory rate of 26,50% (2011 - 28,25%) to the amount recognized in the staternent of
vperations:

2012 2011

Net loss before recovery of intome taxes $ 562,273 $ 1404604
Expecied income tax recovety (149,000) (396,801)
Difference in foreign tax rates (12,160) -
Tax rate changesand other adjustments {266,320) -
Non-deductible expense {27,120) 210,691
Change in tax benefits not recognized 454,600 186,110
Tncome tax reflected in consolidated statements of loss and

comptehensive loss $_____ - ¥ -

The 2012 statutoty tax rate of 26.50% differs from the 2011 statutory tax rate of 28.25% becavse of
the reduction in both federal and Ontazlo substantively enacted tax rates,
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INCOME TAXES, CONTINUED

(Stated in $CAD)

Unrecognized deferred tax assets

Non-capital losses cattied forward

Capital losses carvied forward
Resource-related properties

Other deductible temporary differences

2012 2011

§ $
$ 15,150,700 § 14,658,414
7,659,000 7,558,991
11,253,900 10,939,328
376,100 517,897

Foreigh non-capital losses expire between 2016 and 2017, Canadian non-capital losses expite as
noted below, The deductible temporary differehices do not expire under current tax legislation,
Deferred tax assets have vot been recognized in respect of these items because it is not probable that
futute eaxable profit will be available against which the group can udlize the benefits thereftom.,

The company’s Canadian non-capital income tax losses expite as follows:

SHARE CAPITAL

Balance - December 31, 2010
Private placernent (Note 10(b))
Balance - December 31, 2011
Private placement (Note 10(c))
Balance - December 31, 2012

2015
2025
2026
2021
2028
2029
2030
2051
2032

Canada us
$ 259,360 § -
26,920 ;
76,030 -
1,511,620 -
933,570 3,488,300
1,599,270 3,159,270
1,222,930 1,159,190
1,154,390 67,540
485,890 6,400
$ 7269980 §  7.880,700
Shares $
62,472,448 § 19,737,111
20,000,000 150,000
82,472,448 19,887,111
55,000,000 275,000
137,472,448  § 20,162,111

{n) The campany is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shates.

(b) In May, 2011, the company closed a non-brokeked private placement financing of 20,000,000
commen shares at $0.0075 per common share for cash proceeds of $150,000, The common
shases were subjeet to a four-month held petiod in accordance with requisite securities laws,
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(© In Febiuary, 2012, the company closed & nop-brokered private placement financing of
55,000,000 common shares at $¢.005 per common share gross proceeds of $275,000. Of the
total proceeds, $214,150 was teceived in cash, and the balance of $60,850 was used to tetite

existing accounts payable. The cominon shares wete subject to a fout-nonth hold period in
accotdanee with requisite secutities laws.

Brock OrTIONS

The company has adopted a stock option plat undet which it may grant options to purchase shares
of the compatiy, Thete were no new options granted duting 2011 or 2012, all outstanding options as
at Decembet 31, 2012 are fully vested and numerous options have been cancelled as the tespective
option holder's riphts have expired under the tetins of the relevant agrecment. The following
summary sets out the activity in outstanding seock options:

2012 2011
OQuistanding, beglnning of year 2,280,000 3,940,000
Expired ot forfeited (1,530,000) (1,660,000
Qutstanding, end of year 750,000 2,280,000
Number of stoclk Remalning Exercise price per Bxpiry
options conitactual life shate (%) date
750,000 02 0.25 March 6, 2013

As at Decernber 31, 2012 and 2011, 4ll outstanding options wete exercisable, Duting the year ended
December 31, 2012, the company recognived §NIL of share based payments (2011 - $8,190).

During the yveat ended December 31, 2012, an amount of $1,614,795 auributed to forfeited and

expited options has been transferted from the teserve for share based payments to conttibuted
surplus,

Loss Pag SHank

The welghted average number of shares outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2012 is
132,813,978 (2011 - 74,856,010). Diluted loss per share is the same as basic Joss per share as stock
the options are anti-dilutdve.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The company's activities eapose It to a vatlety of financial sisks: credit tisk, liquidity risk and market
sisk (including interest tate, cutrency and falr value), Risk management is carried out by the
company's management team with guidance from the Audit Committee under policies approved by

the Boatd of Directors. The Board of Ditectors also provides regular guidance for ovesall risk
mnanagement,
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, CONTINUED

@

©

@

Credit risk

Credit gisk is the risk of loss associated with counterpacty’s inability to fulfill its payment
obligations, ‘The company's credit tisk is primarily attzibutable to cash, accounts recefvable and
restrieted cash, Financlal Instramends nclided do acconnts recelvable consist of HST receivable
and accrued interest and deposits held with consultants and other service providers, As at
December 31, 2012, cash of $2,679 (2011 - $4,783) Is held with reputable financial institutions
from which management believes the risk of loss to be minimal, All HST tecelvable and
techmation deposits held by US banks and US government depariments are in good standing,
As of December 31, 2012, a totzl of §16,372 (2011 - $21,570) represented the maximum credit
exposure on accounts recelvable, Management believes that the credit risk concentration with
fespeet to accounts recetvahle is neglipible,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk sefers to the sisk that the company will not be able to meet its financial
obligations when they become due, ot can only do so at excessive cost (k¢ woe 7(3)). The
compatiy's apptoach to managlag lquidity risk is to ensure that it will have sufficient liquidity to
meet liabilities when due, and as such, the company has classified its investments as cottent. Ay
at Deeember 31, 2012, the company has a wotking capital deficiency of $287,770 (2011 -
deficiency of $30,984). Subsequent to yeat-end, as detailed in note 18, the wotking capital
deficiency was eliminated through a private placement of $425,000. All of the company's

financial liabilities have contracteal maturities of less than 90 days and are subject to notmal
trade terms.

Curency risk

In managing cutrency risks, the company aims to reduce the impact of short-term fluctuations
on the earnings, Over the longet term, however, permanent changes in forelgn exchange would
have an impact on gonsolidated eatnings,

Market risk

The company is exposed to certain market risks including changes in pricing and lmited access
to forelgh markets. Specifically, the carrying value of its investments, all of which ate classified
as BVEIPL ("fair value through profit or loss"), are adjusted every reporting petiod fox any
changes in thelr quoted ttading prices,

Interest rate tlsk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fir value of future cash fows of a financial lnstument will
flutuate due to changes in martket interest ates. As the company has tinimal or no cash

balances that earn intetest and no intercst-bearing debt, its interest sate risk is considered
nominal,
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HOMELAND URANIUM IINC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Yeazrs ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Stated in $CAD)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, CONTINUED

@

Level 1

Sensitivity analysia

As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, the catrying and fair value amounts of the company's
financial insttuments are approximately equivalent.

) The company's functional cutrency is the Canadian dollar and major purchases ate
transacted in Canadian dollars, The company funds certain operations, exploration and
administrative expenses in Niger and the United States on a cash call basis using US dollar
currency converted from its Canadian dollar bank accounts held in Casada, The company
maintains US dollar bank accounts in Canada and the United States. ‘The company is
exposed to foreign cutrency risk on Huctuations of financial instruments that are
denotninated predominately in West African francs (CEA's) as well as some in US dollars
and ate telated to cash, restricted cash, accounts tecelvable, investments and accounis
payable and accrued lisbilities, Sensitlvity to a plus or minus 10% change in the forcign
exchange rate would affect the net comprebensive income by $46,000 (2011 - $28,000), of
which §45,000 (2011 - $27,000) relates to CFA denotminated financial insttuments.

ify The company is exposed to matket sisk as it relates to its investtoents held In matketable
securities, If market prices had varied by 10% from their December 31, 2012 fair masket
value positions, the net loss and/or compechensive income would have vatied by
approximately $24,000 (2011 - §37,000)

Fait value hieratchy

The following summatizes the methods and assumptions used in estimating the fait value of the
company's financial instroments where measurement ig required. The fair value of financial
instroments classified as loans and receivables and other financial liabilities approximates theit
cartying amounts dve to their short term matutities, Fair value amounts represent point in time
estimates and may not reflect fair value in the fotnre. The measueements are subjective In
nature, involve uncertainties and are a matter of sipnificant judpment. The methods and
assumptions used to develop fait value measurements, for those finaheial instruments where
fair value is recognized in the statement of {inancial position, have heen priotitized into thies
levels as per theit fait value hieraschy, Level one includes quoted prices (nnadjusted) in active
matkets for identcal assers or liabilitles, Tevel two includes inputs that are observable other
than quoted prices included in level one. Level three includes inputs that ate not based on
ohsetvabie market data. The fait value of the company's financial instroments where financial
measutement is required are as follows:

2012 2011
$ $
Cash 2,679 4,783
Restricted cash 20,541 26,881
Investments 241,905 347,787
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HOMELANTD URANIUM INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Stated in $CAD)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The cotnpany's obiective when managing eapital is to maintain adequate levels of funding to suppors
development of its exploration projects, to expand regional explotation acitvitles within Niger and to
maintain cotporate and administeative functions. The company considess its capital to be its equity,
which is comprised of share capital, contributed surplus, reserve for share based payments,
accumulated deficit and accumulated other comptehensive loss, which at December 31, 2012 was
$(287,770) (2011 - $(497)) (see wote 1(B). The company manages its capital structure in an effort to
provide sufficient fanding for its development projects, Funds are primasily secured through equity
capital raised by way of private placements,

These can be no assurances that the company will be able to continve talsing equity capital 1o this
mannet, The Board of Directors does not establish quantitative tetutn on capital critesia for
management, but tather relies on the expertise of the company's mapagetnent to sustain future
development of the business, Management reviews its capital management apptoach on an ongping
basis and believes that this approach, given the telative size of the company, is reasonable. There
have been no changes in the company's approach to capital management since the year-end. The
company is not subject to extetnally linposed capital requirements,

SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The company conducts its business in a siuple operating segment consisting of the exploration
activities in Niger, whete all raineral properties and equipment ate situated,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The company has transacted with related parties pursuant to service arrangements in the ordinasy
course of business, as follows:

{a) For the petiod from March 1, 2011 to June 30, 2011, the company paid a monthly consuliing
fee of $3,500 its CEO. Btarting in July, 2011, that compensation was added to the overall
compensation of the company described in note 16(b-). Accordingly, total consulting fees to its
CEO for the yeat ended December 31, 2012 totalled $NIL (2011 - $14,000),

(b) Matagement and administrative services;

® Starting in Janvary, 2011, the company paid $6,500 per month to Grove Capital Group
Ltd., a company controlled by an officer and director, for management and administrative
services, incleding compensation for the CFO, corporate secretaty, office tent and regular
administrative functions, Starting in July, 2011, the fee was increased to $10,000 pet
month, Total fees paid during the year ended December 31, 2012 totalled $120,000 (2011 -
$99,000). Accounts payable and acerued liabilities, including applicable HST, owing to this
company 48 at December 31, 2012 is §34,160 (2011 - $33,900).

() Statting in Septembet, 2010, these services wete provided by Southern Andes Baergy Inc.
at 2 monthly rate of $4,000 at a time when the companies shared common management

and office premises. 'Total fees paid to Southern Andes Boetgy Inc. duting the year ended
December 31, 2012 were $NIL (2011 - $9,250).
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC,
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Stated in $CAD)

RELATED ParTy TRANSACTIONS, CONTINUED

(© An amount of §NIL (2011 - $30,000) was paid to » company owned by the CFO for
incremental services provided during 2011, Accounts payable and acermed liabilitles, including
applicable HST, owlng to this company as at December 31, 2012 is $NIL (2011 - $33,900).

(& A company controlled by a director received consuldng fees of §NIL (2011 - USD $39,000)
relating to the adiministzation of the wind-down of the affaits of the company's US subsidiaty in
2011, Accounts payable and accerned liabilities as at December 31, 2012 include §NIL (2011 -

USD $9,000) owing to this company, This individual ceased to be a ditector of the company in
eaily 2012,

{e) Acconnts payable and accrued Habilities of $38,050 owing to the related parties desctibed in (b),

{c) and {d) were sertled with cominon shates issued as part of the ptivate placement as
desctibed in ncte 10{).

() The Board of Directors approved quasterly director fees of $1,500 for each independent
ditectot, As at December 31, 2012, accounts payeble and accrued liabifitles includes a provision

of $21,000 (2011 - §NIL) for such fees.
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

{a) Niger concessions

As desctibed in note 7 aad 18, the company had its eight uranium concessions tenewed on March 4,
2013 for a fusther three year period. Under the terms of those concession tenewals, the company is
committed to minimum exploration expenditures of USI) $4,916,350 over the thtee year extension,
cusrently budgeted in appreximately equal annual amounts,

In addition, undet the tetins of the otiginal agresment and continued during the tenewal pertod, the
company is committed to pagment of annual tratning fees of USD §10,000 pet concession. {totalling

USD $80,000 pex yeas) for its elght concessicns for the putpose of training Niger nationals,

(b) Management contract

‘The company's management contract with Grove Capital Gronp Inc. is on a monthly basis with a
six-month notice petiod (tee alio note 16(B)(3),
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Stated in $CAD)

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In Pebruary and Match of 2013, the company cotmpleted a non-broketed ptivate placement of
85,000,000 shates for $0.005 pet share for total cash consideration of $425,000, Patt of the proceeds
of this private placement were used to pay the USD $160,000 of training fees owed to the Niger
government as described in note 17(a).

As desctibed in notes 1(a) and 7(a), the company ceceived renewal on March 4, 2013 of jts eight
Niger utanium concessions for a further three yeats. As described in note 8, the company paid USD

$160,000 on Macch 28, 2013 towatds its obligation for fout yeats of tralning fees amounting to USD
$320,000,

The remaining options described in vote 11 all expired unexercised in March 2013,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT www.calinsbarrow.com
To the Shareholders of Homeland Uranfum Inc.

We have audited the accompanylng consolidated financial statements of Homeland Uranium Inc,
and its subsldlaries, which comptise the consolidated statements of financial position as ai
December 31, 2011, Dacember 34, 2010 and \January 1, 2010 and the consolidated statements
of loss and comprehenslve logs, changss in sharsholders’ equity and cash flows for the years
endad December 31, 2011 and Decamber 31, 2010 and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibllity for the Consclidated Financial Staternents

Management 18 tesponsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Internatlonal Flnancial Reporting Standards, and for such
internal control as management determines Is necessary. to enable the preparation of financlal
statoments that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Audifor's Responsibifity

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our audits ih accordanca with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we comply with sthical requirements and plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
fres from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selecled depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
stalements, whother due fo fraud or eror. In making those rsk assessments, the auditor
conslders Internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statemenits in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expreasing an cplnlon on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateress of accounfing policles used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates mace by management, as well as evalualing the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial staterents.

We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtainad in our audits is sufficient and appropriate io
provide a basis for our audit opinton.

Opinlon

In our opinicn, the consclidated financial statements present falrly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Homeland Uranlum fnc. and Its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2011,
Decembar 31, 2010 and January 1, 2019, and Its financial performance and its cash flows for the

years ehded December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 In accordance with International
Finanaial Raporting Standards.

»& o Eodlepaarstnt monbes o

AKER TILLY
IMTERNATIONAL



Emphasis of matfer

Without guallfying our oplnlon, we draw attention to Note 1 in the consolidated financial
statements which Indlcates the existence of materlal uncertaintles that ray cast significant douht
about the Homeland Uranium Inc,'s ability 1o continue as a going concern.

Cotling Bovrow lovpndy (AP

Licensed Public Accountants
Charfered Accountants
Toronte, Ontario

April 30, 2012

Y
W' Collins Barrow

Chiarlerocl Accountants



HOMELAND URANIUM INC.

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010

(Stated in $CAD)
December 31  December 31 Janmary 1
2011 2010 2010
Note 19 Note 19
ASSHETS
Cusrent:
Cash $ 4,783 § 24413 4,337,215
Accounts receivahle and prepaid expenses ‘ 34,364 62,752 70,532
Restricted cash (Note 4) 26,881 127,340 -
Investments {Note 5) ' 367,787 1,178,986 -
433,815 1,393,491 4,407,747
Long term;
Restricted cash (Note 4) - - 162,742
Investments (Note 5) - - 2,222,332
Property and equipment (Note 6} 30,487 116,451 284,442
$ 464,302 § 1,509,942 § 7,077,263
LIABILYTIES
Cuirent:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 8) $ 464,799 § 264,025 § 232,038
SHARFHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIENCY) |
Shate capital (Note 10) 19,887,111 19,737,111 .18,751,611
Conttibuted sutplus 8,535,186 8,535,186 2,509,190
Rescrve for warrants (Note 11) - - . 6,395,996
Reserve for share based payments (Note 12) 2,020,548 2,012,355 1,990,307
Accumulated deflcit (30,382,491)  (28,989,822)  (22,801,879)
Accumulated other comprehensive income {Joss) (60,348) - @893 -

(497  1,245917 6,845,225
$ 464302 1509942 % 7,077,263

Going concern (Note 1)
Commitinents and contingencies \(Note 18)
Subsequent events (MNote 10(d))
See accompanying notes

Approved on behalf of the Boatd:

"INick Tinter”, Director ' " Staphen Comtes”, Director



HOMELAND URANIUM INC.

Consolidated Staternents of Income (Loss) and Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Years ended Decembet 31, 2011 and 2010

(Stated in $CAD)

Revenue
Realized gain on FVTPL securities
Tnterest Income

‘Gaitn on spin-off of Southern Aades Energy Inc, (Note 5{a)(v)(2))

Untealized gain on FVIPL securities
Gain on disposal of property and equipment

Expenses
Usnrealized loss on FYTPL secutities
Exploration expenditures
Cotporate and investor relations
Professional fees
Depreciation
Loss on propetty and equibment
Office and administeation
Shate based payments (Note 12)
Foreign exchange loss
Realized loss on FVIPL securities

Tneome (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes

Income taxes
Deferred (Note 9)

Net income (loss) from continuing operations
Loss fromn discontinued operatons (Note 5()(v)(1))

Net income (loss)

Basic and diluted income (less) from continuing operations per share

(Mote 13)

Compsehensive income (losy)

Net income (loss)

Exchange differences on translation of foreipn opetations
Comprehensive income (loss)

See accompanying notes

2011 2010
Naote 19
$ 71,139 -
867 12,007
- 6,370,646
- 573,764
- 44 503
72,006 7,000,920
797,163 -
269,967 837,802
215,937 364,633
89,631 183,869
48,467 42,411
16,762 -
16,596 115,550
8,190 22,048
1,962 4,788
- 367,239
1,464,675 1,938,350
(1,392,669) 5.062,570
- (172,000
(1,392,669) 5,834,570
- 515,653
$ (1,392,669)% 5318917
$ (0.02) % 0.09
$ (1,392,669) § 5318917
(11,935) {48,913)
$ (1,404,604) § 5,270,004
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

(Stated in $CAD)
2011 2010
Note 19
Operating activitles
Net income (loss) from continuing opetations $ (1,392,669 F 5,834,570
Add (deduct) items not affecting cash:
Gain on spin-off of Scuthesn Andes Energy Inc. - (6,370,646)
Depreciation 48,467 111,563
Income tax yecovety - (772,000)
Share based payments 8,190 22,048
Lioss (guin) on dispesal of propecty and equipment 16,762 {44,503)
Unrealized loss (gain) on FV'TPL secutities 797,163 (573,164
Realized loss (gain) on FVTPL secutities (71,139) 367,239
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (11,938) (25,683)

(605,161) (1,451,176)
Change in non-cash workihg capital items

Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 28,388 7,780
Accounts payable and accrued liahilities 200,774 31,988

(375,999)  (1,411,408)

Tovesting activities

Piroceeds on sale of FYIPL securities 85,175 -
Proceeds from sale of property and equiptment 20,735 7,704
Decrease in restricted cash 160,459 35,402

Investiment in Southern Andes Energy Inc, (Note 5(a)(v)(4)) - {4,600,000)

206,369 (3,886,894)

Financing activities

Net proceeds from issuance of shate capital 150,000 985,500
Decreage I cash (19,630} {4,312,802)
Cash, beginning of yeas 24,413 4,337,215
Cash, end of year § 4,783 § 24,413

See accompanying notes
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HOMELAND TTRANTUM INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Stated in $CAD)

NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN

@

()

Natre of operations

Homeland Utantum Inc. (the "company™) is a company enpaged in the business of evaluation
and explotation of uraninm resource properties, custently in Niger, West Africa, The company,
incorporated in December, 2006 under the Ontario Business Corporations Act, is a reporting
issuet subject to the rules and regulations of the Ontarlo Secutities Commission, As g seporting
issuer only, its shares do ot trade on any stock exchange,

Going concemn

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepated unsing International
Binancial Reposting Standards ("TFRS™ applicable to a going concetn, which contemplate the

realization of assets and seitlement of liabilitfes and commitiments in the osdinary course of
business,

The company has spending commitments under the texms of its concessions in Niger (ree #otes
7(a) and 18). Fallure to spend the minimum expenditure tequirements by August, 2012 as
recquired under the terms of the tepegotiated concession agteements could result in termination
of those agreements and the loss of associated rights theteundet, In addition, failute to maintain
an ongeihg administrative presence in Niger could also tegult in termitation of the concession
agreements. No adjustment to the carrying value of the Niger concessions would be requited as
the company has chosen to expense all exploration expenditures under YERS (ey sote 79(1)(a)).

As the company has no operating tevenues ot othet sources of cash flow and currently has a
working capital deficlency of $30,984 (Decetber 31, 2010 - surplus of $1,129,466, January 1,
2010 - sutplus of §4,175,709), its ability to maintain its Canadian head office operations and an
administtative office in Niger over the next 12 months will be dependent upon its ability to (1)
raise forthet equity for the company through private placements {as was done in May, 2011 and
again in Fehruary, 2012 (per sofe 10) and/ox (2) sell its interest In its investoents (ses note 5),

While management belicves that it will be able to secure the necessary financing to continue
opetations into the fotore, there Is no cortalnty chat these and other steatepies will be safficient
t0 permit the company to continue beyond the foreseeable future as such steategles ate
dependent upon continued suppott of its sharcholder base, The accompanying consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustments to the cattying values of assets and
liabilities, the repotted revenues and expenses and statement of finandal posttion classifications
that would be necessary should the going concern assumption become inappropriate. These
adjustments could be material to the consolidated financial statements.
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HOMELAND URANTUM INC.
Notes to Consolidated Binancial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Stated in $CAD)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financlal statements of the company comply with International Pinancial Reporting
Standards ("TFRS"), The significant policies ate detalled as follows:

(a)

(b}

Staterment of compliatice

The policies applied in these consolidated Branclat statements are based on IFRS issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2011, The Bosrd of Directors approved the consolidated
financial statements on Aptil 30, 2012, These are the company’s first annual conselidated
financial statements prepared in accordance with TFRS, The 2010 consolidated finaticial
statements include an opening balance sheet as at Januacy 1, 2010, the date at which the impact
of IFRS tiansition was recotded against equity, in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 1
“First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards” and the 2010
comparative statements wete prepared using the same basis of accounting, A detailed
teconciliation of the consolidated financlal statements prepared under Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles ("Canadian GAAP™ and the comparative 2010 TPRS financial
information is prosented in Schedules 1 to 4 (wofe 79,

Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements ate prepated on the histotical cost basis except the
financial assets classified as fair value through profit and loss ("FVIPL™,

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
the consolidated financial statements and in preparing an opening TFRS balance sheet at January
1, 2010 for the puspose of tiansltion o TFRS,

Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the company and its wholly-
owned subsidiarics, Homeland TUranfum, Inc. ("US sub™, a Utah company, Pan African

Uranium Cotp. {*Ontarlo sub"), an Ontario company, and Usaniom Interoational Timited
Niger ("Niger sub"™), a branch of the Ontario sub,

Tntercompany balances and any untealized gains and losses ot income and expenses atising

from intercompany transactions are climinated In preparing the consolidated financial
staterments,



HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Yeats ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
{Stated in $CAD)

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

(d) Functional currency and foreign cutrency translation

©

Funetional and presentation cutrency

The financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which 1s also the functional cutrency
of the cotporite offices located in Canada, The functional currency of the Niger and USA
subsidiaries are the West Afrlcan CFA and US dollat tespectively,

Forelgn currency tianslation .

Poteign curtency transactions ate initially recorded into the functional cuttency at the
transaction date exchange sate, At closing date, monetary assets and liabilities denorninated in
foreign cusrency are translted into the functional curreney at the closing date exchange rate
with all foreign curtency adjustments belng expensed,

Financial statements of the subsidiasies, fot which the functional currency is not the Canadian
dollat, are translated into Canadian dollars, the functional cutrency of the parent, as follows: all
asset and liability accounts (including non-monetary and capital items) ate translated at the
petiod-end exchange rate and all earnings and expense accounts and cash flow statement items
ate translated at average exchange rates for the period, The resvlting translation gains and losses
are recorcled as foseign currency translation adjustments in othet comprebensive income,
Intercompany advances are not expected to be repaid in the near future,

Mioeral properties

As permitted under IFRS, all acquisidon and explotation costs, net of incidental revenues, ate
chatged to operations in the pesdod incurted undl such titne as it has been determined that a
property bes economically recoverable reserves, in which case subscquent exploration costs and
the costs incurred to develop a property are capitalized into property, plant and equipment
(“PPE”). On the commencement of commercial production, depletion of each mining property
will be provided on a unic-of-production basis using estimpated resoutces as the depletion base.
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Yeats ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Stated in $CAD)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

(f} Property and equipment

Property and equipment ate catfied at histosical cost less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, Historical cost includes the acquisition cost o production cost as well as the
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for its
use in operations. When property and equipment include sighificant components with different
useful lives, they are recorded and depreciated separately. Depreciation Is computed using the
straight-Jine and declining balatice methods based on the estimated useful life of the assets.
Subsecment fo initial recognition, the cost model is applied to propetty and equipment. The
company has elected not to apply the option provided by IFRS 1 regarding the re-mesasurement,
as at Januvary 1, 2010, of its propetty and equipment at their fait value.

The company tecognizes in the carrying amount of an item of property and equipment the cost
of replacing patt of such an item when that cost is Incutred if it is probable that the fature
economic benefits embodied with the item will flow to the company #nd the cost of the item

_can be measured teliably. All other costs are recognized in the income statement ag an expense

as incusred,

Depreciation is provided at rates caleulated to wiite off the cost of property and equipment less
their estimated residual value on a steaight-line basis, over the estimated useful lives of each part
of an item of propetty and equipment, as follows:

Explosation equipment Straight-line 3005 years
Automotive equipment Straiphtline 3to 5 years
Pusrniture and fixtuses Straight-line 10 to 20 years
Computer and office equipment Steaight-line 2 to 5 years

The company conducts an annual assessment of the tesidval balances, wvseful lives and

depreciation methods being used for property and equipment and any changes atising from the
assessment ate applied by the company prospectively,

(8) Financial instruments
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC,
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended Decembet 31, 2011 and 2010
(Stated in $CAD)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

fe) Financlal Instruments, contined

Financial assets

Financial assets ate initially recorded at falr value and designated upon inception into one of the
following four categoties: held-to-maturity, available-for-sale, loans-and-receivables or at falr
value through profit or loas (“FVIPL),

Financial assets classified as FVITL are measured at fair value, with any tesultant gain ot loss
tecognized in the statement of loss and comprehensive loss. Financial instruments classified as
being zvailable-for-sale are measuted at fair value, with any resultant pain or loss being
recognized ditectly under other comprehensive income, except for impaitment losses and, in
the case of monetary items such as secutities denominated in foreipn currency, which are
tecorded in foteign exchange gaing and losses. When these investments are derecognized, the
cumulative gain or logs previously recognized ditectly in equity is recognized in profit or loss.
When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial assct has been recognized
directly in equity and there is objective evidence that the asset Is itnpaired, the cuumulative loss
that had been recognized ditectly in equity is transferred to profit or loss even though the
financial asset has not been derecognized, The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognized
in profit or loss is the diffetence between ‘the acquisition cost and current fair valoe, less any
impairment loss on that finaecial asset previously recognized in profit ot loss, Financial assets

classificd as loans and receivables ate measuted at amottized cost using the effective interest
method,

Transaction costs assoclated with FVIPL financial assets are expensed as incusted, while

transaction costs associated with all other financial assets are Included in the initial carrying
amount of the asset,

FEinancial iabilities

Financial labilities are initially recorded at fair value and designated vpon inception as FVTPRL
ot gthes-financial-liabilities, Financial liabilities classified as otherfinancial-liabilities ate Initially
recoguized at fair value less directly atitlbutable transaction costs. After initial recognition,
other-fingncial-liabilities ate subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. The effective interest method is 2 method of calculating the amortized cost of
a financial llability and of allocating intetest expense over the relevant period. 'The effective
interest rate is the rate that exacily discounts estimated futute cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, wheie appropriate, a shotter petiod,

Financial Jiabilities classified as FVIPL include financial Habilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as FVIPL. Fair value changes on financial
liabilities classified as FVTPL ate tecognized through the statement of loss,

Financial fgtroment classifications

The company has macde the following clagsifications:

Cash FYTPL



HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Stated in $CAD)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES, CONTINUED

®

Y

®

Financial instrwments, continued,

Accounts receivable Loans and receivables
Investments FVTPL

Restricted cash FVIPL
Accounts payable and accraed liahilities Other lighilities

Impairment of non-financlal assets

The company continually reviews ancd evaluates the eveats ot changes in the economic
etwvirontment that indicate a risk of impairment of assets to detetmine whether the cartying
amount of the asset or group of assets under consideration exceeds its or their recoverable
amount. Impaizment of the assets is cvaluated at the cash-genetating unit ("CGU") level which
is the smallest identlfiable group of assets that generates cash inflows, independent of the cash
inflows from other assets, as defined by LAS 36 "Impairment of assets”, Recoverable amount is
defined as the higher of the CGU's fair value (less costs to sell) and its value in use, The active
matket or a binding sale agreement provides the best evidence for the determination of the
fair value, but where neither exists, fair value is based on the best information available
to teflect the amount the company could receive for the CGU in an arm's length transaction.

Value in use is equal to the present value of future cash fows expected to be derived from the
use and sale of the CGU,

Provisions

A provision Is recognized on the statement of financial position when the company has a
present legal or copstructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and 2 reliable estirnate of the
obligation can be made. If the effect Is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

'The company's activities could give tise to obligations for envitonmental rehabilitation which
can inchxle facilities dlsmantliag, removal, treatment of waste materials, monltoring, compliance
with environmental segulations, securtty and other site-telated costs required to perform the
rehabilitation work, Aty current expenditures reparding the environmental cehabilitation ate
charged to the cost of the project, Provisions for rehabilitation are petiodically adjusted by the

cotnpany, when applicable, There aze no material obligailons at December 31, 2011, December
31, 2010 and January 1, 2010,

10
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HOMELAND URANTUM INC.,
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Stated in $CAD)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

o

®

Deferred taxes

Putsuant to the ligbility method, defesred taxes are recotded for tempotary differences existing

at closing date between the tax base value of assets and labilities and theit catrylng amount in
the consolidated statement of financial position,

Defetred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the expected tax rates for the year duing
which the asset will be realized ot the liability settled, based on tax rates (and tax regulations)

enacted or substantially enacted by the closing date, They ate reviewed at the end of each year,
in line with any changes in applicable tax rates.

Defetred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporaty differences, cacey-forward of tax
losses and unused tax ceedits, insofat as it is probabie that a taxable profit will be available, or
when a cutrent tax liability exists, to make use of those deductible tempotasy differences, tax
loss catry-forwards and unused tax cedits, except whete the deferted tax asset assoclated with
the deductible temporary difference is generated by inital recognition of an asset ot liahility in a
transaction which is not a business combination, and which, at the transaction date, does not
Impact eithet eartings or tax income or loss,

Cusrent tax and defetred tax shall be charged or eredited directly to equity if the tax relates to
items that are credited ot chatged directly to equity.

Share based payments

The corpany offers a share option plan for its ditectots, officers, employees and consultants,
Each tranche in an award is considered 4 separate award with its own vesting period and prant
date fair value. Fait value of each tranche is measured using the Black Scholes option pricing
model. Compensation expense is recognized over the tranche's vesting petiod by increasing
conttibuted sutplus based on the number of awards expected to vest. Any considesation paid
on. exetcise of share options is credited to capital stock, The telated reserve for the share based
payment amount is transfereed to capital stock when the options ave exercised,

For equity settled transactions, the company measures goods or services received at their fait
value, unless that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case the company measuzres
their value by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted,

Earnings (loss) per share

Basic eatnings (loss) per share amounts are calenlated by dividing et carnings (loss) for the

year attributable to common sharcholdess by the weighted avetage number of common shases
outstanding duging the year.

Diluted eatnings (loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to
common shate holdets of the patent by the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted averape number of shares that would be issued on the

convetsion of all the dilutive insttuments, None of the options or watrants are dilutive in
pature.
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Stated in $CAD)

SIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

(m) Measurement uncettainty

The prepasation of consolidated £nancial statements lo compliance with IFRS requites the
company’s management to make cettain estitnates and assuioptions that they consider
treasonable and realistic, Despite regulat teviews of these estimates and assuimptions, based in
particular on past achievements or anticipations, facts and circumstances may lead to changes in
these estimates and assumptions which could impact the rteported amount of the

company’s asscts, labilities, equity ot earnings. These estimates and assumptions notably
telate to the following items:

Measurement of impairment in assets - In determining carrying values and impaitment charges
the company looks at recaverable amounts, defined as the highet of valus In use ot fait value
less cost to sell in the case of assets, and at objeciive evidence that identifies significant or
prolonged decline of fair value on financial assets indicating impairment. These detetminations
and thelr individual assumptions require that management make a decision based on the best
available information at each reporting petiod.

Environmentz] rehabilitation provision - Provisions for rehabilitation require judgement as to
the time frame and amounts required to successfully complete such rehabilitations given factors

such as weather conditions, the success of replanting efforts and limitations on access to the
relative asea of exploration,

Tanctional cuttency - The functional cutrency fot the company and subsidiarles s the cutrency
of the primaty econommlc envitonment in which each operates: Canadian Dollat, US Dallar
and West African CHA. Determdnation of functional currency say tequire certaln judgements
to determine the pdmary cconomic environment, The company recousiders the fanctional

cutrency used when thete is a change in events and conditions which determined the pritoary
economic environmet,

Accumulated other comprehensive incosne (loss)

Comptehensive income (loss) is comprised of net income and othet comptchensive income
(loss), Certain gains and losses atising frotn changes In falr value ate temporasdly recorded
ouiside the consolidated statement of operations In acenmulated comprehensive income as a
sepatate component of shareholders’ equity, Other comprehensive income (loss) may inclade
any unrealized gaing and losses on available-for-sale securities, foreign cutrency translation pains
and losses on the currency used for presentation and changes in the fair matket vahie of
detivative insteuments designated as cash flow hedges, all net of taxes.

12



HOMELAND URANIUM INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Stated in $CAD)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRS STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

The TASB fssued a tumber of new and tevised Intetnational Accounting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Stancards, amendments and related interpretations which are effective for the
company'’s financial year beginning on or after Januaty 1, 2012, Por the purpose of prepating and
presenting the financial information for the relevant petiods, the company has consistently adopted
all these new standards for the televant reporting petiods, At the date of authorization of these
consolidated financial statements, the TASB and IFRIC has issued the following new and revised
standagds and intetpretations which are not yet effective for the relevant teporting petiods:

* IFRS 9 - 'Hinancial Instruments: Classification and Measutement! — effective date extended to
Jannary 1, 2015, addtesses the classification and measurement of financial assets, Tt uses a single
approach to determine whethet a financial asset is measuted at amortized cost ot fait value, The new
standard also tequires a single impairtoent method to be vsed.

* TFRS 11 - Joint Atrangements' - establishes the principles for joint actangements by focusing on
the tiphts and obligations of the artangement, tather than its legal fornd, It zequires a venturer to
classify its interest in & joint arrangement ag a joint venture ot joint operation. Joint ventures will be
accounted for using the equity method wheteas for a joint operation the venture will be accounted
for using the propottionate consolidation method,

* IFRS 12 - Disclosure of laterests in Other Entities' - requites the disclosute of information that
enables users of financial statements to cvaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, its interests
in other entities and the effects of those interests on its financial position, financial perfosmance and
cash flows,

¢ IFRS 13 - Pair Value Measurement' - provides guidance on the measurement of fait value and
related disclosures through a fair value hievarchy.

*I1AS 19 - "Bmployee Benefls' amends the existing standard to eliminate options to defer. the
tecognition of gains and losses in defined benefit plans, tequires remeasutement of a defined benefit
plan’s assets and liabllities to be presented in othet comprehensive income and increases the
disclosure.

* IFRIC 20 - 'Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Minc' applies to all types of
natugal resources that are extracted using the surface mining activity process. IFRIC 20
pertnits capitalization of siripping costs if all of the theee ctifetia are met: probability of economic
benefit, identifiability of ore body and measurability of stripping costs, IFRIC 20 provides a mote
detailed cost allocation guidance based o a relevant production measure that allows allocation

between inventory produced and the stripping activity asset. IFRIC 20 may represent a change in
accounting practice for some Canadian mining entitles.

'The company has not early adopted these standards, amendments and Interpretations, However,

matiagement is cutrently assessing the impact of thelr application in the consolidated financial
statements of the company,
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Stated in $CAD)

RESTRICTED CASH

Certain cash balances are restricted a5 they relate to deposits with state regulatoty authotities in the
United States to secure various reclamation guatantees with respect to mineral properties in Utah
and Colorado. As these licenses were not tenewed by December 31, 2010, the company is in the
ptocess of obtaining final release of these funds. As these funds are not available for general
corporate purposes, they have been separately disclosed,

During 2011, $100,459 of these deposits wete retutned to the company after suceessful completion
of the repulatory tequirements,

INVESTMENTS

The company's investments, all considered FVIPL, are catried at matket value and cotnptised of the
following;

December 31 Decembes 31 Jatuary 1
2011 2010 2010
$ Shates § Shares $ Shatres
Southetn Andes Energy Ine. 367,787 2372819 1,161,486 2497819 - -
Homeland Energy Group Lid. - - 17,500 250,000 25,000 250,000

Macusani Yellow Cake Inc. - .

- 2,197,332 7,619,047

367,787 1,178,986 2,202,332

During 2011, the company sold 125,000 shases of Southern Andes Energy Inc. and all of its
position in Homeland Foergy Guoup Lid. for gross proceeds of §85,175,

The 2010 investment transactions are detailed below:
(n) Investmentin Southern Andes BEnergy ITne. (2010) -

© On May 14, 2010, pursuant to the signing of a letter of intent in March 2010 with Solex
Resources Corp, (“Sclex™), an unrelaied entity, the company acquired from Solex
81,054,442 comumen shates of Solex for consideration of $4 willion in cash and
approximately 7.6 million common shares of Macusani Yellowceake Ine, (“Macusani”)
tepresenting a 12.7% interest in Macusani as well as 4 right to purchase the shares Issuable
if the company exetcises up to approximately 4.57 million Macusani watiants.

(i) The transaction was conditicnal on obtaining an agreement with Hldotado Gald Company
on cextain aspects of this tiansaction as well as the approval by not less than a majotity of
the votes cast by Solex shareholdets, These conditions were later met and on May 14,
2010, the company announced the closing of the transaction wheteupon it gaived control
of Solex, The company received 81,654,442 (pre-consolidation} common shares of Solex,
giving it a majority ownership stake, and received the rdght to nominate four ditectors to
the Solex hoard, with former Solex shateholders having the tight to nominate two
ditectors to the board and the sight to name the Solex CEO. The shareholders of Solex
also proposed a name change of the company to Southern Andes Bnetpy Inc. (“Southern
Andes”) and a proposed 31 share consolidation plan effective May 17, 2010. The issued

14
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC,
Notes to Consolidated Ritancial Statements
‘Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Stated in $CAD)

INVESTMENTS, CONTINUED

(it

(iv)

)

and outstanding shates of Southern Andes wete consolidated to 53,659,709 with the
company owning 27,218,147 shates (2 50.7% ownership laterest),

Following « review of vaticus altetnative manners in which the company could have
distributed the Sowthetn Andes shares to its shareholders, management recommended to
the Boatd that distdbuting the Southern Andes shates to sharcholders as part of 4
reduction of stated capital (the “Reduction in Capital”) would be the most effictent and
advantageous of such alternatives, including from a taz perspective,

Consecuently, on October 27, 2010, the Board of Directors apptoved, amoty othet
matiers, the convening of a special meeting of shareholders to be held on December 15,
2010 for the purpose of submitting to shareholders for their approval a special resolution
authotlzing the disttibution of a majority of the Southern Andes shates as part of
teduction of the stated capital of the company’s commuon shares, ‘The Reduction in Capital
Resolution was approved by the company’s shateholdess at that special meeting,

Following shaseholder and regulatory approval, the company disttibuted 24,720,328 shares
of Southern Andes to its shareholders, Following the etutn of capital, the company
retained 2,497,819 shares of Scuthern Andes (a 4.65% ownership interest),

Pot accounting purposes, the substance of the initial acquisition and the subsequent teturn
of capital ate characterized as follows:

(1) For the perod from the acquisition (May 14, 2010) to the subsequent retusn of capital
(December 15, 2010), the results of operaticns of Southern Andes have been consolidated
by virtue of the company's ability to control the opetations of Southern Andes duting that
ownership petiod, as evidenced by its 50.7% ownership intetest and related control of the
Board, The company recorded net loss and other comprehensive income of §515,653 and
$1,008,100 respectively duting this control period with a cottesponding inctease in its
carrying value (prior to the return of capital).

(2) The company followed TFRIC 17 — Distributions of Non-Cash Assets to Qwness' In
accounting for this transaction, In accordance with this puidance, a dividend of
$12,112,961 (§0.49 per share) was recorded, The dividend was based on the fair value of
the distribution, detettmined using the etading price of the Southetn Andes common shates
immediately following the date of spinoff, ‘The diffetence between the fair vatue of the
dividend and the carsying value of the assets and liabilities of Southern Andes ($6,370,646)

was recoghized as a gain in the consolidated statement of income for the year ended
December 31, 2014,

(3) Subsequent to December 15, 2010, the company's residual 9.2% interest in Southern
Andes constitutes a financial asset that has been designated 95 FVTPL. The cattying value

has been increased by $581,261 as of year-end and recognized through the consolidated
statements of loss,

(4) In summnary, the Southern Andes investment continuity for fiscat 2010 was as follows:
Cash consideration $ 4,000,000
15



HOMELAND URANIUM INC,
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended Decernber 31, 2011 and 2010

INVESTMENTS, CONTINUED

(Stated in $CAD)
Cartying value of Macusand (see note 5()) 1,830,093
Acquisition cost of Southetn Andes 5,830,093
Net loss to Decembet 15, 2010 (515,653)
Other comprehensive income to Decembet 15, 2010 __ 1008100
Carrylng value ptior to spin-ont 6,322,540
Reduction in investment from spie-gut (5,742,315)
Carrying valne after spin-out 580,225
Increase in casrying value (as TVTPL) 581,261
Carrying value as at Decemnber 31, 2010 # 1,161,486



HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Stated in CAD)

6, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Cost

As at Januaty ¥, 2010
Additions

Disposals

Cutrency adjustiment

As at December 31, 2010

Disposals
Cutrency adjustments

As at December 31, 2011
Accumulated depreciation
As at Jarwary 1, 2010
Depreciation

Disposals

Cutrency adjustment

As at December 31, 2010
Depreciation

Disposals

Currency adjustment

As at December 31, 2011

Net book value

As at Januaty 1, 2010 (Note 19)
As at December 31‘, 2010 (Note 19}

As at Decembet 31, 2011

Computer Automotive Futnitute & Exploration

equipment equipment  fixtures equipment Total
$ $ $ $ $
141,662 265,118 81,225 136,637 624,642
2,656 0 0 0 2,656
(17,480)  (195,795) (5,622) D (219,897)
(16,121) (23,080) {6,755) (13,303) (53,25%
116,717 45,243 68,848 123,334 354,142
(20,267) (23,489) (34,385) (28,203) (106,345)
(1,170) 753 (547) (1,556) {2,520)
95,279 22,507 33,916 93,574 245,276
81,625 173,528 28,690 56,357 340,200
285,942 47,201 10,851 24,730 111,725
(13,564  (170,368) (3,233 0 (187,166)
(3,329) (15,750 {2,216 (5,774 (27,069
93,674 34,611 34,092 75,313 237,690
12,865 2,200 8,998 22,056 46,121
(13,883) (14,654) {14,570) (19,713) (62,880)
(2,458) 348 {958) {3,073} (6,141)
90,198 22,507 27,561 74,524 214,789
60,037 91,590 52,536 80,279 284,442
23,043 10,631 34,757 48,020 116,451
5,081 0 6,355 19,050 30,487

3ee accompanying notes
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC,
Notes to Consolidaied Financlal Statements
Yeags ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Stated in $CAD)

MINERATL PROPERTIES

(o) Niger conicessions:

@

(i)

@)

(@)

‘The company was granted three year uranium exploration concessions in January 2007 and
approved by a governmental order on May 31, 2007, 'The eight concessions are located in
the Agadez-Arlit district of northern Niger and are held in the name of Uranium
International Limited Niger, a branch of the company’s Ontario subsidiaty,

On Juae 7, 2010, the government of Niger agreed to extend this agreement a further 27
months to August 33, 2012 under the same terms and conditions.

The key tesms of the agreement include:

{a) 50% of the concessions must be relinquished on ot before November 30, 2012,
(1) 2 minimum expenditmre of US§2,125,000 pex concession duting the grant petiod (see
note 18)
fc) 5 10% free carried incerese for the state it the mining phase with an option to aceuite
an additional 30% at market value;
(d) exemptions during the exploration period inchude;
- valne added tax
- corporate Income tax
- income tax for expatziate employees
- land tax
- licence contribution :
- mining flat tax and other registradon fees
- import duties on cettain equipment and spare paris
{¢) a sliding scale mining royalty between 5.5% to 12% of the matket valne of production
ot FOB terms
{f) exemptions during the mining phase inchide:
- value added tax until the date of production
- taxes on industtial/business profits for three years from production
~ lagd and nuning fat taxes indefinitely
- import duties on cettain equipment and spaie patts,

During 2011, the company expended a forther $313,175 (2010 - $455450) on the
acquisition, exploration and development of mineral properties in Niger, As at Decembet

31, 2011, the cumulative net expenditutes on these propetties were $11,928,161 (2010 -
$11,614,986).

Alihough the company has taken steps to verify title to the mineral properties on which it
is conducting exploration and in which it has an interest, these procedures do not
guarantee the company’s title.  Although management is not aware of any such
agreements, transfers or defects, propeity title may be subject to untegistered prior
agrcements, claims or transfers and dtle may be affected by undetected defects,  Assets
located cutside of North America are subject to the sk of foreign investment, including

curreney  exchange fluctvations and restticdons and local political instability and
uncertainty,
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC,

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Yeats ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Stated in $CAD)

MINERAL PROPERTIES, CONTINUED

The company faces rlsks and uncetaintics including: () the inabillty to obtain the
finahcing necessary to complete the development of its troperties, () realization of
ptoceeds from the sale of its properties, or (i) the company's ficenses, permits or
concessions being revoked as a result of title disputes, a faflute to comply with agreements
ot secutity issues preventing the safe exploration and development of any properties under
license. Specifically, the company has encountered many delays dusing the execution of its
Niger project due to events and clreumstances beyond its control, The government of
Niger has acknowledged these delays as “force majeute” and has granted the company an
extension to its cuttent concessions untll August 31, 2012 to compensate for: the lost time,
essentially giving it a fucther two yeats to comply with its orlginal spending requitetnents.

(b} US propetties:

) Duting the year ended December 31, 2009, the company did not renew the mining leases

of four propetties, These properties consisted of CNX, Nottua Jean, and Tex in the stats
of Colotado and the Detemo West property in Utah.

() During 2010, the company expended a further $360,024 on the acquisition, explotation
and development of mineral properties in the US. As at December 31, 2010, the
comulative net expenditures on these properties were §8,406,860,

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

December 31 December 31 Jatuary 1

2m 2010 2010
Balances made up oft -
Trade accounts payable and accruals - $ 403,370 § 206,858 § 216,962
Payroll retated 61,429 57,167 15,076

$_ - 464,799 § 264025 § 232048

As patt of the private placement completed in February, 2012, $42,250 of accounts payable and
accrued liabilides were settled In efrchange for cormmon shares.

19



9,

10,

HOMELAND URANIUM INC,
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended Decernber 31, 2011 and 2010
(Stated in $CAD)

INCOME TAXES

{a) The company has o current ot defetred tax assets or labilities for, 2011 ot 2010,

(b) 'The company's effective tax tate differs from the Canadian statutory rate as follows:

2011 2010
Statutory tate 28% 31%
Non deductible expenses {15)%% {32)%
Losses not recognized (recognized) 13)% 16%
Effective tax rate 0% 15%

{c) The effective tax rate for 2010 recognizes a notional income tax benefit for tax losses to the extent

of notional income tax tecognized as expenses in shateholders’ equity on the expity of watiants
and the paid-up capital reduction duting that year. The 2011 siatutory tax rate differs from the
2010 statutory tax rate due to enacted geductions in statutory rates,

(d) The company has Canadian tax losses of $5,725,000 (2010 - $4,829,000) that expire between 2026

and 2031, and other deductible temporaty differences totaling $5,988,000 (2010 - $6,186,000), The

benefits of thess losses and other tax deductions have not heen recognized in these consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
{#) The company is authorlzed to issue an unlimited numbet of cotnmon shaics,

®)

©

ey

(e}

In June, 2010, the company closed a non-brokered private placement finandng of 20,000,000
cammen shares at $0.05 per common shate for pross proceeds of §1 million. The common
shares were subject to a four-month hold petiod in accordance with requisite secutities laws, A
finder’s fee of 5% payable in cash was paid on a portion of the private placement to qualified
finders. The net proceeds of the financing atnounted to $985,500.

In February 2007, the company agreed to issue 4,000,000 commen shares in retarn for services
tendered towards a prospective acquisition nicknamed the "Lighthouse Project". 400,000 of
these cominon shates wete issued without condition while the remaining 3,600,000 common
shares were held in escrow on condition that the sald acquisition was formally accomplished
before June 26, 2010, For the pusposes of these consolidated financial statements,” 400,000
shares issued without condition has been accounted at §92,000 with the balance having no

assipned value, On June 26, 2010, the condition to release the cscrow had not matetialized and
the remaining 3,600,000 shates were cancelled.

In May, 2011, the company closed a non-biokered ptivate placement financing of 20,000,000
comfnon shates at $0.0075 per common share for cash proceeds of $150,000. The common
shates wete subject to a four-month hold petiod in accordance with requisite securitics laws,

In Tebroary, 2012, the company closed a non-btokered private placement financing of
55,000,000 common shares at $0.005 per common share pross proceeds of $275,000, Of the
total proceeds, $214,150 were recelved in cash, and the balance of 60,850 were used to retive
existing accounts payable, The common shares were subject to a four-month hold petod in
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existing accounts pzyable, The comtnon shares were subject to a four-month hold petiod in
accordance with requisite secntities laws,

11, WARRANTS

@

()

©

In 2007, the company closed a broketed private placement consisting of 28,434,100 waits fot
gross proceeds of $22,747,280, Each unit was convertible into one common share of the
company and ohe half of one common share putchase warmait of the company. Hach whole
common share purchase warrant of the company entitled the holdet to putchase one additional
common shate of the company at an exercise price of $1.25 per share during the following 24
month oetiod, In conjunction with this funding, the agent and other brokers were issued
1,898,353 broker warranis, Each broker warrant entitled the holder to purchase one additional
common shate of the company and one half of one common share purchase wattant of the
company duting the following 24 month period. A value of $4,776,929 was asciibed to the
common shate putchase wartants based on their fair value as determined using the Black-
Scholes option valuation method. Similatly, a value of §1,057,383 was ascribed to the broker
wattznls for 4 total valuation of §5,834,312,

In June, 2009, the company extended the expiry of the 14,217,050 then-outstanding common
shate purchase warrants by up to one year such that they expired by June 19, 2010, In addition,
the common shate purchase warzants exetcise price was amended from §1.25 to $0.80 per
wattant resulting in an increase in the value attributed to these watrants of $1,619,067,

In 2009, the broker warrants expited ugexetcised, In 2010, the common shate putchase
watrants also expired unexercised.

12, STOCK OPTIONS

The company has adopted a stock option plan under which it may grant options to putchase shares of the
company, There wete no new options granted duting 2010 and 2011, all outstanding options as at December
31, 2011 ate fully vested and numerous options have been cancelled as the respective option holder's tghts

have expired under the terms of the relevant agreement, The following summarty sets oot the activity in
outstanding stock options;

2011 2010
Outstanding, beginning of year 3,940,000 4,090,000
Cancelled (1,660,000) (150,000
Outstanding, ending of year - 2,280,000 3,940,000
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Numaber of stoclk Remaining Exetcise price per Expiry
options contractual life shate date
1,530,000 0.4 0.25 May 7, 2012

750,0G0 1.2 0.25 Match 6, 2013

2,280,000

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, all outstanding options were exercisable, Duting the year, the
company recognized $8,190 (2010 - $22,048) of share based payments.

Lo0ss PER BHARE

‘The weighted average number of shares outstanding for the 2011 year is 74,856,010 (2010 -

56,179,845}, Diluted ioss per shate Is the saine as basic loss per share as all options and watrants are
anti-dilutive,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The company's activities expose it to a vasfety of flnanclal tisks; credit tisk, Hauidity risk and market
tisle (including intersst tate, curtency and fair value). Risk management is carried out by the
company's maragement tean with guidance from the Audit Committee under policies approved by

the Board of Directors, The Boaud of Directors also provides tegular guidance for overall risk
management,

() Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with counterparty’s Inability to fulfill its payment
obligations. ‘The cempany's credie risk is primarily attributable to accounts receivable and cash.
Financial insttuments included in accounts receivable consist of miscellaneous accounts
reeeivable and accrued Interest and depoesits held with consnltants and other service providers,
As at December 31, 2011, cash of $4,783 (December 31, 2010 - $24,413, January 1, 2010 -
$4,337.215) is held with reputable financial institutions from which management believes the
tisk of Joss to he minimal, All accounts receivable and reclamation deposits held by US banks
and TS government departments are in good standing, As of December 31, 2011, a total of
$21,570 (December 31, 2010 - $60,367, January 1, 2010 - $60,367) represented the maximum
credit exposuze on accounts recelvable. Management believes that the credit risk concentraiion
with tespect fo accounts receivable is negligible,

() TLiquidity visk

Liquidity rigk refess to the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial
obligations when they hecome due, or can only do so at excessive cost (see note 1(c)). The
company's approach to managing liquidity tisk is to ensure that it will have sufficient fquidity to
meet liabilities when cue, and as such, the company has classified its investments as current. As
at December 31, 2011, the company has negative wotking capital of $30,984 (December 31,
2010 - $1,129,4606, January 1, 2010 - $4,175,709). All of the company's financial liahilities have
contractual matutities of less than 90 days and ate subject to normal trade tetins,
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PINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, CONTINUED
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Curtency tisk

In managing currency tisks the Company aims to reduce the impact of shoreterm fluctuations
on the earnings. Over the longer texm, howevet, permanent changes in foreign exchange wonld
have an impact on consolidated earnings.

Market tisk

The company is cxposed to certain market #isks including changes in pricing and limited access
to foreign markets. Specifically, the casrying value of its Jnvestments, all of which are classified
as FVITL ("fair value through profit of loss"), ate adjusted every petiod for any changes in
their quoted trading prices.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate tisk is the tisk that the faiy value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. As the company has minimal or no cash

balances that eatn intesest acd no interest-beating debt, its interest tate tisk is considered
nominal,

Sensitlvity analysis

As at December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and Januaty 1, 2010, the carrying and fair value
atnounts of the cotmpany's financial instruments ate apptoximately equivalent,

i)  ‘The company's functional cusrency is the Canadian dollat and majot puschases ate
transacted in Canadian dollags, The company funds cettaln operations, explotation and
administrative expenses in Niger and the United States on 4 cash call basis using US dollax
curkeney converted from its Canadian dellar bank accounts held I Canada. The company
maintains US dollar bank accounts in Canada and the United States, 'The company is exposed to
foreign currency risk on fluctuations of finandial instiuments that ate denominated in US
dollats and West Afeican francs (CI7A'S) related to cash, restricted cash, accounts recefvable,
investments and accounts payable and accrued liabilities, Sensitivity to 2 plus or minus 10%
change in the foreign exchange rate would affect the net comprehensive income Isy §28,000.

i) The company Is exposed to market tisk as it relates to its investments held in marketable
secutities, If market prices had vared by 10% from their Decernber 31, 2011 fair martket value

positions, the net loss and/or comprehensive income would have vatied by approximately
$37,000.
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FINANCIAL INATRUMENTS, CONTINUED
(g) Fair value hieragchy

The following suminarizes the methods and assumptions used In estimating the fait value of the
compatty's financial instraments where measutement is tequired. The fait value of short-term
financial instruments approximates thelr catrying amounts due to the relatively shott petiod to
maturity, ‘These include cash, testricted cash and matketable securities, Fait value amounts
represent point in time estimates and may not reflect falr value in the future, The measurements
ate sublective in hature, involve uncetiainties and are a matter of slgnificant judgment, The
methods and assumotions used to develop falr value measurements, for those financial
instrumerits where fair value is recognized in the balance sheet, have been ptiotitized into thtee
levels as per their falr value hiesatchy, Level one includes quoted prices (unadjusted) in actlve
matkets for identical assets ot Habilitfes. Level two includes inputs that are observable othes
than quoted prices included in level one, Level three includes inputs that are not based on
obsetvable matket data, The falr value of the company's financlal instraments where financial
measutement is tequited ate as follows:

December 31 December 31 Jamnary 1

2001 2010 2010
Levell
Cash $ 4,783 § 24.413 § 4,337,215
Restricted cash $ 26,881 § 127,340 § 162,742,
Tnvestments % 367,787 $ 1,178,986 § 2,222 332

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The company's chjective when managing capital s to malntain adequate levels of fuading to support
development of its exploration projects, to expand segional explotation activities within Niger and to
maintain corporate and administrative functions, The company considers its capital to be equity,
which is comptised of shate capital, contributed sntplus, teserve for wartants, teserve fot shate
based payments, accumulaied deficit and accumulated other corprebensive loss, which at December
31, 2011 was $(497) (December 31, 2010 - $1,245,917, January 1, 2010 - §6,845,225) (see note 1(c)).
The company manages its capital stuctuge in an effort o provide sufficient funding for its

development projects. Funds are primartly secured through. equity capital taised by way of private
placeinents.

Thete can be no assutances that the company will be able to continue raising equity capital in this
manner, The Boatd of Ditectors does not establish quantitative retutn on capital ctiteria for
management, but rather relies on the expertise of the company's manapement to sustain future
development of the business, Management reviews its capital management approach on an ongoing
basis and believes that this approach, given the relative size of the company, is teasonable, There
have been no changes in the company's approach o capital management since the year-end. The
company is hot subject to externally imposed capital tequirements,
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SEGMENTED INFORMATION

‘The company conducts its business in a single opesating segment consisting of the explotation
activities in Niger, whese all mineral properties and equipment ate situated,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The company has transacted with related parties pursvant to service arrangements in the ordinary
course of business, as follows:

@

()

©

(@
©

‘The company paid consulting fees of §14,000 (§3,500 per month for a perlod of fout months)
to the CEO of the company (2010 - $NIL), Stasting in July, 2011, that compensation was added
to the overall compensation of the cotnpany desciibed in note 17 (h-i).

Management and administrative services:

(@ Starting in January, 2011, the company paid $6,500 per month to Grove Capital Group
Ltd., a company controlled by an officer and ditector, for management and administrative
services, including compensation for the CFO, cotpotate secretary, office rent and regular
administrative functions. Stardng in July, 2011, the fee was incteased to $10,000 per month
as the compensation of the CEQO was assumed by Grove Capital, Total fees paid duting
the year totalled $99,000 2010 - §NIL). Accounts payable and accrued liabilities as at |
December 31, 2011 inchades §33,900 owing to this party (including applicable HST).

(i) Starting in June, 2010, these setvices wete provided by Southern Andes Boerpy Inc, at a
monthly rate of $4,000 (total of $28,000) at a a time when the companies shated common
management and office premises. Southern Andes Energy Inc. received $9,250 in eatly
2011 duting the transition to the new management team,

An amount of §30,000 (2010 - $NILY was paid to a company owned by the CPO for
incremental sexvices provided during the year. Accounts payable and accrued liabilidies as at
December 31, 2611 includes §23,900 owing to this party (including applicable HIST).

"The company patd consulting fees of FNIL (2010 - $2,000} to a former director.

Rental income of §NIL (2010 - §4,995) was teceived from a company controlled by a director,
A company controlled by a director received consulting fees of USD §39,000 during 2011
relating to the administration of the wind-down of the affaies of the company's US subsidiary,

I 2010, this individuat recelved 2 salary from the company's US subsidiary on the basts of his

full tme employment thete in the orditary course of business. Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities as at Deceraber 31, 2011 includes USD $9,000 owing to this party.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGEMNCIES

The company is committed to spend a minimum of USD $300,000 per concession before November
30, 2008 (USD $2,400,000 for the eight concessions). Fot the periods ending November 30, 2009
and 2010, the annual expenditures are incteased to USD $500,000 and USD $1,325,000 tespectively
pet concession (USD §4,000,000 and USD $10,600,000 for the eight concessions). The concession
licenses have since been extended to Awgust 3i, 2012, To date, the company has spent
approximately § 6,120,000 (excluding pre-operational expenditutes) on the eight Niger concessions,

The company has encountered many delays during the execution. of its Niger project due ta events
or citcumstances beyond the company’s contral. The government of Niget has acknowledged these

delays as “force majeure” and has pledged to grant the company an extension to its cusrent contract
to compensate for the lost time.

In addition, the company has agteed to make thiee annual cash payments to the governmeni for the
putpose of training Niget nationals equivalent to TUSD $10,000 per concession ot USD $80,000 per
year for its eight concessions as patt of minimum spending commitments, To date, one of these
payments has been made and the other two have been acctued, The company is contingently lable
for an addidonsl two years of annual training fees during the extension petiod described above, the

tesults of which ate dependant upon negotiations with the Niger povetnment fot renewal of the
concessions,

FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IFRS (SEE SCHEDULES 1 TO 4 ATTACHED)

Under IFRS 1 Fiist time Adoption of International Floancial Reporting Standards’, the IPRS are
applied retrospectively at the transition date with all adjustments to assets and labilitics from those
stated undet GAAP taken to retained eatnings unless certain exemptions are applied. The company
has followed the recommendations in IFRS-1 'Hisst-time adoption of IFRS', in preparing its

transitional statements. IPRS 1 provides specific one-time choices and mandates specific one-time
exceptions with tespect to fitst-time adoption of IFRS.

(I) Choices available at first-time adoption IFRS that the company has adopted include:

{m Property and equipment: IFRS 1 provides a choice between measuring propetty and equipment
at its fair value at the date of transition and using those amounts as deemed cost or vsing the
histosical valuation under the prior GAAT, ‘I'he company has decided to contiue to apply the
cost model for property and equipment and has not restated. propetty and equipment to fait
value under IFRS. The historical bases under Canadian GAAP have been designated as the
deemed cost under ITFRS at Transition Date.

(B) Ioreign exchange: Retrospective application of IFRS would requite recalculation of cumulative
cuttency teanslation differences in accordance with TAS 21, The Bffects of Changes in Foreign
Fxchange Rates, from the date a subsidiaty of associate was formed ot acquired. Alternatively,
TFRS 1 petmits cumulative translation gains and losses to be tesel to #ero at the transition date

of January 1, 2019, The company has elected to reset all cummlative translation gains and losses
to zero in opening retained earnings at Janvary 1, 2010,
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Shase-based payments: IFRS 2, Share Based Payinents, permits the application of that standard
otly to equity instruments granted after Novembet 7, 2002 that had not vested by Januaty 1,
2010. As permitted, the company has applied IFRS 2 fot all equity instruments granted after
November 7, 2002 that had not vested by Januvary 1, 2010.

Mining properties; IFRS 6, Explotation for and Evaluation of Minetal Propetties, permits
entities to continue to wse their existing accountng policies fot exploration and evaluation
asseis. The company will take an exemption provided by IFRS 6.7 in developing its accounting
policies and will apply secton 10 of IAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Eerots, a5 requited by TFRS 6.6, As a tesult of this policy choice, the company is
reguired to expense all of its previously capitalized exploration and evaluation expenditures at
the transition date (sce also note 2{d)) and Schedule 1). The company will not continue (o
capitalize exploration expenditures and will adopt a policy choice whete all explotation and

acquisition costs of unproven resources are expensed as it believes that this policy resules in
information that is:

Business combinations: TERS 3, Business Combinations may be applied retrospectively ot
prospeciively. ‘The tetrospective basis would requite festatement of all business combinations
that oceusred prior to January 1, 2010, The company has elected not to tetrospectively apply

IFRS 3 to buginess combitations that occutred prior to Jaouaty 1, 2010 and such business
combinations will not be restated,

{(I) Explanatory notes to the following IFRS reconciliations (see Schedules 1 to 4 attached)
are as follows:

(@)

Under Canadian GAAP — Prior to 2011, the company used the policy to defer the cost of
mineszl propesties and their related explosation and development costs until the properties ate
placed into production, sold ox abandoned. These costs would be amottized over the estimated
useful life of the propertics following the commencement of production, Cost includes both the
cash consideration as well as the fair market value of any securities issued on the acquisiton of
mineral properties, Properties acquired under option agreements ot joint ventures, wherchy
payments were made ar the sole discretion of the company, wete recotded in the accounts at
such time as the payments are made. The proceeds from property options granted reduced the
cost of the telated property and any excess over cost is applied to income.

Unidgr TFRS ~ Acquisition, exploration and evaluation expenditures for each propesty can be
exponised as incutted, unless such costs are expected to be recovered through successful
development and exploration of the property ot, alternatively, by its sale, All mining property
expenditures capitalized and related deferted taxes up to December 31, 2009 have been charged
to deficit as at January 1, 2010,
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Under Canadian GAAP - Financial statements of the company’s integrated foreign operations are
ttanslated into Canadlan dollats using the teporal method, Under this method, monetaty
asscts and labilites denominated in foreign currencies ate translated at cugtent rates of
exchange with the resultant gains o Josses recognized in the consolidated statement of loss,
while non-monetary items atre translated at histotical rates of exchange. Hxpenses are converted
at the average rate for the yeat.

Under IFRS - The results and financial position of all the subsidinsies that have a functional
currency different from the presentation cutrency are translated into the presettation cugiency
as follows: assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated
at the closing tate at the date of that statement of financial position, income and expenses for
¢ach statement of Income are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable 2ppsroximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses ate ttanslated at the rate on the dates of the

transactions); and all resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separate component of
shareholders' equity,

Under Cattadian GAAP — Priox to 2011, the company tecorded the vale of share based
payments issued to contributed surplus,

Under IFRS — TFRS requires an entity to present for each component of equity, a reconciliation
between the cattying amount at the beginning and end of the period, sepatately disclosing cach
change. IFRS requites 4 separate disclosure of the value that selates to "Resetves for share
based payments" and any othet component of shareholders' equity,

Under Cattadian GAAP — The spin-out of Southern Andes Inc, tepteseated a non-monelaty
non-teciprocal transfer to the company’s shareholders and was measuted at the cattying amonat
of the investment with a corresponding reduction to deficit.

Utder IFRS — TFRIC 17 - Distrlbutions of Non-Cash Assets to Owners' was used to account
for thls transuction, In accotdance with this gaidance, a dividend based on the fait value of the
distribution, determined using the trading price of the Southern Andes common shares
immediately following the date of spinoff, was recorded. The difference between the fait value
of the dividend and the cariying value of the Southeth Andes investment was recognized as a
gain in: the consolidated statement of incorme for the year ended December 31, 2010.
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PIRST TIME ADOFPTION OF IFRS

Schedule 1: Reconcillation of Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

as at January 1, 2010
Effoct of
Canadian  ttansitdon to
GAATP IFRS IERS ESs Nate 19
§ B ¥
ABSETS
Cuarreni;
Cash 4,337,215 - 4,337,215
Accounts teceivable 70,532 - 70,532
4,407,747 - 4,407,747
Lohg tect: :
Restricted cash 162,742 - 162,742
Investments 2,222,332, - 2,222,352
Property and equipment 258,320 26,122 284,442 1(b)
Mineral properties 11,886,823  (11,886,823) - II(a)
18,937,964  (11,860,701) 7,077,263
LIABILITIES
Cuarrent
Accounts payable and accrued labilides 232,038 - 232,038
Long term:
Futute income taxes 2,150,000 (2,150,000) - II(=)
2,582,058 (2,150,000 232,038
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital 18,751,611 - 18,751,611
Contsibuted sutplas 4,499 4197 (1,990,307 2,509,190 T(c)
Reserve for warrants 6,595,996 6,395,996
Resetve for shate based payments - 1,990,307 1,990,307 1I{c)
Accumulated deficit (13,001,178) 0,710,701y (22,801,879  IE(a),(b)
16,555 926 (9,710,701) 6,845,225
18,937,964 (11,860,701} 1,077,263
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FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IFRS

Schedule 2; Reconciliation of Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

a3 a3 December 31, 2010

Effect of
Canadian  trahsition to
GAAP IFRS YERS
$ $ $
ASSETS
Current;
Cash 24413 - 24,413
Accounts receivable 62,752 - 62,752
Restricted cash 127,340 - 127,340
Investments 1,178,986 - 1,178,986
1,393,491 - 1,393,491
Long teem:
Property and equipment 116,560 (109) 116,451
Mineral propertics 11,614,986 (11,614,986) -
13,125,037 (11,615,095 1,509,942
LIABILETIES
Cutrent;
Accounts payable and acerued liabtlities 264,025 - 264,025
Long terin:
Futute income tazes 1,200,000 {1,900,000% -
2,164,025 (1,900,000 264,025
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital 19,737,111 - 19,737,111
Coniributed surplns 10,547,541 (2,012,355) 8,535,186
Reserve for shate based payments - 2,012,355 2,012,355
Accumnlated deficlt (19,323,640 (0,666,182) (28,989,822
Accumulated other comprehensive loss . (48,913 {48,913
10,961,012 (8,715,095) 1,245,917
15,125,087  (11,615,095) 1,509,942
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FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IFRS

for the year ended December 31, 2010

Schedule 3: Reconeiliation of Consolldated Statement of Lose and Comprehensive Loss

Revenue
Gain on spin-out of Southerh Andes Energy Inc,
Ugrealized gain on held-for-trading securities
Foreign exchanpe gain
Guain on disposal of property and equipment
Intetest income

Expenses
Iimpairment of minersl properties
Exploration expenditures
Realized loss on hdd-for-teading secusitics
Cotpotate and investat telations
Professional fees
Project development
Office and administration
Depreciation
Share based prayments

Loass froin discontinued opetations before income
taxes

lncome tax rCCOVﬂt)T
Nei loss froin continued ppetations
Loss fiom disconthued operations
Net earotngs (loss)
Basic and difuted cacnings (loss) per shase |
Other comprehensive earnings (loss)

Net earnings (loss)
Bxchange differences on teanglating foreign operations

Effeet of
Canadian transition to 78 Note
GAAP IFRS RS 19
§ 3 ]

- 6,370,646 6,370,646  TI{A)
573,764 . 573,764
222,533 (227,321) (4,788) TE(a),(b)
44,503 - 44,503
12,007 - 12,007
852,807 6,143,325 6,096,132
1087311 (1,087,311) - ()

- 913,550 013,550  EI{a)
367,239 - 367,239
288,885 - 280,385
183,869 . 183,569
98,076 (08,076 . TH(a)
115,560 - 115,560
£2411 - 12411
22,048 : 22,048
2,205 399 Q71857 1935562
(1,352,502) 6415162 5,062,570
(772,000) - (772,000)
(580,592} 6,415,162 5,834,570
515,653 515,653

(1096245 6415162 5318917
©.01) 0.09 D07
(1,096,245 6,415,162 5,318,917
: (18.913) (48,913) . TI{b)
(1,096,245 6,366,249 5,270,004
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FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IERS

for the year ended December 31, 2010

8chedule 4: Reconciliation of Consolidated Staternent of Cash Flows

Operatlng activities
Net loss from continning operations

Add (deduct) ltems not affecting cash
Galn on spin-out of Southern Andes Enesgy Inc,
Amortization
Impaltaent of mineral properties
Income tax recovery
Shate based payments
Gain on disposal of propesty and equipment
Foreign exchange gain on future tax liabilicy
Realized loss on FVTPL securitues
Untealized gain on FVTPL securitnes
Unrealized foreipn exchange losses

Change in non-cash working capival balances
Aceounts recetvable and prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Binancing activities
Net proceeds from issnance of share capital

Investing activities
Mineral propesties expenditures
Proceeds from sale of propetty and equipment
Decrease in restricted cash
Investment i Southern Andes

Decrease in cash
Cash, beglnning of pestod
Cash, end of pertod

Effect of
Canadian transition to
GAAP TFRS IURS
§ ) §
{580,592 6,415,162 5,834,570
- (63T0,646)  (6,370,646)
42,411 69,152 111,563
1,087,311 (1,087,311} -
(772,000) - (772,000}
22,048 - 22,048
(44,503) - (44,503)
(250,000) 250,000 .
367,239 - 367,239
(573,764 - (573,764)
- (25,683) (25,683)
{701,850) (749,326) (1,451,176
7,780 - 7,780
31,988 - 31,988
{662,082 (749,326) {1,411,408)
985,500 - 985,500
(749,326) 749,326 -
77,703 77,703
35,402 35402
(4,000,000 - (4,000,000
(4,630,221) 749,526 (3,586,895
{4,312,803) - (4,312,805
4,357 215 - 4,337,215
24,412 - 24,412
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Members of Pinon Ridge Mining LLC

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Pinon Ridge Mining LLC (the “Company”) as of August 31, 2014,
and the related statements of operations, changes in members’ equity and cash flows for the period from March 10, 2014
(Inception) through August 31, 2014. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management,
Our responsibility is to express an epinion on these financial statements based on our audit,

We conduoted our andit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the sudit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged (o
perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting, Gur audit included consideration of Internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumsiances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting,
Accordingly, we express no such opinion, An audit glso includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation, We believe that our gudit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Pinon Ridge Mining LLC, as of August 31, 2014, and the results of its opetations and its cash flows for the period from

March 10, 2014 (Inception) through Awgust 31, 2014 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

The accompanying financiel statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern, As
discussed in Note 1, the Company has no present revenue and the Company’s cash and working capital as of August 31,
2014, are not sufficient to complete its planned activities for the upcoming year. These condifions raise substantial doubt
about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concetn. Management’s plans regarding these matters are algo

described in Note 1. The financial statements do not inelude any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty,

fsf Marcum LLP
Marcum LLP

New York, NY
November 14, 2014



PINON RIDGE MINING L1.C
BALANCE SHEET
AUGUST 31, 2014

Assets

Cutrent agsets:
Cash
Prepaid license fees and othet expenses
Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Mining properties and minetsl interests
Restricted cash
Total non-current assets
Total assets

Liabilitics and Members' Equity

Current liabilities:
Note payable, current
Accrued expenses
Total cucrent liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current pottion
Reelamation liabitity
Total non-current lisbilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and continpencies

Members' equity
Total members' equity

Total liabilities and members' equity

$ 164,461
125,059

289,520

1,539,195
672,196

2,211,351

$ 2,500,911

$ 243,909
30,825
274,734

659,280
109,749
769,029
1,043,763

1,457,148
1,457,148
$ 2500911

The accompanying notes are an integral purt of these financial statements
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PINON RIDGE MINING LIC
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS .
FOR THE PERIOD MARCH 10, 2014 (INCEPTION) THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2014

Operating expenses

General and administrative expenses $ 42,894
Total operating expenses 42,894
Loss from operations {42,894)
Other expense
Interest expense {1,058)
Total ofher expense (1,058)
Net losg 8 (43,952}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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PINON RIDGE MINING LLC
STATEMENT OF MEMBERS' EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD MARCH 10, 2014 (INCEPTION) THROUGH

AUGUST 31, 2014
Total
Members'
Bquity
Balance, March 10, 2014 (inception} $ -
Membeiship bontributions 1,501,100
Net loss (43,952)
Balance, August 31, 2014 $ 1,457,148

The accompanying notes ave an inlegral part of these financial statements
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PINON RIDGE MINING LLC
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities
Amortization of note discount
Changes in operating assets and liabilities;
Prepaid license feas and other expenses
Accrued expenses
Total adjustments
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows used in investing aclivities
Investment in restricted cash
Purchase of mining assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Cash contribulion for membership interests
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net inerease In cash
Cagh - beginning

Cash — ending

For the period March
10, 2014 (inception)
through Angust 31, 2014

$ (43,952)

524

(125,059)
30,825

(93,710}

(137,662)

(672,196)
(526,781)

(1,198,977)

1,501,100

1,501,100

164,461

$ 164,461

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stalements
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PINON RIDGE MINING LI.C
STATEMENT OF CASHTLOWS

For the period March
10, 2014 (inception)
through Augugt 31, 2014

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid during the yenr for!
Interest ‘ $

Non-cash investing activity;
Purchase of mining assets:

Assets purchased:
Mining properties and mineral interests $ 1,539,195
Total purchase price consideration 1,539,195
Less: cash paid to pugchase the mining assets (526,781)
Non-cagh consideration $ 1,012,414

Non-cash consideration consisted of:

Notes payable $ 902,665
Reclamation liabilily assumed 109,749
Non-cash consideration ' $ 1,012,414

The accompanying notes ave an integral part of these financial statements

1



PINON RIDGE MINING LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE PERIOD FROM MARCH 10, 2014 (INCEPTION) THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2014

Nete I - Deseription of Business and Going Concern

Business

Pinon Ridge Mining LLC, a Delawars limited liability cornpany with an indefinite term, (“Pinon” or the “Company”) was

fotmed on March 10, 2014 for the purpose of purchasing and operating uranium mines in the Pinon Ridge region of Utah
and Colorado.

From the Company’s inception through August 18, 2014, the Company was actively searching for, negotiating, and closing
on a purchase of mining propertics and mineral interests. On August 18, 2014, the Company closed on the purchase of
certain mining properties {the “Mining Assets™) from Energy Fuels Holding Corp. (“EFHC") {as disclosed in Note 3).

The Company has selected December 31 as its fiscal year-end.

~

Going Concern

The Company will need to raise additional capital through foans or additional investments from its members, officers,
directors, or third parties. None of the members, officers or directors is under any obligation to advance funds to, of to
invest in, the Company. Accordingly, the Company may not be able fo obtain additional financing. If the Company is
unable to raise additional capital, it may be required to take additional measures to conserve liquidity, which could
include, but not necessarily be limited to, curtailing operations, suspending the pursuit of its business plan, and reducing
overhead expenses, The Company cannot provide any assurance that new financing will be available to it on
cominercially acceptable terms, if at all. These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continne

as a going concern, These financial statements do not include any adjustments that might resylt from the outcome of these
uncertainties,

Note 2 - Smmmary of Signifieant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States (“U.S. GAAP™). In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of norwal aceruals)
considered for a fair presentation have been included, Operating results for the period March 10, 2014 (inception) through

August 31, 2014 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the period March 10, 2014
(inception) through December 31, 2014,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to malke estimates and
assumptions that affect the repotfed amounts of assets and Habilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date
of the financial statements as well ag the reported expenses during the reporting periods, The more significant arcas
requiring the nse of management estimates and assumptions relate to the assumptions used in the valuation of the
Company’s mining reclamation liabilities, The Coropany bases its estimates on management’s historical experience and
on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the cirgumstances, Accordingly, actual resnlts will
differ from the amounts estimated in these financial statements.



PINON RIDGE MINING LLC
NCTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM MARCH 10, 2014 (INCEPTION) THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2014

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accownting Policles, continued

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company maintains cash in bank accounts, consisting solely of deposits held at major banks, which, at times, may

exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and periodically evaluates
the credit worthiness of the financial institutions and has determined the credit exposure to be negligible.

The Company considers all highly liquid nstruments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to
be cash equivalents. As of August 31, 2014, the Company had no cash equivalents.

Mining Properties and Mineral Interests

Mining Properties

For new projects without established proven seserves, all costs, other than purchase costs, are expensed prior to the
establishment of proven and probable reserves, Reserves designated as proven and probable are supported by a feasibility
study, indicating that the reserves have had the requisite geclogical, technical, and economyic worl performed and are
legally extractable at the titme of reserve determination. Once proven and probable reserves are established, all
development and other site-specific costs are capitalized, including general and administrative charges for actual time and
expenses incurred in connection with site supervision ag mine development costs, Development drilling costs incurred to
infill mineralized material to increase the confidence level in order to develop or increase proven and probable reserves
are also capitalized as mine develepment costs. If subsequent events of citcumstances atise that would preclude further
development of the reserves under the then existing laws and regulations, additional costs are expensed until the
irpediments have been removed and the property would bo subject to ongoing impairment reviews, When a mine is
placed into production, the capitalized acquisition and mine development costs are reclassified to mining properties and
are amortized to operations using the units-of-production method based on the estimated metals that can be recovered. As
of August 31, 2014, the Company’s mining properties are idle.

Mineral Interests

Mineral intorests inchude the cost of obtaining patented and unpatented mining claims and the inifial cost of acquiring
mineral interests. If a mineable ore body is discovered, such costs are amortized when production begins using the units-
of-production method based on proven and probable reserves, If no mineable ore body is discovered ot such rights are

otherwise determined to have no value, such costs are expensed in the period in which it is determined the property has no
future economic value,

The Company uses the “full cost method” of accounting for its mineral interests. The full cost method penerally provides
for capitalizing all costs incurred in acquiring mineral rights, drilling, and exploration activities, These costs are then
amortized and charged to expense and are tested for impairment on o ¢narterly basis. This impairment assessment is
based on wotk completed on the properties to date, the expiration date of its leases and technical data from the properties
and adjacent areas. The Company’s capitalized costs are subject to & ceiling test which limits such costs to the aggregate
of the estimated present value discounted at a 10% rate of future net revenues from proven reserves based on current
economic and operating conditions, plus the cost of properties not being amortized. During the period from March 10,
2014 (inception) through Augnst 31, 2014, the Comipany has not recorded any impairment,

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of cash held in certificates of deposit pledged to secure the reclamation of the Mining Assets, The

restrictions will be released when the reclamation is completed, which the Cotnpany does not expect to oceur prior to
2054,



PINON RIDGE MINING LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM MARCH 10, 2014 ((NCEPTION) THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2014

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impaitment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the asset may not be recovered. The Company looks primarily to the undiscounted future cash flows in
its assessiment of whether or not long-lived assets have been impaired. If impairment has occutted, the long-lived assots

are written down to their estimated fair vatues. There was no such impairment for the period March 10, 2014 (inception)
throngh August 31, 2014,

Income Taxes

Becauge the Company is a limited ability company, for both federal and state income teax purposes, the income or loss of
the Company is generally allocated to the members in accordance with the Company’s formation agreoments, and it is the
tesponsibility of the members to report their share of taxable income or loss on their separate income tax refurns. As
sueh, the Company does not directly pay federal and state income taxes.

Management has concluded that the Cempany is a pass-through entity and thete were no uncertain tax positions that
would require recognition in the financial statements, Ifthe Company was to incur an income tax liability in the future,
inferest on any income tax lability weuld be reported as interest expense and penalties on any income tax lisbility would
be repotted as income taxes, Management's conchisions regarding uncertain tax positions may be subject to review and
adjustment at a later date based upon ongoing analyses of tax laws, tegulations and interpretations thereof as well as other
factors, Generally, foderal, state and local anthorities may exainite the Company's tax returns for three years from the date

of filing and the current year remaing subject to examination as of Angust 31, 2014, The Company’s principal
jurisdictions are Colorado and Utah.

Recently Adopfed Accounting Pronouncemenis

In June 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASE") issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No.
2014-10, “Development Stage Entities (Topic 915): Blimination of Certaitt Financial Reporting Requirements, Including
an Amendment to Variable Interest Entities Guidance in Teopic 810, Congolidation." This ASU removes the definition of a
development stage entity from the ASC, thereby removing the financial reporting distinetion between development stage
entities and other reporting entities from GAAP, In addition, the ASU eliminates the requirements for development stage
entities fo (1) present inception-to-date informetion in the statements of operations, cash flows, and stockholders’ equity,
(2) label the financial statements as those of a development stage entity, (3) disclose a description of the development
stage activities in which the entity is engaged, and (4) digclose in the first year in which the entity is no longer a
development stage entity that in prior years it had been ir the development stage. This ASU is effective for annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2014, and interim periods therein. Barly adoption is permitted. The
Company has elected to adopt this ASU effective with these financial statements and its adoption resulted in the exclusion
of previously required development stage disclosures,

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statements - Going Concern (Subtopic
205-40): Disclosure of Uncettainties about an Entity's Ability to Continue as a Going Concern ("ASU 2014-15"), ASU
2014-15 provides guidance about management's responsibility to evaluate whether there i3 substantial doubt about an
entity's ability to continue as a going concern and sets rules for how this information should be disclosed in the financial
statements. ASU 2014-15 is effective for annual periods ending afier December 15, 2016 and interim periods thoreafter.

Early adoption is permitted. The Company has adopted ASU 2014-15 effective with this report for the period Angust 31,
2014, The adoption of ASU 2014-15 impacts disclosure only.
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PINON RIDGE MINING LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM MARCH 10, 2014 (INCEPTION) THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2014

Note 3 — Purchase of Mining Assets
On August 18, 2014, the Company purchased the Mining Assets from EFIIC.

The Mining Assets include both owned and leased land in the Pinon Ridge region of Utah and Colotado, Alt of the
Mining Assets have been permitied for mining vranium and vanadium. The Company has not established proven or
probable reserves, as defined by the 1.5, Securities and Exchange Commission under Industry Guide 7, through the
conpletion. of a “final” or “bankable” feasibility study for any of its mineral projects. Without having established proven

or probable reserves, there may be greater inherent uncertainty es to whether or not any mineralized material can be
economically extracted as originally planned and anticipated.

The consideration for the Mining Assets included the following:

Cagh paid at closing ‘ $ 526,781
Reclamation liability assumed 109,749
Notes payable 902,665

Total consideration 5 1,539,195

The total consideration above wes recorded on the balance sheet as “mining properties and mineral interests”. In addition;
the Company was required to fund certificates of deposit representing permit bonds required to operate the mines, which

represent pledges to secure the Company’s reclamation of each mine. These certificates of deposit are recorded on the
Company’s balance sheet wnder “restricted cash™,

Note 4 — Notes Payable

On August 18, 2014, in connection with the purchase of the Mining Assets (as described in Note 3), the Company entered
into a note payable with BFHC (the “EFHIC Note™) for §500,000. The EFHC Note bears interest at rate of 3.0% per
annum and 18 secured by a first pricrity interest in the Mining Assets. On the date of the purchase, the Company recorded
the EFIIC Note net of a discount for interest of $73,971 at a rate of 4% per anmum, resolting in o total effective interest
rate of 7% per annum. The discount is being amorlized using the sffective inferest method over the life of the loan. All

principal on the BFIIC Note is due and payable on August 18, 2018 and interest on the BFHC Note is due and payable
annually beginning Avgust 18, 2015,

On Auvgust 18, 2014, also in connection with the purchase of the Mining Assets, the Company entered into a Note
Assumption Agreement with EFHC and Nuclear Bnergy Corporation (“Nueco™), whereby the Company assumed all of
the obligations of EHFC undey its note payable with Nueco (fhe “Nucco Note”), The Nueco Note has remaining
obligations outstanding of $500,360, with two installments of $230,180 cach, the first of which was due on October 13,
2014, The second installment is due on Ootober 13, 2013, The Nueco Note bears no stated interest rate and is secured by
certain of the Company’s Mining Assets. On the date of the purchase, the Company recorded the Nucco note net of a
discount for interest of $23,724 at u rate of 7% per annvm, The discount is being amortized using the effective interest
method over the life of the loan, On November 5, 2014, the Company entered into an Agreement with Nueco for the
purpose of addressing the payment which came due on October 13, 2014, Under the terms of the Agreement, the due date
for the 2014 payment was extended to Decembor 20, 2014, On or before December 20, 2014, the Company shall pay
Nueco the full amount of the 2014 payment together with interest thereon at a rate of 6% per annum,
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FPINON RIDGE MINING LL.C
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM MARCH 19, 2014 (INCEPTION} THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2014

Note 4 ~ Notes Payable, continued

The Company’s notes payable are as follows as of August 31, 2014

EFH{C Note Nueoo Note Taotal
Notes payable $ 500,000 $ 500,360 $ 1,000,360
Note discount (73,271) (23,200) (97,171)
Nates payable, net 426,029 477,160 903,185
Less: current portion - 243,909 243,906
Long term portion of
notes payable, net $ 426,029 $§ 233,251 $ 659,280

Future minimum principal payment are as follows:

For the twelve

months ending

August 31, Amount
2015 $ 250,180
2016 -
2017 -
2018 750,180
1,000,360
Less: discount (97,171)
Thotal, net $ 903,189

Note 5 — Reclamation Liahilities

In connection with the Company’s pichase of the Mining Assets, the Company evaluated the reclamation Labilities
which are defermined by rates set by law. The Company has cstimated that the gross reclamation liability is currently
approximately $672,196, and expects to begin incurring the lability after 2054, The Company discounted the ability for
time at a discouni rate of 6.1% and calculated the net digcounted value to be $109,749; such amount is subject to
revigions. The gross reclamation liability is secured by certificates of deposit,

Mote 6 - Commitments and Contingencies

Environmental Matters

The Company’s mining and exploration activities are sulject to various laws and regulations governing the protection of
the environment. These laws and regulations are continvally changing and are generally becoming more restrictive. The
Cowmpany conducts its operations so as to protect the public health and environment and believes its operations aze in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations In ail materjal respects. The Company has made, and expects (o make in

the future, expenditures to comply with such laws and regulations, but cannot predict the full amount of such futute
expenditures.
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PINON RIDGE MINING L1C
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM MARCH 19, 2014 (INCEPTION) THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2014

Note 6 - Commitotents and Contingencies, continued

Obligations of Mining Assets

In connection with the purchase of the Mining Assets, the Company assumed certain royalty agreements and other
obligations to cerfain third parties. These royalty agresments each have a royalty in place of 1% of production in

perpetuity., Once the Mining Assets are operational and the valus of the obligations is estimable, the Company will
record such expenditures accordingly.

Notie 7 — Subsequent Evenis

Management evaluates events that have oceurred affer the balance sheet date but before the financial statements are
issued. Based upon that evaluation, other than as described below, management did not identify any reco ghized or
nonrecognized subsequent events that would have required adjustmeat or disclosure in the financial statements.

On November 6, 2014, the Company entered into a share exchange agreement with Homeland Uranium, Inc., a Canadian
publicly traded company ("Homeland"}, its wholly owned Utah incorporated subsidiary also named Homeland Uranium

Ine. and certain other parties. The terms of the share exchange agreement provide that the members of the Company ate to
feceive a number of common shares of Homeland equal to approximately 97.50% of the issued and outstanding shares of
Homeland in exchange for their ownership of the Company. Also, under the share exchange agreement the principals of

the Company will become the board of directors of Homeland, and the Company’s Manager will become the President
aud CEO of Homeland.
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Homeland Uranium Inc.

Pro Forma Statement of Financial
Position

August 31, 2014

(Stated in $USD)
(Unaudited ~ prepared by management)
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.

Pro-Forma Stateinent of Financlal Posltion

As at August 31, 2014
(Stated 1n $USD)

{Unaudited - Prepared by Mahagement)

D B AuBeCHD
Pincn Pan Aftican Pro-forma
Ridge Homeland  Uranlum adjustments
Minihg Urandum  Ifci catve (USD & Pro-fottaa
Desoription LIC (USD) Ine (CAD) out (CATN Pro-forma notes CAD) - bulance (USD)
¥ § § ¥ $
ASSETS
Current;
Cash 164,461 8842 188 Ay, 4cl, d-g 175,148 348,263
Accouvnts recelvable and prepaid expenses 13,143 5,657 A=l -5 6,895
Pprepaid licease fees and other expense 125,059 125,059
Marketable securitles 41,903 A-dy due -41,903 0
259,520 53,888 5,845 480,217
Long tetmt
Restricted cash equivalents 672,196 672,196
Mining properties 1,539,195 4-a 30,393,000 31,932,195
2,500,941 63,888 5,045 30,525,654 33,084,608
LIABILITIES ’
Cutrent;
Accounts payable and accrued Linbiliges 30,825 678,997 527,666 44, d-e -83,102 99,054
Nota payable 243,909 243,909
274734 678,597 527,666 342,963
Long ternn
WNote payable, het of earrent pottion 659,280 659,280
Reclamation Nabillty 109,749 109,749
Intercompany loan papable 6,341,577 16 6,341,577 0
1,043,763 678,997 6,869,243 1,411,992
EBEQUITY )
Sharee capital/membess' equity 1,457,148 20484111 3,739,339 d-a, 4-h,y d-d, 4+ 14,730,309 32,532,220
Reserve for wartants 103,000 4-d, 4-f -1403,000 0
Conriboted sneplus 10,558,731 4-d, 4-f ~10,555,731 0
Share bused payments 33,000 4, 4.1 -33,000 0
Deflcit -31,702,732 10,602,737 4-c, 4-d, 4-e, 4-5 g 20,140,383 -059,612
Accwnulated othes comprehensive Incorme 88,210 d-d, 4-¢ 88,219 0
1,457,148 -615,409 6,863,394 31,972,616
2,500,911 43,888 5,845 30,525,654 33,084,608




HOMELAND URANIUM INC.

Notes to Pro Forma Statement of Finandial
Posltion

As at August 31, 2014

Stated in $USD

{Unaudited - prepared bv manaoameant)

1. Structure of Transaction

This unaudited pro forma statement of financlal positlon has been prepared for purposes of
inclusion in a listing statement in support of an application to list common shares on the

Canadian Stock Exchange by Homeland Uranium Ine. (*MU” or “tha Issuer’) dated November
20, 2014,

Following the listing of the Common Shares, tha Issuer intendls to undertake a reorganization
{the “Spin Out") with respect to Pan Afrlcan Uranium Corporation (*PAUCT). Under the terms
of the Spin Out, the shares of PAUC will be distributed to the shareholders of record the Issuer
on November 3, 2014 on a pro rata basis. If approved, thls will result in the current
shateholders of HUL ownlng the shares of PAUC directly, and therefore PAUC will no longer be

& subsidlary of the Issuer. The completion of the Spin Out s subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Issuer.

On September 23, 2014 the Issuer entered Into a Leiter of Intent (*the Acquisition”) to
acquire all of the Issued and outstanding shares of Pinon Ridge Mining LLC (“PRM™ in
consideration for 8,800,000,000 (8.8 blllion) shares of the Issuer priced at CAD$0.00375 per
share for a total value of CADY$33,000,000 (USD $30,393,000). This transaction has been
accounted for as a reverse takeover of HUI by PRM as more fully dascribed below in note 3. A
formal share exchange agreement was executed on November 5, 2014,

The assets of PRM consist of the San Rafael Uraniurmn Project, which is currently the Issuer's
only materlal property, and elght other uranium snd/or vahadium exploration properties.
Following the completion of the Acquisition, HUT will seek approval to complete a consalidation
of Its outstanding common shares on the basis of one {1) post-consolldated common share for

each eight hundred (800) pre~consolidation common shares and to change its name to
Western Uranfum Corporation.

On November 20, 2014, the Issuer completed a private placement to parties related to PRM
for the issuance of 95,055,946 common shares priced at CAD $0.0029 per common share for
gross proceeds of USD $247,808 (CAD $275,662),

Following the Acqulisition and the private placement, the shareholders of HUI will be 96.60%

as to PRM, 0.95% to the particlpants of the private placement, and the remaining 2.45% will
be held by the current shareholders of HUL,

The purpose of the Spin Qut is to preserve the value, if any, of the historical assets of HUI in
Niger, for the current shareholders of HUI as determined prior to the completion of the
Acquisition and the private placement. On the completion of the Spin Qut, the Niger assats,

which are owned through PAUC, will no longer be assets of MUI as the shares of PAUC will be
held directly by the current shareholders of HUI.

Following the completion of the Acquisltion and the Spin Qut, the principal business of the
Issuer will be the development of the PRM assets. The pro-forma adjustments fo this
statement of financial position have been prepared on the basis thal the Acquisition, the
private placement and the Spin Out will be complated. The Acquisition and the private
placement are intended to be completed immediately prior to Iisting. The Spin Out will be
completed following a meeting of shareholders scheduled for December 23, 2014 wheraln
shareholders will also be asked to approve a change of hame of the issuer and a consolidation
of the Issuer’s outstanding common shares on the basis of one (1) post-consolidated common
share for each eight hundred (800) pre-consolidation common sharas,
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
Notes to Pro Forma Statement of Financlal
Posltion

As at August 31, 2014

Stated in $USD

{Unaudited -~ orepared bv managemerit)

2, Basis of presentation

These unaudited pro forma financlal statements have been prepared on the basls of
(a) an acquisition of assets of PRM by HUI, and (b) the spin out of the PAUC assets by HUL,
respactively. The accounting for the effects of the Spin Out will only be determinabla If
the Spin Out Is approved based upon the exchange of assefs and share Issuances.
Accordingly, this pro forma statement of flnancial position Is not necessarily
indicative of the future financlal position or results of operatlons of the Issuar,

2. Basis of presentation (continuead)

This overall unaudited pro forma statement of financlal position has been prepared in accordanca
with management’s unhderstanding of the application of the standards applicable under
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"}, the GAAP that Canadian reporting. lssuers

must followlng. The components of this unaudited pro forma statement of financlal position are
as follows:

. Audited balance shzet of Pinon Ridge Mining LLC as at August 31, 2014, stated in
UsD, prepared In accordance with US GAAP. Generally speaking, no material

accounting policy differences have been identified by management betwesn US
GAAP and IFRS.

. Unaudited Interim consclidated statement of financlal position of Homeland
Uranlum Inc., the Issuer, as at June 30, 2014, stated In CAD, prepared In

accordance with International Financlal Reporting Standards (“IFRS™), prepared
by management.

. Unaudited interim consolidated statement of financlal position of Pan African
Uranium Corp. ("PAUC"}, the “carve-out” statement, as at June 30, 2014, stated

in CAD, prepared In accordance with Internatlonal Financlal Reporting Standards
(“IFRS™), preparad by management.

K Subtracting this flnancial position from the pro forma statement of fingncial
position gives the POA the effect as If it had occurred on July 1, 2014. PPRM Is

only acquiring HUL's listing, and Is not acquiring any of its Niger assets held
through PAUC.

Thesa unaudited pro forma financial statements are provided for illustrative purposes only,
and do not purport to represent the financial position that would have resulted had the
POA actually occusred on (1) June 30, 2013, the data of the HUI statement of financlal
position, (2) August 31, 2014, the date of the PRM statement of financial position, or
(3) any other dale. Further, these pro forma flnandal statements are not necessarily
indicatlve of the future financial position or rasults of operations of PRM as a result of the
POA. In partlcular, certaln costs incurred with respect to the POA are ona-off in nature
and not expected to recur In future periods. These unaudited pro forma flnancial statements
should he read in conjunction with the audited financial statements of PRM for the
perlod ended August 31, 2013, the carve-out statement of financial position of PAUC as
at June 30, 2014, and the unaudited Interim financial statemenis of Homeland Uranium
Inc. for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,

3. Significant accounting policies

Management of the Issuer has attempted to use accounting policies used in the preparation of
these unaudited pre forma flnanclal statements that are generally those required under IFRS,
In preparing the unaudited pro forma financial statements, a review was undertaken to of PRM
's accounting policies under US GAAP with a view to identifying any policy difFerencestltf%
age
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HOMELAND URANIUM INC.
MNotes to Pro Forma Statement of Flnancial
Position
As at August 31, 2014
Stated In $USD
{Unaudited - prevared by manadement?
IFRS where the Impact could be pctentially material and could be reasonably estimated.

No material accounting policy differences were identified. It Is possible that certain accounting
policy differences may be identified after completion of the proposed acquisition.

The policy of capitalizing exploration and mining expenditures under US GAAP, as PRM currently
does, Is one that management expects to follows in the future under IFRS, In addition, the
company also expects Its presentation currency under IFRS to be the USD, as it is for the pro
foerma statement of financial position.

Reverse takeover transaction ("RTO™)

On September 23, 2014, HUI entered into a Letter of Intent ("the Acquisition”) to acquire all of
the issued and outstanding shares of PRM in consideration for 8,800,000,000 (8.8 billlon)

shares of the Issuer priced at CAD$0.00375 per share for a total value of CAD$33,000,000.
Thls transaction constitutes a reverse takeover of HUL by PRM,

Although the transaction resulted in PRM legally becoming a wholly-owned subsldiary of HUY,
the transaction constitutes a reversz takeover of HUI and has been accounted for as a
reverse takeover transaction in accordance with guidance provided In IFRS 2 Share Basad
Payments, After the spin out of Pan African, and MUl no longer dqualified as
a business according to the definition in IFRS 3, this reverse takeover transaction does

not constitute a business combination, It has been treated as an Issuance of shares by PRM
for the net monetary assets of HUI,

The transaction therefore Is accounted for as a capital transaction, with PRM belng identifled
as the accounting acgulrer and the equity consideration belng measured at fair value, The
resulting statement of financlal position Is presented as a continuance of PRM operations,

The conslderation paid by PRM to acquire HUI was measured on the basis of the fair value of
the equity Instruments Issued, considering the price per share of private placements closing
concurrently with the transaction. In accordance with IFRS 2, any excess of the fair value
of the equity instruments issued by PRM over the value of the net monetary assets of

HUI is recognlzad as a non-cash loss on completion of the RTO. Such amount has been
estimated at $920,189 and charged to deficit,

4, Pro forma assumptions

The unaudited pro forma statement of financlal position Is based on the following assumptions
which are preliminary and subject to change;

(a) On September 23, 2014, the Issuer entered Into a Letter of Intent to acqguire (the
“Acquisition”) all of the Issued and ouistanding shares of Pinon Ridge Mining LLC
("PRM") in consideration for 8,800,000,000 (8.8 billion) shares of the Issuer priced at
CAD$0.00375 per share for a total value of CAD$33,000,000.

{b) This pro forma adjustment reflects a non-brokered private placement of 95,055,946

shares at CAD $0.0029 per share for gross proceeds of CAD $275,662 (USD
$247,808) recelved In November, 2014,

(c) This pro forma adjustment reflects the write-of the intercompany loan
owing from PAUC to HUI,

() This pro forma adiustment reflects the foraign exchange conversion of
remaining HUI FS balances (after giving effect to the PAUC carve-
out) from CAD to USD.

(e) This pro forma adjustment reflects the sale of marketable securities and

reversal of certain accrued llabilities on the records of HUT that will
not be assumed as part of the reverse takeover by PRM.

{f) The pro forma adjustment reflects the accounting for the reverse takeovayes
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As at August 31, 2014
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(Unaudited - nreparad bv management?}
described In note 3, Including eliminatlon of the historical equity accounts of HUI.

(Q) This pro forma adjustment reflects estimated transaction costs of CAD$78,150 Incurred
by the Issuer.
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